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The Body Shop International Plc

The Directors Report
For the Period from 26 February 2006 to 30 December 2006

The Directors submit their annual report and the audited financial statements for the 44 week penod
ended 30 December 2006

Change of year end

The offer for the entire share capital of the Company by L'Oreal SA was declared wholly
unconditional on 9 June 2006 and as a consequence the Company changed its year end to be co-
terminous with its new holding company Comparative amounts for the income statement, statement
of changes in equity, cash flow statement and related notes are therefore not entirely comparable

Business Review and Principal Activities

The Company 15 the holding company and main trading company of a group that develops and sells
skin and hair care products and related items through its own shops, franchised outlets, home sales,
mail order catalogues and the internet

Following the acquisiticn of the Company by L'Oreal SA, its shares were de-listed from the London
Stock Exchange on 12 July 2006

The Company recorded a penod of sohd growth Turnover for the year was £257 im, and the
company recorded a post tax profit of £3 2m There were 312 stores in the UK at 30 December
2006, of which 216 were company owned

These figures reflect particularly good results from sales to head franchisees in Europe and Asia,
with very strong performances in the United Kingdom, Norway and Japan Growth was strengthened
by the success of launches such as the Aloe Vera skincare range and the Neroh Jasmin fragrance
and by gift sets which sold very well at the end of the year

Two new markets were opened, Pakistan and India, bnnging the total number of markets in which
the The Body Shop operates to 56 Also dunng the penod, E-commerce selling began in the UK

Growing sales in recently entered markets, such as India and Russia, a raprd succession of product
introductions and the continued focus on multi-channel retailing, mean that in 2007 another year of
growth can be confidently expected

Further information on the Company 1s set out in the Annual Report of L'Oreal SA for 2006

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Company I1s subject to a number of nsks and uncertainties which are monitored by
management The major nsks dunng the perod were

Seasonality of business

Transaction dechne

Channe! conflict

Brand reputation (values)

Poltical and cultural instability

Reliance on central functions

Head franchisee relationship and successicn management
Terronsm

Amencas region stability

L . Ml b e
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The Directors Report
For the Period from 26 February 2006 to 30 December 2006
(Continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)
Foreign exchange / currency fluctuation (impact on the Company and its franchisees)
Changing nature of gifting
Staff retention and recruitment
Avian flu

Results and Dividends

As the Company I1s now wholly owned by L'Oreal SA, incorporated in France, 1t 1s no longer required
to prepare consolidated accounts These financial statements therefore present information about
the Company as an individual undertaking, and not about its Group

The results for the 44 weeks are shown in the income statement and the notes relating to it A
second intenm dividend for the 52 weeks ended 25 February 2008 of 4 4 pence per share was paid
on 3 July 2006 to shareholders who were on the register on 24 March 2006 A second intenm
dividend of £14 0 million for the 44 weeks ended 30 December 2006 was paid on 25 May 2007

Directors
The Direclors of the Company dunng the penod were

Adnan D P Bellamy (Chairman)

Peter Saunders (Chief Executive Officer)
Dame Anita Roddick

Jean-Paul Agon (Vice-Chairman) (appointed 12 June 2006)
Richard Cymberg (appointed 12 June 2006)
Lady Sylwa Jay {(appointed 12 June 2006)
Chnstian Mulliez (appointed 12 June 2006)
Geoff Skingsley (appointed 12 June 2006)
Tom Vyner (appointed 12 June 2006)
Peggy Bruzelus (resigned 13 June 2006)
Howard Mann (resigned 13 June 2006)
Jack Keenan (resigned 13 June 2006)

Irene Miller {ressgned 13 June 2006)
Gordon Roddick (resigned 13 June 2006)

Holdings in the Company
At 30 December 2008 or the date of their resignation, If earher, the Directors no longer had an
interest in the shares of the Company

At 26 February 2006 the Directors i office on that date held the following beneficial interests in the
shares of the Company

Adnan D P Bellamy 7,425,000
Peter Saunders 111,046
Dame Anita Roddick 20,210,836

Peggy Bruzelius -
Howard Mann -
Jack Keenan 70,000

Irene Miller 200,000
Gordon Roddick 18,960,836
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The Body Shop iInternational Plc

The Directors Report
For the Period from 26 February 2006 to 30 December 2006
{Continued)

Holdings in the Company {Continued)

In addition to the holdings shown above, at 26 February 2006 Dame Anita and Gordon Roddick,
together with another indmwdual, were trustees of a non-beneficial holding of 3,439,552 shares The
beneficial holders of these shares were the Roddick children For the purposes of the Companies
Act 1985, Dame Anita and Gordon Roddick are deemed to be interested in each others holdings

At 26 February 2006 the Directors held options /share awards over the following number of shares

Adnan D P Bellamy 800,000
Peter Saunders 4,142,631

The interests of the Directors in the holding company are not required to be disclosed

Board Committees
On 12 July 2006 the Remuneration, Audil and Nomination committees of the board were disbanded

Fixed Assets
The Directors consider that the fair value of the Company's interest in land and buildings
approximates to net book value

Supplier Payments Policy

The Company agrees payment terms with its supphiers and in the absence of any dispute, payments
are then made as expeditiously as possible within such terms Terms will vary according to the
country of supply and type of goods and services provided

The average trade creditor days were 33 (February 2006 29 days)
Financial Instruments
The information required by section 5A, Schedule 7, Companies Act 1985 in relation to Financial

Instruments 1s set out In note 21 to the Accounts

Share Capital
Movements In share capital dunng the year are set cut in Note 14 to the Accounts
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The Directors Report
For the Period from 26 February 2006 to 30 December 2006
(Continued)

Employees
Details of the number of employees and related costs are set out in Note 3 to the Accounts

The Company Is dedicated to engaging and inspinng customers to buy naturally inspired personal
care products To do this, the Company focuses on attracting and retaining employees with great
skills, knowledge and creative talent In retum, the Company offers a unique opportunity for
employees to be part of a globally recognised brand and to play an active role in promoting social
and environmental change through the Company's campaigning, volunteenng and community-gning
programmes

The Company has a long-established policy of promoting diversity throughout the global business
Intemal and external recruitment processes are monitored to ensure there 1s no deliberate bias
Human resource policies reflect the Company's commitment to a fair and equal orgamsation where
everyone I1s encouraged to succeed regardless of sex, race, sexual onentation, age or disability

In the event of an employee becoming disabled every effort 1s made to ensure that their employment
with the Company continues and that appropnate training 1s arranged

The Company aims to ensure that employees' pay and benefits are competitive in the marketplace
A flexible benefits programme 1s offered, in which employees can opt to trade certain benefits, such
as addittonal holidays The majonty of employees are eligible for one of the Company's bonus
schemes

The Company pndes itself in ensunng all employees are aware of its financial and retail
performance A mix of communication methods 1s used to engage and inform employees, including
face-to-face communication sessions, an intranet and wntten publications such as ‘Body News'

The Company formally consults employees via Consultation and Representation Committees,
compnsing employee-elected representatives

Values
The Company continues to operate in accordance wath its five core values which are
Against animal testing
Support community trade
Activate self-esteem
Defend human nghts
Protect our plant

The Company publishes more information on these values and the way it implements them on its
website An updated Values Report was published on the Company's website on 13 July 2007
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The Body Shop International Plc

The Directors Report
For the Period from 26 February 2006 to 30 December 2006
(Continued)

Donations and Community Involvement

The Company donated £0 9 millien (February 2006 £1 0 mullion) to chantable organisations last
year, of which £0 6 mifion (February 2006 £0 7 million) was donated to The Body Shop Foundation
and the remaining £0 3 million (February 2006 £0 3 million) to other orgamsations No politrcal
donations were made by the Company

The Company seeks to make a positive impact on the local communities in which it operates In
both Company owned and franchised markets throughout the world, staff are actively engaged in
supporting many different community-based programmes

The Company has strengthened its commitment to community trade, a programme through which it
purchases natural ingredients and accessones from disadvantaged communities around the world,
and its Stop Violence in the Home campaign In the penod the Company spent £6m on community
trade and launched a successful Stop Violence in the Home campaign with UNICEF

Research and Development
The direct cost of research and development expenditure was £4 Om (February 2006 £5 1m)

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair iew of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and
of the profit or loss of the company for that penod In prepanng those financial statements, the
directors are required to

{(a) select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

(b) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

{c} state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

{(d) prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis, unless i 1s inappropnate to
presume that the company will continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1385 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraid and other iregulanties
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The Body Shop International Plc

The Directors Report
For the Period from 26 February 2006 to 30 December 2006
{Continued)

Audit and Auditors
Each of the persons who s a director of the Company at the date of this report confirms that
1) so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information (as defined by
the Companies Act 1985) of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and
n) each Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director
to make himself/herself aware of any information {as defined by the Compames Act
1985) and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Sectron
2347ZA of the Companies Act 1985

BDO Stoy Hayward LLP resigned as auditors on 12 July 2006 Deloitte & Touche LLP were
appointed to fill the casual vacancy and were subsequently re-appointed at the annual general
meeting

On behalf of the Board

ﬁ;.,/é“ﬂ\

Peter Saunders
Chief Executive Officer
26 July 2007
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The Body Shop International Plc

Independent Auditor's Report
To The Shareholders of The Body Shop International PLC

We have audited the financial statements of The Body Shop Intemational PLC for the penod ended
30 December 2006 which compnse the income statement, the balance sheet, the cash flow
statement, the statement of changes in equity, and the related notes 1 to 28 These financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of
the Companies Act 1985 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are reguired to state {o them in an auditors' report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’'s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set
out in the Statement of Directors' Responstbilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
reguirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinton as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our
opinon the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

In addition we report to you If, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, If
we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding directors' remuneration and other transactions i1s not disclosed

We read the Directors' Report and consider the implications for our report f we become aware of any
apparent misstatements within it

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the company's circumstances,
censistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary In order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
wregulanty or error |n forming our opinton we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of infformation in the financial statements
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The Body Shop International Plc

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of The Body Shop International PLC
{(Continued)

Opinion
In our opimion

the financial statements give a true and fair view, In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
Eurgpean Union, of the state of the company’s affairs as at 30 December 2006 and of its profit
for the penod then ended,

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985, and

the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

Lo he LLFP

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Southampton, United Kingdom

e 27 :Lé, 2007
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The Body Shop International Plc
INCOME STATEMENT

For the Period from 26 February 2006 to 30 December 2006

Revenue

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Prefit on ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the financial period

Restated
(Note 27)
Total Total
44 Weeks to 52 Weeks to
Note 30 Dec 2006 25 Feb 2006
£m £m
257 1 2636
(102 3) (117 0)
154 8 146 B
2 (138 6) {132 9)
162 137
3 13 14
5 {4 3) (54)
132 97
6 {10 0) (6 0)
32 37

The notes on pages 14 to 32 form part of these financial statements

Page 10




The Body Shop International Pic
BALANCE SHEET

At 30 December 2006

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Investments

Deferred tax assets
Non-current receivables

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventones .
Trade and other receivables
Denvatives

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current habilities

Trade and other payables
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings
Obligations under finance leases

Tax payable

Provisions

Total current hiabilities

Nen-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases
Deferred tax habilities

Provisions

Total non-current liabihties

Total habilities

Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Share premium account
Other reserves
Retained eamings
Total equity

Note

- =k -
N‘ocm@‘\l

1
12

13

20
17
17

18

17
19
18

14
14
15
14

As restated
{note 27)
30 Dec 25 Feb
2006 2006
£m £m
669 556
56 84
27 15
1620 1490
- 52
- 34
2372 2231
403 284
580 687
- 01
119 297
110 2 1189
347 4 3420
(80 0) {56 9)
(31 6) {50 8)
(22) 23)
(20) (31)
{06) (08)
{116 4) {113 9)
(12 3} (129)
(16) -
(08) (05)
(14 7) (13 4)
(131 1) (127 3)
216 3 2147
13 109
747 659
93 111
1210 126 8
216 3 2147

These financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the Board on 26 July 2007 and

signed on its behalf by

A

Peter Saunders
Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 14 to 32 form part of these financial statements
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The Body Shop International Pic
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the Period from 26 February 2006 to 30 December 2006

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit

Adjustments

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Amortisation

Impairment of assets

Share option (credit) / charge

Exchange movement

Changes in working capital (excluding the effects of acquisiions)

(Increase) / decrease n inventones
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables
{Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax pad

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquistions of subsidianes

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Dividends receved from subsidianes

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from the 1ssue of ordinary share capital
Proceeds from Employee Share Trust

Proceeds from borrowings

Capital element of finance lease rental payments
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders

Net cash used in / from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the penod

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the penod

The notes on pages 14 to 32 form pari of these financial statements
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As restated

Period from (note 27) 52

26 Febto Weeks to 25

30 Dec 2006 Feb 2006

Note £m £m

162 137

7 75 68

04 06

01 01

8 11 15
06 -

{(18) 16

11 (61)

{1186) 102

147 {15 4)

(2 4) 26

01 150

260 306

5 13 14

5 (4 3) (54)

(45) 51

185 215

(2 4) (29)

{26 1) {15 7)

(54) (21)
16 03 -

{33 6) (207)

14 92 38
61 -

- 22

©7) (03)

(93) (12 6)

53 (69)

{98) {61)

13 217 278

13 119 217




The Body Shop International Plc
Statement of Changes in Equity

Balance at 27 February 2005
Changes in equity for 2005/2006

Employee share option scheme

Shares i1ssued

Dividends (note 16)

Hedging

Net income recognised directly in equity

Profit for the penod

Total recognised income and expense for the period
as previously stated

Pror penod adjustment (note 27}
Amounts previously recognised directly In equity
Amounts now taken through the income statement

Balance at 25 February 2006 as restated

Balance at 26 February 2006
Changes in equity for 2006

Employee share option scheme

Shares issued

Dividends

Net income recognised directly in equity

Profit for the penod

Total recognised iIncome and expense for the period

Balance at 30 December 2006

Attributable to equity holders of the company

AS
restated
(note 27)
Share Share Other Retained Total
capital premium reserves earnings equity
£fm £m £m £m £m
107 62 3 65 1452 2247
- - 43 - 43
02 36 - - 38
- - - (12 6) (12 6)
- - 03 - 03
02 36 46 (12 6) (42)
- - - (68) _ (68)
02 36 46 (194) (110}
- - - 30 30
- - - (20) (20}
109 659 111 126 8 2147
109 659 111 126 8 2147
- - (18) - (18)
04 88 - - g2
- - - {9 0) (90)
04 88 (18) {(90) (16)
- - - 32 32
04 88 (1 8) {58) 16
113 747 93 1210 216 3

The notes on pages 14 to 32 form part of these financial statements
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The Body Shop International Plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Period from 26 February 2006 to 30 December 2006

1a General information
The Body Shop Intemational Plc 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the
Compantes Act 1985 The address of the registered office 1s given within the "Company
Information” at the front of these Accounts The nature of the group's operations and its pancipal
activities are set out on page 2 of the Directors’ Repaort

The directors anticipate that at the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the Standards
and Interpretations which were in 1ssue but not yet effective, would have no matenal impact on the
financial statements, either as at the 30 December 2006, or in future penods, except for additional
disclosures on capital and financial instruments when the relevant standards come into effect for
penods commencing on or after 1 January 2008

1b Accounting policies

The pnncipal accounting policies adopted tn the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below The policies have been consistently applied to all penods presented, unless otherwise stated
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards
Board {IASB as adopted by the EU} and with those parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to
companies prepanng their accounts under IFRS

Consolidated financial statements have not been prepared as the company has taken advantage of
the exemption granted by section 228 of the Companies Act 1985, since the company itself I1s a
wholly-owned substdiary Its immediate parent undertaking 1s L'Oreal SA, a company incorporated in
France, and therefore established under the law of a member state of the European Community As
aresult, these accounts present information relating to the company as an indvidual undertaking
only and not as a group

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estmates and judgements
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported values of assets, habiliies,
incomes and expenses Such estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
histoncal expenence and other factors, including expectatiens of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances Estimates are adjusted as appropnate and the impact reflected
in either just the current, or current and future penods, depending on the time frame to which the
estimate relates

Estimates and judgements in relation to specific accounting policies are detalled under the relevant
headings
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue
Revenue represents the fair value recewvable in the ordinary course of business for goods sold and
services provided It excludes discounts given, VAT and other sales taxes

Revenue 1s recognised as follows

Sale of goods wholesale

Revenue 1s recognised when the company has transferred to the customer the significant nsks and
rewards of the ownership of the goeds, and retains nerther continuing managenal involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods

Sale of goods retait

Revenue 1s recognised when the product 1s sold to the customer Retall sales are usually in cash or
by credit card The recorded revenue 1s the gross amount of the sale, including credit card fees
payable for the transaction

Royalty income
Rovyalty income 1s recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
royalty agreements

Sale of gift vouchers
Revenue from the sale of gift vouchers 1s imihally recogrused as a liabibty to the customer This 1s
released to revenue as the vouchers are redeemed

Sale of loyalty cards

Loyalty cards entitle the holder to discounted purchases and gifts for a imited penod of time, 1n
exchange for an inhal fee payment Revenues are deferred and amortised over the expected penod
of usage of the loyalty card, related to the inihal fee payment In addition, when a loyalty card 1s sold
an appropnate accrual 1s made for the Company's hability to the customer for gifis of product due
under the terms of the card

Goodwill

Goodwill 1s tested annually for impairment and 1s camed at cost less accumulated imparrment losses
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the wnte off of the remaining carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets relate to software development They are measured initially at cost and are
then amortised on a straight4ine basis over the useful economic life

Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful ife are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable An impairment loss is calculated as the amount by which the asset's carmying amount
exceeds Its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the tugher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowes! levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
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. The Body Shop International Pl¢
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting poficies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment 1s shown at cost less depreciation and prowvision for impainments,
with the exception of freehold land which 1s shown at cost less any provision for impairment

Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-ine basis to wnte off the cost, less estimated residual value,
of all tangible fixed assets, except freehold land, over their expected useful hves Depreciation 1s
calculated using the following rates

o Freeho!d property — over 50 years,
o Short term leasehold property — over the penod of the respective leases,
o Plant and equipment — over 3 to 10 years

inventory

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value ,
Cost s calculated as the cost of purchasing the finished goods toghether with any additional costs to
bnng the inventones to their present location and condition, net of any provision for obsolete and
slow moving items

Net realisable value 1s based on estimated selling pnce less further costs to completion and disposal

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised inhally at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment

A prowiston for impairment of trade and other receivables 1s estabhshed when there 1s objective
evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of
receivables The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate The
amount of the prowision 1s recognised in the income statement
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The Body Shop International Plc
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting policies (centinued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents cornprise cash at bank and in hand, together with short-term deposits
with an initial matunty date of 3 menths or less

Provisions

A prowision Is recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, it 1S probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a rehiable estimate of the amount can be made If the effect is matenal, provisions are
measured using expected future cash flows discounted at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropnate, the nsks specific to the hability

A proviston for onerous contracis 1s recognised when the expected benefits to be denved by the
company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract

The Body Shop International Employee Share Trust

The company 1s deemed to have control of the assets, liabilities, income and costs of The Body Shop
International Employee Share Trust ("the EST") These have therefore been included in the financial
statements of the company

The ordinary shares of the company held in the EST are included within the reserve for own shares
and are deducted from equity

To facilitate the acquisition and holding of shares, loans are made on an interest-free basis by the
company to the EST Shares held by the EST do not rank for dmvidend

All shares held by the EST were used to settle employee share options dunng the penod to 30
December 2006

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates prevailling at the dates of the
transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at penod end
exchange rates

All foreign currency exchange differences are recognised in the income statement This represents a
change in accounting policy (see note 27)

Research and development
Expenditure on internally developed products 1s capitalised if it can be demonstrated that
o it 1s techmically feasible to develop the product for it to be sold,
0 adequate resources are avalable to complete the development,
o there I1s an intention to complete and sell the product,
o the group I1s able to sell the product,
¢ sale of the product will generate future economic benefits, and
o expenditure on the project can be measured reliably

Development expenditure not satisfying the above cntena and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised In the Income statement as incurred
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The Body Shop international Plc
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting polictes {continued)

Income taxes

The charge for current tax 1s based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-
taxable or disallowed It 1s calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method in respect of temporary
differences ansing from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit

In pnnciple, deferred tax llabities are recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences anse from goodwill,
or from the imtial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and habilities tn a
transachion which affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the rates that are expected to apply when the asset or hability I1s settled

Deferred tax i1s charged or credited tn the income statement, except when It relates to items credited
or charged directly to equity, m which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght of offset
and there I1s an intention to settle the balances net

Leased assets

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the company has substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset
and the present value of the minimum lease payments The corresponding leasing commitments, net
of finance charges, are included in habilities

Leasing payments are analysed between capital and interest components so that the interest
element is charged to the income statement over the period of the lease at a constant penodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the lrability outstanding

Depreciation on assets held under finance leases i1s charged to the income statement on a straight
line basis

All other leases are treated as operating leases with annual rentals charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Pension costs
Contributions to the company's defined contnbution scheme are charged to the income statement in
the year in which they become payable
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The Body Shop International Plc
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting policies {(continued)

Share-based payments

The group has applied the requirement of IFRS 2, Share-based Payments, to all grants of share
options or share awards that were unvested as of 29 February 2004 or have been granted since that
date

The group 1ssued equity settled share-based payments to employees in the form of share options or
performance share awards The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of options or share awards was determined at the date of grant by reference to the fair value of
the options or share awards at the grant date The fair value was expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting penod, based on the group’s estimate of the number of shares that would eventually
vest, which is revised at each balance sheet date

The fair value was measured by use of the Black-Scholes pncing model The inputs used in the
model and further details of the share-based payment plans are set out in note 16 to the accounts

Financial assets

The company classifies its financial assets into one of the following categones, depending on the
purpose for which the asset was acquired Other than financial assets in a qualfying hedging
relationship, the group's accounting policy for each category i1s as follows

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market They anse pnncipally through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), but also incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset They are
camed at cost less any provision for impairment

Held-to-matunty investments

These assets are non-denvative financial assets with fixed matunties that the company's
management has the posiive intention and ability to hold to matunty These assets are measured at
amortised cost, with changes through the income statement

Financial hiabilities

The company classifies its financial habilities into trade payables and other monetary liabilities,
which are recognised at amortised cost
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The Body Shop International Plc
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting policies (continued)

Dervative Financial Instruments

The company uses denvative {(such as forward forergn currency contracts) and non-denvative
financial Instruments (such as foreign currency loans) to provide commercial hedges of its net
investments in foreign subsidianes and against forecast cash flows designated in currencies other
than the company's functional currency

Denvative financial instruments are inibally accounted for at cost and subsequently re-measured to
fair value at each reporting date The gains or losses on re-measurement are taken to the income
statement, except where the denvative 1s designated as a cash flow hedge and the hedge I1s
effective In which case the gains or losses are taken to equity untif such ime that the hedged
transactions are recogrised in the iIncome statement, at which tme the accumulated gains and
losses recognised In equity will also be recognised In the iIncome statement The duration of the
denvatives 1s determined as appropnate for the setlement flow and exchange rate derivatives are
negotiated by the L'Oreal SA group bank

For financial instruments that do not qualfy for hedge accounting, any gains or losses ansing from
changes in farr value are taken directly to the income statement

Hedging .
In accordance with IAS 39, the company designates certan nsks being hedged into a cash flow
hedge

The gain or loss ansing from hedges of the exposure to vanability in future cash flows relating to firm
commitments or highly probable forecasted transactions are deferred in equity Deferred gains or
losses are released when the farecasted transactions occur

Any ineffective portion of the hedge 1s always recognised immediately in the income statement
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The Body Shop Intemational Pl

NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 Operating sxpsnses

Rosearch and
Imparmant of property plant and squipfment
Amorteaton of mtangible assets.

Depraciston

Loss on daposal of property plart and squipment

Loss on disposal of ntangible assets

Acxfiors remunerston.
Fasx payible 1o the company's audicrs for the sudt of the compamy's annual accounts. Deloitte
Faes payable to the company's audinrs for the audit of the company's annual accounts. BDC

Foas payable to the company's auditors snd ther assacies for ather services to the Company” Delokte

Total audit fees

Taxaton services BDO Swoy Hayward
Other advioory serices  BDO Stoy Hayward
Total ron-aude foes

Unrecognised Intangible assets

Durng the period the company expensed £4 Om (February 2008 £5 1m) relatng 1o ressarch and development.

3 Staflf costs and numbers

Cotis dunng the year modudng di s which are declosad nnote 4 were as follows.

Wages

Socal security
Person

Share based payments

All shitre bazsed payments are squity sattied

The company gpergtes a number of defied contributon permon achemes for ks empkyyses the sssats of which are beld in indepaend
contibutons payable to the funds and amountsd to £2 4 mition (February 2008 £2 6 milfion) Other cradtors inciudes an accrual of Endl (February 2000 £0 2 milion) in respect of accrued

ponson

The total numbet of employees st the penod ond was 2 980 (February 2008 2 089)

The average number of emaloyees during the penod was = lollows

Dstribubon f manrdactunng
Shops
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Pariod from 28
Fob to 30 Dec
2008
£m

“ue
31
24
{02)
50 7

Period from 26
Fabto 30 Dec
2008

No

666
17%
2130

2,084

02

o1
03

-1}
62
10

52 Wesks to 28
Feb 2006
£m

51

15
L1
oe
01

52 Weaks to 25
Fab 2000
Em

500
40
248
11
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The Body Shop International Pl

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 Dirsctors remunsration

Period from 28
Fak 10 30 Dec 52 Weska to 25
2008 Feb 2000
The total for wors &3 follows. £m &m
Ermoclumants 18 11
Gans on axarcoe of shars optons Q0
Amounts recehmble under long-term ncentrve achemas 02
Monoy purchicss pengon contribubons 01 01
111 12
Thers was 1 direcinr n the group s defined contribution penson echome (February 2005 1 drector).
The emoluments of the highes! pald diractor were £1 1m (February 2000 £0 8m)
The gara on sxercse af optons of the hyghest pad director were £9 Om (Feoruary 2006 End)
3 Financs incoms and expenss
Period trom 28
Fab o 30 Dec 52 Weeks to 25
2008 Fab 2006
Em Em
Fnance mcome
Irterast moome 13 14
13 14
France axpetis
Intorost oxpanas
Bank borrowngs. {43} (5 4}
FDt |4Dl
8 Tax
Rastated
Anubyuis of chargs in parkod (Note 27}
Pariod from 26
Fabto 30 Dec 52 Weaia to 7%
2000 Fab 2008
€m £m
Current tax
Pror panod credt (33)
Currert period charge —_— AT af
a7 33
Defermad tax.
Pror period chargje 19
Current penod charge 53 08
53 27
Total tax charge 10 0 [-13]
Tax on Hems charged to squity Restated
(Note 27}
Period from 28
Fabic 30 Dec 52 Weeks to 25
2008 Feb 2006
£m &m
Deferred tax on share besed peyments 15 {28)
15 ’ZBR
The effectiv company tex rats lof the perod i 78% (Februmry 2000 2% ) grastsr than the standard rats of UK corporaton tax [30%)
Tha ddferences are explaned bolow™ Rastated
{Note 27}
Pariod from 26
Fabto 30 Dec 52 Weaks to 25
2008 Feh 2008
Em Em
Profil on ordrary actvibes belors tax 13.2 97
Profi on ordnany sctvibes multiphed by the rats 40 2%
of UK corporaton tax of 30% (February 2006 30%)
Effects of
E not or ax 45 32
Prior year sdiustments {14)
Cthet 15 13
Total taxation 100 T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 Property plant and aquipment

Short term
Freshold hssehold Plant and
Y property i Total
£m tm £m
Cost
Al 26 February 2005 538 AZ4 962
Addibons 03 o2 152 157
Duposaly {04} e {83
Exchange difference on overseas assets 0.2 02
Al 25 February 2008 03 538 [EL] 1038
Addbons 143 19 282
Desposals {01} (34} {335)
Asset recizssficaton (note B) {05) 4] 24
Al 30 December 2008 03 67 3 813 1289
Accumwieed depreciation
At 28 February 2005 222 208 400
Charge for the year 15 53 :1:]
Desposals 03y (T4} {n
Exchange diference on overness asssts 01 1
AL 25 February 2000 234 248 482
Charge fr the year 17 58 75
Impasment loss LE] 3
Daposals 1) (29} {30}
Asset reciassfication {03} 03 -
Al 30 Dacamber 2008 340 280 2 0
Carrying amournt carriad forward
Net book walue at 30 Decembier 2008 03 333 333 86 9
Ned book value at 25 February 2006 Q3 30.2 25 1 556
No assets ara pledged as secunty for the company's labiites nor is ttle 1o the assets restncted
The compatyy's carying amount of the short term leasehold properbes that sre held under finance lsases & £22 1 mihon
Depracation of £4 4 mill:on {February 2008 £5 4 milon) s mctuded i selimg and distnbuton costs  end £3 1 million (February 2006 £1 4 million} i edminsiratve expenses
8 intanglble assets
Bofrware and
wabsits
Goodwill developmeant Total
£m Em £m
Comt
Al 26 February 2005 10 102 1.2
Addibons 5 18 21
Duposals {01} {01}
Al 25 Fabruary 2008 15 1"z 122
Addhons 12 0s 20
Dmpozals (01} {01}
Asset reclassfication {note 7} (24) {24}
Al 30 Decamber 2000 27 100 127
p—— —
A s d and _—
At 28 February 2005 18 18
Amorisaton i5 15
At 25 February 2008 33 EES
Amorisaton 11 11
At 30 December 2006 44 44
Canrying amount carried forward
At 30 Decarmber 2006 27 56 831
At 25 Fobnsary 2008 1.5 B4 99
Impairment tests for cash-Qenerating units containing goodwill
Gaodwill with an indefinie ussful Ife = allocated 1o the comparTy's cash-generabing unis
The i of the pany's cash g g untts b determmed based on value-rruss calculatons These caleulaorss use cash flow projectons based on actual cperating
resutts and on five-year financial budgets approved by management Cash flows beyand the five-year pesod are axtrapolated usng between 2% and 8% (Febnsary 2008 batween 2% end B%)
growth rate The growth rate does not excesd the long-term average growth rate for the and beauty retal n whach the cazh generabng unit cperates. A pra-tax

discoyrt rate of 8 2% (February 2008 ¢ 6%} has been used n ducountng the projected cash flows
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The Body Shop Intemational Plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Dunng the year the lollowing businessas wera acquired by the company

Francheen busnesses

Far vakse of d for d

Far value of net assets acquwred are as follows.

NON-CLMent assets
Property plant end equpment
Current assely
Frvenitnes

Goodwill scqured
Cosi of acqumsionas cash and cash squivalents

Post acquegibon resulty
Tumaver
Profit

Acqursitons shown above reflect the purchase of the trade and sssets of UK fmnchusees throughout the peniod from 246 Febnsary 2000 10 30 Decambar 2008

If afl the abave buznexses had been purchased on 20th February 2000 ther revenue and profit for the period would have been £5 3m and £1 Tm respectivety

10 Fixed asset investments

Cost of imvastmen in subsidiaries {less provisions}
At 26 February 2008

b 1 ) in provison sgans subsxdery
Addibons

Al 30 Decermnber 2008

The additons to nvesiments conssts of recapkalisaton of

Soapworks Limited on 23 November 2008

The Body Shop Wi Limited on 15 S- ber 2000
The C "3 el ut 30 D s
Soapworks Limited

Tha Body Shop Canads Limitad

Sk & Har Care Preparatons inc

Buth-Na-Bodhags Inc

The Body Shop (Singapors) Pus Limied

Tha Bady Shop intemetonal {Asa Pecdic) Pla Limibed
The Body Shop Hong Kong Lamikted

Mighty Ocean Compny Limited

Thw Body Shap (Franca) SARL

The Body Shop Beteliguixss-GmbH

The Body Shop Benelux B8 V

The Body Shop GmbH

B S Danmark A'S

2008 were
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Period from 28
Febto 30 Dec 52 Weeks to 25
2006 Feb 2008
Cost Cont
tm £m
18 14
10 11
Patiod from 28
Fab to 30 Dec 52 Weaks to 25
2000 Feb 2006
franchisses franchisees
Em £m
o1 ot
03 04
04 05
12 oa
10 11
33 or
[0 01
Pariod from 28
Fubita 30 Dee 52 Weeks 10 25
2008 Fab 2008
Em Em
1400 1528
7o {8.5)
54 26
102 § 1490
Em
40
08
54
Aggregets
wmount of Retalned profit or
Courntry of ahare capital {loas) for the
% Holdl incor and period ended
of ordinary and &30 30 December
shares oparation December 2008 2008
£m Em
100 Great Brian 27 a8
100 Cannda 03 3o
100 Usa T4 N
100 USA 352 A2
100 Sexapone 120 17
100 Singapore 24 o2
10 Hang Keng 145 29
100 Hong Kong 41 (14)
109 Femnca 40 (o1}
100 Gemmany 48 10
100 Nethertands {cg) Ga
100 Ausstria (et1) a1
100 Denmark 1.5 [+3]




The Body Shop International Plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continuad)
10 Fixed asset investments {continued)

Soapworks Limitad
Thes company’s prmcpal scivity b the manutachne of sosp snd related products

The Body Shop Canada Limited
This company trades in The Body Shop products n Canada

Siin & Hair Care Preparstions inc
Tha comparty acts a3 the holdng compaiTy in the LUSA aod doas not otherwme trade

Buth-Ne-Bodhaige inc
Thas company trades » The Body Shop products i the LUSA through retsil outiats through a home selling programme ard through the internet,

This company cperatas The Body Shop retai outiots n Sngapors

The Body Shop Intsmationad {Asla Pacific] Pts Limisd
This company operatas the Asia Pactfic ragion on beba!f of The Body Shop Intemartonal PLC

The Body Shop Hong Kong Limited
Thes eoenipary scts 3 the holding comparty n Hong Kong 23 does not otherwme trade

Mighty Ocaan Company Limited
Thes cwnpany trades in The Bedy Shop products m Hong Kang

The Body Shop {France) SARL
Thus company trades in The Body Shop products in Francs

The Body Shop Betsiligungs-GmbH
Thes company trades in The Body Shop products i Germany wough ks wholly ownied sutbxsdmry The Body Shop Gertneoy GmbH

The Body Shop Benehx BV
Thas company snd 23 wholly cwned subtaisnes trade i The Body Shop products n the Netheriands Beighum and Luxembourg

The Body Shop GmbH
Thas company trades n The Body Shop products m Austris

B 3 Danmark A/'S
Tha tompany trades n The Body Shop products m Denmark

11 inventorias
Pwriod from 28
Feb to 30 Dec 52 Weeks t0 25
2000 Feb 2008
£m Em
Fnahed goods. 403 284
Inventones are stated at lower of cost and net reslmabie value
12 Trade and other recaivables
Period from 24
Fabto 30 Dec 52 Weahks to 25
~ 2008 Fab 2008
Em £m
Current sysets
Trade recenables 57 46
Less p for of 15 {26)
Trade recenmbies net M2 220
owed by y underaki 222 337
Prepsyments 09 52
Other recenables 17 78
580 087
Nonrcurment assets
Losns 1 redated paroes (Note 24) 03
Other receiables 31
e — ——
All non-CUrTent recenables ware dus wihi five years from the batance sheat date
The far values of trade and other recehabiny are a3 follows
Pariod from 26
Fab to 30 Dec 52 Waeks to 25
000 Fab 2006
tm £m
Trade recehables 242 2o
A cwad by yur nz2 ny
Lomns 10 redated parbes (Note 24) a3
Prepayments. 1T’ 52
Other recerwbles 17 100
580 121

There & no concentraton of credi nak with respect © tnide recehables 23 the company has a large number of cusiornans which are narratonally depersed

The company recograed a loxs of £1 5m (February 2008 £2 0m) for the impairment of is trade r bles during the period The company also recognmad a loas of £2 6m {February 2000 rd}
for the mmpeiment of other recehables Tha lsses have been Neluded in selling snd destrboton costs m the NCoMe satement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued}

12

14

Cash and cash squivalents
Period from 28
Feb to 30 Dec A2 Weaks to 25
2008 Fab 2008
Em Em
Cash at bank and n hand 19 217
Cash snd cash squivsiants comprse the same es above lor the purposes of the cath fiow statement
Share capltal and ressrves
As regtatad
{note 17)
MNumbar of Ordinary Share Other reserves Ratained
shares shares premium [note 15) Samings Total
{thousands) im £m Em £€m em
At 28 Februsry 2005 213710 17 a3 3] 1452 247
Employee shere scheme
Cost of employee share scheme 432 43
Proosnds from shares asued 3,523 a2 ae X}
Cash flow hedge 03 03
Rustaned profits jor the yeer {194} {10 4)
At 25 February 2000 as previously etatad 217,253 10e 850 1m1 1258 2137
Pror yesr adjustmant (nots 27) 10 10
At 25 Fabruary 2008 a3 restatad 109 650 LAB 1288 2147
Employoe share scheme
Cosxt of amployes share scheme - [LN}] {1|)
Proceeds from sheres maued 0457 04 88 ez
Settement of EST
Retzamed profits for the year az az
Dividends (1Y) ©0)
At 30 Docember 2000 226,710 113 47 3 1210 216 3

The tisl authonsed number of ordmary shares is 300 million shares with & par vitle of 5p per share All ssusd shares are hully pad

.

Share premium
Thes condests of amounts subacribed for shere cepial n excexs of nommel vahse

EST  Reserve for own shares

Tha reservs for own shares in the comparny related solely to The Bady Shop nternatonal Employen Shars Trust, which was established n Apnl 1897 to encourage and facikate the scquesiaon
and hokdmng of sheres by and for the benafi of the employess Under the schefme the ustes Barclaya Priata Bank & Truxt {lala of Man) Limiisd purchased the company's ordinary shares on.
the open market using loans mads by the aenpery or sther kans gustantoed by the compeny Dunng the pericd the trustees allocated il the shares to smployees io xatsfy share gptons
exsrcoed by employess under the shara ophon schemes

Retzined sarmings
This compnees of curmulative nading net gains nd losses racognaed in tha Income eatement

Othar reserves

Share basad
paymants Hedging Total
Em im €m

At 28 Februsry 2065 L1 {03} a5
Cost of employes share schame 43 43
Transiaton of net mvestmant
Cash flow hedge 03 03
At 25 February 2008 1 11
Cost of employes sheme schama (18) {18}
Exchange dfferances on transiaton
At 30 Decembror 2000 93 93
Hedging resarve
The heogng reserve compras the effectve porton of the curutative net change m the far value of cash flow hedging Natruments relsted 1o hadged transactons thet have not yet occurred
Share-based payments resarve
The employea share schemo resane the al PO g n with the pany's xhare-basad paymeant obligatens and includes the recogriasd sismant of
daferred tax on these payments
The company has & number of share sch which anttie ry 10 acquine shares n the compeny These schemes had been N wastence

and
for marny yoars and a New perfoImance share sChame wis anmlﬁmqunmm Tha recognition end messurement panciples m IFRS 2 have  besn applied o
89 shara swards not vesied st 20 Fabruary 2004 or those granted since that date

Dunng the penod ended 30 Decembar 2008 the cormpany had the following shere-besed with employees of the comparry They e all squiy settled Following the
m.-h:olhmnmbyL‘OrulSAmcﬂvahhﬂd«-n!lﬂmmhdvmdudmyunmdnrmmhn-donzsmm The detaty of the
ATANQOMONES wais &3 kollowl

Share option schamas

The company had 8 number of share opbon schernes (“Share Option Schemes”) wiach have been used %o grant optons o [ W knd ernploy Snce 1985
1he achemes have been subject 1o parformance condions and lub]q:nﬂmmnmm;b-qmd-mhmmummmmuw(wmmmmmmwwmu
discreton 1o aliow the opoond 1o be retaried) the term of the ophons was 10 years.

Parformance share swards

hMM|mpqh1mm¢-mmmmnemm Khvm o saner and smployses wars srwarded froe shiies whech vasted after three years
subyect o performance The hfmumum.mmmo[mmmnmmnaludurduxldghurmhmhﬂemd
wasing

Share save option schemws

The company imited employoms 10 erier S0 S8WNGE CONTSCTs which snebled them b buy shares at & 20% dacount 10 the market proe il T date of the IMARON. Optons Grantsd under such
atrangementsy veted after ether 3 5 or 7 years Thore am no performance condions.
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NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

13 Other reserves (continued)

Al 28 Febriary 2005
Granted durng the yesr
Exarcased during the yesr
Expired dunng the yeer
Lapsed dunng the yesr

At 25 Fobruary 2008

Exartised during the pencd
Lapsad during the percid

At 30 December 2000

Exarciaable at 25 Fabruary 2008

Exarcisable at 30 Dwcambar 2000

M 25 February 2008

CQoton prices

Weghtad average contraciual |[fe remanng
{Yeura)

Weghted avernge price at date of exarcse
of sptions axarcued in the yaar £

Thae following information applies to all options outstanding at 25 February 2008

Exercise price
Ni
Upio£115
Cver £1 15

At 30 Decamber 2008

No opbons wers outstanding at the and of the panod

Waghted aversge price at date of erxarcas
ol options axercaed n the pornd £

No ophions were granted during the panod in reapect of optons/performance shares grainted durng the previous yoer the far value was measured by using the Black Scholes Model The

Shars option schemes

2w

waighted avarage results and inputs were a3 lollows.

Asra
Yoar of grart
Fair value of the optns o1 date of grant

Humber of optons/shares granted {milom)
Exarcme prca
Weghted sversge shara pnce

Contractus! term (ysars)

Performance condition

Setiement

Expacted votatity

Expwcted 1o of ophon st gram { yoars)
Ruk free mtorest rate

Expected dividend yiekl

Shars save option scheimes

2%

Share option Share save Parformanca Phantom option
schermes option schems  thare swards schems
Froe FYOS Fros Froe
£0 5% om 215 224
07 a5 20 @
232 £153 0 00 £000
232 191 23 232
10 yoars IwT years 3 yoars 3 yours
ncromse n None: Incroase n IrcTomse n
normalised rgrmalaed nomhalised
ocompound EPS  ocompound EPS
EPS graster grestar than 7.5%  greater then 7 5%
ten T 5% per PG RITRITY [ =% Y
annum
Shares Shares Sharea Cash
1N0% HO% NfA NIA
40 a1 io 3
4 0% 44% NA N/A
25% 0% 25% 2.5%

The eopected volatizy wers detwTnined by cakcutating S historical volatily of the group s shais prica over the four yoers precedng the date of grant.
The expocted Ife of the opbons st grant hea been based on cxercise behaviour from the tast yoer

Awards & end sty b

As » remult of the applicaton of FRS2 the credit recognaed s £(0.2)m (Februsry 2008 cherge £1 4m)
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vext a1 varisble levels depending on the achwmvemnent of veriable compound growth rites i EPS batween 7 5% and over 12 5%

Share option schemes Share save option chemes. Periorrnanca share swards Total
Average prica
Number (m) Average price £ Numbar (m} £ Number{m)  Average prica £ Numbaer (m}  Averags price £
00 [N 13 100 - 213 110
o7 232 o5 153 21 33 o
(30} 110 {e5) o8z - {35} 107
(12} 120 - - {12) 129
(14} 120 {02) 120 {02) (18) 118
151 114 11 127 19 11 10
{135) 108 {05) 117 - (140) 108
{19 107 {a0) 134 {19} 41 085
77 090 - 17 0 tg
—
Share option schemes. Share save option schames Perfommance share swards
MEYt {235 L0 B 1 £153
a7 32 24
241 227
'
Average sxarciss prics Number cutstanding Average lite
£000 19m 24 yoars
£ 04 105m 03 yours
£153 §Tm 17 yoars
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 Dividends

Puid

Fingl dradand pasd of 3 Bp per share for 28 Februery 2005
Interim divdend ped of 2.2p per share for 25 February 2000
Sacord rteem drdend pesd of 4 4p par share for 25 Februsry 2006

From subsidianes

Botrowkigs

Non-current
Qbligations Under Hinence |kses

Current

Bank bomowings

Obligatons under finance |eases
Reiated party bormrowings

Total bormowings

Lewse fabibes are affectvely sacured as the nghis to the lessed asset revert 1o the lessor in the event of default Other borrowsnga are unsecured

The matunty of non-cument bormowings i as follows.

After one and not more thall two years
Aftor two and not move than five yesrs
Ovear five yaars.

The carrying amounts of ths non-curtant borrowings equal ther [ar vatue

The fair wlues are based on cash. flows. d) usng an

The camying amonts of curment borrowings approximate their far walue

The camying amaunts of borrowmngs are denomrated n the ilowing curences

Stering
US Dollar

HK Dollar
Singapore Dollar

Obligations under financs kases
The present veiue of nirwrium Jaess paymants i &3 follows.

Not later than ore yesr
After one and not more then five years.
Ovor five vears

Period from 26 Feb to 30 Dec
noe

Local

Em cuTency
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Period from 268
Fab to 30 Dec

e
338
44 1

52 Weahs to 25
Fab 2006
£m

70
47

52 Weeks to 25
Fab 2008
Em

531
880

Pericd from 26

Feb to 30 Dec ™ 52 Weaka to 25
008 Fab 2008

Em Em

22 22

as -3:]

38 kL]

123 120

52 Wasks 10 23 Feb 2000

Local

tm currency

29 W00

82 120

22 1250

105 300

50 8
Puriod from 26

Fab 1o 30 Dec 52 Weeks to 25
2006 Fab 2008

£m Em

22 23

ar 84

3B 45
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

"

Borrowings {continumd})
Interest rate profie
The effactive nterest rates st the balance sheet date were as follows.

Perlod from 26 Feb to 30 Dec 2008

Hong Kong
£ uss £__Singapore Dollar Doflar
Obizgatins urder finance leases. 150% -
Ratatad perty bomownigs 54% . 48%
52 Wesks to 25 Fab 2008
Hong Kong
£ uss € % ore Dollar Dollar
Bank borrowmngs - 13% 2B8% 2T% 22%
Oblgatons under financs Isases. 15 O%
Related party bomowings 5 7%
Provisiona for liabilities and charges
Onirois coftracts
Pariod from 28
Fab to 30 Dec 52 Weeks 10 25
2008 Fab 2008
Em Em
Batance at 20 February 2008 13 21
Provasona used duning the penod {10
Urmnding of dscount o1 0.2
At 30 December 2008 14 13
Currert oe o8
Non-current o8 L
14 13
The onerous coniract3 relate to buildings which the company no longer occupies. Tha affacted (sase agreements expre within two Ko 26 years Where posaible the company sublets the
propartes The amounts due net of rents recervabla under subleases are discounted at the affectve ierest rate of 5 7%
Daferred tax asassta anc Habilities
Deforred tax s cak d i full onall y ciff; using the tax rate applcable to the junsdichon where the asset or iabiity armes.
As at 30 Decamber 2008 the company had the following deferred tax posiion
Pariod from 26
Feb to 30 Dac 52 Weaks to 25
2006 Fub 2008
£m Em
Openny balance 52 52
Pror penod charge {18)
Cument penod charge
Income statement (53) (08)
Equity {15 27
At 30 Doceiniber 2008 ‘1 ul 52
The movernert on sach type of temporary diference or unused tax loxs 1 ghown below
Thes d B pooy 1o of balances withi the sams jursdichon es permitted by LAS 12
Defermod tax assets and libiibes are only offset where there 18 & legally enforceable nght of offset and thera 15 an Intention to settle the balances net
Defwrted tax llabitities
Acceleratad
capital
sllowances Total
£m £m
A 26 February 2008 {(17) {1n
Curent percd charge
Incoma statement (0 4) {04}
A1 30 Decembar 2008 21) 21)
Deferred tax znsets
Share- Othar
based tamporary
paymants differences Total
Em £m £m
Al 26 February 2000 88 01 (1]
Current panod charge
Income sttamant 53} o4 {50)
Equity {15} {15)
AL 30 December 2008 0.5 0.5

Deferred tax assets are racognesed nrwedofdumx:iﬂawnpomrydﬁmhmmmmm_lmdmlwmbﬂnﬂmnmuﬂuumﬁsupmblblu Under

QuTent tax legesk

p may be carned forward %or reief aganst futire tax hablibes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20 Trade and othar payables

3l

Pariod from 26
Fab to 30 Des 52 Wesks to 25
2006 Fab 2006
£m £m
Trade payables "7 17
Socwal security and other taxss 11 23
Other payrbles. a3 88
Accrued expenses 201 74
Deterred noome 16 1]
Amounts due to subsidsary undertakings vz 281
B0 58 B
The far value of trade and other payablas does not ddfer sgndicantly from thes carrying velue
Financial risk management
Risk sxposures
Emounbamomyumrwwraoeruksnmnvnmmmufhmlmmmmmwmdmwme‘Oru!SAGm(Mmmlmnany)hank Regefi. In
addbon the board approves treesury polices as sat by the parent company with of the senor ] team dwacty fiing day-to-day op In co with the
parent company’s rules the curtency énd nterest rate denvatives are set up exciusively for hedging purpeses and no transachons of a al nature are undertas
Dabt market pnces.

The company has no significant resk to debt market pnces

Hedgng of curency nsk

The company o exposed to currency nsk from commercial transactons recorded n the belance sheet and from future fransactons consdered to be highly probable The company's policy
on exposure b cutrency risk from is future commercaal transachons . to hedge at least 80% of the currency nsk by dernatives Futura currency flows sre analysad n detal foracasts for the
coming year Currency nsks that emerge are hedgad by forward corfracts to reducs as far as possibla the curmency pesiion of each subsdary The duraton of the derivatives s determnad
as for the s sett fows. All exchange rate derivatives are negohated by Regefi (the parent company's banker) As the comparry must bomow and imvest the cash n
lskle uurrsncy the exchange rate nsks ganerated are almost non-exstem The comperry hes no snificart currency positons that are not hadged n the balance sheat

Hadgng of merest rate nak

The company uses rterest rate demaines 1o reduce Ived exposure 1 Nterest rate nsk. Such dervatives are never hald for speculatve reasons and are mamnly swaps and iterest mte
ophons which are fresly negotiated The s value of the nterast rate dematives i ther markst valus which s calaulatad by the discourting of future flows at the IMerest rute ruing at the
talance sheet date

The company has paliies i place ko ensure that whoiesala sales of prod are made to custo with an approp credt istory Sales to retail customers are made i cash or via
magor tredit cards Dy tes and cash 18 are lmited to highrcradi-quality inancial nsttutions The company bas poles that hmit the smount of credil exposure to
any one financial nstituton

Fareign exchanga nsk

Foreign exchange nek anses from future oo | trae gnesed assets and labites and net nvesiments m foregn operations

The company hedges the effacts of changes in excharnge rates either on balances payable to g3 subsdianes that = not sxpacted o be settiad n tha foreseeabls future or on balances
recenable from its subsxianes that may or may not be capitalsed i the foresesable futre  In addibon to manage the forexgn axchange risk arfsng from future commercal trersachons and
recognasad assets and labities, the compeny manages the positon in sach faregn currency by using extemal forward curency contracts which are desgnated as hadges of foreign
axchange sk on specific assets labildwes or futire ransactions on & gross bass,

The company's currency nex management policy & 1o hedge on a monthly bass to cover recepts and payments expecind 1o occur I the next calendar year By September of N thers should
be a coverage of B0% of the n=k assocated t N+1 The remarung 20% will be coversd between October and December of N The values used for the risk coverage for N+1 ara basad on
budgets submittad by the regons Each hedging mstrurment o deaignatad as such and s documented in with the req) of IAS 30 89 The hedging mstrumeants do not
fredge all gross recepts.

The far value of hadging contracts held to hadge foreign exchangs nsk at the balance sheet data is £ 1m {Februsry 2008 £0 1m}

The company has cestam mvestments in foreign operatons whosa net assets are axposed 16 foregn curancy trensiation sk Cumency expasure ansing from the net assets of the
compeny's foreign aperabons i managed pnmarty through bormwmgs denomnated n the relevant foreign currencees

Fair value sstimation
The foll g 8L the mathods and A used n g the far values of financeal mstruments.

Dematves
Forward axchange contracts are generally vatued by deductny the cusrent zpot rate from the contractual forward price: Whers signdficant the discounted contractual forward prce m used
basad on market dsoount rates for a smilar nstrument at the belance shest date

Interest bearing loana and bomowngs
Far value 18 calcuiated based on discounted expected future princpal and interest case Rows

France lease llablves
The far value & sxtmatsd as the present valus of fture cash flows dmccunted at market terest rates for similar lease agresments The esamated far values reflect changs in itersst
rates

Trade and other recetvables / peyebles
For recenables and payebles with @ remarung Ide of lesa than one year the notonal amount o desmnad o reflect thes fax value All other ibles and payables are d d to
datermmne the far value
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22 Cormmitments
Caplal commitments
Capital axpenditurs contracted for s tha balance sheet date but rot yat ncurted is as follows

Period from 28
Febto 30 Dec 52 Weeks to 25
2000 Feb 2000
£n £m

Proparty plant and squeprent 05
Intangitle assats 07
035 07

Opecatng loase COMMEMerts
The company keases wrous retal outiets, warchouses and offices under non-canceliable opersting loase agreomorts The loases heve varyng terms, sscaliton daucwas and rengwal nghts.

Tha company ateo leases ksms of plant and squpment on short- and medam-term feeses.
The futcre sggreQats MIEMUT ase pEYTHENS Undsr Non-cinceitable operatng laxses are as follows

Pariod from 26
Feb to 30 Dec 52 Weaks t0 25
006 Fab 2006
&m £m
Not lates than 1 year 194 213
Later than 1 yesr and not later thar 5 years B45 a7 1
Later than 5 yaars 026 576
1485 148 0

The majorky of leases are subect 10 rent revews. OF the above £5 8m (February 2008 £12 7 m) relxtes & iotal commiments undes isasas whers the company has giantsd sub-leases st the
aamae rertal ko francheses and other entbes Income from sublet property amountad to £1 7m (February 2000 £1 6m) for the parod

23 Contingent llabilities

There weve no matenal contrgert lmblibes st 30 Decambar 2008 (February 2008 nl)

24 Related-party tratvaactions

idantity of related parties
The company hes relatsd party retstonships with its parent un lung ity fellow subeidi and its own {see note 10) and with ks drectors snd axacutve officers ("kay
management parsannel”)

T h with key P J
It acktibon io key MEnagemont parsonnel’s salanes, the comparry alao provides non-cash benefits to key managameont personnel and contributes b money purchese PEron schemos on thes
behatl

Key t d abso n the comparny's ghére ophon Programme (sse note 15) and the replacentent cish based on long term moentive schamie

The key management personnel companaations ncluded in staff costs end numbers (see note 3} are as fallows.

Pariod from 28
Fabto M) Dec 52 Weaks to 25
2006 Feb 2008
Em £m
Short term employes benefits 58 EN
Peost-employment benefits 03 as
Temunaton banefis 05
Share-based payments (02} a7
Other long tarm benefits o8
67 58
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ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24 Related-party tranaactions (continued)

Loans with officers other than dimctors

AL 30 D ber 2008 the: amount of g kcans with officers other than drectors was £ndl (Febeuary 2008 £343 826} The balance at February 2008 related to 2 officers.
Trading tranaactions
Dunnyg the perind the company entered mio the olk fr with s
Sales of goods Purthases of goods Amounts owsd by related Amounts owed to relsted
inchading services clhuding services parties net of impalrmen parties net of impairmant
Period from 26 Perlod from Period from 2¢ Period from 26
Feb to 30 Dec 32 Weskato 26 Febto 30 52 Weskato 25 Febto30Dec 52 Wesks to 25 Feb 1o 30 Dec 52 Wesks to 25
2008 25 Feb 2004 Dec 2008 Fab 200¢ 2006 Fab 2008 2008 Feb 2008
£m Em £m £m £m Em £m £m
TAS (Fmnce) SARL 17 20 - 54 24 -
85 Danmark &S ae [+X:] - [2] ce .
TBS Gevmany GmbH 50 53 - 03 18
TBS (Singapore) Pre 42 1) - B4 a8
TBS Int] (Ama Pactfic) Pte Y 02 . 53 47
TBS Hong Kong Lrnted a0 10 - 29 el
Mighty Ocean Company Lid - 14 11 B
TBS Canada Lid 66 a1
TBS GmbH(Austria) 17 18
TBS Benelux BV 28 30 - a0
BSIUSA Inc w7 Fa 125 52
Soapworks Lid 109 a7 58 58
TBS Worlkdwule Lid 07 [X:]
Small subsdmnes 187 181 102 ar
Dormarnt compames 17 a7 98

All transactons with related parbes ara on the Company's standard payment terms of 36 days from the date of mmoice:
Thera are no securty or guarantses given on the related party ransactons

25 URimate parent undertaking
The compary’s inmeduate and uttmats parent undertukng is L Oreal SA a company ncorparated i France and lsted on the French siock exchange:

LOreal SA i the holding company respectvely of the smallest and largast group of which the company rs 8 member and for which group accounts are prepared Copes of the group accounts.
may be obtzned from its registerad office 31 Rue Martrs 82117 Clichy France

27 Prior period adjustment

The pror penod adjustment represents a changa in the company's sccountng policy for foreign eachange

in the yaars preceding 25 February 2006 foregn sxchange differances on bank loans and quas equity were taken directly to ressrves

in the penod ko 30 D ber 2006 these exch et are baing taken through the mcome statement 0 sccordance with LAS21 which managemsnt consider o ba the appropnate
treatmert for such kems As such the pnor penod s comparatve figures have been restated

The prior pencd adjustment has the eflect of INcreasing sharehalders furnds at 25 February 2006 by £tm

The comparative figures for the year endad 25 February 2006 result m a decresss in the retained profi for the year of £2m  Had the new policy nat been adopted In the curment pencd the retaned
profit would have been ncreased by £1 Om

28 Post balance sheet svetita
Tha UK government has indieated n its 2007 budget announcement that the effective rate of corporatan tax for large companses will reduce from 30% to 28% with
effect from April 2008 This will thersfors mpact the Company's dafermed tax for the yesr ended December 2007 and the Compeny's curent tax for the year endad
Decarnber 2008

All other thngs beng egual thes will resutt in s 2% reducton n the Company's tax charge
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ 07

2006 Consolidated financial statements

COMPARED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS

€ millions

2006 2005 2004 2004

pro forma¥!

Net sales (note 3) 15,780 t 14,5325 13,6413 13,6413
Cost of sales -4,5691 -4,347 3 -41011 -4,1011
Gross profit 11,2210 10,1852 9,540.2 9,540.2
Research and davelopment ~-5325 —495 2 -466 6 -466 6
Adverhsing and promotton ~4,7830 -4,367 2 -41769 -41769
Selling, general and admimistrative expenses -3,3094 -3,0093 -2,5443 -28443
Operating profit before foreign exchange gams and losses 25961 23125 20524 20524
Foreign exchange gains and losses -552 -465 365 365
Operating profit 25409 2,2660 20889 2,0889
Other income and expenses (note 6) -608 93 -1262 27283
Operational profit 24801 22153 19627 48172
Finance costs {(note 7) -159 -638 —-431 -431
Other financial Income (expense)} -36 -33 -39 -39
Sanofi-Aventis dividends 2174 1716 1459 -
Share i net profit {loss) of equity affilates -12 -07 -12 2923
Profit before tax and minonity inierests 25768 2,3791 2,060 4 50625
Income tax (note 8) -5147 -4059 -6186 -1,0897
Net profit 2,0621 1973.2 14418 39728
Attnbutable to.
- group share 2,061.0 1,9723 1,4387 39697
- minority interests 11 09 31 31
Net profit attnbutable to the group per share (euros) (note 9) 336 313 222 613
Dirted profit atibutable to the group per share (euros) (note 9) 335 313 221 611
Net profit before non-recurrent rtems
atinbutable to the group per share {euros) {nate 8) 299 260 229 -
Diluted profit before non-recurrent tems
atinbutable to the group per share {eusos) (rote 9) 298 260 229 -

(1} For companson purposes, pro forma profit ang loss acceunts are restated in order to reflect the deconsohdation of Sanofi Synthélabe at January 1%, 2004
« by replacing the share in net income of Sanofi Synthélabo, €293 5 mallion, by the recewed divdends €145 9 milkon,
= and by neutralzmg the net of tax dilution capital gain relating to these shares gimss value €2 854 5 mitlion and tax €471 1 million
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COMPARED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

€ mllions

12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Assets
Non-current assets 19,1554 18,686 0 15,7340
Goodwill (note 10) 4,0539 3.8371 35138
Other intangible assets {note 11) 1,792 8 1,201 0 1,064 9
Tangible assets (note 13) 2,628 4 2,466 0 2,1850
Non-current financial assets (note 14) 10,1685 10,7571 85424
Investments mn equity affilates 820
Deferred {ax assets (note 8) 4298 4248 4279
Current assets 5,627 6 5,200 1 46512
inventories {note 15) 1,404 4 1,261 8 1,123 4
Trade accounts recevable (note 16) 2,558 5 2,3797 20634
Other current assets (note 17) 8518 8290 8310
Current tax assets nrt 66 4 ’ 572
Cash and cash equivalents (note 18) 7812 663 2 5762
TOTAL ASSETS 24,7830 23,8861 20,385.2
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€ millions

12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 312004
Liabilities
Sharcholders' equity (note 19} 14,624.2 14,657 2 11,8254
Capital stock 1279 1317 1352
Additonnal paid-in capital g58 5 9539 9535
Other reserves 89744 8,624 8 63256
ftems directly recognised in equity 5,066 9 5,197 2 30310
Cumulative translation adjustments =703 2140 -1399
Treasury stock -2496 3 -2,6382 -24509
Net proht attnbutable to the group 2,0610 1,972 3 39697
Shareholders’ equity excluthing mmnority interests 14,622 t 14,6557 11,824 2
Minonty interests 21 15 12
Non-current hatulities 3,396 9 2,460 5 32188
Prowisions for employee retsrement obhigation
and related benefits (note 20) 8379 960 6 9956
Provisions for liabilities and charges (note 21) 1541 1579 1880
Deferred tax habilittes {note 8) 5125 9147 1,3222
Non-current borrowings and debts (note 22) 1,8924 428 2 130
Gurrent hatilities 56,7619 6,768 4 53410
Trade accounts payable 24850 2,276 5 21087
Prowisions for habiles and charges (note 21) 2720 2893 2866
Other current labilihes (note 24) 1,613 9 1,523 2 1,3109
Current tax hiabilities 1730 2273 2036
Current borrowings and debts (nete 22) 22180 24521 1,4312
TOTAL LIABILITIES 24,7830 23,8861 20,385.2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (PRO FORMA 2004)

€ milicns
- Common Captal Addtornal  Retamed ttems Treasury Cumulatve Sharehoigers’  Minority  Shareholders’
share  stoek pad-in eamings directly stock  translation equty merests equity
outstznding captal andnel  recognised adsusiments extiuding
Income in equity minorty
interests
At 12 31 2003 649,575,760 1352 9934 46,7736 73.7 -1,7926 6,1433 a3 51516
Pro forma restatements ™ 25310 28001 5,3311 5,3311
At12.31.2003 649,575,760 1352 9534 9,346 28738 -1,7926 1t 4744 83 11,4827
Dividends paid {nos paid In treasury stock) -5138 -5138 -60 -5198
Cumuiative translation adjustments -1399 -1399 -03 -1402
Financial assets available for sale i740 1740 1740
Cash flows hedging ~168 -168 -03 -171
liems directly recognised In equity 1572 -1399 173 -08 167
Consohidatad net income of the penod 1,4387 14387 31 14418
Total iIncome and expenses 14387 1572 -1339 14560 25 1,458.5
Deferred share-based payment 204 204 204
Net changes In treasury stock -11,301,400 -6583 -6583 -6583
Other movements @ 01 454 455 -37 418
At 12 31 2004 638,274,360 135.2 9535 19,2953 30318 -24509 -1399 11,8242 1.2 118254
Capital increase 7.500 0o 04 04 04
Cancellation of freasury stock -35 —-9809 984 4
Dividends paid (not paud in treasury stock) -5188 -5188 -0& -5194
Cumulative translation adiustments 3539 3539 a2 354 1
Financial assets available for sale 22558 22558 22558
Cash flows hedging -896 -896 -01 -897
ftems directly recognised m equity 21662 3539 25201 01 25202
Consalidated net income of the period 19723 19723 0% 19732
Total ncome and expenses 19723  2,166.2 B39 44024 10 4,4034
Deferred share-based payment 299 299 299
Net changes In treasury stock -18,308,250 -09 1,117 -1,1726 -1,1726
Other movements 02 02 -0t 01
At 12.31.2005 618,973,610 1317 9539 10,797 1 51972 -2,6382 2140 1456557 15 14,6572

{1} For comparison purposes, the pro forma shareholders equity at December 312, 2003 s restated in ofder to reflect the deconsolidation of Sanofi-Synthétaho at this date

{2} Other movements mainly relate for 2004 to adjustments linked to Sanofi Synthélabo transition to IFRS standards a$ weH as to a reversal of proviston for risks reiating to pension
plans watrally accounted for through equity (€36 9 million)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHCLDERS' EQUITY (PRO FORMA 2004)
{continued)

€ m'ong

Common Capital  Addboonal  Retaned Items Treaswy Comulatve Shareholders  Mmonty  Shareholders’
share  stock pad In eAmngs daectly stock  transtaben equily mierests equity

outstanding capital and net  recognised adustments excluding

income In equlty minerity

nterests
At 12 31 2005 619,873,610 1317 8538 10,7971 51972 -2638.2 2140 14,6557 15 14,6572
Capital iIncrease 76,000 oo 46 46 46
Cancellation of treasury stock -38 -1,2556 1,2594 - -
Dividends pald (not pald in treasury stock) -6161 -6161 -08 -6170
Cumulative transiation adjustments -2843 -2843 02 -2841
Financial assets avaable for sale -1945 -1845 -1945
Cash flows hedging 642 642 642
items directly recognised in equity -1303 -2843 -414¢ 02 -4144
Consolidated net tncome of the petiod 20610 20610 11 20621
Yotal income and expenses 2,061 0 ~1303 -2843 16464 13 1,647 7
Deferred share-based payrnent 494 494 494
Net changes in treasury stock 14,327,500 -15 -1,1175 -1,1190 -1,1190
Other movements 11 1 02 13
Al 12.31.2006 605,722,110 1279 9535 11,0354 5,086.9 -2,496.3 -3 14,6221 21 145242
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

€m ons
Common  Capal  Addfbonnd  Retamsd kems Treasury Cumudayve Shareholdess'  Minomty  Shorsholders'
share  stock paid-n eamings dectly stock  translalion equiy Interests eguity
outstancing capimal and net  recognised adjustments  excluding
Income  In equily misionty
inierests
At 12 31 2003 649,575,760 135.2 9534 §,7736 737 ~1,7926 6,143.3 83 6,15186
Dwdends paid {not paid In treasury stock) -5138 ~5138 -60 -5198
Cumuiative transiation adjustments -1389 -1393 -03 -1402
Financral assets available for sale 29741 29741 28741
Cash llows hedging ) -168 -168 =03 =171
ltems directly recognised i equity 29573 -1399 28174 -06 28168
Consolidated net income of the period 39697 39697 31 39728
Total income and expenses 3,969.7 29573 -1388 6,7871 z5 6,789 8
Deferred share-based payment 204 204 204
Net changes i treasury stock —-11,301 400 -6583 -6583 -6583
Other mavements () 01 454 455 =37 418
At 12 31 2004 633274360 1352 9535 10,2953 30310 -24509 1383 118242 1.2 118254
Caprtal increase 7500 00 04 04 04
Cancellation of treasury stock -35 ~980 9 9384 4
Dividends paid {not pald in treasury stock) -5188 -5188 -06 -5194
Cumulative translation adjustments 3539 3539 oz 354 1
Financial assets available for sale 22558 22558 22558
Cash flows hedging -896 -896 -01 -897
ltems directly recognised in equity 2,166 2 3539 25201 o1 25202
Consolidated net income of the penod 1,9723 19723 09 19732
Total income and expenses 19723 21662 539 44924 10 4,493 4
Deterred share-based payment 299 299 299
Net changes i treasury stock -18,308,250 -09 11717 -1,1726 -1,1726
Other movements 02 02 -01 01
At 12 31.2005 619,973.610 1317 9539 10,7971 51972 -26382 2140 146557 15 14,6572

(1) Relate to adjustments linked to Sanofi-Synthelabo transiton o IFRS standards as well as to & reversal of provision for risks relating o pension plans imibally accounted for through

equity (€36 9 muilior)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY {continued)

€ m,.ong

Common Captal Additonmal  Retaned Items Treasury Cumudatve Sharcholders Mmonty Shareholders'
share  stock pait-n  eamings drectly stock  ranskaton equily wnferests equity

outstandzng capial  andnet  recognised adjustments  excluding

income 10 eqully minonty

Interesis
AU12 31 2005 619,973,610 1317 8538 10,7871 51972 -2,5382 2140 148557 15 14,6572
Caprtal increase 76000 00 46 48 46
Cancellation of treasury stock -38 -1,2556 12594 - -
Dmidends paid (not pard in treasury stock) -6161 -6161 -0% -6170
Cumulative transiation adiustments -2843 2843 oz -2841
financial assets avarlable for sale -1945 -1945 -1945
Cash flows hedging 642 642 642
ltems directiy recognised In equity -1303 -2843 -414% 02 -4144
Consolidated net ncome of the penod 2,067 0 20610 11 2,062 1
Total income and expenses 2,061 0 -1303 -2843 16484 13 1,647 7
Deferted share-based payment 454 494 494
Net changes n treasury stock —14,327,500 -15 -1,1175 -1,1190 -1,1190
Other movements 11 11 02 13
At 12 31.2008 605,722,110 1279 9585 11,0354 50668 -24963 -703 146221 21 14,6242
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COMPARED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

< millicns
2006 2005 2004 2004
pro forma ™

Cash flows trom operating activities
Net profit attnbutable to the group 20610 19723 14387 3969 7
Minonty interests 11 (13!] 31 31
Elimination of expenses and income
with no impact on cash flows
« depreciation and charges to provisions 5794 4269 4132 413 2
¢ changes in deferred taxes ~2733 —-2901 -192 4519
* share-based payment 494 299 204 204
« capital gans and losses -85 -114 627 627
« Sanofi-Aventis dilubion capital gain - - - -2,8545
+ share n net income of equity affiliates net

of dividend recewved 12 07 13 =146 3
« other non-cash movements - 04 25 25
Gross cash flow 24103 21296 19228 19228
Cash used for workuing caprtal 656 -357 -764 -76 4
Net cash provided by operating activities (R) 247549 20839 18464 18464
Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in tangible and intangible assets -7452 -6623 -6771 -6771
Disposals of tangible and infangible assets 289 i19 322 322
Changes in other financial assets
(including ivestments 1n non-consolidated compames) -39 =377 -116 -116
Ettect of changes in the scope of consolidation -1,0657 -1817 —465 4 -4654
Net cash used by mvesting activities (B) ~1,785 9 -8598 -1,1219 -11218
Gash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid ~6338 =563 3 ~5429 ~5429
Capital increase of the parent company 46 04
Disposal {acqursition) of treasury stock -1,1190 -1,1939 -B6370 -6370
Issuance (repayment) of short-term loans 2093 5820 3829 3829
Issuance of long-term borrowings 1,563 5 1000 500 500
Repayment of long-term borrowings -5770 -850 -1119 -1119
Net cash used by financing activihes (C) -552 4 -1,1588 -8589 -8589
Net effect of exchange rate changes and fair value changes (D) -196 227 -88 -88
Change in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+£+D) 1180 870 -143.2 -1432
Cash and cash eguivalents al begming of the year {E) 663.2 5762 7194 7184
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year {A+B+C+D+E) 7812 663 2 b762 576 2

{1) For comparison purpose, pro forma statements of cash flows are restated in order to reflect the deconsohdation of Sanofl Synthélabo at January 1% 2004
« by replacing the share in net ircome of Sanofi Synthélabo by recerved dividends,
+ and by newtralizing the net of tax capital gain relating to theses shares

Income taxes pad amount to €725 6 miliens €688 3 milions and €644 3 millons respectively for years 2006 2005 and 2004
Interests pad amount to €133 9 milions €82 5 mibons and €69 3 milions respectively for years 2006 2005 and 2004
Drvidends recerved amount 1o €217 4 milions, €171 6 milions and €145 9 milions for years 2006 2005 and 2004
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NOTE 1 - ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The consolidated financial statements of L'Oréal and ds subsdianes
{*the group™} published for 2006 have been prepared In accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted
in the European Union on December 312, 2006

On February 14t 2007 the Board of Directors closed the con-
solidated financial statements at December 31=, 2006 The finan-
cial statements will not become definitive until they have been
approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be
held on Apnlt 24, 2007

The consalidated financial statements of L'Oréal and s subsidianes
{“the group™) published pnor to 2005, were prepared from January 1=,
2000 onwards in accordance with “the new accounting rules and
methods for the consclidated financial staternents”, approved by the
decree dated June 22, 1999 homologating Regulaton CRC 88-02

The IFRS standards have been applied retroactively at January 1%,
2004, except for certain exemptions stpulated in the IFRS 1 stan-
dard for the first application of IFRS standards

» no restaternent of business combxnations prior to January 12, 2004,
= actuanal gains and losses on pension oblgatons fully recogrised
against opening equity at January 1%, 2004,

» cumulative translabion adjustments at January 1=, 2004 merged
with consolidated reserves,

* no revaluation of tangible assets at January 1%, 2004,

¢ ne recognilion of share purchase or subscnption options plans
pnor to November 7t, 2002

Furthermore standards IAS 32 and 39 relatng to financial Instru-
ments have been applied from January 1%, 2004 onwards for
purposes of companson The amendment to IAS 39 “Recognihion
of the hedging of future financiat flows relating to intra-group
transactions”, which 1s compulsory from January 1%, 2006 onwards,
has been appled

No retrospective application of accounting standards or amend-
ments to existing standards at December 31, 2006 whaose effec-
tive apphcaton date 1 subsequent to January 1=, 2007, has been
carned out

Standards and interpretations that are likely to affect the group
are as follows

¢ |FRS 7 “Financial Instruments - Disclosures”,

* |FRS 8 “Operating Segments”,

* [FRS 2 amendment “Share-based payment”

The group s currently assessing the potential mpacts that appli-
cation of the 2 new standards — IFRS 7 and 8 - will have on notes
to the consolidated financial staterments  IFRS2 amendment does
not affect the consohdated financial statements

a - Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accor-
dance with international accounting standards implies that
the group makes a certain number of estmates and assumptions
that may affect the value of the group’s assets, liabilihes, share-
holders' equity and net income (loss)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ 15

These estmates and assumphions mainly concern the veluation
of goodwill and other intangible assets, provisicns, pension obli-
gations, deferred taxes and share-based payments measurement
Estimates used by the group in relation to these different areas
are detalled in each specific assocciated note

b - Scape and methods of consolidation

All companies included in the scope of consolidation have a fiscal
year ending December 31¢ or close ther accounts on that date

All companees directly or indirectly controlled by the parent company
L'Oreal have been consolidated by the full consohidation method

Group companies that are jointly controlled by the parent company
and a hrmited number of other shareholders under a contractual
agreement have been consolidated by the proportional consolida-
tion method

Equity affilates over which the group has a significant influence
have been accounted for by the equity method

¢ - Foreign currency translation

1 Accounting for foreign currency transacttons

in consohdated companies

Foreigr: currency transactions are translated at the rate effective
at the transaction date

Assets and labilites denominated i foreign currencies have been
translated using exchange rates effectve at closng date Unrealised
exchange gains and losses impact the profit and 1oss account

With regard to exchange nsks, long-term contracts and options
are negotiated to cover commercial transactions recorded on the
balance sheet as far value hedges and cash flows on futurg
commercial transactions, recorded as cash flow hedges whose
completion 1s considered to be highly probable

All hedging instruments are recarded on the balance sheet at therr
market value, Including those which relate to purchases and sales
n the next accounting pencd If the fulure cash flow hedging rela-
tionship s duly documented and the effectrveness of the hedges
demonstrated, the vanation in the fair value of these hedging nstru-
ments 18 recorded as follows

* the vanation of the market value Inked to vanations in the ime
value (forward points and premiums paid for options) 1s recorded
in the profit and loss account,

« the vanation of market value inked to vanations in the spot rate
between the inception of the hedge and the closing date 1s charged
to shareholders’ equity, and accumulated amount in equity impacts
the profit and koss account at the date onwhich the transactions
hedged are completed Any remaining mneffectiveness 15 recog-
mised directly to the profit and loss account

in 2pplication of the hedging accounting, unrealised exchange gans
and lasses relating to unsold irventones are deferred to the inven-
tones tem in the balance sheet In the same way, If fixed assets
purchased with foreign exchange are covered by a hedge, they are
valued in the balance sheet on the basis of the hedging rate
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The group may decide to cover certain investments 1n foreign
companies Exchange gams or fosses relating to these hedges
are directly charged to consolidated shareholders' equity under
the wem Cumudabve franslation adjustments

2 Translation of the accounts of foreign subsidianes

The assets and labilities of foreign subsidianes are translated at
closing exchange rates Profit and loss accounts are translated
at average exchange rates for the year

The resuling translation difference s entered diectly under share-
holders’ equity under the tem Curmulative translation adjustmenits,
for the group’'s share, and under the Minonty interests tem, for the
minonty interests This difference does not mpact the profit and
loss account other than at the time of the disposal of the company

3 Valuation of goodwill in foreign currencies

Goodwiii generated on foreign companies are considered to be
assets and habiities of the foreign company, and are therefore
expressed In the currency n which the entity operates, and are
translated using exchange rates effective at closing date Goodwall
recorded before January 1%, 2004 has been kept In euros, at the
hustonc exchange rate

d - Net sales

Net sales are recognised when the rnisks and benefits iInherent In
ownership of the assets have been transferred to the customer

Sales incentives, cash discounts and product retums are deducted
from sales, as are Incentives granted to distributors or consumers,
resulting 0 a cash out flow, such as commercial cooperation,
coupons, discounts and loyalty programmes

Sales incentives, cash discounts, provistons for returns and incen-
tves granted to customers are recorded simultaneously to the
recognition of the sales, If they can be estimated in a reasonably
reliable manner, based on statisics comgiled from past expenence
and contractual conditions

e - Cost of sales

The cost of goods sold consists manly of the industnal produc-
tion cost of the products sold, the cost of distnbuting products to
customers ncluding the freight and delivery costs, either directly
or indirectly through depots, inventory depreciation costs, and
royalties pad to third parties

f - Research and development expenditure

Expenditure dunng the research phase 1s charged to the profit
and loss account of the financial year duning which it 1S ncurred

The expenses incurred dunng the development phase are recog-
nised as Intangible assets only if they meet all the following critena,
in accordance with standard IAS 38

* the project is clearly defined and the related costs are separataly
identified and reliably measured,

» the technical feasibility of the project has been demonstrated,
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» the intention and abiity to complete the project and to use or sell
the products resutting from the project have been demonstrated,
* the resources necessary to complete the project and to use ar
sell it are avalable,

* the group can demonstrate that the project will generate probable
fuiure economic advantages, as the existence of a potential market
for the production resultng from the project, or its internal useful-
ness has been demonstrated

In view of the very large number of development projects and the
uncertanties conceming the decsion to launch the products relat-
ng to the project, L'Oréal considers that some of these capitalisation
critena are not met

The development costs of software for internal use are capitalised
for the programming, coding and testing phases The costs of sub-
stantal updates and upgrades gving nse to additionat functions
are also capitahsed

The capitalised development costs are amortised fram the date
on which the software 15 made available in the entity concerned,
over the probable useful Ife span, which 1s n mast cases between
510 7 years

g - Advertising and promotion expenses

These expenses consist manly of expenses relating to the adver-
tisement and promotion of products to customers and consumers
They are charged to the profit and lass account of the financial
year when they are incurred

h - Selling, general and administrative expenses

These expenses relate mamly {0 sales forces and ther manage-
ment, markeling teams, aoministrative services, as well as general
expenses and stock ophion charges

1 - Exchange gains and fosses

The exchange gains and losses inciuded in this item correspond
to gans and losses recorded on operating expenses and income
In foreign currency valued at the rate effective on the day of the
transaction and the rate apphed for the settlement, after allowing
for hedging denvatves Furthermore, the vanation in the time value
of hedging denvatves is systematically charged to the profit and
loss account, and this a2lso applies to option premiums (note 1-c}

| - Operating profit

Operating profit consists of gross profit, after deducting research
and development expenses, adveriising and promoting expenses,
seling, general and administratve expenses, and exchange gans
and losses on commercial transactions

k - Other income and expenses
The Other income and expensas tem includes capital gains and

losses on disposals of {angble and intangible assets, impanr-
ment of assets and restructunng costs




The cost of restructunng operations 15 fully provisioned if 1t results
from a group obligation towards a thrrd party onginating from the
decision taken by the competent body and gving nse before the
closing date to the announcement of this decision to the third par-
ties concemed This cost consists manly of severance payments,
early retirerment payments, the cost of notice penods not worked,
and the costs of training terminated employees and other costs
relating to the site closures The write-offs of fixed assets, depre-
ciation of nventones and other assets, lnked directly to the
restructunng measures, are also recorded as restructunng costs

| - Operational profit

Operational profit 1s caleutated from operating profit, and ncludes
other income and expenses, such as caprtal gains and losses on
disposals of tangible and intangible assets, impaiment of assets,
and restructunng costs

m - Finance costs

Net iinancial debt consists of all current and nen-current financial
borrowings and debts, after deducting cash and cash equivalents

The cost of the net financial debt consists of the expenses and
income generated by the items constituting the net financial
debt dunng the accounting penod, including the related results
of interest rate and exchange rate hedging

n - Income tax

The income tax charge includes the current tax expense payable
by each consolidated tax entity and the deferred tax expense
Deferred tax s calculated whenever temporary differences occur
between the tax base and the consolidated base of assets and
labilities, using a batance sheet approach and the liabilty method

The restatement of assets and liabdities inked to capital lease
contracts results in the booking of deferred tax

Deferred tex includes imecoverable taxation on estimated or con-
firmed dividends

Deferred lax 15 valued using the enacted tax rate at the closing
date and which will also be n force when the temporary differ-
ences reverse

Deferred tax assets generated by tax loss are only recognised io
the extent that a taxable profit 1s expected dunng the validity penod
of these tax loss camy forwards

Under the French system of tax consolidaton, some French com-
panes in the group compensate for therr taxable incomes when
determinung the overall tax charge, which only the parent com-
pany L'Creal remamns llable to pay

Fiscal consolidation systems also exist outside France
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© - Intangible
1 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Business combxnations are accounted for by the purchase method
The assets and babilties of the company acquired are valued on
the far value basis Any valuation differences identified when the
acquisition i1s carmed out are recorded under the corresponding
asset and liability tems

Any residual difference between the cost of an acquisibon over
the share of the group in the farr value of the identified assets and
hahilties 1s recorded as Goootwill

Goodwil generated at the acquisiion of an equity affiliate 1s presented
in the Investments in equity affiiates Iine

Goodwil s no longer amortised in accordance with the standard
IFRS 3 "Business combinations™ It 1s subjected to an impairment
test f an unfavourable event occurs, and at least once a year, dur-
Ing the fourth quarter Unfavourable events may result among other
things from an increase in market interast rates or from a decrease
in aclual sales or operatonal profit compared to forecasts

Impawment tests consist of companng net asset values including
goodwill and the recoverable value of each Cash Generating Unit

A Cash Generating Unit corresponds to one or more worldwide
brands Recoverable values arg determined on the basis of dis-
counted operating cash flows over a penod of 10 years {the penod
considered necessary for the strategic posihioning of an acquisi-
tion) and a terminal value Cash flows are determined n local cur-
rency and translated, along with the net equity to winch they
are compared, at estimated exchange rates for the coming year
The net equity s based on the latest half-year accounts  The discount
rate used for these calculations ts the weighted average cost of
capital (WACC), which amounis to 8 0% for 2008, 7 2% for 2005
and 8 15% for 2004, adjusted by apphang a country nsk premium
if necessary The discount rates are rales after tax applied to cash
flows after tax Therr use leads to the determination of recover-
able values dentical 1o those obtaned by using rates before tax
with non-fiscalised cash flows

The hypotheses adopted in terms of growth of sales and terminal
values are reasonable and in ine with the available market data
{generally around 3% except in specific case)

The use of dscounted cash flows 15 preferred in order to determine
recoverable value, due to the lack of similar recent transactions eas-
ily available

The depreciation of goodwall 15 not reversible
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Other intangible assels

Intangible assets are recorded on the batance sheet at cost Intangible
assets identfied following an acquisiion are also included i this
stern They manly consist of trademarks, product ranges, formulas
and patents

With regard to trademarks, the use of the discounted cash flow
melhod 1s preferred in order to make it easier to follow up the value
n use after acquisition

Two approaches have been adopted to date

» premium-based approach this method involves estimating the
part of future flows that could be generated by the trademark,
compared with the future flows that the actmty could generate
without the trademark,

* royalty-based approach this involves estimating the value of
the trademark by reference o the levels of rovalties demanded
for the use of similar trademarks, based on sales forecasts drawn
up by the group

These approaches are based on a qualtative analyss of the trade-
mark in order to ensure that the assumptions selected are relevant
The discount rate retaned refers to the weighted average cost of
capital MWACC} for the target acqurred

Growth rate in perpetuity are consistent with avalable market data
{generally around 3%, except In specific cases}

A tradernark may have a finite or an indefinite life span

Local trademarks, which are to be gradualty reptaced by an inter-
natonal trademark already existing inside the group are frademarks
with a fimte Ife span

They are depreciated over a bfe span, which 1s estimated at the
date of acquisttion

Intemational trademarks are trademarks with anindefinte Ife span
They are subjected to iImpairment tests f an unfavourable event
occurs, and at least once a year, dunng the fourth quarter
Unfavourable events may result among other things from an
Increase In market njerest rates or from a decrease in actual sales
or operational profit compared to forecasts

The impaiment test consists of calculating the recoverable vatue
of the trademark based on the mods! adopted when the acquis-
tion takes place

As for product ranges, this concept covers all iems which con-
stitute a franchise product cencept, complementary name In
addition to the rademark, formutas and patents used, packag-
ng, logos, advertising trademark, ete

The life span of a product range 15 imited a range reaches the
end of its life span when the main undertying elements, such as
packaging, name, farmulas and patents, are no longer used For
this reason, product ranges are depreciated over thesr remaintng
life span, estimated at the date of acquisiion

The group may deade to identfy and value patents and formulas
that it wishes to develop
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The value of a patent or a fonmuia is evaluated on the basis of the
future profits expected from s ownership in the future, In accordance
with the royatty-based approach

The depreciation penod of patents corresponds to the penod of
legal protection Formulas, which are not protected by legal means,
are depraciated over a maximum penod of 5 years

Market shares and business value accounted for in the consolidated
financial staterments prepared n accordance with French account-
ing methods do not correspond to the definion of a separable intan-
gble asset and have been reclassified under Goodhwalf for the appl-
cation of IFRS standards on January 1%, 2004

2 Tangible assets

Tangible assets are recorded on the balance sheet at purchase
price They are not revalued

Significant capital assets financed through capital leases, which
essentially transfer to the group the nsks and rewards inherent in
their ownership, are recorded as assets on the balance sheet

The corresponding debt 1s recorded as Borrowings and debts on
the balance sheet

Investment subsidies are recorded as labilies under Other current
habiitres

The components of a tang:ble asset are recorded separately if
ther estimated useful Ife spans, and therefore their depreciation
pencds, are matenally different

Tangble assets are depreciated using the straight-ine method,
over the following economic Iife spans

Buildings 10740 years
Industnal matenals 5/15 years
Point of sales advertising, stands and displays 3/5 yaars
Other tangible assets 310 years

Amortisation and depreciation are recorded in the profit and loss
account according {o the destination of the tangible asset

tn view of the typology ndicated in the above table, the tangible
assets are considerad 10 have zero value at the end of the economic
Iife spans indicated

p - Non-current financial assets

Non-current financial assets indude rvestments 1n non-consobdated
companies and long-term loans and other debtors matunng after
more than twelve months

Investments in non-conschdated companies are considered to
be financ:al assets avalable for sale As such, they are valued on
the basis of their far value, and unrealised losses and gains are
accounted for through equity on the line ftems directly recognised
in equity




Thewr far value s determined on the basis of the share price at the
closing date for listed secunties For uniisted secunties, if the {ar
value cannot be retably established, they are valued at cost

If the unrealised loss accounted for through equity 1s representa-
tive of a tasting decline, this loss s recorded in the profit and loss
account

Long-term loans and other debtors are considered to be assets
generated by the actvity As such, they are valued al amortised
cost If there 1s an inchcation of a foss in value, a provision far
impairment I1s recorded

q - Inventories

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value
Cost 1s calculated using the weighted average cost or the “first
in, first out” formula

A provision 1s made for obsolete and slow-mowving inventories
on the basis of thair probable net realisable value, estimated on
the basis of histonc and prowisional data

r - Trade accounts receivable

Accounts recewvable from customers are recarded at ther nominal
value, which corresponds to therr farr value

A provision 1s made for any uncertain debts based on an assess-
ment of the nsk of non-recovery

s - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equvalents consst of cash in bank accounts, units
oi cash unit trusts and iguid short-term investments with no nsk
of change in value, and whose realisation date at the date of acqu-
sition 15 less than three months away

Investments in shares and cash, which s held n a blocked account
for more than three months, cannot be recorded under cash, and
are presented under Other current assels

Bank overdrafis considered to be assimilated to a financing actmty,
are presented in Current borrowings and debts

Units of unit trusts are considered {o be assels avalable for sale
As such, they are valued In the balance sheet at ther market value
at the closing date The unrealised gains thus generated are
accounted for drectly through equity on the iine ftems directly
recogrised int equity

The book value of bank deposits 1s a reasonable approximation
of theur far value

t - Treasury stock

Treasury stock 1s recorded at acquisition cost and deducted from
shareholders’ equity Capital gans/Aosses on disposal of this stock
net of tax are charged directly to shareholders’ equity and do not
contnbute to the income {or the financial year

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ 19

u - Stock options

Stock options are intended to motivate and strengthen the loy-
alty of employees who make the largest contnbution to the group's
performance through thesr sklls and comrmitment

In accordance with the requirements of standard IFRS 2 “Share-
based payment”, the value of the options granted calculated at
the grant date 1s charged to the profit and loss account over the
vesting peniod, which 1s generally 5 years

Stock options far value 15 determined using the Black & Schales
model This model allows for the charactenstics of the plan such
as exercise pnce and exercise penod, market data at the acquisi-
ton date such as the nsk-free rate, share price, volatdity, expected
ddends and behavioural factors of beneficianes

Only options 1ssued after November 7, 2002 and not fully vested
at January 12, 2005 are accounted for in accordance with standard
IFRS 2

The impact on the result of the persod of application of standard
IFRS 2 5 booked onthe Sefling. general and admunistrative expensas
lne of the profit and loss account at group level, and 1s not allocated
to the dvisions or to geographic zones

v - Provisions for employee retirement obligation
and refated benefits

The group adheres to pension, early retirement and other benefit
schemes depending on local legisiation and regulations

For basic schemes and other defined-contnbution schemes, the
group charges to the profit and loss account the contnbutions to
be paid when they are due and no provision has been set aside,
with the group’s commitment not exceeding the amount of con-
tnbutions paid  For defined benefit schemes, the charactenstics
of the schemes in force inside the group are as follows

* French regulations provide for specific length-of-servce awards
payable to employees on retrement In addition, an early retwe-
ment plan and a defined benefit plan have been set up In some
group companies there are also measures providing for the pay-
ment of certan healthcare costs for retired employees

These obligations, except for those relating to healthcare costs
for retired employees, are partially funded

» For foresgn subsidianes with employee pension schemes or other
specific cbligations refating to defined benefits, the excess of obli-
gauons over the scheme's assels 1s recognised by seting up a
provision for charges on the basis of the actuaral value of the
vested nghts of employees

The charges recorded in the profit and loss account dunng the
year include

« service cost, 1 @ addiional nghts acquired by employees dur-
ing the accounting period,

« interest cost, 18 change n the value of the discounted nghts
due to the fact that one year has gone,

+ axpected return on assets, 1 @ ncome from external assets
calculated on the basis of a standard return on long-term
nvestments,
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 the mpact of any change to existing schemes on prevous years
or of any new schemes,
* amorbisation of unrecognised gains and losses

To determine the discounted value of the obhgation for each
scheme, the group applies an actuanal valuaton method based
on the final salary {projected credit unit methed)} The obligations
and the far value of assets are assessed each vear, using length-of-
service, Iife expectancy, staff tumover by category and economic
assumptions {such as inflation rate and discount rate}

The cumulative effects of unrecognised gains and losses are
depreciated over the average residual penod of activity of acive
employees, unless such gains and losses do not excesd 10%
of the greater of the discounted benefit obligation or the farr value of
plan assets ("comdor” pnnciple} The depreciation 1s included in
the annwual actuarial charge of the following financial year

Gains and losses In relation to other benefits, such as jubilees and
medals, are immediately charged to the profit and loss account
without the application of the “comdor” pnnciple

The hability corresponding to the company's net commitment for
personnel 1s entered on the balance sheet, on the Prowisions for
employee retirement obligation and refated benefits ine

w - Provtsions for habilities and charges

Prowisions for labilties and charges are set up to cover potential
outflows for the benefil of third parties without return for the group
They relate mainly to tax nsks and tigation, industnal and com-
mercial risks relating to operations (breach of contract, product
returns) and social nsks

They are estimated on the basis of the most likely assumptions
or by using statistical methods, depending on the type of provisions

Prowvisions for liabilities and charges are recorded either as Non-
current habithes or as Current habiires, depending on therr nature
Prowisions for liebilities or Iitigation, which must be settled within
twelve months of the closing date, and those linked to the normal
operatng cycle (such as product returns) are recorded as Current
habires The other provisons for iabilites and charges are recorded
as Non-current habilibes

X - Borrowings and debts

Borrowings and debts are valued at the amorlised cost based on
an effective interest rate

In accordance with the principle of recording far value hedges,
fixed rate borrowings and debts swapped at a vanable rate are
valued on the balance sheet at market value The resuting changes
w1 value are recorded as finance cost and are offset by changes in
the value of the attached interest rate swaps The farr value of
fixed rate debts 1s determined by the discounted cash flow method
at the closing date, allowing for the spread corresponding to the
group’s nsk class The book value of the vanable rate debts s a
reasonable approxmation of therr farr value
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Medium and long-term bormowings and debts are recorded under
Non-current habilities Short-term borrowings and debts, and the
part of medium and long-term borowings and debts, which s repayable
in less than one year, are presented under Current habiities

y - Financial denvatives

In accordance with group financial management policies, none of
L'Oréal’s consofidated comparses conduct any market transactons for
specuiative reascons As a resutt all denvatve instruments concluded

by group companies are only for hedang purposes, and are thus car-
ned oul n accordanes with the prneple of hedge accounting

With regard to exchange rate nsk, the applicable accounting prn-
ciples are set out n detail in note t-¢

With regard to interest rate nsk, the fixed-rate debts and financia!
loans covered by interest rate swaps are valued in the balance
sheet at ther market value Changes in the far value of these debts
are recorded as finance cost, and are offset by the recording of
adjustments in the fair value of the attached hedging dervatives
Vanable interest rate debts and financia! loans are valued at cost,
which corresponds to ther market value The swaps or caps which
hadge them are valued in the balance sheet at ther market value,
and changes in vatue are recorded direcily through equity on the
items directly recognised n equily ine

The farr value of interest rate dervative instruments 1s therr market
value The market value 1s calculated by the discounted cash flow
method at the interest rate effective at the closing date

2 - Earnmgs per share

Net earmings per share are calculated in accordance with the rules
set out in tAS 33

Net eamings per share are oblained from the wesghted average
number of shares outstanding dunng the year, after deducting the
number of treasury stock which are deducted from shareholders’
equity

Diluted net earmings per share allow where applicable for stock
optons with a dilutive effect in accordance with the “treasury stock
method” the sums collected dunng the exercise or purchase are
assumed to be aflocated pnmarily to share buybacks at market prce

NOTE 2 - CHANGES IN THE SCOPE
OF GONSOLIDATION

a - Year 2006

At the end of February 2006, EpiSkin, a subsidiary of L'QOreal,
acquired SkinEthie, a company histed on the Marché libre of
Euronext Pans SkinEthic produces and markets reconstructed
epidermis, skin and epithehal tissues which can be used to carry
out in vitro tests on the safety and effectiveness of many prod-
ucts (cosmetics, pharmaceuticals, chemicals, etc) In 2005
SkinEthic sales totalled €1 & milion




On March 170, 2006, L'Oreal announced a cash offer for The
Body Shop International PLC

Listed on the London Stock Exchange, The Body Shop s a suc-
cessful cosmetics brand with strong growth potential With 2,133
dedicated and franchise retail outlets in 54 countnes, The Body
Shop posted a revenue of £486 millkon and retall sales of €772
mullion In the year ending February 250, 2006 The Body Shop
has acquired a strong reputation as a naturally-onented brand
with expertise in retaill and deeply-rooted values

On June 9, 2006, L'Oreal declared the offer wholly unconditional
and had acquired or receved at that date vald acceptances in
respect of 208,098,583 The Body Shop shares in aggregate (rep-
resenting approximately 85 5% of the existing 1ssued share cap-
ital of The Body Shop) L'Oreal decided to compulsonly acquire
the remaining The Body Shop shares As the operation 15 finalised
at a date close to the hatf-year closing date, The Body Shop has
been fully consaolidated from June 30™, 2006 onwards and con-
shiutes a separate branch {see nota 3)

The man items of the acguisiion balance sheet of The Body Shop
are as follows

€ mdhons

Non-currant assets! ! 814 4
Current assets 2683
Non-current kabiities -2282
Current habilities —2229
Total net equity acquired 6318

(1) Out of which intangibie assets (except goodwlll} resulting from the acquisition for
€ 645 5 million

At the end of Juty 2006, L'Oreal USA Inc has clamed a 30% stake
in the distnbution company Beauty Allance Intemational (BAf), which
services 115,000 har salons nthe US This mvestment 1s accounted
for under the equity method from August 1st, 2006

At the end of October 20086, L'Oréal acquired the French
Laboratoire Sanoflore, a proneer in the design, manufacture and
marketing of certified organc cosmeties products

Sanoflore manufactures and distnbudes through pharmacies and
specialist shops its ranges of cosmetics and aromatherapy
products Sanoflore handles ail the stages in the aromatic and
medicinal plant chain, from cultevation with partner farmers to the
finished product

The sales of Sanoflore amounted to about €15 mifton in 2006,
inchuding 20% outside France

The tolal cost of theses new acquisihons amounts to €1,150 4
milhon The total amount of goodwili and other iIntangible assets
resulting from these acquisthions amounted to €482 7 mflion and
€704 4 millon respectively out of which €108 4 million booked
under the caption Investment in equity affilates
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b - Year 2005

In May 2005, the L'Oreal group increased ts stake in Le CLus Des
CREATEURS DE BEAUTE Japen to 50% This company, previously
consolidated by the equity methed, has therefore been consaoli-
dated by the proportional method from July 1%, 2005 onwards

In June 2005, the L'Oréal group finalised the acquisition of
SkinCeUTICALS, an unbisted company which is one of the leading
players in the US market for upmarket skincare products sold
by professionals The sales of SknCeunicaLs amounted to USD
35 milkon in 2004

At the end of August 2005, the L'Orea! group acquired the sun
protecton brand Delial, one of the leading brands in this business
in Europe The sales of Delial amounted to €20 million in 2004

The total cost of these new acquisitions amounted to some €180
millon The tatal amount of goodwill and other intangible assets
resulting from these acquisitions amounted to €128 milion and
€60 million respectvely

c - Year 2004

In January 2004, the L'Oréal group completed the acquisition of
the Chinese skincare brand MINNURSE MINMURSE's actvities have
been fully consolidated (100%;) since this date In 2003, MiNNURSE'S
sales came to around €40 million

In May 2004, the L'Oreal group completed the acquisition of
the Chinese make-up and skincare brand Yue-Sa This business
has been fully consoldated (100%) snce June 2004 In 2003,
YUE-Sal's sales came to around €38 milhon

The group has acquired the control of Shu Uemura Cosmetics,
Inc , the company that manufactures and markets SHu UEmURA
brand's cosmehics n Japan This company, which was previously
proportionally consolidated (35%) has been fully consolidated
(100%) since January 1%, 2004 in 2003 its total sales were
€69 miflion

The group bought cut the minonty interests of Lavicosmetica
Cosmetique Active Hellas (Greece) and Parmobel {Cyprus) in the
first quarter of 2004, and Shu Uemura Cosmetc Corporate (Tawan)
in December 2004 These companies are now fully consolidated

The cost of these new acquisitions represented approximately
€530 millon The total amount of goodwill and other intangible
assets resutting from these acaquisiions amounted to at €412 milion
and €110 milkion respectively

The defintive results of Sanofi-Synthelabo's offer for Aventis pub-
lished by the French secunties regutator {dutonité des Marches
Financiers, AMF} on August 12, 2004 confirmed the success of
the operation, leading to the acquisition of 95 47% of Aventis’
capital Further to this operation, L'Oreal held 10 419% of the cap-
ital and 17 23% of the voung nghts of the new Sanofi-Avents
group As a result, U'Oreal deconsolidated its stake in Sanofi-
Synthelabo on August 12, 2004, generating a €2 9 billion gross
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capital gain on diution The sharehoiders’ agreement concluded
between LU'Oréal and the Tolal group concerning thewr respective
interests in Sanofi-Synthelabo ended on December 2, 2004

At L'Oréal’s Extraordinary General Meeting on Apni 29, 2004, its
shareholders voted to approve the merger and absorption of
Gesparal by U'Creal Further to this operation, the Bettencourt
family and Nestle became direct shareholders in LU'Oreal with
approximately 27 5% and 26 4% of the capital, and 28 6% and
27 4% n vohng nghts respectively This transaction did not have
any significant iImpact on the L'Creal group’s structure or results,
since Gesparal held only L'Oréal shares and did not have any debt
at the time of the merger

NOTE 3 - SEGMENT INFORMATION
a - Segment information

The Cosmetics branch 1s organised into four sectors, each one
operating with specific distnbulion channels

* Professional Products Dmsion products used and sold in har
salons,

* Consumer Products Dvision products sold in mass-market
retail channels,

o | uxury Products Division products sold in selective retaill out-
lets,1e department stores, perfumenes, travel retad and the group’s
own boutiques,

» Active Cosmetics Department dermocosmetic skincare prod-
ucts sold in pharmacies and specialist sections of drugstores

The “Other Cosmetics” heading consists manly of remote sales
of cosmetics products
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The “non-allocated” item contains the expenses of the functional
dnasions, fundamental research and the costs of stock options
not allocated to the cosmetics divisions It also includes actmties
that are auxiary to the group's core businesses, such as insur-
ance, reinsurance and banking

The “The Body Shop” branch The Body Shop offers a wide range
of naturally Inspired cosmetics and toiletry products The brand,
onginally created in the United Kingdom, distnbutes its products
and expresses Its values through a large multi-channel network
of exclustve retall shops {in more than 50 countnes}, at home, and
an-hne sales

The Dermatology branch, consisting of Galderma, a joint venture
between L'Oréal and Nestle, meets the needs of dermatologists
and therr patents

The data by branch and by division are established using the same
accounting principles as those used tor the preparation of the
consoldated financial statements, and which are descnbed in
note 1

The performance of each branch and dwvision 1s measured by the
operating profit
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€ milkons Sales Operating Operational Operaticnal  Investments n Depreciation
profit assatsi) habiires®  tangible and  and prowvisons
2005 niangible assets
Professional Products 21259 4430 17561 544 0 683 62 3
Consumer Products 79035 14213 5,394 4 2,1620 3799 3418
Luxury Products 3,7731 7759 25595 10753 151 1t 1261
Active Cosmelcs 1,127 9 2208 7852 2818 304 334
GCther Cosmeics 811 -08 224 282 07 29
Cosmetics divisions total 15,0114 2,860 2 10517 7 400924 €30 4 566 5
Non-allocated -4370 3331 506 6 587 466
Cosmetica branch 15,0114 24232 15,850.8 4,599 0 690 @ 8130
The Body Shop branch® 4350 583 1,371 0 65.2 4713 28.5
Damatology branch 43,7 594 3425 745 1897 245
Group 15,790 t 2,540 9 12,564 3 4,730 7 7571 £66.,0
€ milions Sales Operating Operational Operational  kresiments in Depreciation
profit assats (! abiltes ¥ tangible and  and provisions
2005 ntangible assets
Professionat Products 20809 4058 18025 554 7 64 1 63 2
Consumer Products 74994 1,280 4 54807 20845 369 5 3219
Luxury Products 315824 7235 25700 1,053 7 143 5 1318
Active Cosmetics 9859 187 0 7198 2478 22 4 316
Other Cosmetics a6 2 19 270 342 16 40
Cosmetics divisions total 14,2147 2,608 8 10,580 ¢ 3,954 8 6012 552.3
Non allocated -3964 3263 549 4 57 3 48 2
Casmetics branch 142147 22122 10,906 3 45042 658 4 598 5
Dermatolegy branch 3178 53.8 3691 136 155 267
Group 14,5325 2,26690 112655 4,577 8 673 0 6253
€ mithons Sales QOperating Qperational Operational  Investments in Depreciation
profit assets {1 habdties € tangible and  and provisions
2004 ntangble assets
Professional Products 1,820 4 365 4 16841 5231 9 571
Consumer Products 7,056 1 1,186 6 4 8761 1,887 5 3321 2705
Luxury Products 34406 693 6 23619 1,026 9 116 0 1234
Actve Cosmetes BaAG 9 1568 5122 2105 3756 192
DOther Cosmetcs 868 40 295 arv 36 73
Casmetics divisions toiat 13,347 9 28063 44337 36857 5671 477 4
Non-allocated -3680 298 5 588 7 74 4 432
Cosmetics branch 13,3479 2,038.3 97322 42743 641 4 5254
Dermatalogy branch 293 4 506 3336 664 315 199
Group 13,6413 2,088 9 10,065.8 4,340 7 6729 5458

(1} Operatonal assets include goodwill Intangible and tangible assets, frade accounts recemvable, nventones, samples and poit-of sales advert:sing recorded in advanice

{2) Operational lizbiibies mclude provisions for iabilties and charges (excluding prowsions for tax and restructunng), prowvistons for employee retirement obligation, frade accounts
payable, social accounts payable and creditors

{3) 2006 data for The Bocy Shop relate onty to second half of the year 2006 Sales for full year 2006 would have amounted tn €733 4 million

Operational assets and operational kabfiues can be reconcied o the 2006, 2005 and 2004 balancs sheets as follows

€ miéions 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
QOperational assets 12,5643 11,2855 100658  Operational iabiltes 47387 4,577 8 4,340 7
Non-current financial assets 10,2505 10757 1 8542 4 Shareholders’ equity 14624 2 146572 118254

Non-current bomowangs  and loans 18924 428 2 7130
Deferred tax assets 4208 424 8 427 9 Prowvsion for habifties and charges 1389 1131 107 4

Current borrowings and loans 22180 24521 14312
Other curent assats 757 2 7155 7728  Defered lax labiibes 5126 9147 13222
Cash and cash equivalent 7812 663 2 576 2 Other cunent liabilites 658 4 7430 6453
Mon-allocated asaets 12,2987 126206 103194 Non-allocated liabilibes 20,0443 193084 169445
Total Assets 24,7830 236861 20,3852  Total Lisbiliies 247830 2383851 20,3852
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b - information by geographic zone - Group

All information I1s presenied on the basis of geographic location of the subsidianes, except for the breakdown of sales by destination,

which 1s based on the geographic location of the customer

1 Consolidated sales by geographic zone

2006 Growth (%} 2005 2004
€ millions %  Publshed Excluding € miligns % € milicns %
ot fotal data exchange effect of total of tatal
Western Europe 73477 465 77 77 5§22 4 469 6,805 5 499
North America 14,2880 272 58 67 4,0519 279 37500 275
Rest of the Warld 4154 4 263 1386 137 36582 252 30859 226
Group 15,780 1 000 87 8BS 14,6532 5 100 ¢ 136413 1000
2 Consoldated sales by geographic zone by destination
The breakdown of sales for each gecgraphic zone by destination for 2006, 2005 and 2004 15 a5 {ollows
» Westarn Europe 44%, 45 8% and 48 5%,
* North Amenca 27 6% 27 4% and 27 1%
* Rest of the World 28 4%, 26 8% and 24 4%
3 Cosmetics sales by geographic zone
2006 Growth {%) 2005 2004
€ milens % Published Excluding € mikons % € milkons %
of total data exchange effect of total of total
Weslem Europe 69923 466 37 37 67421 47 4 67328 504
North Amenca 39537 263 22 3t 38682 27 2 35705 267
Rest of the Warld 4065 4 271 128 129 3604 4 254 30448 228
Casmetics branch 15011 4 106G 0 56 509 14,2147 100¢ 133479 000
4 Breakdown of operating profit of cosmetics branch by geographic zone
€ mithons 2006 2005 2004
Western Europe 1527 3 14151 1,362 9
North America 744 4 7080 B32 0
Rest of the World 5865 485 5 4114
Cosmetics dwvislons tota! 2,860.2 2,608 6 2,406 3
Non allocated -437 0 -386 4 -3680
Cosmetica branch 24232 2212.2 2,038 3
5 Breakdown of operational assets and consolidated investments by geographic zone
€ nullions 2008 2005 2004
Operational Investmernts n Operational Investments n Operational Investments in
assets tangitte and assets tangible and assets tangible and
intangible assets intangible assets intangible assels
Western Europe 6,989 0 3157 §5126 269 2 5746 4 2740
North America 31168 2252 32898 206 1 25845 204 1
Rest of the Worid 21253 1691 21367 1414 14265 1204
Non-alocated 3331 441 326 3 573 2885 744
Group 12,564 2 ¥57.1 112655 673 8 100658 B72.9
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NOTE 4 - PERSONNEL COSTS AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

a - Number of employeesi?

12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Western Europe 27,237 23903 24,237
North America 14,578 9622 9,077
Rest of the World 19038 18 878 18 767
Total @ 80,851 52,403 52,081
{1) mcluding companies consohdated by the proportional method
(2) Out of which 8 937 for The Body Shep in 2008
b - Personnel costs
& mikons 2006 2005 2004
Personnel costs
{includng welfarg contributions) 3034 0 28517 2,7190

Personnel costs include remuneration inked to stock options and taxes on remuneration
¢ - Compensation of directors and management

The costs recorded under compensation and assimilated benefits granted to the Management Cormmitiee and the Board of Directors
may be analysed as follows

€ millions 2006 2005 2004
Diectors fees 09 09 09
Salanes and benefts including employer welfare contnbutions 202 234 205
Employee retrement obligation charges 131 14 5 128
Stock option charges 197 91 75

NGTE 5 - AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Amortisation of tangible and intangible assets included in operating expenses amount 1o €589 5, €541 6 and €496 8 milion respectively
for 2006, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 6 - OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

This itern may be dvided inta the following

€ mifhons 2006 2005 2004

pro forma
Capiial gans or losses on disposals of tangible and ntangible asseis 85 115 -627
Impairment of langible and ntangibla assets -69 4 - -240Q
Restructurning costs 01 -22 -385
Total -60.8 93 -126 2

{1} These imparment charges relate to SoFTsiern Carson goedwill for €53 7 mithon in 2006 and €24 milhon n 2004 and to Yue-Sa brand for €15 7 milllon 1n 2008

NOTE 7 - FINANCE COSTS

This item may be dmded into the followang

€ miions 2006 2005 2004
Financial interests related to the gross debt -1406 -843 -64 6
Financial mterests rtated to cash and cash equivalents 227 205 215
Finance costs -1159 -638 =431

Annual Repert _ L'OREAL 2006




.

26 _ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - INCOME TAX

a - Detalled breakdown of income tax

& milipns 2008 2005 2004
pro forma
Current tax 7830 695 0 6407
Deferred tax 2733 ~290 1 -221
ncome tax 5147 405 9 61886
b - Analysis of tax charge
The income tax charge may be analysed as follows
En millions ¢ eures 2006 2005 2004
Pre-tax income of consolidated companies 2,578 8 23791 50625
Theorstical tax rate 31 74% 32 29% 34 67%
Expected tax charge 8179 7668.2 1,755 2
Impact of permanent diferences 597 370 1175
Impact of tax rate differences 1 -3616 -388 3 -1879
Change in non reccrded detered taxes -98 128 16
Impact on Sanofi-Aventis diution capiial gains € - - -564 8
Other & 85 -138 -319
Group tax charge 5147 4055 1,0887

(1) Includes the impact of the decrease in long term tax rates on dispasal of mvestments from 15% to 8% and 2% applicable to the Sancfi Aventis stake
(2} Caprtal gain calculated at 15 72% on the tax base cerresponding ty the cost of the shares held
{3} Including tax credits, tax reassessments and provisions for tax habilities

The expected lax charge 15 the {otal for each couniry of the pre-tax income multiphed by the normal taxation rate The theoretical tax rate

15 the total expected tax charge as a percentage of the pre-tax income of consoldated companies
¢ - Deferred taxes in the balance sheet -

The varation in deferred taxes {assets and labilibes) may be analysed as folows

€ mehons

Batance of deferred tax assels at December 31%, 2003 4336
Balance of deferred tax liabilites at December 31¢ 2003 -287 &
Protit and loss eftect ~4529
Translation differences -3
Sanofi-Aventss restatement -5550
Other efects -380
Balance of deterrod tax assets at December 311, 2004 427 9
Batance of deferred tax liabilities at December 314, 2004 -13222
Profit and loss eftect 290 1
Translation differences -G8
Qther effects 1151
Balance of deferred tax assets @t December 31%, 2005 424 B
Balance of deferred iax liahilitles at December 31%, 2605 -914 7
Profit and loss effect 2733
Translation ditferences -15
Other efiecis 1354
Balance of deferred tax assets at Dacember 31%, 2006 429.8
Balance of deferred tax habilitres at December 317, 2006 ~-512.5
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Deferred tax assets and habilities recorded in the balance sheet may be breakdown as follows

€ milhons 12312006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Deferred Delerred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deterred

tax assets tax liabiliies tax assets tax labiktes tax assets tax fiabikties
Temporary differences 4212 3491 4169 827 4192 B0 7
Deterred tax habuhty
on Sanofi-Aventis restatement - 163 4 8320 12415
Tax credits and tax
loss carry-forwards 88 - 79 87
Deferred tax total 4298 512.5 424 8 9147 427.9 1,322.2

Deferred tax assets relative to temporary differences mainly concerns provisions for pensions and early retrement (€244 8 milion,
€298 7 milion and €303 9 mifion at the end of 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively) and provisions for labiites and charges (€109 8 mullion,
€102 7 millon and €106 6 milion at the end of 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively}

Deferred tax liabiiies relative to temporary differences mainly concern intangible assets acqurired in the frame of business combinations
except non tax deductible goodwall

The increase in deferred tax habiities in 2004 is primarity due to the deferred tax llability on capital gans IInked to the Sancfi-Aventis
dilution {15 72%) n this regard, standard I1AS 12 goverming income tax stipulates that the tax rate to be retained when determining the
deferred tax hability to be bocked on unrealised tax capital gains at each close of accounts should be the rate apphcable under current
tax regulations as on the date on which such capital gains are expected 1o be realised

The amended French finance law (Lor de finances} of 2004 reduced the tax rate {excluding additional taxes} applicable for long-term
capital gains on investments 1o 15% for 2005, 8% for 2006 and 1 66% thereafter

Since it was not possible to determine the likely date for the disposal of alf or part of its stake in Sanofi-Aventis, L'Créal retained the
highest long-term capital gauns tax rate in force at the end of 2005 and at the end of 2004 for the coming financial year, 1 8% and
15% respectively

As a resutt of this position, it recorded a deferred tax lability of €450 4 million on the profit and loss account at December 31=, 2004

The mamtenance of L' Oreals stake i Sancfi-Aventis at December 31%, 2005 led to a €325 8 million and a €83 8 millon wnte-back
respectively through income and equity in connection with the deferred tax liability in 2003

The maintenance of U'Oreal's stake in Sanofi-Aventis at December 312, 2006 leads to a €285 6 milion and a €383 milion wnite-back
respectively through ncome and equity iIn connection wath the deferred tax lability n 2006

Deferred tax assets whose recovery 1s not considered probable are not recorded in the financial statements, such assets amount to
€75 1 at December 31%, 2006 compared wath €81 3 millon at December 31t 2005 and with €61 6 mullion at December 31, 2004

NOTE 9 - NET PROFIT BEFORE NON-RECURRENT ITEMS AFTER MINORITY INTERESTS -
NET EARNINGS PER SHARE

a - Reconciliation with net profit

The net profit before non-recurrent tems after minonity interests is reconciled as follows with the net profit after minonty interests

€ mill:ons 2006 2005 2004

pro forma
Net profit attributable to the group 20610 18723 1,438 7
Capitad gams and kosses on tangibla and intangible asset disposals -85 -115 627
Tangible and intangible assets depreciation 69 4 - 240
Restructunng cost -01 22 395
Tax effect on non-recurrent items -28 i3 -185
Effect of change in tax rate on Sanofi-Aventis deferred 1ax lability -2856 -3258 603
Minority interests - = -02
Deferred tax total 1,833 4 16385 1,485 9
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b - Net profit per share

The tables below set out the net earnings after minonty interests per share

Net profit atter minonty nterests Number of shares Net profit after minonty interests
2006 {€ miliops} per share (€}
Net profit per share 20610 613 281 887 338
Stock options plan 2441,333
Dilyted net profit per share 2,061 0 815 723,220 335
Net prefit after minonty nterests Number of shares Net peofit after muinonty interests
2005 {€ milions} per share (€)
Net profit per share 19723 620,508,822 313
Stock options plan 1383648
Dijuted net profit per share 18723 630 892,470 313
Net profit after minority nterests Number of shares Net profit after minonty interests
200 pro forma (€ milions) per share (€)
Net prcfit per share 14387 647 677 982 222
Stock options plan 1920422
Diluted net proflt per share 14387 649,598,404 221

¢ - Net profit before non-recurrent tems per share

The tables below set out in detail the net earmings before non-recurrent items after minonity interests per share

Net profit before Nurnber of shares Net profit before
nan recurent tems after munarity non-recurrent items  atteér minonty
2006 interests (€ mubons) nterests per share (€)
Net profit befare non recurrent
tems per share 18334 513 281 887 2489
Siock cptions plan 2441 333
Chluted net profit before
not-recurrent tems per share 18334 615,723,220 248
Net profit before Number of shares Net profit before

2005

non-recurent tems after mincnty
nterests {€ millions)

non-recurrent items atter mmonty
nterests por share (€)

Net profit before non recurrent

fiems per share 16385 620 508 822 260

Stock opticns plan 1383 648

Diluted net profit before

ngn-recurrant items per share 16385 £30,802,470 2860

Net profit before Number of shares Net profit before

non recurent items atter minonty non-recurrent tems atter munonty

2004 org tonnz nteres!s (€ mibons) nterests per share (€)

Net profit be‘ore non-recurrent

tems per share 14859 647 677 982 229

Slock oplions plan 1920 422

Diiusted not profit before

non-recurrent tems per share 14853 649,598,404 229
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Goodwillis allocated by Cash Generaling Unit or by groups of Cash Generating Units A Cash Generating Unit consists of one or more
worldwide trademarks The methodology of impairment tests 1s descnbed in note 1

& muihons 12 31 2005 Acquistions Other 12 31 2008
2006 Dspesals movements

L QREAL PROFESSIONNEL/KERASTASE 3166 -123 304 3
MaTrix 957 -150 180 86
REDKEN i014 00 101 4
Professionnat Products Total 6137 274 586 3
L'OREL PaRis 7490 -79 7411
MAYBELLINE/G ARMER 1,093 4 =770 10164
SOFTSHEEN CARSON 1443 -878 765
Consumer Products Total 19866 ~1528 18340
LanCOME 567 3 -49 562 4
SHU UeMuRA 1240 -14 6 1094
Other 1957 -27 1930
Luxury Products Total 8870 ~222 864.8
ViCHY/DERMABLEND 204 8 -18 2032
Other 1429 387 -91 1725
Active Cosmetics Total 3477 B7 -0 7 3157
Other cosmetics 21 53 -01 73
The Body Shop 3790 69 385 8
Group Tota! 38371 4230 - X682 4,083 9

2006 acquisitions relate to The Body Shop, SkinEthic and the Laboratore Sancflore No disposal took place duning 2006 The other
movements consist mainly of changes in exchange rates dunng the penod, as well as an imparment loss of €53 7 milion refating
to SoFrsHeEeN CarsON  This imparment loss 1S generated by an increase In the interest rates for €29 1 milion The accumulated

impairment losses for SOFTSHEEN CaARSON amount to €72 9 million at December 31%, 2006

€ mufioms 12 31 2004 Acguistions Other 12 31 2005
2005 Disposals movements

L'OREAL PROFESSIONNEL/KERASTASE ape2 - 16 5 3166
MATRX 1758 - 199 1957
REDKEN 107 2 - ~58 1014
Professionnal Products Total 583.2 - 305 6137
L'OREAL PaRis 7353 01 135 7490
MAYBELUINE/G ARNER 852 6§ 285 11 3 10934
SOFTSHEEN CARSON 1279 - 16 3 144 3
Consumer Products Total 18158 297 1411 1,286 6
Lanestue 5500 01 82 567 3
ShHu Usvura 1203 - 38 124 0
Other 190 8 - 49 18957
Luxury Products Total 8700 a1 169 887 0
VICHY/DERMARLEND 2019 - 29 2048
Other 423 g7 4 33 142 9
Attive Cosmetics Total 2442 97 4 6.2 3477
Other cosmetics 06 i3 _ 21
Group Totn) 3,5138 128 7 184 7 3,837 1

The acquesitions In 2005 nvolved SkinCeumcaLs, Delial and fe Cuis bes CREATEURS DE Beaurt Japon No disposal took place in 2005
The other mavements consisted mainly of changes in exchange rates dunng the pencd
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€ mithons 12 31 2003 Acquisttions Other 12 31 2004
2004 Dispcsals movements

L'OrEAL PROFESSIONNEL/KERASTASE 3080 - -79 300 2
MATRX 184 7 - -89 1758
REDKEN 107 2 - - 107 2
Professionnal Products Total 600 0 - -168 583 2
L Ore Pams 663 3 728 -06 7353
MAYBELLINE/GARNER 863 8 140 4 -57 952 6
SOFTSHEEN CARSON 157 5 - -296 127 9
Consumar Products Total 1684 8 2130 -818 18158
LANCOME 487 6 776 -163 5580
SHU UEMURA B5 6 540 -193 1203
Other 1583 330 -05 1908
Luxury Products Total 7415 1647 ~361 8700
VICH/DERMABLEND 1911 122 -14 2018
Ciher 415 10 -02 423
Active Cosmetics Total 232.6 132 -17 244 2
Other cosmetics 08 - - [#3:]
Group Total 32593 %09 «136 4 35138

The acquisiions in 2004 mamnly concerned MINNURSE, YUE-Sa and SHu Uemura No disposal took place in 2004 The other movements
consisted of changes in exchange rates over the penod and a €24 million wrte-off for SoFrsHEEn Carson

NOTE 11 - OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

€ mithons 12 31 2005 Acquimiions Disposals  Changes inthe Ciher 12 31 20068
2006 AMGHZAtoN Takeovers scope of movemnents
consoldation ¢

Brands with an ndefinite Ife span @ 707 4 01 605 4 —44 1 1,268 B
Depreciable brands and product ranges 42 4 [+]:] 87 -22 49 6
Licences and patents 462 6 58 -19 31 —-114 4581
Other 2766 49 6 -150 639 58 3810
Gross vaiva 1,489.0 56.2 -170 681.2 -51 9 2,575
Brands with an indefinde life span ™ 157 -04 153
Depreciable brands and product ranges 16 5 35 -1t 188
Licences and patents 1310 186 -19 -41 143 6
Qther 1406 42 6 —-149 134 54 187 1
Amortsation and provisions 288 ¢ 804 -16.8 134 -0.3 364 B
Gther mtangible asseis - nat 1,201 0 -243 -02 867 8 -518 1,782.8

{1} This ltem consists mainky of changes n the scope of consolidation (The Body Shop, SkinEthic and Sancfiore}
{21 At December 31%, 2006 the brands with an méefinite e span constst mamly of the brands Tee Booy Swoe (€616 9 miflion), Marrx (€277 8 mullion), KiEnL's (€124 2 million)

and Sru Uemura (€93 5 rullion)

(3} An impairment loss of €15 7 mullion has been recognised for the Yue-Sa brand dunng 2006

The other movements consisted of changes in exchange rates over the penod
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€ mihons 12 31 2004 ACOUISILONS Disposals Changes n Other 12 31 2005
Amortisation Takeovers the scope of movements

2005 consoldatoni

Brands with an indefinite lita span @ 8185 01 - 288 600 707 4
Depreciable brands and product ranges 285 02 - 59 79 424
Licences and patents 4538 59 -17 15 33 462 6
Other 1840 67 4 -83 243 92 2766
Gross value 1,284 6 735 -89 &0 4 80 4 1,485 0
Brands with an ndefinite e span - - - - - —
Depreciable brands and product ranges® 18 130 - - 17 165
Licences and patents 107 4 222 -16 ~ 30 1310
Other 11056 358 -78 Q2 19 1406
Amortsation and provisions 2197 709 -9 4 Q.2 a6 288.0
Other intangible assets - net 1,084 9 28 -05 60 2 738 12010

(1} This item censists mainly of changes m the scope of cunsolidation {SkinCeutrcals and Dehal}
(2} At December 31%, 2005, the brands with an indefinite Iifé span consist mainly of the brands Marrx (€302 2 million), Kiew's (€134 0 milhen) and Sw Usmka (€101 8 millaan)
{3} An exceptional amartsation of €9 2 milbae has been recorded for the MavmiUrse brand during 2005

The other movements consisted of changes in exchange rates over the period

< mithons 12 31 2003 Acquisiions Disposals Changes in Cther 12 31 2004
Amaortisation Takeovers the scope of movements

2004 consolidauon!

Brands with an indefinite kfe span @ 5589 3 - - B9 6 -303 618 5
Depreciable brands and product ranges 35 - -03 28 6 -33 285
Licences and palents 4957 206 -609 - -1g 453 6
Cther 160 Q 342 -134 - 32 1840
Gross valua 1,218 4 548 «74 6 118.2 -32.3 12846
Brands with an indefinite 4fe span - - - - —
Depreciabie brands and product ranges® 02 it - D5 18
Licences and patents !y 256 -92 -06 107 4
Other 901 313 -131 21 1165
Amortisation and provisions 1820 580 -223 20 2197
Other intangibfe assets - net 1,036 4 -32 «523 $18.2 -343 1,064 &

(1) This etem cansists manly of changes n the scope of consolidation (YUE-Sal, MivURse and Sk UEMURA)
(2} At December 31% 2004, the brands with an indsfizute Iife span consist maindy of the brands Mamx (€270 6 milicn} Kew's (€121 4 miliion) and Sau Usmura (€101 4 million)

The other movements consisted of changes in exchange rates over the penod

NOTE 12 - IMPAIRMENT TESTS ON INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Imparrment tests on Cash Generating Units for which the carnying amount of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
18 significant, are realized based on the following data and assumptions

Discount rate in %

Goodwill and brands wih International without United States
< millions indefinite usefull Ives nst book value United States
2006 Test
LanctmEe 562 4 800 810
L'OREAL Pars 74i1 800 910
MareR e/ GARNER 10164 800 910
2005 Tast
LANGOME 5673 720 850
L OREAL PARS 7480 7 20 850
MAYBELLINE/(G ARNIER 10934 720 850
2004 Test
LANCOVE 5520 B 15 615
L'Oress PaRs 7353 815 815
MayBeLLrE/GARMER 9526 815 815
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1 pont increase in the discount rate for these Cash Generating Units would not generale any impaiment loss

Growth rate m perpetuity 1s in accordance with market datai1e 3%

1 point decrease n the growth rate in perpetunty would not generate any impairment loss

NOTE 13 - TANGIBLE ASSETS

€ milbons 12 31 2005 Acquisions Disposals Translation Other 12 31 2006
2006 Amneriisation Takeovers difference movementst

Land and buifgmgs 13780 411 -349 =370 1852 1,533 4
Machinery and equipment 21405 177 4 -98 6 -863 431 21761
POS, stands and displays 7229 1993 ~1406 -394 96 9 B3g1
Cther tangible assets and work-in-progress 1,056 4 269 5 -839 599 -954 11067
Gross value 52088 687.3 =3350 -2226 2298 56553
tand and buidings 643 8 6186 -232 -133 64 9 7338
Machunery and equipment 12311 197 4 -102 3 -47 8 -71 12715
POS stands and displays 446 8 1787 ~-1328 -219 278 492 7
Other tangible assets and work-in progress 5111 a7 1 -818 -254 T8 528 9
Depreciation and provisions 2,832.8 524 8 326 1 -108.2 1636 30269
Tangihle assets - net 2,465 0 1625 -119 -1144 126 2 26284

{1) These are mamly the result of the impatt of changes In the scope of consolidation, and fixed assets in progress allocated to the other fixed assets rtems

€ milhans 12 31 2004 AcquIsitions Disposals Translation Other 12 31 2005
2006 Amortisation Takeovers difference movements Y

Land ang buildings 132962 235 -17 4 552 215 1,379 C
Machinery and equipment 18809 1553 -897 i156 784 21405
POS, stands and displays 83586 168 0 -147 2 574 a1 7229
Other tangible assets and work i progress 9219 2536 ~G7 4 782 -1289 10564
Gross value 4,734 6 600 4 -3217 306 4 -209 5.298.8
Land and buldings 5616 €26 -143 16 8 -29 6438
Machmery and equipment 11108 167 9 -882 827 -221 §2311
POS, stands and displays 401 6 1681 3 -1469 349 -41 446 8
Other tangible asssts and work in progress 455 5 789 -650 353 64 5111
Depreciation and provisions 2545 6 4707 -314 4 149 7 -2271 28329
Tangible assets - net 2,185¢ 1297 -73 156 7 18 2,486.0

{1) These are mawmly the result of the impact of changes in the scope of consolidation, and fixed assets i progress allocated to the other fixed asseds items

€ milliens 12 31 2003 Acquistions D1sposals Translation Other 12 31 2004
2004 Amorusabon Takeovers ditference maovements i

Land and buildings 12288 573 -346 -128 575 12962
Machinery and equpment 1,765 4 1451 -524 -405 734 18809
POS stands and displays 536 1 1940 -833 -1790 56 635 6
Other tangible assets and work-m-progress 8773 2377 -430 -260 -1242 9219
Gross value 43878 634 1 -2133 -98.2 124 4,734 6
Land and buildngs 547 § 555 -218 -47 48 58186
Machinery and equipment 10349 146 6 —452 -236 -189 11108
POS, stands and displays , 336 1 140 8 -850 -g7 194 401 6
Other tangible assets and work-In-progress 4209 720 -368 -1%19 44 4555
Depreciation and provisions 2,348.7 414 & -180.8 -498 267 2,549 6
Tangible assets - net 2,048 9 218.2 -224 -~464 -143 2,1850

(%) These are mainly the result of the impact of changes in the scope of consclidation, and foed assets In progress aliocated to the other fixed assets items.
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€ millicns 12 31 2008 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Land and Huildings 1008 167 5 17C5
Machinery and equipment 86 82 65
Other tangble assats and work-m-progress 203 216 122
Gross value 1208 1853 189.2
Deprecation 431 a8 0 929
Net value B8 7 973 96 3
NOTE 14 - NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
€ milhons 12 31 2008 12 31 2005 1231 2004
Batance Acquistion Balance Acquismion Balance Acquisition
sheot value cost/ sheet valug cost/ sheet vatue cost/
amortised cost amortised cost amortised cosi
Investments n non-consoldated companies
» Sanofi-Aventis 100058 48801 105850 48801 84108 4,880 1
» Unhsted secunties # 42 42 44 44 40 a0
Nen-current loans and recesvables P! 158 5 158 § 167 7 167 7 127 6 1275
Total 10,168 5 5,042 8 107571 50822 8,642.4 50116

{1) Sanofi-Aventis was deconschdated on August 12th 2004 {see note 2-¢) The balance sheet value at December 31, 2004 December 312 2005 and Decermber 31%, 2006 of €8,410 8 milion,
£€10,585 millon and €10 005 8 mitlion respectively, comesponds to the market value of the shares based on the closing price on December 31# 2004 2005 and 2006 respectvely

of €58 B0, €74 00 and €69 95
{2) As therr fawr value canngt be reliably determined they are stated at cost.
{3) The amortised cost takes mio account recognrsed impalrment losses

NOTE 15 - INVENTORIES

€ mllions 12 31 2008 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Firushed praducts and consumables 1257 Q 1147 3 10059
Raw matenals packaging end semi-finished products 3077 2899 2908
Gross value 1,064 7 1,437 2 1,296 7
Valuation allowance 160 3 1754 1733
inventories - naet 1,404 4 11,2618 1,123 4
NOTE 16 - TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

& miglors 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Gross value 2599 0 2,422 8 2,115 2
Valuation allowance 405 432 518
Net value 2,558.5 23787 2,063 4
Trade accounts receivable are due within one year

NOTE 17 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

€ millions 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Fiscal and social accounis recer/able {excluding income 1ax) 221 4 198 4 1730
Prepawd expenses 167 0 1637 128 3
Point of sales advertsing 1268 1198 1155
Denvatives 1091 733 1833
Qther qurrent assets 2285 2738 230 9
Total B518 8250 ano
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NOTE 18 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

€ mithons 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Balance Acqussition Batance Acquisition Balance Acguisibon
shest value cost sheel value cost sheet value cost
Marketable secunties 1323 1235 1427 1266 180 4 1709
Bank accounts and other cash
and cash equivalents 648 9 648 9 5205 520 5 395 8 3958
Total 7812 1124 6632 657 1 5762 568 7

The marketable securities consist mainly of money-market SICAV investment funds and unit trusts {on which the return is based on
EONIA) and short-term investments

Unreatsed gans recorded over the penod amount to €8 8 millkon compared with €6 1 and €9 5 million in 2005 and in 2004 and are
recorded directly through sharehalders' equity

NOTE 19 - SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

a - Share capital and addhional paid-in capital

The share capital consists of 639,616,410 shares with a par value of €0 20 at Decernber 318, 2006 follow:ng the decision mads by
the Board of Directors on April 257, 2006 to cancel 19,229,250 shares and the exercise of subscnption options for 76,000 shares

The share capital consisted of 658,769,660 shares with a par value of €0 20 euro at December 31%t, 2005 following the decision made
by the Beoard of Drectors on Apnl 26%, 2005 to cancel 17,300,000 shares and the exercise of subscnption options for 7,500 shares

It consisted of 676,062,160 shares with a par value of €0 20 at December 31t 2004

b - Treasury stock

A L'Oreal share buyback programme was authonsed by the Annual General Meetings of Shareholders on May 29, 2002, May 22,
2003, Apnl 281, 2004, Apnl 261, 2005 and Apnl 25™, 2006 These shares are deducted from consoldated shareholders' equity
Capital gains or losses relating 1o these shares net of tax ane also recorded i shareholders' equity

In 2004, L'Oréal purchased 12,340,000 shares for €691 8 million These shares were still held at Decernber 318, 2004

In 2005, L'Oréal purchased 20,000,000 shares for €1 224 6 million In view of the 17,300,000 shares cancelled in Apnl 2005, 15,040,000
shares were held at December 31st, 2005 for €932 0 million, of which 1,800,000 shares are allocated to the share option plan
oi Novermber 30, 2005

In 2008, L'Oreal purchased 16,813,000 shares for €1,241 8 millon In view of the 17,660,000 shares cancelled in Apnl 2006 and 6,000
options exercised, 14,187,000 shares are held at December 31=t, 2006 for €1,033 8 milon, of which 1,794,000 shares are aflocated
to the share option plan of November 30, 2005

Furthermore, the L'Oreal shares acquired as part of employee share purchase option plans, which are now deducted from consolidated
shareholders’ equity, amounted to 25,447,800 shares at December 31%, 2004 for an acquistion pnce of €1,759 1 millon At Decemnber
31%, 2005 these shares amounted to 23,756,050 for an acquisition pace of €1,706 2 milion At December 31, 2006 these shares
amounted to 18,707,300 for an acgquisibon pnce of €1,462 5 millon

In 2004, no shares were bought or sold for this purpose, and oplions relaling to 1,038,600 shares were exercised

In 2005, no shares were bought or sold for this purpose and ophions relating to 1,691 750 shares were exercised

In 2006, no shares were bought or sold for this purpose, and options relating te 2,479,500 shares were exercised and 1,569,250 shares
were cancelled
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The tabie below sets out the data conceming option plans issued after November 7, 2002 and in force at Decernber 31, 2006

Allocaton date Number  Number of options Exeroce penod Exarcice

of optxns not yet exercised From To pnce
12 03 2003 2,500 000 2476 000 12 04 2008 12032013 63 02
12 03 2003 2,500 000 2,416 250 12 04 2008 12032013 7180
03 24 2004 2,000 000 1884 500 03 25 2009 03 24 2014 64 69
12012004 4 000,000 3970,000 12 02 2009 12012014 55 54
06 29 2005 400,000 400,000 06 30 2010 0629 2015 B0 17
11 302005 4 200,000 4 186,000 1201 2030 11302015 6137
11 302005 1 800 000 1794 000 1201 2050 11302015 6294
04 25 2008 2,000 000 2000 c00 04 26 2011 04 25 2016 7260
12 01 2006 5,500,000 5,500,000 12 02 2011 12012018 7808

All the plans have a 5 years exercise penod and no performance condiions

The farr value of options 1s determined using the Black & Scholes method based on the following hypotheses

Purchase options Subscnpbcn options

December November December March December June November Aprl December

2003 2005 2003 2004 2004 2008 2005 2006 2008

Risk-free rate of return 4 22% 318% 382% 338% 317% 2 63% 316% 3 80% 3 62%
Expected life span 8 years 8 years 6 years 7 years 6 years B years 6 years B years 7 years
Expected volalility 21 50% 21 00% 2180% 2367% 18 70% 17% 21% 2050% 22 52%
Expected dmdends 1% 135% 1% 120% 1 4% 128% 1 35% 135% 135%
Share pnce 63 45 613 53 45 806 54 6 594 613 7410 74 6G
Exercise pnce 7190 62 94 83 02 84 89 55 54 8017 8137 7260 7806
Far value 1524 123 15 66 14 87 1015 945 12 88 17 48 17 19

Expected volatilty 1s equal to the implicit volatiity of the options sted on the Monep at the grant dates The expected life span has been
adjusted to match as closely as possible the behavioural hypotheses of the beneficiaries

Data concermning all share option plans dunng fiscal years 2004, 2005 and 2006 are set oul below

32 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Number Weightsd Number Weighted Number Weighted
of options average prce of options average pnce of options average pnce
for year for year for year
Number of options not exercised
at beginning of pencd 38 648,550 67 47 33 847 800 BG 70 28 986,400 67 13
» Options granted 7 500,000 76 80 6 400 000 6174 6 000 000 58 59
* Oplions exercisad ~ 2 581,500 49 44 -1699,250 30 59 -1 038,600 31 85
* Opions expred -1 569 250 - -
Number of opiions
not exercisad at end of pencd 42,017 800 B89 86 35 648 550 67 47 33 947 800 66 70
Of which number of exercisable oplions
at end of pencd 12 581 550 7274 11043 800 85 06 7,404,050 46 50
expired options at end of penod 1,669,750 2 667,500 1,688 250

The average wexghted pnce of the share amounted to €73 84, €60 91 and €60 28 respactively for 2006, 2005 and 2004

The total charge recorded in 2006, 2005 and 2004 amounted to €49 4, €29 9 milion and €20 4 millon respectvely
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d - items directly recogrised in equity

The following tables indicate movements on the various types of item

& milhons 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Financial assets avallable for sate

Reserve at opening date 57110 3,540 2 120
Changes in far valug over penod -5711 2,176 8 35332
Loss of value recorded i profit and loss account - - -
Changes n far value recorded m profit and doss account on disposal -55 -50 -50
Reserve at closing date 5,134 4 57110 35402
€ mifhons 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Cash flows hedge - exchange

Reserve at opening date -47 6 68 8§ 98 2
Changes in far value aver penod 93.2 -1059 438
Changes i fair value recorded in profit and loss account -123 -3085 -732
Reserve at closing date 333 -47 8 688
€ mithons 12 312006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Cash flows hedge - interest rates

Reserve at opening date - -22 -41
Changes in far valus over penod 20 +28 -14
Changes i far value recorded n profit and kss account ~-18 -06 +33
Reserve at closmg date 04 - -22
€ milions 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Total ems directly recogmised in equity

Gross resenve 51681 56634 36068
Asscciated tax effact =-101 2 ~ 466 2 ~-5758
Reserve net of 1ax 50669 5,197.2 33,0310

NOTE 26 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, TERMINATION BENEFITS
AND OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The group adheres to pension, early retrement and other benefits schemes depending on iccal legislation and regulations

For basic schemes and other defined-contnbution schemes, the group charges to profit and 10ss account the contnbutions to be pad
when they are due and no provision has been set aside, with the group’s commitment not exceeding the amount of contnbutions pard

For defined benefit schemes, the charactenstics of the schemes n force inside the group are as follows

» French regulations provide for specific length-of-service awards payable to empioyees onretirement  In addition, an early retirement
plan and a defined benefit plan have been set up In some group companies there are also measures providing for the payment of
certain healthcare cosis for retired employees

These oblgations, except for those relating to healthcare costs for retired employees, are partially funded

+ For foreign subsidianes with employee pension schemes or other specific obligations relating to defined benefits, the excess of
obkgations over the scheme's assets 1s recognised by setting up a prowsian for charges on the basts of ihe actuanal value of vested

nghts of employees

Pension obhgations are determined and recognised in accordance with the accounting ponciples presented in note 1-v
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The actuanal assumptions used to calculate these obkgations take mnto account the economic conditions In each country or in each
group company The average weighted assumptions for the group are as follows

12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004

Discount rate 4 7% 4 5% 5 0%

Salary micrease 48% 4 5% 4 6%

Long term return on assels 58% 54% 5 8%
12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004

nhial Ulimate Application Iriual Ultmate Application Initeal Utimate  Apphcation

rate rate  of utbmate rate rate ot utimate rate rate  of ultamate

ralg rate final

Expected rate of health care wflation 67% 4 6% 201 7 4% 4 7% 2011 81% 41% 201

The discount rates are obtained by reference to market yelds on high quality bonds having matunty dates equvalent to those of the plans

The returns on ptan assets are determined upon the asset allocahon of the investment portfolio taking Into account for each class of

assets, returns in accordance with the sk and past performance

The vanatons dunng 2008, 2005 and 2004 are set out below

£ mithons Projected Assets Unrealised Unrecognised Net
oension gains and plans DIOVISIONS
obkgations losses amendments
Batance at December 31 2003 1,993 3 8837 ~-204 1,130 0
Senvite ¢ost 94 8 948
Intarest cost 98 1 981
Expected return on assets 57 2 -572
Reversal of provesons () -344 12 -356
Past serwice cost new plans/plans amendments 141 -14 8 o7
Curtalments
Settlemants -09 -03
Benefits pad -869 -515 -354
Contnbution pad 66 1426 -1360
Unrealised gans and losses 2081 24 4 176 8 57 02
Translation differences -328 -233 -35 08 -68
Cther mavements -541 24 -Q2 -56 3
Balance al December 31% 2004 21777 11,0355 173.1 -265 895 6
Service Cosl 107 2 107 2
Interest cost 1098 108 8
Expected returm on assets 66 6 -66 6
Reversal of provisions -06 -06
Past sennce cost new plans/plans amendments -04 86 -90
Curtattments -13 -15 01 -89
Settlements
Benfits patd -97 1 -571 -409Q
Contribution pad 68 156 6 -149 8
Unrealised gans and losses 166 6 434 119 9 33
Translaton differences 812 570 70 -086 179
Other movernenis 28 28
Balance at December 1™ 2005 26426 1,302 0 248.4 -184 960 6
Senice cost 1040 1040
Interest cost 109 2 1092
Expected return on assets 7 -717
Past serace cost new plans/plans amendments -110 -08 -102
Curtalments -710 =71 -639
Settlements -4 5 -29 -15 -01
Benefits pad -107 4 -708 -366
Contnbution pawd &7 1558 -1491
Unrealised gans and losses 216 320 -183 79
Translation differences -667 -471 -78 02 -i22
Balante at December 31% 2006 25235 1,440 7 2639 -189 837 9

(1} In 2004, other movements include €57 2 mellion in reversals of prowistons previously booked against shareholders' eguity The change m this commatment also resulted

n a €35 & million reduction in expenses for 2004
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The total present value of defined benefit obligations breaks down as foliows between whally or partly funded plans and wholly unfunded plans

€ milfigns 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Present value of defined benefit obligations that are wholly or partly funded 2,253 9 21780 18772
Fair value of plan assets 14408 1,3020 1,035 5
Funded status of defined benefit obligatons that are wholly or partly funded 8131 8760 8417
Present vahue of defined benefit obligatons that are wholy unfunded 2696 364 6 3005

The retirement expense charged 1o the profit and joss account are recorded with personal expenses in operational profit and may be
analysed as follows

< mihons 2006 2005 2004
Senice cost 1040 107 2 948
Interes! cost 1092 1068 S8 1
Expected return on asseis -717 -B6 6 -57 2
Amortisation of unrealised gains and fosses 79 33 02
Reversal of provisions -06 =356
New plans/plans amendments -102 -90 Q7
Curtalments -233 -99

Settlements -01 -09
Total 1158 1342 100 1

In respect of the medical care plans, a change of one percentage pont in the assumed medical costs has the following tmpact

€ mallions Increase of 1% Decraase of 1%
Impact on the benefit obhgat:on 24 47 -1902
Impact an the current serice cost and nterest costs ] 262 -285

The plan assets of retirement plans are nvested as follows

In % 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Equity securies ) 386 407 414
Bonds 47 6 453 461
Property assets @ 72 70 59
Manetary instruments 18 47 49
Cthers 49 23 17
Total 100% hia 100%

{1) Ot of which L Oréal shares il
{2) Ot of which property assets occupled by group entiies D 5%

Allocation of Investments m plan assets has to respect determined proportions between the different classes of assets and have to mest
rmenimum rating cntena for monetary instruments and bonds

The benefit obligation, the far value of the plan assets and the actuanal gains {losses) generated for the current year and the two
previcus years are as follows

< milons 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Bensfit obligation 25235 254286 2177 7
Plan assets —14407 -13020 -10355
{Funded) unfunded slatus 10828 1,240 8 1,142.2
Expenence adjustiments generated on the obligation ~433 -627 -345
Expenence adustments generated on the plan assets 320 434 244
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NOTE 21 - PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

a - Balances at closing date

€ mthons 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 i2 31 2004
Other nen-currestt provisions for habihitres and charges 154 1 1570 1880
Provisions for restruciunng 14 28 37
Other non-current provisions (Y 1527 154 2 184 3
Current provisions for liabditles and charges 272.0 280 3 286 6
Provisions tor restructuring 189 32z 440
Other cumment prowisions 2531 257 1 2426
Total 426 1 446 3 47486

{1) This item inctudes provssions facing tax nsks and itigaton, industriat and commercial nsks relating to operations (breach of contract, product retums) and personnel costs

b - Variations m Provisions for restructuring and Other provisions for liabiltbes and charges during the year

€ millions 12 31 2004 12 31 2005 Charges ®  Reversals Reversals Impact of 12 31 2008
{used)@ notused) @  changen
scope/
exchange
rate/ Othert?
Cther provisions for habilities and charges 426 9 4113 2201 -1389 -875 -192 4058
Provisions for restructuning 477 350 05 -137 -01 -14 203
Total 474 6 4463 2208 -1528 -676 ~208 426.1
{1) Malnty resulting from transtation differences
{2} These figures may be analysed as follows
€ muliors Charges Reversals Reversals
lused) {not used)
* Other ncome and expenses 05 -137 -01
= Operating profit 1865 ~134 5 -617
s income tax 536 -44 -58
For 2005, the change was analysed as follows
€ rinlhans 12 31 2004 Charges®  Reversals Reversals Impact of 12 31 2005
[used)®@ [ronused)®  change in
scope/
exchange
rate/ Othert"
Other provisions for Habilities and charges 4269 1098 -95 1 -60 2 299 4113
Prowisions for restructuring a7 7 53 -152 -35 G7 350
Total 4746 1151 -1103 ~837 06 448 3
{1} Mainly resulting from transiation differences
{2} These figures may be analysed as follows
€ millions Charges Reversals Reversals
{used) {nat used)
» Other ncome and expenses 53 -152 -35
* Operating profit 106 0 -872 -414
* Income tax 38 -79 -188
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NOTE 22 - BORROWINGS AND DEBTS

The group cameas out financing through rmedium-term bank loans, and by the issue of short-term paper in France and the ssue of short-term
commercial paper in the Unied States

a - Debt by type

€ milliong 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 312004
Non-current Current  Non-current Current  Nor-current Current
Short term paper - 20000 17956 1,098
MLT bank lwans 17873 28 339 3 3594 606 0 709
Perpetual loan - 71 80 130 229 116
Debits o capral lease contracts 772 103 539 145 601 1i 0
Overdraits - 736 510 693
Other borrowings and debts 279 1242 270 2183 240 1586
Tatal 1,882 4 22180 428 2 2,452 t 7130 1,431 2

b - Debt by matunty date

€ milians 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Under 1 year 22180 24521 14312
1 to 5 years 18373 3851 €658
CQver 5 years 551 431 47 2
Total 4,110 4 2,880 3 2,144 2

¢ - Debt by currency (after allowing for currency hedging instruments)

€ mithons 1231 2006 12 31 2005 12 34 2004
Euro EUR) 31159 17723 12805
US dollar (USD) 7316 808 9 589 8
Yuan {CNY) 557 57 4 62
Canadian dollar (CAD) 498 560 383
Yen (JPY) 429 328 391
GCither 11356 1529 192 5
Tetal 41104 2,880.3 2,144 2

d - Breakdown of fixed rate and floating rate debt {after allowing for interest rate hedging instruments)

€ milligns 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 312004
Figating sate 38243 25927 18885
Foed rate 2861 287 6 2557
Total 4,1104 2,880 3 2,144.2

e - Effective interest rates

The effectve debt interest rates after allowing for hedging nstruments, were 2 40% in 2004, 3 10% in 2005 and 4 05% in 2006 for short-term
paper, and 2 23% in 2004, 2 56% in 2005 and 3 69% i 2006 for bank lcans

1 - Average debt interest rates

The average debt interest rates, after allowing for hedging nstruments, were 2 17% i 2004, 2 18% i 2005 and 3 07% in 2006 for the euro,
and 1 85% w1 2004, 3 31% in 2005 and 4 76% in 2006 for the US dollar
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g - Fair value of borrowings and debts

The far value of fixed rate debt 1s deterrmined for each loan by the discounting of future cash flows, based on the debenture interest
rate curves at the balance sheet date, after aflowing for the spread corresponding to the groun’s nsk rating

The net book value of outstanding bank loans and other floating rate loans 1s a reasonable approximation of therr fair value

At December 312, 2006, the far value of the debt amounts to €4,113 2 milllon At December 31%t, 2005, it amounted to €2,884 9 million
At December 31%, 2004, it amounted to €2,151 1 milion

h - Debts covered by collateral

There were no significant debts covered by collateral as at December 31%, 2008, at December 31, 2005 and at Decemnber 314 2004

1 - Confirmed crednt ines

At Decernber 31, 2006, L'Oréal and ts subsidianes have €2,625 midion of credit ines confirmed but not used, compared with €2,625 milkon
and €2,268 million respectively at December 31, 2005 and at December 31, 2004

NOTE 23 - DERIVATIVES AND EXPOSURE TO MARKET RISKS

To manage 1ts exposure 10 currency and interest rate nsks ansing in the course of its normal operations, the group uses denvatives
negotiated with organisations with the best credi ratings

In accordance with the group's rules, the currency and interest rate derivatives are set up exclusively for hedging purposes

a - Hedging of currency nsk

The group 1s exposed to currency nsk from commercial transactions recorded on the balance sheet and from future transactions consid-
ered to be highly prebable

The group's policy on exposure to currency nsk from its future commercial transactions 15 to hedge at least 80% of the currency nsk
by denvatives once the operating budgets have been allocated by the group’s subsidianes

All the group s future currency flows are analysed in detailed forecasts for the coming budget year Currency nsks that emerge are
hedged by forward contracts or by options, 10 reduce as far as possidie the currency position of each subsichary The durabion of the
denvatives i1s determined as appropnate for the group’s settlement flows Exchange rate dervalives are negobiated by Regefi (the group's
bark} or, n exceptional cases, directly by the group s subsidianes when the currency 1S not convertible, with any such operatons subject
to control by Régefi

As the group's comparies must borrow and invest their cash m therr own currancy, the exchange rate nsks generated by the management
of their cash flow are almost non-existent
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The following denvatives, all of which onginally have a matunty of less than 18 manths, are held for currency nsk hedging purposes

€ millions Nominal Market value

12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004 12 31 2008 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Currency futures
Purchase EMRQ/currency 1,2783 1,565 4 1,087 6 164 -4 388
EURAISD 2055 523 4 3875 128 -380 307
EUR/RUB 1250 123 7 86 6 ~01 -57 33
EUR/CHF 1187 1103 912 17 04 c2
EUR/GAD 1047 1011 761 80 -69 26
EUR/GBP 938 160 5 1514 -24 -08 27
EUR/CNY 830 - - a7 - -
EUR/West Eurcpean currencies 10290 1016 106 9 02 05 -05
EUR/East European currencies 87 6 728 565 -45 -18 -27
EUR/Asian currencres 1712 168 8 340 51 -45 19
EUR/Latin Amencan currengies 833 819 187 10 -390 07
EUR/Cther currencies 1035 1213 888 -11 -56 ~01
Purchase USD/currency 1010 1749 2818 -3 6 08 -104
USD/Latin Amencan currencies 550 562 68 3 -06 -04 -37
USD/Other Asian currencies 370 989 1227 -01 05 -21
USD/Other currencies 30 1468 708 02 a7 -47
Sale USD/CHF 108 5 586 92.3 1.8 -12 18
Other currency pars 1033 897 67 0 -07 -04 -03
Currency futures tatal 1,501 1 1888 5 1,518 7 200 ~72.2 298
Currency options
EUR/USD 137 0 1362 4388 g2 25 415
EUR/GBP B5 7 753 1307 07 14 74
EUR/RUB 500 219 652 24 04 43
EUR/BRL 418 248 370 15 -02 ¢a
EURMXN 294 192 369 18 04 24
EUR/Orther currencies 158 6 86 1 1181 53 13 33
USD/CHF 457 1155 - 10 53 -
OCther curency pars 620 47 9 232 10 11 03
Currency ophions total 5a1.2 526 9 8508 28 122 600
Of which calt options total 5139 599 0 1,062 2 232 126 713
Of which put options total -227 -721 -2214 -03 -04 113
Total 21823 2,415.5 2,360 5 429 -600 B9 8

The put options total corresponds exclusively to the sale of previously purchased opbons when ¢t appeared opportune to replace them
by other hedging instruments

The market values by type of hedging are as follows

€ miions 2006 2005 2004
Fair value hedges 43 -67 88
Cash flow hedges 386 -478 713
Net foreign invesiment hedges - =55 g7
Total 4290 -80 0 89.8

The far value of the denvatives 1s therr market value
The group has no signiicant curency positions that are not hedged 1n the batance sheet

b . Hedging of interest rate nsk

The group mainly refinances at floating rates and uses interest rate denvatives 1o reduce net exposure to interest rate nsk Such denvatives
are never held for speculative reasons

The denvatives are mainly swaps and interest rate options {purchase of caps) which are freely negotiated
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The market values of the denvatives set out below should be compared with the market values of the debts that they hedge

The interest rate denvatives are as follows

£ mibos Notenal Market value

Interest rate dervalives 12.31 2008 12.31 2005 12 31 2004 12 31 2008 12 31 2005 12,31 2004
Cash flow hedges

Borrowing fixed mterest-rate swaps

EUR Eunber/fixed rate 262 230 217 -i0 -23 -20
USD Lbor/xed rate 190 0 2120 1836 13 23 -04
CAD Ubcad#ixed rate - - 53 - - -02
Purchases caps

EUR Eunbor ~ - 3000 - -

Fair value hedges

Borrowing floating interest-rate swaps

EUR Euriborfixed rate 128 8 3096 3265 38 133 220
Non-designated der

Floating/floating interest-rate swaps

ELUR Eunbor/Eunbor 71 2102 2862 — 01 06
Total 344 1 7528 1,122 3 an 134 20 ¢

The farr value of the interest rate dervatives 1s their market value The market value of the interest rate denvatives 1s calculated by the
discounting of future flows at the interest rate ruling at the balance sheet date

The maturties of the denvatives broken down by type of hedge are as follows

C ntkons Nominal by matunty
12 3% 2008 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
<1 year tio »5years Total <1year 1t0 >Syears Total <1 year 1to >5years  Total
S years O years 5 years

Cash flow hedges
Borrowing fixed interest-rate swaps 18308 61 133 2102 oy 21890 143 2330 1896 57 153 2106
Purchases caps - - - 3000 - - 3000
Fair value hedges
Borrowng floating nterest rate swaps 70 1218 - 1288 1740 1355 - 3095 160 3055 - 3255
Non-designated derrvatives
Floating/floating interest-rate swaps 71 - - 71 196 4 138 - 2102 760 2102 - 2862
Total 2049 1279 133 3461 3712 3673 143 7528 5816 5254 183 11223

¢ - Sensitivity fo changes i interest rates

An increase In interest rates of 100 basis points would have a direct mipact on the group’s financial charge of €30 7 milkon at December 315,
2006 compared with €19 4 milien at December 31, 2005, after allowing for cash, cash equivalents and denvatves, and assuming that
total net debt remains stable and that the fixed rate debts at matunty date are seplaced by floating rate debt

The mpact of a 100 basis point nse In interest rates on the far value of the group's fixed rate financial assets and liabiities, after allowing
for denvatives, can be estimated at €3 2 millon at December 318, 2006 compared with €5 7 millon at December 31st, 2005

¢ - Thurd party nsk
The group has financial relations with international banks with the best credit ratings The group thus considers that its exposure
{o third party nsk 1s low

Furthermore, the financial instruments used In exchange rate and interest rate nsk management are sssued by leading internationat
banking counterparties
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e - Share rnisk
No cash has been invested in shares

The availlable cash s invested, with financial organisations of unguestonable reputation, in the form of non-speculative Instruments
which can be drawn in very short penods

At December 31st, 2006, the group holds 143,041,202 Sanofi-Aventis shares for an amount of €10,005 7 mullion {note 14) For these

shares, a change in the market pnce of plus or minus 10% relatve to the market pnce of €69 95 on December 31, 2006 would have
an impact on the group shareholders’ equity of plus or minus €1,000 6 mdlion before tax

NOTE 24 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

€ millions 12 31 2066 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Soclal and fiscal accounts payable (excluding ncome tax) 796 5 7224 657 7
Creditors 5129 4739 3591
Debts on fixed assets 1207 1204 1286
Denvatives 65 4 124 & 858
Other current kabiliies 1184 819 797
TJotal 16138 1,523 2 1,310 8

NOTE 25 - OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS
a - Operating lease comrmitiments

They amount to €1,823 2 million at December 31, 2006 compared with €1,362 8 milion at December 31, 2005 and €1,326 0 million
at December 318, 2004, of which

« €318 1 milion s due in under one year at December 315, 2006 compared with €248 6 milien at December 315, 2005 and €226 9 milion
al December 315, 2004

* €822 2 mfion 1s due in 110 5 years at December 31, 2006 compared with €584 9 miflion at December 31, 2005 and €668 8 millon
at December 31, 2004,

* €582 9 miflion 1s due n over 5 years at December 31%, 2006 compared with €529 3 millon at December 31%, 2005 and €430 3 million
at December 31%, 2004

b - Other off-balance sheet commitments

The confirmed credit knes are indicated in note 22
The other off-balance sheet contingent liabhities are as follows

£ mifiions 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Commitments gren(t! 522 45 3 381
Documentary credits 72 54 51
Commitments receved 323 323 312
Investment orders 2330 202 4 1813

{1} These consist mainly of commitments given to adminstrzions or commitments conceming Inans granted to thrrd parties who are partners of the group

¢ - Contingent liabilities

in its normal operations, the group 1s Imvolved 1in legal actions and 1s subject to tax assessments, customs controis and administrative
audits The group sets aside a provision wherever a nsk 1s found to exst, and an estimate of its cost 1s possble

At the present ime, there 15 no exceptional event or dispute which could matenally and with senous probabxlity affect the resutts, fnancid
sttuation, assets or operations of the L'Oreal company and group
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d - Environmental nisks

The group carefully follows regulations and laws relating to enwronmental protection, and does not expect that they wall have any sig-
nificant impact on the future operations, financial situation, results or assets of the group

NOTE 26 - CASH USED FOR WORKING CAPITAL

This amounts to €65 6 million, —€35 7 milhon and - €76 4 milkon respectively for 2006, 2005 and 2004, and can be analysed as follows

< milons 12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Invenlones -1191 -351 -560
Trade accounts recervable -244 0 -174 8 -3 5
Trade accounts payable 251 2 668 582
Other recervables and debts 1775 07 4 129
Total 8548 -357 ~764

NOTE 27 - IMPACT OF CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION
For 2006, this item mainly relates to THE Boby SHor, Beauty Allance International and Sanofiore acquisthons
In 2005, this item mainly related to the SrenCeumicals and Delial acquisitons

In 2004, this itern mainly refated to the MinuRsE and YUE-Sal acquisihons in China and the buyout of mnonty interests which took place
dunng the year

NOTE 28 - TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES
a - Joint ventures

Transactions between the companies consolidated on a proportional basis are as follows

£ mies 2006 2005 2004
Sales of goods and services 106 118 193
Cost of sales - -07 -0 4
Financial expenses and ncome 12 08 c7

The following debtors and creditors are recorded on the balance sheet {or the related parties

& millions 1231 2006 i2 31 2005 12 31 2004
Cperating deblors ~ 86 183 158
Gredntors -03 -3 -68
Fmanciat debitors 423 59 4 64 5

b - Related parties with a matenal influence on the group

iNo significant transactions have been concluded with amember of the senior management or a shareholder with a matenal influence on
the group

¢ - Equrty affihates
Dunng 2006 L'Oreal USA Inc realized €50 6 million sales to Beauty Allance International, a company in which the group has a 30% stake

No significant transactions have taken place with an equity affilate dunng 2005 and 2004, except for the divdends receved from Sanofli-Avents
n 2004
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES AT DECEMBER 3157, 2006

a - Comparnes conschdated by the full consolidation method

Companies Head Office % Interest % Conirol@
Angks Overseas Finance {india) Private Ltd India 10000
Areca & Cie France 100 00
Avenamite SA Spain 10000
Beautycos International Co Lid China 10000
Beautylux International Cosmetics (Shanghal) Co Lid China 10000
Beaulytech International Cosmeties (Yi Chang) Co Ltd China 100 00
Belcos Japan 10000
Belocap Productos Captlares Lida Brazi 10000
Biotherm Monaco 10000
Biotharm Distibution & Cie France 100 00
Canbel Fragrances Inc Puerto Rice 100 00
Carson Midrand Manufactunng (Pty} Lid South Africa 10000
Centra Logistigue D'Essigny France 10000
Centrex France 10000
Chumex France 10000
Cobelsa Cosmeticos S A Span 10000
Colamaf Morocco 100 Q0
Compagnie Thermale Hotekere et Financire France 99 98
Consortium Géneral de Publicite France 100 00
Cosbel S A de CV Mexico 10000
Cosmelor Japan 10000
Cosmeltor KK Japan 100 C0
Cosmephil Holdings Corporation Phitppines 10000
Cosmetica Activa Portugal Lida Poriugal 10000
Cosmetil Morocce 49 80 100 ,00
Cosmetique Aciive Belgilux Belgum 100 00
Cosmetique Acirve Deutschiand GmbH Gemany 10000
Cosmétique Aciive Espaia Spam 10000
Cosmétique Active France France 100 00
Cosmatique Active Hellas Groece 10000
Cosmetique Active Internatienat France 10080
LCosmetique Active Ireland Ireland 100 00
Cosmetque Active italia Italy 100 GO
Cosmétique Actve Nederland Natherdands 100 00
Cosmétique Actrve Ostemrerch GmbH Austna 100 00
Cosmétque Active Production France 100 00
Cosmetique Active Suisse Switzerland 10000
Crea Mundi France 10000
Elebelle (Pty) Lid South Afnca 100 0C
Episkin France 100 06
Erwiton SA Uruguay 100 00
Exclusve Signatures Intemational Frarce 100 00
Fapagau & Cie France 100 00
Faprog France 100 00
Finval France 100 00
Frabel 8A de CV Maxico 100 00
Garnigr New Zealand Ltd New Zeatand 100 00
Gemey Maybelline Garnier France 100 00
Gemey Pans — Maybeline New York France 30000
Goldys Internatonal France 100 00
Helena Aubinsten France 100 00
Helena Rutinsiem Halia Spa Italy 100 00
Holdal France 100 00

{1} In accordance with the previsions of Aricle D 248-12 of French Trading law, some mformaticn proviced above s meomplete

{2) Equivalent to the interest percentage except o specified

Annual Report _ UOREAL 2006




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ 47

Companies Head Office % Interest % Control®
Kosmepol SpZ 0 0O Poland 10000
L& JRe France 100 00
Labcratoire Bioexigence France 100 00
Laboratoire Garnier & Cie France 100 00
Laboratowe Sanofiore France a8 U
Lai Mes Cosmatics International Trading Cy Ltd China 100 00
Lancarome A/S Denmark 100 00
lLancome Parums & Beaute & Cie France 100 00
Larncos Japan 100 00
La Roche-Posay Dermato-Cosmétiqua France 99 98
La Roche Posay Laboratoire Phammaceutique France 9098
LaScad France 100 00
Lehoux et Jacque France 10000
L'Oréal Adna Croatia 100 00
L'Oréal Argentina S A1 G Argentina 100 00
L Oreal Australia Austraha 100 00
LOréal Bakan DO Q Serbia 100 00
L Ortal Baltic Latvia 100 00
L'Oréal Belgilux Belgum 10000
L'Oréal Bulgana Bulgana 100 00
L'Oreal Canada Inc Canada 100 00
L Oreal Geska Republica SR O Czech Repubhc 100 00
LU'Oreal Chile 5 A Chile 100 00
L Oréal (Chuna) Co |1d China 100 00
L Oréal Colombua 5 A Colombia 100 00
L'Oréal Danmark A/S Denmark 100 00
L'Oréal Deutschland GmbH Germany 100 00
L'Oréal Drvision Productos de Lujp S A Spain 10000
L Orgal Drasion Productios Gran Pubhco § A Span 100 00
_Oreal Dmsicn Productos Profesionales S.A Span 100 00
L Oréal Espania §.A Span 100 00
L'Oréal Fintand Oy Frland 100 00
L'Oréal Guatemala Guatemala 100 00
L Oréal Hellas Sa Greece 100 00
L'Oréal Hong-Kong Limited Hong Kong 100 00
L Oréal H I} P GmbH & Co Kg Germany 100 00
L Oréal H U P Betedigungs GmbH Germany 100 00
L'Oréal India Pvt Ltd India 100 00
L Qreal Indonesia Indenesia 100 00
L Qreal Investments BY Netherands 100 00
L'Oreal Israel Lid Israsl 92 97
L Oréal Hala Spa Italy 100 00
L Oréal Japan Ltd Japan 100 00
L Oréal Korea South Korea 100 00
L'Oreal Liban Lebanon 99 &8
L'Oreal Libramont Belgum 100 00
1 Oreal Luxe Producten Nederland BV Netherands 100 Q0
L Oréal Luxury Products Norge Norway 100 00
L Oréal Luxury Products Sverige AB Sweden 100 00
L Oréat Luxusprodukte GmbH Gemmnany 100 00
L'Creal Magyarorszag Kozmetika Kit Hungary 100 0O
L'Oraal Mataysa Malaysa 94 34
L Oreal Maroc Morocco 50 00 100 00
L Oréal Mexico S.A. de CV Mexco 100 00
L Oréal Mexico Serncios SA. deC YV Mexico 100 00
L Creal Middle East Urited Arab Emurates 100 00
L'Oréal Nederland BV Nethertands 100 00

{1) In accordance with the provisions of Aricle O 248-12 of French Trading law, same information provided above 5 incomplete

{2) Equivalent to the wterest percentage except f specified
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Companies Head Office % Interest % Control (2
L Oréal New Zealand New Zealand 16000
L'Oréal Norge A/S Norway 100 00
L'Oréal Osterreich GmbH Austna 100 00
L Oreal Panama Panama 100 00
L'Oreal Peru S A Pary 10000
L Orgal Philippines Phiippines 10000
L'Oréal Polska SpZ 0 O Potand 10000
L'Oreal Portugal Portugal 100 00
L Oreal Prodott di Lusso Itaka Spa Rtaly 100 00
L'Oreal Produits de Luxe Belgilux Befgum 100 00
L'Orzal Produrts de Luxe France France 100 00
L'Oréal Produns de Luxe Hellas AE Greece 100 00
L Oréal Prodhuts de Luxe international France 100 00
L Oreal Produns de Luxe QOsterreich Austria 10000
L'Oreal Produrs de Luxe Portugal Lda Partugal 100 00
L'Oreal Produnts de Luxe Suisse S A Switzerland 100 00
L Oreal Produktion Deutschiand Beteihgung GrmbH Gemany 100 00
L Oréal Produktion Deutschiand GmbiH & Co Kg Germany 100 00
L Oréal Romania Romania 10000
U'Oréal Saipo industnale Spa ltaly 100 00
L'Oréal Sapo Spa ftaly 10000
L Oreal Sarvices Gentre de Coordination S A Beigium 10000
L'Oreal Singapore Pte Litd Smngapore 100 00
L Oréal Slovenya Kozmetka D Q O Slovena 100 00
L Oraal Slovensko 3R O Slovakia 10000
L'Oréal South Afnica Holdings Ltd South Africa 10000
L'Oréal Suisse S A Switzerland 100 00
L'Oreal Svenge AB Sweden 10000
L Oreal Tarwan Ce Ltd Tarwan 10000
L Oréal Thaland Ltd Thaland 100 00
L Créal Turkiye Turkey 10000
L'Oréal UK Lidt Urnted Kingdom 10000
L'Oreal Ukraine Ukraine 0000
L Oreal Uruguay S A Uruguay 10000
1I'Oréal LISA ing United States 30000
L'Oréal Venezugla CA Venezuela 100 0G
Mangny Manufacturing Austraha Pty Lid Austraha 100 00
Maybeline KK Japan 100 00
Maybeiline Suzhou Cosmetics Ltd China 100 00
Nihon L Oréal KK Japan 100 00
Parbel Of Flonda Inc United States 00 00
Par-Bleue France 100 00
Parfums Cacharel et Cie France 100 00
Parfums Guy Laroche France 100 00
Parfums Paloma Picasso & Cie France 10000
Parfums Ralph Lauren France 100 0O
Parmobel Limted Cyprus 10000
Prestge & Collections Internattonal France 100 0C
Procosa Productos de Beleza 5 A Brazil 100 00
Productora Albesa S A Span 100 00
Productos Capiares L Oreal § A Span 00 00
Redken France France 100 00
Regefi France 100 0%
Scenial Hong Xong 100 00
Shu Uemura Cosmetics Ing Japan a3 57
Sicos et Cie France 100 00
SkinEthic France 90 47

(1} In atcordance with the provisions of Aricle D 248 12 of French Trading faw, some mfermation provided above 1s mcomplete

{2} Eguivatent to the interest percentage except if specified
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Companies Head Office % Interest % Control (2
Socex do Expansao Mercantl em Cosmeteos Brazi 99 00
Sociéte Cvite Immobiliera Socinay France 100 00
Sociéte de Developpermnent Artistique France 100 00
Societé Hydrominérale de La Roche Posay France 9968
Sofamo Menaco 100 00
Softsheen Carson Products West Afnca Ltd Ghana 100 00
Sopracos France 100 OC
Soproreal France 108 00
Sparlys France 100 CC
Swan Beauties Pvt Ltd India 102 00
Thay Shu Uemura Thailand 96 84
The Body Shop (as a group) United Kingdom 100 00
Venprobel Venezuela 100 00
Viktor & Rolf Parfums France 100 00
Yasulor Indonesia Indonesia 100 00
Yue SalKan Cesmetics Shenzen Lid China 10000
Zao |. Oréal Russia 100 00
{1} In accordance with the provisions of Article D 248 12 of French Trading law, some miormabion provided above 1s incompiete

{2} Equivalent te the interest percentage except if specifiec

b - Companies consolidated by the proportional method

Companies Head Office % interest % Cantrol &
Beauté Créateurs France 50 00t
Chuby des Créateurs de Beauté KK Japan s0cow
Cosimar Japon KK Japan 50001
Galderma Argentina 5 A Argentina 50002
Galderma Australa Ply Ltd Ausiralia 50 00
Galderma Beigilux N V Belgium 50 00@
Galderma Brasl Limitada Brazil 50 00@
Galderma Canada Inc Canada 50004
Galderma Colombia § A Colombia 50 00@
Galderma Hellas Gresce 50 00@
Galderma Hong-Kong Hong Kong 50 00@
Galderma india Private Ltd India 50 00@
Galderma international France 50008
Galderma ltalla S PA italy 5000
Galderma Korea Ltd South Korea 50 00 @
Galderma KK Japan 50 00
Galderma Laboratones Inc United States 50 00@
Galderma Labaratonum GmbH Germany 50 00
Galderma Laboratores South Afnca Ply Lid South Afnca 50 00
Galderma Mexico S A de CV Mexico 50 00®
Galderma Nordic AB Sweden 50 0p@
Galderma Peru Laboratonos Peru 50 002
Galderma Pharma S A Switzerland 50 0p@
Galderma Philppines Inc Philippines 50 coR
Galderma Polska Poland 50 co@
Galderma Production Canada Inc Canada 50 002
Galderma Besearch & Development France 50002
Galdenma Research and Development Inc Upnited States 50 G02
Galderma S.A Switzerland 5O 002
Galderma Smgapore Eingapore 50 00R
Galderma UK Lid United Kingdom 50 00w
Galderma Uruguay Uruguay 50 00®
Inneov Belgque Belgum 50002

{1) Compames [ointly cwne¢ with Les Trols Suisses,
{2) Companies jointly owned with Nesdé
{3) Equivalent to the intarest percentage except if specrfied
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Companies Head Office % Interest % Control @
linneov Brasil Nutncosmehcos Lida Brazi 50 00=
Innéov CZsro Czech Republic 50 00®@
Innéov Deutschiand GmbH Gemnany 50 00 @
Innéov Espana S A Spam 50 00@
Innecv France France 50 00 @
Inneov Hellas AE Greace 50 00 @
Innéov Hala Spa Italy 50 002
Innéov Nutnkozmetik Turksy 50 002
Innéav Osterrasch GmbH Austria 50 002
Inneov Polska Sp 200 Poland 50 00@
Inneov SK s ro Slovakia 50 00
Innecv Suisse Switzerland 50 002
Laberatowes Galderma France 50 02
Laboratores innéov France 50002
Laboratores innéov Unipessoal Portugal Ltda Portugal 50002
Laboratonos Galderma S A, Spamn 50 00 @
Laboratoros Galderma Chile Limitada Chile 50 002
Laboratonos Galderna Venezuela S A Venezuela 50 00@
Le Club des Createurs de Beauté Belgium 50001
Le Club des Createurs de Beaute Tawan Tarwan 5000m
Le Club des Créateurs Cosmetic Versand Verwallungs GmbH Germany 50000
Le Club des Gréateurs Cosmetic Versand GmbH and Co Kg Germany 50001
0 0 O inneov Russia 50002
Yi Mer Ja Shangha Trading Chma 50001}

{1} Comparues yintly owned with Les Trors Sulsses
{2} Companies jointly awned with Nestld
{3} Equivalent to the interest percentage except i specified
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The group’s business

activities in 2006

This Management Report reviews the actmty of the company and
its group N 2006 In an attached Report, the Chairman reports
on the ways in which the Board's work s prepared and organised
and the internal control procedures are set up and applied in the
group, particularty in the field of accounting information and finan-
cial reporting Furthermore, the Board of Directors prepares its
Report to the Annual General Meeling, published within the legal
deadines with the notice for the Annual General Meeting In this
Report, the Board sets out the reasons for the draft resoluttons
submitted for approval by sharehcldars

THE GROUP’S BUSINESS ACTIVITIES iN 2006

The consolidated financial statements of L'Creal were reviewed
by the Audit Commitiee and the Board of Directors and then closed
off by the Board of Directors at ts meeting on February 14, 2007,
In the presence of the company’s Statutory Auditors

Overview of the results for 2006

The sales of the L'Oreal group at December 31%, 2006 amoun-
ted to €15 79 bilion, representing an increase of +8 7% Currency
fluctuations had a slightly negative impact of -0 2% Excluding
currency fluctuations, the sales growth rate was +8 9% ior the ful
year 2006 The net mpact of changes in consclidation amounted to
+3 1%, manly as a result of the acquisition of The Body Shop,
consolidated from July 1%, 2006 onwards Lke-for-like (e based
¢n a comparable structure and 1dentical exchange rates), growth
i1 the group’s total sales amounted to +5 8% at December 319,
2006 (+5 7% excluding The Body Shop)

In 2006, L'Oréal achueved further strong growth in its results The
success of the product innovations, the strength of our brands
and the rapd pace of our geographic expansion have once agan
enabled us to wnprove our worldwide positions Operating profit
rose strongly under the combined effect of the product value
enhancement strategy and the stnct control of all costs  Profitakity
has thus improved significantly {o reach 16 1% of sales All the
dmsions and zones across the board contnbuted o this Increase
i our profitability The acquisiton of The Body Shop, consobdated
since July 1=, 2006, made a positive contnbution 1o the growth
of both sales and earmings in the second half of the year

Consolidated sales

In the fourth quarter, the sales growth rate was +9 5% Like-for-lke
(l @ based on a comparable structure and identical exchange
rates}, the growth In the group’s total sales amounted {0 +6 5%
during the fourth quarter

QOur sales grew strongly at the end of the year, which enabled us
to meet our previously announced growth targets for 2006 This
growth was achieved due 1o our renewed dynamism in Western
Europe and the remarkable performance in the new markets,
partcularly in the BRIMC countnes, consisting of Brazd, Russia,
Indiz, Mexica and China With good second hatf-year results, The
Body Shop reinforced the group's growth Overall, organic growth
in our brands and the significant contnbution made by acqusitions
led to a sharp increase in group sales to +8 7%
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Sales by operating division and geographic zone

12 31 2008 At quarter 2006
€ miligns Growlh € millions Growth
Like-for-ike Reporied Like-for-like Reported

By operational dwision
Professicnal Products 2,128 +3 5% +3 2% 528 +4 8% +0 8%
Consumer Products 7903 +5 8% +5 4% 1923 +55% +2 4%
Luxury Products 3773 +5 1% +5 3% 1 080 +5 4% +2 5%
Active Cosmetics 1,128 +12 2% +14 4% 233 +131 3% +9 5%
Cosmatics total 15,01¢ +56% +56% 3,781 +6 1% +2 5%
By geographic zone
Western Europe 6992 +3 5% +37% 1702 +31% +31%
North Amenca 3954 +2 7% +22% 990 +3 6% -4 3%
Rest of the World 4 065 +12 7% +12 8% 1,080 +14 0% +86%
ncludmg Asia 1476 +7 9% +7 4% 385 +9 4% +3 6%

Latin Amenca 1,021 +18 1% +18 6% 277 +14 7% +83%

Eastern Europe 850 +22 0% +24 8% 247 +23 9% +25 0%

Other countries 718 +85% +4 5% 180 +11 0% +15%
Casmetics total 15,011 +56% +58% 3,781 +81% +2 5%
The Body Shop 435 +& 7% 263 +10 3%
Dermatologytt 344 +8 6% +81% 105 +9 2% +4 5%
Group total 15,780 +58% +B7% 4,148 +8 5% +9 5%

{1) Group share, | e 50%

Cosmetics branch: Sales trends by division

The Professtonal Preducts Division recorded a like-for-like growth
rate of +3 8%, with positive scores in Western Europe and very
strong expansion In the “Rest of the World” zone In the United
States, our brands achieved high sell-through figures The year
was however affected by inventory reduction in professional dis-
tnbution and by a reshuffle of our distnbutien network at the end
of the year L'OreaL PROFESSIONNEL benefited from the launches
of the Play Ball and Hair Mix styling ranges, the Sene Expert Lumino
Contrasi Iing for har with highlights, and, at the end of the year,
the harr colourant Symbio KErasTase very successiully relaunched
its Nutntrve range and introduced Densitive nutritional comple-
ments Repken launched the Blonde Glam harcare Ine and a new
har colourant Shimmer One Marrx launched a new range Matnx
for Men, and relaunched its stylng range Vavoom

The Consumer Products Division achieved a kke-for-lke growth
rate of +5 8%, with a substantial acceleration in the fourth quarter
at +6 5% Western Europe confirmed its upturn and sales con-
tinued to grow in North Amenca The Rest of the World again saw
its sales growth accelerate L'OREAL Paris achieved a good year,
with strong growth in skincare thanks to Age Re-Perfect and Men
Expert as well as in make-up and i harrcare with the successful
launch of Elseve Nutn-Gloss Europe and the emerging counines
are benefiting from the success of these launches The har
colourant Casting Creme Gloss 1s confirming s success in Europe
GarnER sales grew strongly. drven by the successful hawr colourant
Nutnsse and the Fructis harcare line, and by successes in facial
skincare, bodycare and sun protection The brand's vision has
been sirengthened by the new “Take care” campaign which was
internationally rolled out at the end of last year MAYBELLINE NEw
Yorx the make-up brand achieved impressive growth, evenly
distnbuted between the vanious zones, dnven by the success of
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Dream Matte Mousse foundation and the greal mascaras collec-
hon The fourth quarter was notable for the faunch of the highly
nnavative Watarshing Elbar hipstick

The sales of the Luxury Products Division have nsen by +5 1%
like-for-ike The growth sean in Western Europe continued in the
fourth quarter, with similarly dynamic trends across all the major
markets Sales mproved shightly n North Amenca, thanks in par-
ticular to the success of the facal skincare and perfume intiatives

The acceleration in the Rest of the World continued in the fourth
quarter, particularly in China, Latin Amenca and Eastern Europe

The dynamic growth trend of the fragrance business is continu-
ing the new fragrance for women, Code Donna from GIORGIO
Arman, continued to prove successtul in Europe af the end of the
year The ArMAn brand’s flagship products Acqua di Gid and
Armani Code confirmed their solidity over the Chnsimas penod

Furthermore, Miracle Forever by Lancome and Noa Perle by
CacHarEL strengthened the positions of the two brands concerned

Lastly Anhdole, the new men's fragrance from VIKToR & ROLF,
proved extremely successful in the Urwied States and in France,
where 1t was first launched Skincare sales growth continued to
accelerate, with an excellent receptron on all markets for Absolue
Prermum Beta X by LanctMe featunng the newly developed mol-
ecule Pro-Xylane BioTHERM with 1ts Aquasource serum, and
HzLENa RusiusTER, with its Prodigy tissular, have also seen ther
sales gather speedin the skincare business Lastly, the make-up
business saw the launch of Rouge Unbmited lipstick by SHu
UeMura, which uses a revolutionary pigment technology and 1s
proving extremely successful

The growth in Active Cosmetics sales continued, with a sub-
stantial advance in like-for-lke sales of +12 2%, reflecting strong
contrbutions from all geographic zones




All the brands achieved double-digit growth, thanks to a good
performance from the products in our catalogue, and the posi-
tive smpact of launches such as the skincare lines Neovadiol and
Neormaderm from Vicay, Redermic anti-wnnkle skincare, and
Tolenane Temt from La RocHe-Posay Furthermore, the sun pro-
tection products of the two brands enjoyed a good season INNEQV
also achieved strong sales growth, thanks to the launch of Innéov
Solare, the first sun preparation product to include Skin Probiotic
Furthermore, the certified organic cosmetics brand SanoFLCRE
joined the Dmsion in November 2006

Steady growth in Western Europe

The sales trends of each division confirm the return to growth in
France, Germany and italy, whie strong growth continued in the
United Kingdom and Span All countnes achieved positive scores

Professional Products recorded growth in all product categones

The Amencan brands Repken and Marrix demanstrated therr very
powerful appeal, particularty in France, Belgum and Spain The
Consurmer Products Dision saw sales grow in all countnes, par-
ticularly 1n Spain and the United Kingdom Thanks to ts success
in skincare (Age Re-Perfect and Men Expert from L'OReAL PARS),
facial skincare (Garnier) and hawrcare (Fructs by GarniER), it has
made further market share gains in these categones Luxury
Products are advancing in all countries on broadly similar trends,
with sales gathenng speed for LANCOME thanks 1o Absolue
Prermium Beta X at the end of the year, and excellent momentum
for Arman and BioTHERM, and the continued openings of KIEHL'S
and SHu Usvura boutigues In the Active Cosmetics Dvision, sales
are growing at a rapid rate throughout the zone, driven by
£ A ROCHE-POSAY In particular

North Amenca growth despite a background

of consohdation in distnbution

in North Amenca, the situation in the United States reflacted a
combination of turbulences in the distnbution sector The market
grew less guickly than in 2005, although very dynamic in the mass-
market segment, growth was slower In sales o salons and In the
department store business As a resuit, like-for-ike sales growth
amounted to +2 7% The Professional Products Dvision contin-
ued to make market share gains in sales to salons, with good
scores for MATRIx and ReDKEN hair colourants and the KERASTASE
brand The Divsion has strengthened its cooperation with its top-
selling distnbutor, and readjusted its geographue distnbution agree-
ments There was a noticeable reducton in the level of disinbutors’
inventones The sales growth of the Consumer Products Division
has been gatvanised by the advances made by Garneer and its
hawcare Iines Fructis and Nutnsse MaveeLune recorded a good
growth figure thanks to Superstay ipstick The growih rates of
L'OneaL Parss vaned by category, wath a strong performance in
make-up but a weaker one in skincare In Luxury Products,
amounts invaiced were held back throughout the year by the
merging of the two main department store chains and the closure
of 80 outlets The Devision improved its skincare positions thanks
to the success of Absolue Prermium Beta X and Collaser Eye by
LancomMe, and in women's fragrances thanks to the success of
Arman Code Women and Hypnose by LANCOME

The roll-out of the Active Cosmetics Dnsion gatherad speed, wath
the launch of VicHy in the north-east of the Uruled States and in
California, and strong growth for SkinCEUTICALS
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Rapid development n ali the new markets

The expansion in the Rest of the World continued, gathenng speed
In the fourth quarter when like-for-ike growth reached +14%

Like-for-like sales growth in the Asia zone amounted to +7 9% In
the very competitive Japanese market, Professionat Products
turned in a good performance Asia excluding Japan achieved a
good year, at +11 8%, with a sharp acceleration in the second half

In China, the acceleration was particularty nobceabtle, with sales
growth of +21 2% Growth for the Consumer Products Division
was very strong in facial skincare, thanks to L'OREAL Paris (White
Perfect, UV Perfect) This Division was strengthened 1n 2006 with
the launch of GarNER skincare which 1s gradually being rolled out

The Luxury Products Dvision has confirmed its leadership, driven
by the Lancdme and BiotHeRM brands  In the Active Cosmetics
Division, VicHy and La RocHe-Posay are contiruing their break-
through in pharmacies In South Korea, the situation 1s gradually
improving, as the country returns to growth Furthermore, growth
rates in Indonesia and Thailland were high, particularly in the
Consumer Products Daision

In Eastern Europe, the group's performance over the full year
2006 was excellent at +22% lke-for-lke, with a strong contnbu-
tion from Russia and the recently created subsidiary in Ukraine
Prafessionat Products turned 0 an excellent performance, partic-
ularly i Russia MATRIX continued its breakthrough in the zone as
awhole InConsumer Products, L'OréaL Paris recorded very good
scores In make-up and haircare with Elseve GaRNIER sales grew
very strongly In haircare and facial skencare, and growth was also
strong in bodycare In a rapxdly expanding loaury market, the Lupairy
Products Dvision achieved very high growth, particulary in Russia,
the Czech Republic, Slovakia and Hungary, dnven by the success
of the LancOie , BioTHERM and Arman brands  Active Cosmetics
produced another year of strong growth, confirming its leadership
in a pharmacy channel whose medernisation 1s gathenng speed

Like-for-ike sales growth in Latin Amenca was very rapid at
+18 1%, thanks to the strong sales recorded 0 Braail, Mexico
and all the other countnes in the zone The sales of Professional
Products grew thanks ta the L'OréaL PROFESSIONNEL brand, and
particularly to the successful launch of Matri In Brazil Chile and
Venezuela Sales n Consumer Products advanced at smilar rates
across the vanous countnes n the zone, driven In particular by
the success of the magor launch Nutn-Gloss from Elséve Luxury
Products, whose sales grew strongly, took advantage of the good
performance of BioTHERM and the success of RaLPH LAUREN and
Gioraio Arvane fragrances  Active Cosmetics 1s contimang its very
high growth vath Vic-y and La RocHe-Posay, which have recorded
substantial market share gains in dermocosmetcs

In the Other countries, ike-for-Ike sales growth amounted to
+8 5% Ininda {+40 3%}, our businesses continued to grow very
strongly, botstered by the remarkable success of GARNIER with
Skin Naturals, Color Naturals and Fructis The Middle East again
proved extremely dynamic with double-digit growth
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Good year—end for The Body Shop

Consoldated since July 12, The Body Shop recorded a second half-year of solid growth, with a large increase tn sales at the end of
the year Net consclidated sales grew by +9 7% Retal sales (total sales to consumers for all distnbttion channels) increased by +6 6%
(+3 2% with a comparable store base, for total sales to consumers made by the stores continuously present between July 1% and
December 319, 2005 and the same pened in 2006) The number of stores increased by 89 in the second half of 2006 At December
31¢, the total number of stores was 2,265, of which 886 are owned by The Body Shop These figures reflect particularly good results
in Europe and Asia, with very strong performances in the United Kingdom, Norway, and Japan Growth was strengthened by the
success of launches such as the Aloe Vera skincare range and the Nerol Jasmin fragrance, and by gift sets, which sold very well at the
end of the year

Dermatology

The sales of the dermatalogy branch increased by +8 6% hike-for-ike Each of the zones made a positive contnibution to this growth
figure The Clobex range for treating psonasis, together with Metrogel 1% and Loceryl Nall Lacquer, have strongly bolstered the growth
of Galderma

Resuits

Consolidated profit and loss account

The Body Shop, consolidated since July 1%, has an operating profile which is quite different from that of the L'Oréal group as a whole In
the nterest of wsibility and comparability of performance, the table below sets out the operating itemns of L'Oréal, in 2006, with and wathout
The Body Shop

< miang 12 31 2005 As% 12312006 As% 12312006 As % Sales
of sales excluding of sales with of sales trend
The Body The Body
Shop Shop
2 halt
Sales 14,533 100 15,355 100 15,790 100 +87
Caost of sales —4 347 239 -4,414 2?87 -4 569 289
Gross Profit 10,185 701 10,941 713 11,221 711 +102
Research and development expensas —498 34 -531 35 -533 34
Advertising and promotion expenses —4 367 301 -4 718 307 —4,783 303
Seling general and administrative expenses -3.009 207 -3153 205 -3309 210
Operatng profit before foregn exchange gans and losses 2 313 159 2 539 165 2 596 164 +123
Feregn exchange gains and losses -47 03 -96 Q4 -55 03
Operating profit 2,266 158 2,483 1652 2,541 161 +12.1

Consolidated profit and loss account without The Body Shop

Gross profit increased very significantly and represents 71 3% of sales, compared with 70 1% in 2005 This improvement mainty reflects
an enhanced value of the product mix, and our continuing industnal streamlining programmes

Research and development expenses represented 3 5% of sales, compared with 3 4% n 2005

Advertising and promotion expenses increased substantially, and represented 30 7% of sales in 2006 compared with 30 1% in 2005

Selling, general and administrative expenses represented 20 5% of sales, compared with 20 7% 1n 2005 Once agan this year,
s iterm 1s continuing its gradual improvement, reflecting constant efforts in both organisation and praductmvity
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Operating profit before foreign exchange gains and losses grew strongly by +9 8% |t reached 16 5% of sales, compared with 15 9% in 2005

Foreign exchange losses amounted to €56 million in 2008, compared with €47 millon n 2005

After foreign exchange gans and losses, operating profit amounted to €2,483 milion, up by +8 6% compared with 2005 It represented

16 2% of sales, compared with 15 6% n 2005

Consolidated profit and loss account with The Body Shop

The struclure of the profit and loss account of The Body Shop in the second half has a profile which 1s quite different from that of
the L'Oreal group The consolidation of The Body Shop made a positive contnbution to the group’s main operating itemns

The group's operating tems with The Body Shop can be summed up as follows

+ Sales reached €15,790 million, up by +8 7%
» Gross profit amounted to €11,221 million, up by 16 2%

= Operating profit before foreign exchange gains and losses increased by +12 3% to €2,596 milion

After foreign exchange gains and losses, operating profit grew by 12 1% to €2,541 mithkon, that 1s 16 1% of sales

Operating profit by branch and division

£ach and every dwvision and branch improved its profitability iIn 2006 compared with 2005

2005 2006

€ milions % of sales € milkons %0 of sales
By opetational devision
Protessional Products 406 197 443 208
Consumer Products 1,291 172 1421 180
Luxury Products 723 202 776 206
Actve Cosmetics 187 190 221 196
Caotsmetics drastons total 2609 184 2,860 191
Non-aocated (% -396 -28 —-437 ~29
Cosmetics branch tatal 2,212 156 2,423 161
The Body Shop 2 half - - 58 134
Dermatology branch 2 54 169 59 173
Group 2 268 i56 2,541 161

(1}) Non allecated = Central group expenses, fundamental research expenses, stock ophion expenses and miscellangous tems As % of total sales

(2} Group Share (e 50%

Because of the strong seasonality of sts sales, the 13 4% profitability in the second half 15 not representatve of The Body Shop's

profitability over the full year

Cosmetics branch operating profit of geographic zones
Profitability increased in all zones in 2006

Operating profil

2005 2006
€ miions % of sales € millions % of sales
Western Europe 1415 210 1527 218
North Amenca 708 183 744 188
Rest of the World 486 135 589 145
Cosmetics zones total 2,609 18.4 2,860 181
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Consolidated profit and loss account {from operating profit to net profit excluding non-recurrent items)

€ m.lans 12 31 2005 12 31 2006 Gro'vth
with %
The Body Shop
27 half
Operating profit 2.2668 2541 +12.1
Finance costs -84 -116
Other financial ncome expenses) -3 -4
Sanofi Aventis dividends 172 218
Share in net profit of equity atfiliates -1 -1
Profit bafore tax excluding non-recusrent tems 2,370 2.638 +113
Income tax excluding non recusrent items -730 —803
Mmority interests -1 -1
Net profit excluding non-recurrent tems after munority interests Y 1,638 1,833 +118
EPS ™ (in euros) 260 208 +14 7
Diluted averaga number of shares 630,882,470 615,723,220

(1} Ket profit excluding non receurent items after minonty intesests does not include capital gams and losses on dispesals of long-temn assets, impawment of assets, restructuring costs, associated

tax effects or minonty intarasts
(2} Diluted net earmings per share excluding non-recurrent items, aftar minority intsrests

Finance costs amounted 10 €116 milhon, higher than last year
because of nsing interest rates, the acquisition of The Body Shop
and the continuation of the share buyback programme

The dividends recenved from Sancfi-Aventis for 2005 amounted
ta €217 5 million, an increase of +26 7%

Profit before tax excluding non-recurrent items amounted te
€2,638 milon, up by +11 3% Tax on profit excluding non-recurrent
items amounted to €803 million, representing an increase of
+9 9% The tax rate was down from 30 8% n 2005 to 30 4% n 2006

Net proft excluding non-recurrent stems after minonty interests
amounted to €1,833 midhon, up by +11 8% After allowing for the
pasitive impact of share buybacks, net earnings per share
amounted to €2 98 per share, up by +14 7% compared with
2005

£ mions 12312005 12312006 Growlh%
Net profit excluding non recurrent 1639 1833 +119
tems after minonty mnterests

Non-recurment tems 334 228

Net profit after minonty interests 1472 2,061 +4 5
Diluted earnings per share [eunos) 313 335 +7 1

Non-recurrent items had a positive impact of €228 milon, com-
pared with €334 milion in 2005 They consist manly of addibonal
amortisation expenses of ntangible assets, and the restaterent
of deferred tax inked to mamntaining the stake in Sanofi-Aventis
After allowing for these non-recumrent items, net profit after minor-
ity Interests amounted to €2,061 milion, up by +4 5% compared
with 2005

Cash flow at Decermber 318, 2006 amounted to €2,410 milion,

up by +13 2% Working capital requirement was substantially lower
In 2006 Capital expendiure remaned stable at 4 7% of sales
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The group’s net debt at December 31, 2006 totalled €3 329 million,
or 22 8% of shareholders' equity, an increase compared with the
end of 2005, when it stood at €2,217 millon, or 15 1% of share-
holders’ equity

The Board of Directors has decided to propose to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders on Apnl 241, 2007 to approve
admwdend of €1 18 per share, representing an increase of +18%
compared with 2005

PROSPECTS

In hght of all the resulis for 2006 and the dynamism they convey,
the General Management has expressed therr confidence for 2007
These prospects are descnbed by each of the group s dwisions
in Volume 1 ¢f the Reference Documeant

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

2006 was marked by several noleworthy events the acquisition
of SkinEthic, a leader in the marketing of tissue engineenng prod-
ucts, the development of Pro-Xylane, the first active cosmetic
based on green chemistry, which respects environmental cntena,
the creabion of the department devoted to natural raw matenals,
the creation of the international department for applied research
and perfume development, the acquisitions of The Body Shop
and Sanoflore the increased use of natural raw matenals, organic
raw matenals and those from far trade sources

€532 5 milhon were invested in Research in 2006 (3 4% of sales),
569 patents were filed and 2,961 employees are engaged in
cosmetics and dermatology research for L'Oreal




PRODUCTION AND TECHNOLOGY

Acceleration in industnal performance 1s based this year on three
key dnivers innovation, optnisation of the production facilities
and reduction in purchasing costs Out of 71 packaging patents
filed by 1’Crea), 10 related to instrumental cosmetics, a new and
promising field of exploration The innovation approach to process
research underiaken with regard to shampoos 15 now continuing
In other product familes Savings made in production time for
skincare products amount to up to 40% Work on optimising the
production facilities 1s continuing The process of shanng
functions between sites n a specdic zone or division 1S continuing
with the factones in Brazl Two plant closures have taken place
in the Unuted States To reduce purchasing costs, performance
enhancement programimes have been conducted with our suppliers
They have led to a positve trend in purchasing indices, despite the
impact of nsing costs of basic commaodities and higher energy prces

I’ Oreal parent company environmental mformation

In accordance with Article L 225-102-1 of the French Commercial
Code, L'Oreal includes in the Management Report information
about the way the company monitors the environmental conse-
quences of its actmity As the |'Oreal parent company 1s part of
the L'Oreal group, it appies the group s rules, norms and standards
The L'Orea) parent company 1s made up of administrative offices,
laboratones and distribution centres

The environmental impact of the activities of the L'Creal parent
company 15 very mited In 2008, it consisted mainty of the fol-
lowing (annual data)

Data for 2006 Total
Waste {tonnes) 2 458
Recycled wasie (fonneg) 2342
Recyciing ratio (98) 9528
CO; fonnes) 5 687
80z (tonnes) 13
Water consumption (m3) 157,428
Elecincity consumpbon (MWh) 52,188
CGas consumpiion (MWh) 30443
Fuel ot consumption {MwWh} 401

The group data are promded in the “Sustamnable Development”
chapter of Volume 1 of the Reference Document Additional infor-
mation s also provided in the section on “Industnal and emviron-
mental nsks” of the chapter which follows on Risks

RISK FACTORS

The group's Intemmal Control whech 15 based on reference texts, cher-
ters, standards procedures and good practices, 15 aimed at creat-
ing and maintaining an organisation wiich enables the prevention
and management of nsks particularty those of an economig, finan-
cial and legal nature, to which the company and its subsidiaries
are exposed inside and outside France, even though no absolute
guarantee of a total absence of nsk can ever be prowided
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Market nisks

Market risks and the way they are managed are descnbed in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements on page 41 of
this Document

Legal risks

L'Oreal 1s the owner of the major intangitle assets on behalf of
the group's companses, to which it grants lkcences in exchange
for the payment of royalties Moreover, the group 1s not In a
situation of significant technical or commercial dependence in
relation to third parties

In the ordinary course of its business, the group 1s involved in legal
actions and 1s subject to tax assessments, customs controls and
administrative audits The group sets aside a proviston whenever
ansk s found to exist and an estmate of its cost ts possible There
18 no exceptional event nar any governmenial procedure, legal or
arbitration procesding which has matenally affected, or s
senously ikely to matenally affect, the results, financial situation,
assets or operations of the L'Oréal company and group

Industnal and environmental nisks

To ensure that the group cormplies with its commetments to protect
the emaronment and smprove occupational health and safety, and
to achieve specific targets, a rigorous Safety, Health and
Environment (SHE) policy has been implemented throughout the
group for many years The aim of thus policy 1s to achieve high
standards in occupational health and safety, and in environmen-
tal protection  L'Oréal 1s committed to developing, producing, dis-
tributing and selling nnovative products of the highest quaity,
designed to enhance beauty and improve the sense of well-baing
L'Oreal must carry out this mission in an ethical manner, by min-
wmising ts impact on the environment and ensunng the health and
safety of its employees, its customers and the communities in
which L'Oreal operates

Jo achieve this aim L"Oréal 1s committed to

* measunng and communicating on its SHE performance levels,
= continuously Improving all aspects of the SHE,

» complying with all SHE laws and regulations in force, and with
its own internal standards, n all its fields of actity,

» promoting the use of a SHE management system, both inter-
nally and by ts subcontractors and suppliers,

»encouraging the involvernent of employees in the group’s SHE
effort,

*» evaluabng all sgnificant new products and processes to rinimise
the related SHE nisks,

»implementing an internal and external SHE audit programme,
s prormoting the concept of sustainable development and pub-
ishing information on s progress in ths field

In functional terms, the Production and Technology Dwision of
L'Oreal 1s responsible for the protection of people, goods and the
environment on all the group s sites | can draw on support from
the Safety, Heaith and Environment (SHE) Department, and a
decentralised network of designated experts

Annual Report _ L'OREAL 2006




60 _ MANAGEMENT REPORT

The SHE Department

« mplements technical projects in the fields of SHE at an interna-
tional level,

» manages the interventions of SHE experts and specialists at
each orgarisational level and on each industnal site,

« checks that the standards are appled,

« crreulates information about best practices to foster ongoing
improverments,

* sets specific targets for mprovements in the fields of SHE
The group's strong cormmitment to its “environment™ programme
encompasses all the group’s sites woridwide all the administra-
tive offices, all the laboratones, all the factones and all distnbution
centres The L'Oréal group operates a total of 114 manufactunng
sites, of which 4 have the *“High Seveso” classification

The same rules are applied on a worldwide basis, even in emerging
countries The number of SHE persennel vanes depending on the
size of the sitg, but there 1s at least one SHE representative on
gachsike The global ermvironment summit held in Rio de Janeirg
-water, energy, emissions and waste- remains at the core of
L'Oréal's environmental concerns More than 100 parameters are
now monitored every month by the group’s manufactunng sites

The monthly charts on safety, health and environmental protec-
tion report every month on prevention, prowide information on inc-
dents and inciude key performance indicators with regard to water
and energy consumption, emissions, efluents, waste and waste
recycing The charts are analysed in detadl by the group’s SHE
experts and give nse to corrective actions to ensure that the tar-
gets are met The group has set up the means it needs to achieve
this am a specific organisalional structure and management team,
employee trarung, performance of internal and external audits,
and appropnate certification procedures

SHE management tools

The Industnal Organisation Risk (RIC) and tndustinal Safety Risk
(RIS) rules are internal rules 1ssued by the Production and
Technology Dnision setting out the pnnciples of L'Qreal’s global
SHE policy Information 1s prowded for each topic (such as gen-
eral alert instructions, employee safety in high bay warehousing,
and the management of ground and water pollution nsks) under
a seres of headings indwidual responsibiiiies, information
systemns, training, improvement actions {o be implemented, and
means of control

* The Safely Hazard Assessment Procedure (SHAP) 1s a hazard
prevention programme based on the assessment of hazards by
employees at grassrools level it helps define the hazards asso-
ciated with each workstation, and assesses the corresponding
danger, so that a highly detalled map of each factory’s hazards can
be drawn up Using this method, a record 15 kept of all hazards, the
level of each hazard 15 assessed, and new ways of imiting resiciual
hazards are found It s applied undormly throughout the group, and
15 supported by dialogue between managers, thus contributing to
a significant collective improvernent in nsk management
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* SHE Awards are presented to the winners of intermal competi-
tions intended to mobilise group employees to reduce hazards
help protect the environment and demonstrale the reality of the
group’s citizenship in the community where L'Creal operates
The awards are intended to convey the fundamentat values needed
to continue progressing Init@ative, improvement and constancy
of purpose

insurance

The group's overall insurance policy

The objechive of the group’s policy on insurance 1s te prolect the
group’s balance sheet and profit and loss account from the oceur-
rence of identified matenal nsks that could adversely affect it This
ngk transfer forms an integral part of the group's nsk management
process This policy 1s applied at two levels

= at parent company level, the group has negotiated worldwide
nsurance programmes to cover its main nsks after reviewing the
cover avalable,

*1n a local context, the subsidianes have to purchase insurance
cover to meet ther local regulatory obligations and, «f deemed
necessary, to supplement the group’s worldwide programmes for
any specHic nsks

The financial solvency of the insurers i1s an important cntenon in
the group’s insurer selection process £ach insurance programme
subscnbed by the group involves the participation of a pool of
insurers  The majonty of the mam global Insurance companies are
involved in one or more of these group programmes

integrated worldwide programmes

Thurd party habifity

The group has had an integrated global programme covenng all its
subsichanies for several years The programme covers the financial
consequences of the third party kabdty of group entties In partic-
ular, 1t covers operating liabilty, ncluding sudden and accidental
enwonmental pollution, product liabiity and product recall costs

Clam actmty under this programme has historically been low,
which shows the extremely high quality requirements and safety
standards applied by the group in managing its operations and
in desigming and manufacturing its products

The health and safety of consumers and employees 1s a constant
pnonty at all levels of group operations

Property damage and interruption of aperations

The group has set up an integrated global programme to cover
all the property (fixed assets and inventones) of all ts subsidianes
This programme also covers operating losses directly resulting
from a business intemuphon and/or nsured property loss or damage
The feve! of Insurance cover has been selected to cover the max-
imum reasonably foresegable loss, taking into account the scale
of the prevention and protection measures implemented at the
group's manufactunng sites together with the business continu-
ity plans As the capacity of the nsurance market 1s imited for
certan types of events, this programime includes aggregate sub-
Lmuts, particulary in the event of natural disasters This programme




includes the performance, by the insurer's engineers, of loss pre-
vention audits for the group's locations  These audits form part of
the group s general safety management system

Transport

The group has set up a programme 1o cover the transportabon
of all its products All subsidianes subscnbe to this programme,
which ensures optimum {ransport insurance for all flows of goods

Customer risk

Subsidianes are encouraged to purchase credit insurance, with
the assistance of the group’s Insurance department and under
terms and conditions negotiated by this department, in addition
to therr own credit management procedures, provided that such
cover 1s compattble with therr level of commercial activity and 1s
avallable under financially acceptable conditions

Self-insurance

Through its reinsurance subsidiary, the group cames nsk retention
levels that are not matenal at consolidated level, and these are
applicable over and above local deductible amounts absorbed
by the subsidianes insured

Other specific nsks

There are no other identified risks of any nature which had a
substantial mpact on the group's financial situatron or which could
have such a substantial impact

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Beyond its financial results and the success of its economec model,
'Oréal develops its activity within a framework of values shared
by all ts employees The group's approach 1s i ine with rules of
conduct which are based on founding principles of ethics and
strong conwictions L'Oreal’s aim 1s to ensure sustainable and
respongble growth The most emblematic examples of the group's
action n this field are the two international programmes “For
Women in Science” and “Hawrdressers of the world against AIDS"

L'Oréal’s Sustainable Development Report was updated and pub-
hshed in June 2006, 1t 15 avalable on-line on the www loreal com
websile
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS THAT HAVE
OCCURRED SINCE THE START OF 2007

No major event has occurred between January 1%, 2007 and the
date of preparation of this report, 1 @ February 14, 2007

REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the L'Oréat parent company were
reviewed by the Audit Commitlee and the Board of Directars and
then closed off by the Board of Directors at ts rmeebng on February
14, 2007, In the presence of the Statutory Auditors

Net sales

£ mosens 2006 2005 Change
asa%

Net sales

1% quarier 5153 4720 917

279 quarter 526 8 486 1 837

3% quarter 467 t 4219 1071

4th quarter 464 2 4766 369

Total 2003 4 1,856 6 79

N B These net sales figures includs sales of goods and finished products, eccessories,
sales of waste and services after deducting reductions in respect of sales These sales
include, in particular, supphes of goods to vanous subsidianes which are recorded as
Intercompany sales from a consolidated standpoint.

L'Oreal parent company balance sheet and profit
and loss account

The balance sheet and profit and loss account of the L'Oréal parent
company are attached to this Management Report

At December 31, 2006, total assets amounted to €11,348 5 mil-
lon, compared with €10,086 4 million at Decermber 31, 2005

The parent company financial statements are presented in accor-
dance with the 1899 French General Accounting Pian adopted
by the Comité de fa Reglermentation Comptable on Apnl 29, 1899
and approved by the miristenal order of June 22, 1999

At December 3i%, 2006, the share capital consisted of
639,616,410 shares, with a par value of €0 2 each

The notes form an integral part of the annual financial statements
The resuits presented nclude the vanous types of income receved
from licenses for use of patents and trademarks and also for the
use of technology

The royalt:es receved for the use of patents and trademarks are
included in the Other revenue item and those with respect to
technology are included in the Net sales tem

A certan proportion of the above amounts is taxed at a reduced rate
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The profit and loss account shows net income of €1,680 3 millon
compared with €1,589 6 milion at December 31=, 2005

The year-on-year change in profit can manty be accounted for by
avanation of €135 9 millon in financial income {pnmanly, a change
N provisions for impaiment of treasury stock, an increase In financiat
ncome from investments and an increase In loan interest}

Net income amounts to €1,690 3 mithon for 2006

* after reversal of the provision for capital expenditure set aside

in 2001 wath regard to the 2000 financial year amouniing {o

€8 1 milion, which 1s exermipt from income tax at the end of the

statutory 5-year penod,

*after setting aside, pursuant to the French Ordinance of October

21, 1986 with regard to mandatory employee profit-shanng,

* a reserve for the benefit of employees amounting to €15 3 milion
,for which a provision was booked o 2005

* and a provision of €17 5 million booked for employee profit shanng

for 2006,

» after setting aside the prowision for capital expenditure, including

the transfer made by subsidianes in favour of L'QOréal parent com-

pany, pursuant to the provisions with regard to mandatory

employee profit-shanng, for an amount of €0 8 million, compared

with €3 5 milion in 2005

It 1s stipulated that the total amount of expenses and charges
{falkng under Article 223 quater of the French Tax Code and the
amount of tax applicable on such expenses and charges are as
follows

= expenses and charges €0 6 milion,

* camesponding tax amount €0 2 milion

Subsidianes and holdings

Information concerning the activities of subsidianes 1s provided
at the beginning of this Report, in the descnption of the activities
of the zone ta which they belong, as well as in Volume 1 of the
Reference Document Financial data concerning them are also
contamned in the table showing subsidianies and holdings at
December 31¢, 2006, which forms part of the notes to the parent
company financial statements

SkinEthic

In February 2006, the L'Oréal group purchased 84 1% of the share
capital of SkanEthic, a company isted on the open market (Marché
Iibre) of Euronext Pans, a leader i issue engineenng that produces
and markets reconstructed epidermal, dermal and epithelial
tissues intended to carry out it vitro testing on the safety and effi-
cacy of a large number of products [cosmetics, pharmaceutical prod-
ucts and chemcals, etc ) SkinEthic’s sales amounted 1o €1 6 million
N 2006 At December 31¢, 2006 L'Oréal held 99 47% of the share
capital of SlanEthic

The Body Shop International

In June 2006, L'Oreal acquired The Body Shop International, which
was hsted on the London Stock Exchange at the time, this group
has a worldwide reputation for the sale of natural products, with

Annuat Report _ |”OREAL 2006

strong values and with wide expertise in the retail sector with over
2,000 stores owned by the group itself or under franchise Over
the financial year 2005-2006, which ended on February 28, 2008,
The Body Shop posted developed sales of over £772 millon Over
the same penod, The Body Shop group posted consolidated sales
of £486 million

Beauty Alliance

In July 2006, the L'Oréal group acquired a stake of 30% in Beauty
Alliance, the second largest Amencan distnbutor of professional-
only products Beauty Aliance’s sales amounted to US$ 372 3
rmillion In 2006 This company has been consoldated under the
equity method since August 1%, 2006

Sanoflore
In October 2006, L Oréal acquired the French laboratory, Sanofiore,
a pioneer in the design, manufacture and sale in pharmacies and
specialty stores of certified organic cosmetics and natural
aromatherapy preducts Sanoflore’s sales for 2006 amounted {o
€15 rmilhon

Sanch-Aventis

At December 31%, 2006, L'Oré&al held a 10 52% stake in the share
capsal and 17 27% of the voting nghts in Sanofi-Aventis

in L'Oreal's financial statements, Sanofi-Aventis was deconsoli-
dated on August 12th, 2004 Bafance shest value at December
31, 2005 and December 31, 2006, amounting to €10,585
milkon and €10,006 milkon respectively, corresponds to the
stock market value of the shares on the basis of the share pnce
at December 31%, 2006 and December 318 2008, of €74 00
and €69 85 respectively
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INFORMATION CONCERNING THE SHARE CAPITAL

Statutory requirements governing changes in the share capital and shareholders’ nghts
None

Issued share capital and authorised unissued share capital

The share capiial amounts to €127,923,282 00 as of December 31, 2006 It 15 dwided into 639,616,410 shares with a par value of
€0 20 each, all of the same class and ranking pan passu

The table set out below summanses the currently valid authonsations granted to the Board of Directors by the Annual General Meeting
concerning capital increases, in application of Articles L 225-129-1 and L. 225-129-2 of the French Commercial Code, and shows the
use made of these authonsations during the financial year

Nature of the authonsation Date of Length of Maximum Utiisation

authonsaton authonsation share 1ssue made of the

by the AGM athonsaton n 2006

Capital mcrease by the issue of shares with mantenance April 26%, 2005 26 months Authensation {o increase None
of preferential subscrption nghts or via the caprtalisation (12 resolutzon) the share capntaf to a maximum
of share premiums reserves profils or other amounts amount of €200 COC 000

Increase In share caprtal for the benefit of employees April 25" 2006 26 months 1% of share capital existing None
{13* resolution) at the date of the AGM that granted

the authensation (e @ maxmum
of 6587 696 shares)

Furthermore, the Board of Directors has been granted an authonsation to allocale to employees and corporate officers of the company
and its subsidianes inside and outside France stock options for the purchase of existing shares or for the subscrption of shares to be
1ssued by the company The total number of opticns awarded under this authonsation may not represent more than 12 million shares
This authonsation was granted to the Board of Directors by the Annual General Meeting of April 25%, 2006 for a maxmum penod of
26 months

Making use of this authonsation, the Board of Directors made two grarts of share subscnption options relating to a total of 7,500,000 options

Date of grant Nurber of options Exercise penad
April 25" 2006 2 000,000 From Aprl 26%, 2011 to April 25, 20186
December 1%, 2006 5 500,000 From Dacember 2 2011 to December 17, 2016
Total 7,500 GO0

(3) Except exercrse by beneficiaries pnov to the appolrted date in the event of non-voluntary departure from the group, in accordance with the terms and condrbions provided for by the plan regulations

All these opticns can be exercised on the basis of one new share per option exercised, and could therefore lead to the issue of the
same number of shares

Al Decemnber 31%, 2006, 20,366,500 stock optons to subscnbe for shares continued to be exercisable (including 12,866,500 stock
options granted within the framework of a pnor authonisation), so that the potential share capital of the company amounts to
€131,996,582 00, dwded into 659,982,910 shares with a par value of €0 20 each

The company has not issued any secunties which grant indirect entillemnent to shares in the capital
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Changes in the share capital over the last five years

7 eurss Nature of the transaction Amount Share Amount of Number of MNumber of
of the change premiums  share capital on shares shares on

n share capral campletion of created  completion of

Date the transaction or cancelled  the transaction
12 31 2002 - - - 135,212 432 - B76,082 160
04 29 2004 Merger with Gespara} 72808580 907375804 208,021,012 364 042900 1,040 105,060

Cancellation of shares previously
held by Gesparal -72 808,580 -807 312 807 135212432 -364 042900 676 062,160

04 26 2005 Cancellation of shares -3 460,000 - 131,752432 -17 300000  §58 762 160
04 27-12 3120056 Exercige of share subscnption options 1500 433,750 131753 932 7500 658,769 660
01 01-04 24 2006 Exercise of share subscnption options 5600 1 683 395 131,758,532 28 000 658 797 660
04 25 2006 Cancellation of shares -3,845,850 - 127913882 -19226250 639568 410
04 26 2006-02 14 2007 Exercise of share subscnption options 9,850 2885,235 127 923 532 48250  B32617 6680
02 14 2007 Cancellaticn of shares -2 6898 150 - 125225382 -13490,750 626,126 910

Legal entihies or individuals exercising control over the company to the company’s knowledge

Acting in concert the Bettencourt family on the one hand, and Nestle SA, on the other hand, held, at Decemnber 31, 2006, 56 92%
of the share capttal and 60 10% of voting nghts In the company {see below “Shareholders’ agreements relating to shares i the com-
pany's share caprtal”)

Changes i allocation of the share capstal and voting nghts over the last three years

Over the last three years, the allocation of the share capital and the voting nghts has changed as follows

12312004 12 31 2005 12 31 2008
Number % of % of voting Number % of % of voling Number %of % afvoung
of shares capital nghts 2 of shares capital nghts®  of shares caprtal nghts &
Bettencourt farmily U 185 661 879 27 46 2009 185661879 2818 2085 185661879 2003 30865
Nestlé SA (1 178 381 021 2639 27 95 175381,021 2708 2877 178381021 27 89 2945
Public 274 231,480 40 56 4296 255930710 3885 4128 241 679,210 3778 3980
Treasury stock 37 787 8OO 559 38,796,050 589 33 Bad 300 530
Tatal 676,662,160 100 00 100 00 658,769,660 106,00 0000 639 615,410 10000 100 80

{1) Tha Bettencourt tamily and Nestle SA act i concers (se¢ “Shareholders’ agreements relating to shares i the company s share camital” below)
(2) It should be noted that pursuant to the Articles of Associztion, each share grants enttlement to one vote at Annuat General Meetings and that, pursuant to French law,
shares of treasury stock are deprived of voting nghts

To the comparny’s knowledge at December 31, 2606, the members of the Managerment Commitiee directly held less than 1% of the
share capital

The number of shares held by each of the members of the Board of Drrectors is set out in the notes to the Management Report con-
cerning 'Information about corporate officers™

The company I1s authonsed to trade in ks own shares on or off the Stock Exchange in accordance with Articles L 225-200 and seq of
the French Commercial Code, witiyn the lmgs and in accordance with the purposes defined by the authonsations that are granted to
it by its Annuat General Meeting At December 31, 2006, the company held, on this basis, 33,894,300 of its own shares, which, if they
were to be valued at thewr purchase price, represented €2,498 3 million, of which

« 21,501 300 (3 36% of the share capial) were used to cover the existing stock option plans for the purchase of shares allocated to
employees and corporate officers of group comparues,

* 12,393,000 (1 94% of the share capital) ntended for cancellation

Employee share ownership

The emplovees of the company and sts affliates held 3,388,611 shares at December 31st, 2008, that 15 O 53% of the share capital,
through the company savings plan
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Disclosures to the company of thresholds crossed
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Dunng 20086, the company was not nformed of any crossing of the legal thresholds for the holding of its shares or voting nghts However,
the foliowing disclosures were made of the thresholds provided for in the Articles of Association

Date of disclosura Date of grossing Entity making Threshold  Way the thrashold Holding after crassing
of the threshold the disclosure crossed was crossed of the threshold
May 19, 2006 May 5™, 2006  Socéte Génerale group 1 and 2% of the capital Upwards Not mentioned
May 5, 2006 Société Generale 1% of the captal Upwards Not mentioned
May 12%, 2006  Société Génerale group 2% ot the capital Do wnwards 1 454% of the captal
andt 552% of the voting nghts
May 12t 2006 Societa Génerale 1% of the capital Cownwards 0 718% of the capial and
0 768% of the voting nghts
June 2rd 2006 May 19™, 2006 Sccidte Génerale group 1% of the capital Downwardis Q 746% of the capital and
0 796% of the voting nghts
September 219 2006 September 197Y20% 2006 Crédil Agncote Asset 1% of the capitat Downwards 0 99% of the capital
Management (on behal
of its irwestment funds)
December 20™ 2006 December 19 2006 CNP Assurances group 1% of the voiing ngtvis Downwards £ 99% cf the capnal

and the votmg nghls

Shareholders’ agreaments relating to shares
in the company’s share capital

The company 1s not aware of any shareholders’ agreements relat-
ing to shares in its share capial other than the agreement descnbed
below A memorandum of agreement was signed on February
39, 2004 between Mrs Lilane Bettencourt and her farmily, and
Nestlé, providing for the merger and absorption of Gesparal by
E'Oréal it contans the followsng clauses

Clauses relating to the management of the L'Oréal
shares held

Clause limiting the shareholding

The parties agreed not to iIncrease therr shareholdings or therr vot-
g nghts held in LU'Oréal either directly or incirectly, in any manner
whatsoever, for a minmum penod of three years as from Apnl 29,
2004, and in any case not until sx months have elapsed after the
death of Mrs Bettencourt

Lock-up clause

The parties agreed not to transfer any or all of thewr L'Oreal shares
either directly or indirectly, for a penod of five years as from
Apni 297, 2004

Exceptions to the undertaking to imit the shareholding

and the lock-up clause

a- The undertaking to lirmet the shareholding does not apply if the
increase in the shareholding resuits from a reduction in the number
of L'Oreal shares or voting nghts, the acquisition by the company
of ts own shares, or the suspension or removal of the voting nghts
of a shareholder

b - The undertaking to im: the shareholding and the lock-up clause
will no longer apply in the event of a takeover ind for U'Oraal shares,
as from the date of publication of the clearance decision {avs da
recevabilitd} and up until the day after the publication of the notice
of resullts {aws de résultat)

c- In the event of an increase in the share capital of L'Creal, the
parties may, provided that the other party has voled in favour of the
capital increase, acquie shares or subiscribe for new shares, in
order to maintan their holding at the percentage existing pnor to
the said operation

d- The parties are free to cary out transfers of L' Oréal shares, inthe
case of ndmvaduals, in favour of an ascendant, descendant or spouse
in the form of a git, and in the case of ndmduals or legal entities, in
favour of any comparry in which the ndwdual or legal entity carmyng
out the transfer holds over 80% of the share caprtal or vobing nghts

Pre-emption clause

The parties have reciprocally granted each other a pre-emphion nght
conceming the L Oreal shares they hold since the date of the merger,
and those they will hold after such date

This pre-emption nght wall come into force on expiry of the lock-up
clause for a penod of five years, as an exception, it will come nto force
before the expiry of the lock-up penad in the event of a takeover bid
for L'Oréal shares for a penod beginning on the day of the dearance
decson and ending the day ater the publicabon of the nobice of resttts.

“No concert parfy” provision

The parties have agreed for a penod of ten years irom the effectve
date of the merger not to conclude an agreement with any third
party and not to form a concert party relating to the shares making
up the share captal of L'Oreal

Breach of such undertaking entitles the other party to exercise
its pre-emption nght with regard to the shareholding of the party
hawing comnvtted such breach, for a pnce per share equal 1o the
average of the share prices tor the last 30 trading sessions prior to
notification of exercise of the pre-emption nght
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Board of Directors

The agreement did not provide for any change to the composition
of the Board of Directors as compared to ds composition at the
date of ssgning, but did stipulate an undertaking by the parties to
vote n favour of the appomtment as directors of three members
proposed by the other party

The Bettencourt family and Nestle alsc agreed to vote in favour of
the appointment of two Vice-Chaimen of the Board of Directors,
one proposed by the Bettencourt family, and the other by Nestle

The partes provded for the creation of a “Strategy and Implermentation”
Committee on the Board of Directors of LOreal, which has six merm-
bers, and Is charred by the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
°Oréal and composed of two members proposad by the Bettencourt
farnily, two members proposed by Nestlé and one independent direc-
tor The commitiee meets six times a year

Term

Unless otherwise stipulated, the agreement will remain in force
for five years from Apnl 29%, 2004, and in all cases until a penod
of six months has elapsed after the death of Mrs Bettencourt

Concerted action between the parties
The parties have declared that they will act in concert for a penod
of five years from Apnl 29%, 2004 onwards

Authornisation granted to the Board of Directars

i 2005 for the purposes of increasing the share
capital either through the issue of ordinary shares
with preferential subscription nghts, or wa the
capitalisation of share premiums, reserves, Income
or other amounts

The authonsation granted to the Board of Birectors for the pur-
poses of Increasing the capitat either through the 1ssue of ordinary
shares with preferential subscription nghts, or via the capitalisa-
tion of reserves, that may be used on one or mare occasions, was
renewed in 2005, for a penod of 26 months The maximum nom-
inal amount beyond which the capital may not he increased 1s
€200,000,000, thus enabling a nominal capital Ingrease of a max-
imur of €64 8 millkon, in ight of the situation with regard to the
share capital at the tme of voting of the resolution

In 2008, ke In 2005, the Board did not decxde to camy oul a capital
increase under the conditions specified in this resolution

Authonsation granted to the Board of Directors
in 2006 for the purpose of carrying out a capttal
increase reserved for employees

The QOrdinary and Extraordinary General Meeling of Apnl 250, 2006
decided, in application of Aricle L 225-129-6 of the French
Commercial Code, on a resolution for a capital increase reserved
for employees, in that it also authonsed the Board of Drrectors to
grant stock options to subscnbe for shares

The Annual General Meeting authonsed the Board of Directors to

carmry out an increase in the share capual in cash, n accordance
with the provisions of Article L 225-129-2 of the French Commergal
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Code, on one or more occasions, in accordance with the condi-
tons stiputated in Article L 225-138 of the French Commercial Code
and Article L 443-5 of the French Labour Code This authonsation
was granted for a penod of 26 months from the date of the deci-
sion of the Annual General Meeting  The total number of shares that
can be subscnbed by employees may not exceed 1% of the share
capital on the day of the decision of the Beard of Directors

The subscnption pnce 15 set in accordance with the prowvisions of
Article L 443-5 of the French Labour Code

In 2006, the Board of Directors did not decide to camy out a capital
ncrease reserved for employees

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

Spotting, developing and integrating the talents
of tomomrow, encouraging and enhancing diversity

At 'Oreal, the development of human resources 1S & key element
of economic performance The group’s ambition 1s to promote
the harmonious and lasting developrent of its actmties In order
to do so, L'Oreal has to spot and develop talenis, increase s
atiractiveness to employess on an ongowng basis and ensure the
respensible management of careers Each year, a farge number
of employees join the group all over the warld In order to help
them at the start of tharr careers, L'Oreal set up in 2006 a global
personaiised integration programme, called FIT (Follow-up and
Integration Track) The group s always attentve 10 the expecta-
tions of ds employees via its global human resources network and
its nternal satisfaction surveys A founding value at L'Oreal, diver-
sity I1s an essential factor for ts progress Encouraged and enhanced
by the corporate culture, 15 animpressive source of nchness and
creatnaty Dased on respect for people and among people

L'Oreal parent company employee information

Pursuant to Article L. 225-102-1 of the French Commercial Code,
L'Creal includes in the Management Report information about
the way the company menitors the social and employee-related
consequences of its actvity In 2006

Group data 1s included in the chapter on Human Resources in
Volume 1 of the Reference Document




Number of employees and number of persons hired

Total number of employees at December 315t 2006

L'Créal had a total of 5,802 employees at December 31%, 2006
L'Oréal hired 338 persons on permanant contracts, 388 on fixed-
term caontracts and 150 persons on work and {raning contracts
(101 apprentceshp contracts and 49 contracts offenng professional
expenence) In addition, 370 persons were hired on a short-temn
basis dunng the holday penod or for a single season

2006 Men Women Al
Executives 1,214 1,361 2575
Supenasors and technical staff 469 1,689 2158
Admnsiratve staff 153 279 432
Manua workers 204 120 324
Sales representatrves 205 108 313
Totai 2,245 3,557 5802

Difficultios in recruting
L'Oréal does not have any problems in recrusting either executives
or other categones of staff

Redundancies or dismissals

In 2006, there were no redundancies for economic reasons
Out of a total of 5 802 employees, 45 persons were disrissed for
personal reasons Including 5 dismissals for physical ncapacity

Overtime

L'Oreal does not require its employees to work much overtme
The total number of paid overtime in 2006 was 17 899 hours for
a gross amount of €343 77 thousand, representing the equivalent
of 11 26 persons, that 1s 0 18% of the total number of employees

Temporary workers

Temporary workers at L'Creal represent 3 28% of the total number
of employees on average, for an average monthly {otal of
190 termporary workers and an average length of contract of 12 days
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tnformation relating to work{orce reduction plans and job preser-
vation schemes, efforts made to find alternative positions
for employees, rehinng and employment assistance measures
No workfarce reduction plan took place at L'Oréal in 2006

Work organisaton

L'Oreal applies the National Collectve Bargaining Agreement for
the Chemical Industries and vancus company-level agreements,
of which the most recent, dated June 30™, 2000, was concluded
In apphcation of the French Law on the adjustment and reduction
of working time

Working weok

The average working week for ali full-time employees s 35 hours,
except for executives recemng a flat-rate salary for a given rum-
ber of days work per year

Worlang week for part-time ermnployees
Sorme employees across all categonas have chosen 1o work part-
time Out of the total of 497 part-tme employees, the great majonty
work for 4/5 of the workung week, pnmanly on the basis either of
parental leave or absence on wednesdays

Reasons for absenteersm

Reasons for absenteasm % absenleeism
Sick leave 219
Acadents in the workplace-on the way to work 215
Materarty leave 123
Famity events 051
Other absences 001
Total 409
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Remuneration: trends and professional equality

Average monthly remuneration

Average monthly remunerabion of ongoing employees

These are employees {exciuding serior managers) on permanent contracts, who have been present for two consecutive years

Employses who have changed category are included in the category to which they belonged in the second year

1 euras 2008 2006

Men Women Al Men Women All Change
Executives 5441 4,446 4 902 5683 4 644 5121 ~4 45
Superasors and techmical staff 2567 2,637 2642 2734 2,715 2,719 ~294
Administrative staff 1971 1853 1927 2021 1948 1,976 +2 55
Manual workers 2,116 2064 2097 2176 2,110 2 152 +261
Sates representatives 3,841 3283 3857 3860 3377 3701 +119

Employer payroll contributions
Total employer payroli contnibutions for 2006 amounted 1o
€126,194 53 thousand

Apphcation of Title IV of Book IV af the French Labour Code
mncentives and employee profit-sharnng arrangements

Incentives

The incentive system 1s governed by French law but 15 2 non-
mandatory system It was set up as part of a group agreement in
France in 1988 and was renewed in 2006 The incentive amount
1S proportionai to the pre-tax profit on ordinary operations after
exceptional items, and after weighting on the basis of the
salary/value added rabo

The incentive amount 1s avalable immediately, but may zlso be
frozen in the company savings plan for five years and benefit from
a corresponding tax exemption

Changes in incentive amounts paid m France
for ali companies covered

£ thousancs 2003 2004 2005
79,427 82 388 84,935

Of which the L Oreal

parent company represents 41085 43 350 45573

For an annual The gross ncentive amount for 2005

gross salary of pad m 2006 represented
€25,000 €5,693 1e 2 73 manths
€32,000 €6 480 1e 2 42 months
€45,000 €7 940 1e 2 12 months
€60 000 €9,825,1¢ 193 month

Employee profit-shanng

Profit-shanng 15 a mandatory system under French Law, set up
in 1968 for all profit-making comparies with over 50 employees
The profit-sharing agreement was renewed in June 2006 The
L'Oreal group has made adjustments to the legal formula that are
more favourable for employees

«ther agreement 1s made at group level all the employees of com-
panies having signed this agreement, whatever ther sector of
actiily or earnings, recewve the same profit share,

» it provides for addition to the taxable profit of royallies denved
from licenses for patents, inventions and techmcal processes
developed in France, which creates a direct refationship wath the
group's international development,
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* provisions are stipulated to imit the conseguences of excep-
tional events on the calculaton of the profit shanng amount  Profit-
sharning payments are mandatonly frozen for a perod of 5 years

Changes in employee profit-shanng in France
for all companies covered by tha L'Oreal group agreement

< thousaras 2003 2004 2005
29,536 31465 27 881

Of which the L Qréal

parent company represents 15791 17,075 15,386

Profit shanng for 2005 paid in 2006 represented the equivalent of
0 71 month's salary

L' Oreal company savings plan and funds

L'Créal offers its employees a wide range of funds and thus great
freedom of choice 1t 1s possible for employees

+ to invest profit-shanng amounts in a frozen current account on
which L'Oréa! wall pay interest at the average rate of yield of bonds
In private comparies {TMOP) n accordance with Article R 442-12
of the French Labour Code,

+since 2004, to invest profit-shanng amounts In a collective retire-
ment savings plan (PERCO) and receve an additional employer
contnbution of +50%,

= to inves! profit-sharing and ncentive amounts na company sav-
ings plan consisting of seven investment funds offenng a wide
range of possibilities and great flexibility of use Four of the funds
are dwversified (shares, bonds, French and international secunties,
etc ) and three are funds consisting entirely of L'Oreal shares, with
additional employer contnbutions being paid on two of such funds

One of the funds 1s only intended to recave incentive payments
and an additional employer contnbuiion of +25% 1s paid The
other fund may receve, under the terms of the 35-hour working
week agreement, a voluniary payment ¢f the equivalent amount
of days worked and an emplayer contribution of +100 % 1s added

In 2006, the employees of L'Oreal n France nvested €30,381,886
and €1,365 475 respectively net of the compulsory social levies
-CSG (the general social contnbistion) and CRDS {the contnbu-
tion 1o rembursement of the French social secunty debt)- in the
two funds that consist entirely of L'Oreal shares, “L'Oreal
Intéressement” and “L'Oreal & Versements Personnels Protéges™
The employer contributions added to these payments were
€6,986,057 and €1,259,884, which, at the opening trading prce
for the L'Oreal share on the date of each of these employer




contributions, namely €72 70 on June 30, 2006 for *L'Oreal
intéressement™ and €75 15 on February 287, 2006 for “L'Oréal
a Versements Parsonnels Protéges”, represents the equivalent of
112,859 L'Creal shares

As the total net amount of incentives allocated in 2006 was
€78,456,763, L'Oréal proposed nearly 300,000 shares free of
charge toits employees in France In 2006 in the form of this addi-
tional employer's coninbution

Company savings plan and frozen current account for
all companies covered

€ tho sands 2002 2003 2004 2005
Company savings
plan and frozen
cument account

305 614 359 266 352 692 438 550

At December 314, 2006, 46% of the savings of £Oreal employees
were invested in L'Oreal shares, and 10,300 group employees in
France were shareholders of L'Oreal through the savings plan

Incentive schemes worldwide

Since 2001, L'Oreal has undertaken to develop in vanous stages, In
almost all the countnes where its subsidianes are located, an incen-
tve scherme that depends on increases i sales and/or earmings
On this bagrs, in 2006, L'Oréal paid €49 mdlion in respect of 2005
for ncentive schemes throughout the world outside France, which
represents 2 6 weeks' salary

Professional equality

Professional equalty between men and women 1s a principle to
which L'Oréal has always been very much attached Non-discnm-
ination s one of the fundamental pinciples asserted in the com-
pany’s ethics charter

The companson between the general conditions of employment
and trasrung of men and women in the company 15 presenied once
a year to the works counc of each establishment within the scope
of the commussion on “Professional Traming and Employment”

Professionat equality 1s alse deall within a report reviewed each
year as part of the compulsory annual salary negot:ation process
This report, drawn up In accordance with the requirements of
Arbicle L. 432-3-1 of the French Labour Code, considers the respec-
tive position of men and women with regard to hinng, trarming,
promotion, qualfications and classification, effective remunera-
tion and working conditions for each professional category (exec-
uives, supervsors, admestrative staff, manual workers and sales
representatives)

Nine study groups on Diversity have been created at L'Oréal and
are madle up of employee representatives, representatives of man-
agement and other employees in certan of the study groups

The purpose of these siudy groups 1s to exchange and share infor-
mation en the measures implemented in order to combat all forms
of discnmination and to promote diversity and equal opportunties
The question of promoting professional equalty 1s one of the ques-
tions handled by the study groups on Diversity

For example, 54% of L'Oréal executives are women ()

{1) See also the chapter on “Human Resources™ In Volume 1 of the Reterence Document,
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Professional relations
and hst of collective agreements

Professional relations

The high quality of labour relations at L'Oréal 1s the result of an
ongoing dialogue between the management, employees and ther
representatves

The representational structure 1s highly decentralised in order to
keep in touch with 1ssues faced at the local stes

Composition of Central Works Council by category
Since 2005, as no unarimous agreement could be reached
between the trade urvon organsations, the local French Employment
and Professional Training authonty provided for the compostition
of the Central Works Council in stnct accordance with the legal
provisions, whereas it was previously three times bigger

Number of elected representatives by category 20006
Executives 2
Supervisors and techrucal stafi/Sales representatives 1
Administrative staf/Manual workers 1

Number of meetings of the Central Works Council
and its commissions in 2006 9

List of collective agreements

Dates of signature and objects
of the agreements signed in the company

06 01 2006 Special group profit shanng agreement for
2006-2007 2008
0616 2006 Group incentive agreemant for
2006-2007-2008

Occupational health and safety

In apphcation of the French decree of November 5%, 2001 relat-
ng {o occupational nsks, L'Oréal has prepared a single document
for the evaluation of occupational nsks in the company In 2006,
70 meetings of the CHSCTs (health, safety and working condi-
tions committees} were held, in the 13 such committees that exist
Five occupational doctors are present on ali the company’s sies
and 5,848 medical examinations were conducted in 2006 (medical
examinations upon hinng return to work afler sick leave or regular
medical examinations}

In 2006, there were 49 losi-iime accidents

Measures taken to improve safety

Preserving the health and safety of employees is a fundamental
goal, which forms an integral part of the company’s human
resouwrces and social policy it 1s based on nsk prevention, both
at ndmclual level, through medical screening tests which enables
close and spectfically adapied indmdual monitonng of employ-
ees, and at callectve level, through the evaluation and control of
occupational nsks

The health and safety programme forms part of an overall
approach, mplemented In close conjunclion with occupational
doctors, safety managers and the health, safety and working con-
ditions committess

Annual Report _ L'OREAL 2006




70 _ MANAGEMENT REPORT

Traing

Percentage of total salaries alfocated
to cantinuing education in 2006

Amount allocated to training (€ thousand) 13 423
% of total satanes 45

Number of persons receiving training 3,996
1e 68 9% of the total number of employees at December 315, 2006

Number of trammng units 7,970
or two units of training per person {raned

Number of hours of trasmng 126,603 hours

Number of employees who made use of the indnadual Triring
Entitternent (Drott Individuel a la Formation ~ "DIF”) 57

The LU'Oréal Human Resources intranet site provides employees
with comprehensive mformation on the possibilities of profes-
sional fraining offered and therr Indvidual Traiming Entitlernent
Employment and job opportunities for disabled workers
The number of disabled workers was 103 i1 2006,
representing 1 8% of the total number of employees

Subcontracting to special workshops for disabled workers and
occupational therapy centres represented an amount of €176,850

Welfare

Breakdawn of the company’s expenses

< frossands 2006
Accommodation

Payment to the “1% hausing fund® 1292
Transport

Shuttle services 157
Catering

Company restaurant facilites 6 566
Miscellaneous

Special soclal events for personnel 1,173
Total 8,189

Payment fo the L'Creal Central Works Couneil and fo the three
works councils gt ds estabhshuments. €1399 thousand

Amount of subcontracting

€ thousangs 2006
Subcontractng purchases 4,295
Specal contract work 285 640
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How the company promofes the fundamental conventions
of the International Labour Orgarusation {ILO} to s
subcontractors and ensures that 1ts substdraries comply
writh these fundamental convenfions

L'Creal attaches great mportance to respect for the law of states
In which its subsidianes carry out their activlies L'Oréal’'s corpo-
rate culture 1s based on strong ethical prninciptes that have been
appked throughout its development These prnciples have been
set out in an ethics charter stating the fundamental values and
prnnciples of action that underpin L'Oreal’s actvities The ethics
charter was 1ssued to each of the group's 50,000 employees in
2000 and each new employee receives a personal copy immedi-
ately on joning £/Oreal

Since 2003, L'Créal has signed the United Nations Global Compact
and therefore undertakes to respect is 10 pnnaiples in the areas of
hurman nghts, labour standards, the ervironment and anti-cormuption

The group prohibits the use of forced labour, and work by young
people under 16 years of age and s carefut to ensure that these
principles are comphed with by its subcontractors and suppliers,
as specified in the group’s General Furchasing Conditions Inthis
respect it is stpulated that “the suppher must comply with all laws
and regulations in force and meet the requirements of the funda-
mental conventions of the ILO, namely C87 and C98 on trade
unien freedom, C29 and C105 on the aboliion of forced labour,
C111 and C100 on egualty, and finally C138 and C182 on the
aboktion of work by chidren *

152 suppher audits have been performed since 2002 t¢ ensure
ther complance

The General Management has decided to strengthen this audit
process and to venfy that all the subcontractors and suppliers
comply with the General Purchasing Conditions To prowvide an
example, all the group’s factones and distnbution centres through-
out the world were audited in 2006 by an external audst firm

Terntonal impact on employment and regional development
LU'Oreal's establishments are situated in the Pans regon Pans,
Clchy-la-Garenne, Roissy Charles de Gaule, Saint-Cuen, Asniéres,
Avtnay-sous-Bots, Chevlly-Larue, Mary-la-Ville and Mitry-Mory

Ower the past three years on al these sites, L'Oreal has hrred 2,203
employees on permanent and fixed-terrn contracts and has thus
contnbuted to regional development

In 2008, L'Oréal pad €16,331 thousand 1n business tax (taxe
professionnells)

Relations with educational establishments and associations

Educational establishrents

For over 30 years, L'Oréal has been bulding close parinerships
with unwversities, and with uraversity-level management, engneenng
and research eslabishments

L'Oreal offers students the possibility of discovenng the company
dunng thewr courses by offenng them some 500 internstups across
alt its professions each year




tn 2008, 525 students joined L'Oréal under this type of internship
scheme LOréal also offers conferences, factory visits and case
studies

443 young people on work and training contracts {apprenticeship
contracis and contracts offening professional expenence) were
present in the group in France at December 31%t, 2006, 205 of
whom worked at L’Oreal in cooperation with over 70 apprentice
traning centres

88% of the apprentices are prepanng for qualifications at “bac+2"
level (equivalent to a 2-year course after “A levels™) or higher Their
pass rate 15 B0%

A gqualtative assessment of the apprentice traning centres 1s camed
out each year

L'Oréal paid €1,960 thousand 1n apprenticeship tax in 2006

Environmental protection associations

L'Oréal 1s a member of associations and societies that act in favour
of sustainable development at national level (e g Eco-Emballages),
European level (e g European) and international leve! (e g The
World Business Council for Sustanable Development)

L'Oréal 1s also imvolved in a large number of worling groups, which
play a crucial role in the exchange of expertise and advice

Regional development and local populations

As L'QOréal s business is at the heart of people s everyday Ives and
therr well-being, the group plays an active role in the Iife of the
communities in which s actnties take place L'Oreal1s committed
to demonstrating good corporate citzenship through its behawiour
and to making a cantnbution to projects which are useful to the
wider community

As a general rule, 'Oreal'’s establishments and those of its sub-
sidianes buld good relations with the communities in the areas in
which they operate, and make every effort 1o imit the impact of ther
actwvties on the environment and to provide exemplary working
conditions for therr employees

In the internal Safety Health Environment competitions, pnzes are
awarded for civic imtiatives in recognition of the efforts made by
a site (factory, distnbution centre or administrative office) which
demonstrate its commitment, mobiisation and involvernent in the
community in which it operates Awards are made to the hest
local inhiatives conducted each year in parinership with local
authonties, local residents and schools in the fields of soldanty,
education or the environment

By these intiatives, L'Oréal ts eager to demonstrate its good crizen-
ship, and to show that it firmly respects the ethical values of the
surrounding community
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Stock options at L'Oréal

In the common interest of employees and shareholders

The General Management and the Board of Directors wish to
stress the importance of stock options in bnnging together the
interests of the beneficianes and those of the shareholders them-
selves The employees and corporate officers who recewve the
options and the shareholders share the same confidence in the
strong, steady development of the company

Authonsation granted to the Board of Directors

to grant options with regard to L’Oréal shares

The Ordinary and Extracrdinary General Meeting of Aprl 25M, 2006
authonsed the Board of Direciors 10 grant to employees and cor-
porate officers of the company and of s French and foreign affil-
iates as defined by Article L. 225-180 of the French Commercial
Code (Code de commerce), stock opticns that gve entitlement to
the purchase of existing shares of the company or the subscrp-
tion of new shares This authorsation was granted for a penod of
twanty-six months, and gives the Board of Directors as much flax-
ibility as possible in order to encourage the motivation of benefi-
cianes, regardless of the context In 2006, the Board made new
allocations it should be noted that the stock options are granted
wilh no discount

Non-exercise penod of five years

Stock options are subject to a coniractual non-exercise penod of
five years The valdity of a stock option granted 1s ten years This
ensures that the stock option plan is a durable drving force for
the group’s long-term development The stock options are ntended
10 Invelve, motivate and foster the loyalty particulary of employees
who, through thewr abilities and ther commitment, contnbute most
{o the group's performances  They also form part of 'Oreal's strategy
of encouraging or attracting new talents

Number of employees concerned

In 2006, at the propasal of s Charrman and the Management
and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Drectors showed its
desre once agan to give employees the possibility to be more
closely nvalved in the development of the company

tn Apnl and December 2006, L'Oreal granted a total of 7,500,000
stock options to subscnbe for shares to 789 beneficianes This
increases the number of beneficianes of stock options since the
ongin to 3,171 at December 31%, 2006

Compliance with the insider trading rules

The beneficianes of stock options are required to comply with
rules governing insider trading which are brought to thesr atten-
tion when they receive the regulations of the ptan concernad
If they wish to sell shares after exercising thewr options, they must
ensure they are not doing so duning a sensitve penod, or in a
situation in which, due to ther access to paviteged information,
decisions taken on the basis of such information could have an
impact on the L'Oréal share price
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Currently existing L'Oréal parent company stock options to purchase and subscnbe for shares
The situation of the stock opion plans to purchase or subscrbe for shares that existed at L'Oréal as at December 318, 2006, was as follows

Date of authonsation 05301985 0530{995 05301985 0601 1936 06011093 06011999 06011898 0601 1999 06 01 1999 0604 1959
by the Annual General Meeting

Date of grant 10171997 1013571988 12081998 0141995 12071995 04052000 09282000 1207 2000 03252001 09182001
Total number of options granted 2500000 1,400,000 1100000 2250000 1500000 1200000 3800000 450000 2500000 2500000
Of which to Management

Committee members® 995 000 150 000 - 550600 525,000 - 310 000 - 3560 000 655 000
Number of seror managers/

Total number of beneficianas a/102 2170 04110 8133 6/200 0/234 707 0108 4521 7r441
First possible date of exercise 10182002 10162003 12092003 10152004 12082004 04062005 (9262005 12082005 03202006 00192008
Number of options not exercised 372800 277,400 282,500 1324200 1,073,500 771,500 3,364 500 398,500 2274000 2232500
at 12 31 20068

Of which by Management

Committee Members® 228 600 50000 - 550000 525000 - 310000 - 360000  B55000
Date of expry 1617 2007 10152008 12082008 10142009 1207 2005 04 052010 09282010 1207 201G 03282011 09182011
Acquisiion pnice {in euros) 34 01 3/ 48 46 5760 6100 6590 8300 B8990 7560 1760
Date of authorisation

by the Annual General Meaiing 06501 1999 0601 1999 060115699 05222003 05222003 05222003 05222003 05222003 04252006 04252006
Date of grant 10082001 03262002 00042002 1203200250324 2004 12012004 06202005 11302005404 252005 12012006
Total number of options granted 285000 2500000 2500000 S000000 2000000 4,000000 400000 6000000 2000000 5,500000
Of which to Management

Comimittee Marmbers® - 360000 2BOO0OC 1,00G000 435000 1,555,000 300000 2275000 2000000 1,530000
Number of semior managers?

Total number of beneficianes 0/109 8/410 6394 1/653 6257 107274 213 10/771 111 /708
First possible date of exercise 10092006 03272007 09052007 12042008 04252000 12022000 063020:0 12012010 0«262011 1202201
Number of options not exercised

at 12 31 2008 198750 2345000 2384500 4892250 1,984,500 3970000 400000 5980,000 2000000 5500000
Of which by Management

Committee Mombers? - 360000 280000 1000000 435000 7555000 300060 2273000 2000060 530000
Data of expiry 10082011 03262012 09042012 12032013 03242014 12012014 0629205 11302015 04252016 12012016
Acquisition (A) or TES0(A)  B81B5(A) TE83(A 719044 62 94 (A)

supscrption (S) pnce {in suros) BI02(S) 6469{8) S5554(8) 6017 B137(5) 7260(5) 7BOG(S)

{1} There are no share purchase or subscription plans at subsidiaries of L'Oréal
{2} Management Commitiee members in office on the date of grant,

{3} The stock option plan of December 37 2003 1s divided intn two halves a share subscripbon offer at a pnce of €63 02 () and a share purchase option offer at a pnce of €71 90 (&)
£ach berefleiary recevad an offer compnsing share subscription oplions and share purchase options in equal parts

{4} The stock eption plan of November 30, 2005 is composed, for 70%, of 2 share subscnption cption offer at a price of €61 37 (S) and for 30%, of a share purchase option offer at a
price of €62 94 (A) Each beneficiary has receved an offer compnsing share subscnption eptions and share purchase options in the abeve propertions There were ne fractional shares

NB the numbers of aptions and the acquisition prices indicated take into account the adjustments relabng to the financial transactions carried out with regard to the share capital such
as the exchange of investment certificates for shares mada in 1993 the grant of one bonus share for ten existing shares in 1996 and the ten for-one share split m 2000

Main grants of stock options to employees other than
corporate officers, and the exercise of these options

The total number of stock options granted in 20086 to the ten
employees who are not corporate officers and who receved the
largest number of stock options amounts to 1,180,000 share sub-
scription options at an average price of €78 06 per share,
1,030,000 of which were granted to exght members of the
Management Commuttee, also at an average price of €78 06 per
share

The total number of stock options exercised, 1n 2006, to the ten
employees who are not corporate officers and who exercised the
largest number of stock options amounts to 265,000 share pur-
chase options at an average pnce of €48 38 per share, 50,000
of which were exercised by members of the Management
Committee, at an average price of €48 16 per share
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Summary of incentives granted(

It shouid be noted that, 1n 1998, L'Oréal put in place an incentive
agreement 1n France that has been regularly renewed since then,
and involves the beneficianes directly in the group’s results

€ thausands 2603 2004 2005
Amount of the Incentives 79 427 82 388 84 8935
Including those for L Oréal 41 085 43 350 45573

Depending on the level of therr annual gross salary, the gross
amount of incentives for 2005 paid in 2006 represented the
following armounts for beneficianes

For an annual gross salary of Gross ncentives for 2005 pard i 2006
£€25,000 €5 6893 1e 2 ¥3months
€32 000 €6 480,12 2 43 months
€45 000 €7 940,1¢ 2 12 months
€60 000 €8,625 1 1 93 month

{1} For further wfermation on the Incentves, see “Human Resources L Oréal parent com
pany employee information” i the Refererce Document, Volume 2 page 68




L'Oréal share funds with company’s contribution

L'Oréal offers each beneficiary of the Incentive a choice of invest-
Ing the amount of the ncentve in the “L'Oréal Intéressement” fund
Within the scope of the 35-hour working week agreement, |'Oreal
also offers its employees the possibility to wwvest the equivalent
amount of days worked in another fund, “L'Oréal 4 Versements,
Personnels Protéges” These funds both consist entirely of L'Creal
shares and the payments made by the beneficianes are added to
by employer contnbutions made by the company of 25% for the
first fund and 100% for the second fund, within the hmit of a total
amount of €4,140

In 20086, the emplayees of L'Oréal in France nvested €30,381,886
and €1 385,475 respectively, net of the compulsory social levies
-C8G (the general social contribution) and CROS {the contnbu-
tion to rembursement of the French social secunty debt}- in the
two funds that consist entirely of L'Oreal shares, “L'Oreal
Intéressement” and “L'Oreal & Versements Personneis Protégés”
The employer contributions added to these payments were
€6,986,057 and €1 259,884, which, at the opening trading prce
for the L'Oreal share on the date of each of these employer con-
fnbutions, namely €72 70 on June 30W, 2006 for “L'Oreal
intdressement” and €75 15 on February 28, 2008 for “L'Oréal
a Versements Parsonnels Protégés”, represents the equivalent of
112,859 L'Oreal shares As the total net amount of incentives allo-
cated In 2006 was €78,456,763, L Oreal proposed nearly 300,000
shares free of charge to its employees in France in 2006, in the
form of this additional employer’'s contribution

ORGANISATION OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS IN 2006

Corporate governance

With regard {o corporate governance, L'Oreal applies the recom-
mendations of the AFEP and the MEDEF under the terms and
conditions descnbed in the Charman's Repont attached to this
Management Report, which descnbes the way i which the work
of the Board 1s prepared and organised The Board adopts an
orgarusational approach and a modus operand) which enable 1t
to discharge its duties as effectively as possible

The drectors noted with satistaction that the daty newspaper,
L AGEFI, gave L'Oréal first place in its Award for “Compaosition of
the Board” in 2006, in particular due to its well-balanced and com-
plementary nature

The Board sets out here the measures taken conceming the crgari-
sahon of the Board, further {0 the presentation of the Board prowded
in this respect in Volume 1 of this Reference Document, just before
the Charman's Report

The Board of Directors approved its Intemal Rules at its meeting
on September 27, 2003, and amended them on December 15,
2004 and agamn on August 30%, 2006 to take into consideration
the separation of the duties of Chairman of the Board of Directors
from those of the Chuef Executive Officer, whose respective respon-
sibifiies had to be specified These nies are attached to this Report
{on page 97)
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These Interna! Rules are Iiable to be amended by the Board of
Directors in hght of the changes in the laws and regulations, but
also its own modus operand: In this case, the new Internal Rules
are made public as soon as possible, nitally wa the company's
website

The L'Oréal Board of Directors compnsed thiteen members at
December 31%, 2006 three representing the family of Mrs
Bettencourt, three representing Nestlg, the Charrman, the Chief
Executve Officer of L’ Qréal, a former employee whose status as
an employee ended more than 12 years ago, and four external
personalities

The Ist of offices and directorships held in ali companies, durnng
2006, by each of the corporate officers is included in the notes to
this Management Report

The Board has set up three internal review committees responsi-
ble for prepanng its detberations The Strategy and Implementation
Committee, the Management and Remuneration Committee, and
the Audit Commuittee The membership of these Committees 15
set out n the chapter on Corporate Governance in Volume 1 of
the Reference Document, therr remits are set out in the Internal
Rutes of the Board of Directors, and thesr work in 2006 1s descnbed
i detal in the Chairman’s Report The Committees act within the
framework of the powers delegated te them by the Board, and
do not therefore have any decision-making powers

Non renewal of the tenure of a director in 2008

Mr Jean-Louis Dumas, a director of L'Oreal since 2002, did not
seek renewal of his tenure at the Annual General Meeting of April
25%, 2006 S bindsay Owen-Jones and the Board thanked
Mr Dumas for his loyalty throughout the years of his tenure and
also his great ndependence of spint He was a direclor who was
attentive 1o his duties and extremely devoted to the Board

Renewal of the tenure of five directors in 2008

The Beard of Directors proposed to the Annual General Meeting
of Apnl 25%, 2006 the renewal of the tenure as directors of Sir
Lindsay Owen-Jones, Mr Francisco Castarier Basco, Mr Xawvier
Fontanet, Mr Marc Ladrett de Lacharmnére and Mr Franck Riboud,
which expred at the close of the Annual General Meeting The
tenure of these directors, covenng a penod of four years as pro-
vided for by the Articles of Association, was renewed and ther
directorshis wil expere at the close of the Ordinary General Mesting
to be held in 2010 and called to review the financial statements
for the year ending December 31t 2009

Appointment of a director in 2006

The Board of Directors proposed the appaintment of Mr Jean-Paul
Agon as a new director to the Annual General Meeling

L'Créal's Deputy Chief Executive Officer snce July 2005, Mr Jean-Paul
Agon, was thus appointed as director for a term of four years as pro-
vided for by the Artictes of Association, expinng at the close of the
Crdinary General Meeting to be held in 2010 and called to review the
financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2009
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At the close of the Annual General Megting, Sir Lindsay Owen-
Jones proposed to the Board of Directors that it separate the
duties of Chairman from those of Chief Executive Officer and that
it appoint Mr Jean-Paul Agon as Chief Executive Officer

Separation of the duties of Chairman from those
of Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors decided on April 25, 2006 to separate
the duties of Chairman from those of Chief Executive Officer Sir
Lindsay Owen-Jones was appointed as Chairman of the Beard
of Dwectors and Mr Jean-Paul Agon as Chief Executive Officer

For the purposes of clarfication and transparency in the defini-
tion of the remit and roles of the Charman and Chief Executive
Officer after separation of the duties, the Board has updated its
Internal Rules

REMUNERATION OF CORPORATE OFFICERS

The Management and Remuneration Committee, a review com-
mittee of the Board of Directors 1o which the Chairman refers in
his Report on “the way n which the Board's work 1s organised
and prepared”, held five meebngs in 2006 on February 137, March
15m, Apnl 121 June 270 and November 30%, in a completely inde-
pendent manner

The Management and Remuneration Commuttee 1s primanly
instructed by the Board of Directors to examine the conditions in
which the remuneration of the corporate officers 1s established,
and 1o report to the Board in this respect

The remit of the Management and Remuneration Committee also
ncludes prepanng for the Board of Directors, for each corporate
officer appointed by the Beard, proposals of remuneration that
include a fixed part and a vanable part, and proposals to grant
stock options

These proposals are reviewed in a completely ndependent manner
by the whole of the Board oi Drectors which deliberates and votes
on each of these proposals on a collegial basis

Each year the Committee prepares its proposals of remuneration
for the corporate officers appointed by the Board, in two stages
* At the start of each financial year, the Management and
Remuneration Committee submits to the Board, which then takes
its decision, the amount of the fixed part of the remuneration of
each of the corporate officers, by first establishing total annual
remuneration for each officer

Al the same time, the Management and Remuneration Commitiee
submits to the Board of Directors the rules and cntena for estab-
ishing the vanable part of the remuneration of each corporate offi-
cer for the next financial year, these rules and cntena are thus
reviewed each year and are adopted on the basis of ther rele-
vance and consistency with the general objectives for the com-
pany's development assigned by the Board

+ At the end of the financial year, the Management and
Remuneration Committee submis to the Board a proposal for the
variable part of the remuneration of each corporate officer
appointed by the Board, for the past financial year, established in
accordance with the rufes and cnilena adopted at the start of the
financial year by the Board
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The Board always wishes o incite the General Management both
to maximise performance for each financial year and to ensure that
the performance 1s repeated and remains steady vear after year
The Board has laid down a simple rule, whereby the vanable part
of the remuneration of each corporate officer appownted by the
Board I1s determined as follows

= half 15 based on an analysis of the company’s performance by
reference to significant economic indicators, reflectingin particu-
lar the trend in sales, earnings, profitability, productivity or market
share, and

« haif 15 based on an assessment of the qualitative aspects of
management, such as the approprateness of strategic choices,
prospects for products and markets, research projects, renewal
of siructures, the ability to generate team spint, the image of the
company projected, or the quality of communication

The Committee notes the progress made in these fislds and, on
this basis proposes to the Board to set the final amount of the
vanable part of the remuneration of each corporate officer appointed
by the Board, for the previous year

At the same time, the Management and Remuneration Committee
formulates proposals for the grant of stock options to the corpo-
rate officers apponted by the Board

To ensure that the corporate officers appointed by the Board are
offered remuneration and stock options that will attract them,
motwate them, and foster ther loyalty, the Committee 1s guided
in its reflections by two clear pnnciples

« cash remuneration must be modulated in accordance with
responsibiliies actually exercised, and must be competitive with
the remuneration offered for similar levels of responsibilty by large
internabional companies operating # similar markets it must also
depend, for the determination of the vanable part, partly on the
company’s performance, and on the role played i this perform-
ance hy each of the corporate officers, and partly on qualitative
management cntena,

» stock options must be allocated to the corporate officers, in
order to involve them in the long-term development of the vafue
of the company and its share pnce, in a way that refiects ther
contnbution to this ncrease in value

Based on this approach, the Management and Remuneration
Committee makes its proposals to the Board on completion of
two independent analyses

« one based on the performance of the company and of the per-
formance of each of the corporate officers, which forms the basis
of its remuneration proposals,

» the second one based on the prospects for an increase in the
share price, which guides it in prepanng its stock option grant
proposals

The Commuttee 1s attentive to formulating its remuneration pro-
posals to the Board without taking the share price inlo account,
and s similary careful {o formulate stock option grant proposals
without refernng to the short-term performance of the company
In 2006, the Management and Remuneration Committee made
the following proposals 1o the Board, which revewed and accepted
them




Remuneration of the Charrman
and Chief Executive Officer

The fixed remuneration of the Chairman and Chef Executrve Officer
remaned unchanged in 2006 at €3,750,000 on an annual basis
which was paid to him on a prorated basis to the fength of his
term of office from January 1st to Apnil 30", 2006, namely
€1,250,000

The vanable remuneration of the Charman and Chief Executive
Officer for this period was adopted on Apri 259, 2006 by the
Board of Dwectors The Board considered the excellence of the
results as they could be estimated at such date, wihich have since
been confirmed, and the exceptional quality of the preparatons
for, and actual handing over of, the posiion of Chief Executive
Officer to Mr Jean-Paul Agon In accordance with the rule #t had
adopted, the Board therefore set the vanable part of the remuner-
ation of the Charman and Chief Executive Cfficer at €1,250,000
brnging his total remuneration, for these four months, to 100% of
the target remuneration set at the beginning of the financral year
The total gross remuneration paid to the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, until the end of his term of office, in respect to
the first four months of the 2006 financral year, thus amounted to
€2,653,817, including €6,273 in benefits in kind and €47,544 1
attendance fees The Charman and Chief Executive Officer had
a company car and a chauffeur at his disposal

The remuneration of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
approved by the Board of Directors for 2006 and the previous
years was as follows

In& 2003 2004 2005
Items of remuneration
Foeed remuneration paid
Varable remuneration pad
Atlendance fees due
Benefits in kind

Tolal gross remuneration

20060

3000000 3500000 3750000 1,250 000
3500000 3000000 3500000 1250000
56860 75874 87 937 47 544
19333 20 508 20 408 6273
6576 793 6596 383 7 358 343 2 553 817
+5% +3% +116% -

{1) The remuneration for 2006 compeises all the amounts received by the Chairman and
Chuef Executrve Officer up untll the end of his term of oifice

Al its meeting on Apnl 25%, 2006, the Board of Directors took note
of the decision by Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones to apply for his pen-
sion as from May 1%, 2006 As Sr Lindsay Owen-Jones has always
heen treated by the Board in the same way as L'Oréal's senior
managers for all matters that are inked to his salary, he recewed,
at that time, a retirement indemnity based on the calcuation sched-
ule apphcable at U'Oréal for a projected length of service of forty-
one years and seven months at the age of 65, namely six months
of his average remuneration for the twelve manths prior to the
date of hes reirement The base applied consists of three-twelfths
of the fixed and vanable remuneration for 2006 on an annual basis
and nine-twelfths of the same amounts for 2005

MANAGEMENT REPORT _75

Since May 1%, 2008, Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones has been enbitied to
the “Garantie de Retrarte des Membres du Comite de Coryonciure”
(Pension Cover of the Members of the “Cormité de Conyoncture™)@

in accordance with the Regulations governing this scheme, pen-
sion cover 1s indially calculated on the basss of the beneficiary’s length
of service As Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones joined L' Oreal on September
1%, 1969, his length of service amounted to thirty-six years and
eight months at the time of his retirement Thus, after thus inbal cal-
culation, his pension cover could have amounted to 66 66% of the
average of the remuneration for the three best-paid full calendar
years of his career out of the last seven years, these years are 2003,
2004 and 2005 However, the Regulations for this scheme also
expressly provide that the pension cover may not exceed the aver-
age amount of fixed remuneration for the same three years This
capping mecharism applied to the penston cover for Sir Lindsay
Owen-Jones, which represents 46 43% of his fotal gross remuner-
ation for ks last fult calendar year of service, namely 2005 This pen-
sion gover includes both his basic and supplementary pensions

Pursuant to the usual accounting principles, provisions had been
set aside both for this tndemnity and thes pension cover in the
accounts of L'Oréal

The Board did not propose any other specific financial measure
with regard to Sir Lndsay Owen-Jones at the time of his retire-
ment although it congratulated fim on the company s remarkable
performance dunng his successive terms of office, as measured,
in particular, by two performance indicators that are particularty
important for the shareholders

Change n the share pnce and stock market
capstabsation of L'Oréal

Between Oclober 260, 1884, the date when Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones
was first appointed as Chief Executive Officer, and Aprl 259, 20086,
the date on which he handed over the duties of Chief Executive
Officer to Mr Jean-Paul Agon,1e a penod of twenty-one and a half
years, the share price was multipled by over 25, re an average
increase of 16 2% per annum and the stock market captalisation
was mulbiplied by nearly 30, 1 & an average increase of 17 1% per
annum

LOréal L'Creaf stock

shara pnce markel capdalisation

10 26 1584 €2 547 €1 65 biffion

04 25 2006 €7410 €48 8 bafion
{3} Adjusted pnce

Separation of the duties of Chairman
from those of Chief Executive officer

On Apnl 250 2006, the Board of Directors decided 1o separate
the duties of Chairman from those of Chief Executive Officer The
Charmanship of the Board of Directors was offered to Sy Lindsay
Owen-Jones and the possion of Cheef Executive Officer to Mr Jean-Paud
Agon, they both accepted these appointments

(2) For detads of the Regulatons for this scheme, please refer to “Pension plan commit
ments and supplesnentary benefits” (Reference Document, Volume 2, page 134)
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Remuneration of the Chairman

Sir bindsay Owen-Jones declined all remuneration related to this
new office for the last exght months of 2006, ncluding the part of
such remuneration corresponding to attendance fees On Apni
25™, 2006, the Board of Directors set the Charrman's fixed remu-
neration for 2007 at an amount of €2,000 000 on an annual bass,
this rermuneration will be paid to him as from January 1st, 2007
This fixed remuneration could be supplemented, for 2007, with a
vanable part which will be considered by the Board at the end of
the financial year, based on standard practice The Board has
adopted a rule that, if it decides to grant a vanable part of remu-
neration, this vanable amount may not exceed €1,500,000 The
Chaiman has a secretanal staff, a company car and a chauifeur
at hus disposal

Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer

The fixed remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer was set on
Apnl 251, 2006 by the Board of Directors at €2,000,000 on an
annual basis, and this amount was pad to hm on a prorated basis
to the tength of his term of office over the year, as from May 1=,
2006, 1 €1,333,336 The vanable part of his remuneration for
the whole of 2006 was set by the Board at €1,900,000 at the end
of the financial year in additon, the Chief Executve Officer receved
£€35,000 in attendance fees The Chief Executive Officer thus
receved the amount of €3,268 336 for 2006 The Chiel Executve
Officer has a company car and a chauffeur

Stock options granted to the corporate officers
appointed by the Board

The Board of Directors granted to the Charman, on Apri 25t,
2006, a total 2,000,000 stock options to subscnbe for shares, at
a pnce of €72 60, which may nommally be exercised between Aprl
26™, 2011 and Apnl 250, 2016

Through this grant of stock options, the Board wished first of all
1o highlight and recognise the exemplary manner in which Sir
Lindsay Owen-Jones had envisioned, arganised and conducted
the process of arranging for his replacement at the head of the
company Infact, Jean-Paul Agon was singled out as soon as he
joined the company 10 1878 Sr Lindsay Owen-Jones did every-
thung from the first moment to expose him progressively 1o broader
and broader responsibiities n mare and more significant countries
At the end of this career path, which lasted for twenty-five years,
and was personally devised and supervised by Sir Lindsay Owen-
Jones, Mr Jean-Paul Agon was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer by the Board of Directors, on Apnl 250, 2006

The Board also wanted to involve Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones, within
his new responsibidities, in the success of the new Chief Executive
Officer, Mr Jean-Paul Agon, and in the future success of the com-
pany, as it does with those L'Oréal employees whom its expects
wilt make the most significant contnbutions

The stock options whuch were granted by the Board of Directors
to Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones in 2006 and previous years, and which
can still be exercised are as follows

Date of grant Nurnber of options 1% passible Date of expiry Acquisttion (A)
not yet exercrsed date of exercise or Subscnption (S)
Pocemn €

10 i4 1999 200 000 10 15 2004 10 14 2008 57 60 (A)
1207 1889 300 000 12 08 2004 12 07 2009 6100 (A)
04 05 2000 - - - -
09 28 2000 150,000 09 20 20056 09 28 2010 8300 (A)
12 07 2000 - - - -
03 28 2001 200 000 03 29 2006 Q3 28 2011 75 60 (A)
09 18 2001 300 000 09 19 2006 09 18 2011 77 60 (A)
1008 2001 - - - -
03 26 2002 — - - -
09 04 2002 - - - -
12 03 2003 500,000 12 04 2008 12 03 2013 8302(S)
500,000 7190 {A)

03 24 2004 - - - -
12 01 2004 1,000 000 12 02 2009 1201 2014 55 54 (8)
06 29 2005 - - - -
11 30 2005 700 00C 12 01 2010 11302015 81 37(8)
300,000 6294 (4)

04 25 2008 2 OO 000 04 26 2011 04 25 2018 7260(8)

The Board of Directors granted on December 1%, 20086, to Mr Jean-Paul Agon in bus capacity as Chief Executive Officer, 500,000
stock options to subscnbe for shares, at a price of €78 08, wiuch may normally be exercised between December 2nd, 2011 and

December 18, 2016
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Undertakings made in relation to the corporate
officers appointed by the Board

The Board of Directors of L'Oréal has an ongoing polcy of treat-
Ing the corporate officers it appoints as equivalent o senior man-
agers for all matters which are linked to thew remuneration
Corporate officers are therefore covered by the same benefit sys-
tems as senior managers of L'Oréal, particularty relating to pen-
sion and provideni schemas The Board keeps itself regularly
informed of these schemes

The Board of Directors treats the Chief Executive Officer, Mr Jean-
Paul Agon, as a senior manager for all matters knked to his remu-
neration He 1s therefore covered by the same pension and provident
schermes as the senior managers of L'Oreal Mr Jean-Paul Agon waill
be entitled to the “Garante de Retratte des Membres du Comité
de Cononicture” at the end of his career in the company if he fulfils
all the conditions for access to this scheme at that date

The Board of Directors has not made any other specific under-
taking with regard 1o the corporate officers d has apponted

Attendance fees and other benefits

Each of the directors of L'Oréal recaeved attendance fees on the
following basis in respect of 2006

* 3 fixed annual sum of €30,000 as attendance fees,

= an amount of €5,000 for each Board meeting which the direc-
tor attended, ;

¢ an amount of €15,000 for each of the members of the Strategy
and Implementation Commuittee and the Management and
Remuneration Committee and an additional amount of €15,00¢
for the Chairmen of these Committees,

* an amount of €20,000 for each of the members of the Audit
Commuttee and an additonal amount of €20,000 for the Chayman
of this Committeg

The total amount of attendance fees for 2006 was €907 500 and
was broken down as follows for each of the drectors, as com-
pared with 2005

£ 2006 2005
Mr Jean- Paul Agon 35,000 -
Mr Werner Bauver 60 000 35000
Mrs Lifane Bettencourt 100 000 95 000
Mrs Frangose Bettencourt Mevers 55 Q60 55 000
Mr Peler Brabeck-Letrmathe 85 Q000 70000
Mr Francisco Castafier Basco 95 000 B5 000
Mr Xavier Fontanet 95 000 85,000
Mr Bernard Kasrel 82,500 70000
Mr Marc Ladres de Lacharnere 50,000 55,000
Mr Jean-Pierre Meyers 95 000 85,000
Sr Uindsay Owen-Jones 45 000 85 Q00
Mr Franck Riboud 50,000 45 00C
Mr Louis Schwedzer 60,000 25000
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Stock options exercised by the corporate officers
appointed by the board

On December 19, 2006, Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones exercised
250,000 stock options out of the total number of stock oplions
granted by the Board of Directors on October 17, 1897, which
consisted of 500,000 stock options to purchase shares, at a pnce
of €34 01 He also exercised, on Decernber 197, 2006, 100,000
stock options out of the total number of stock ophions granted by
the Board of Directors on October 150, 1998, which consssted of
100,000 stock options to purchase shares, at a pnce of €39 41

Mr Jean-Paul Agen has not exercised any stock options since his
appointment as Chief Executive Officer, on Aprl 25M, 2006

Summary of trading by the corporate officers
mn L'Oréal shares m 2006

In& Purchaser Pnce  Gross amount
Dats of purchase per share purchase
February 171 2008  Groupe 7039 503 288 50
February 200 2006 Mare de Lachamere 71275 49392500
Apni 28", 2006 (FIMALAC)L? 7340 225631 60
May 2= 2006 7362 228222000
May 3¢ 2006 7361 117776000
May 5, 2008 7409 133362000
May 8%, 2006 7457 745 700 00
May g 2006 7397 801 845 95
May 10m, 2006 7273 500,510 00
May 11 2006 7220 144400000
May 12, 2006 7084 141680000
May 15% 2006 6956 1,11298000
May 16m, 2006 69 33 485 31000
May 17, 2006 6894 1,378 80000
May 18M, 2006 67 11 268 440 00
May 22m 2006 6730 336,500 00
June 8n 20068 65 95 461,650 00
December 19" 2006 Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones, 3401 8350250000
December t8™, 2006 Charman of the Board 3941 394100000
of Drectors?

{1) Legal entity related to Ms Marc Ladrent de Lacharrigre, Director
{2) Acgisibion via the exertise of stock oplions to purchase shares
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BUYBACK BY THE COMPANY OF ITS OWN SHARES

Information concerning share buybacks made since January 13, 2006 -

In 2006, the company bought back 16,813,000 of ds own shares for an amount of €1,241 8 millon, representing an average purchase prce
of €73 86 per share Furthermor e, between January 15 and February 144, 2007, 867,000 shares were purchased, for a total amount of €66 5
miflon, representing an average purchase price of €76 73 per share In alf, between January 1%, 2006 and February 14, 2007, the Company
purchased 17,680,000 of its own shares, for an amount of €1,308 3 mullion, and an average purchase prce of €74 00 per share

These share buybacks were all made directly by the company wathout being entrusted to an investment senaces provider, and without
the use of denvatives They gave nse, In 20086, to €2,450,362 40 in trading {ees and, from January 1% to February 14%, 2007, to trading
fees of €123,161 40, namely, for the entire penod from January 1%, 2006 — February 147, 2007, an amount of trading fees of €2,573,523 80

The table set out below summanses the transactions camed out within this framework, and the use made of the shares bought back

Date of authonsation of the Annual General Meeting April 26%, 2005 Apnl 25+ 2006
{11* resoluton) {12 resoiution)
Expiry date of the authonsation April 25™ 2006 October 24m 2007
Maarnum amount of authonsed buybacks 10% of the capital at the date of 10% of the capitat at the date of
the Annual General Meeting the Annual General Meeting

1e 87 606,216 shares, for a maxmum
amouni of €6 422 million

ie 65 876,966 shares for a maamum amourit
of €6,258 mifiion

Maximum purchase pnce per share €95 €95
Authonsed purposes Cancellation Cancellation
Share purchase options Share purchase options
Free grants of shares Free grants of shares
Ligquicity and market stabdisabon Liquidity and market stabilisation
External growth External growth
Other market practice authornsed by the AMF
Board of Directors meeting that decded on the buyback June 26" 2005 Apnl 25%, 2006 June 2™, 2006
Purpose of buybacks Cancelflaton Cancellaton Cancellaton
Penod of buybacks made January 12 - Apnl 250 2006 |Aprl 260 -June 260 2006 June 30%, 2006 -
February 140 2007

Number of shares purchased 4,600 000 3 708,000 9,372 000
Average purchase price per share €7013 €7032 €77 36
Use of shares purchased Canceltation 4 600 0009 Cancellation 3 708 0002 Canceflation 9 372 0003

Other none Ciher none Other none

(1} 4 420,000 shares cancelled by the Board of furectors at its meetng of Apnl 25™ 2006 and 180,000 shares cancelled by the Board of Directors at its meetng on February 14%, 2007

(2} Board of Directors’ meeting of February 14%, 2007
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Transachions carried out by L'Oréal with respect to its shares between March 111, 2008 {the day following
the date on which the report on the previous programme was prepared) and February 14%, 2007

Percertage of share capital held by the company directly and indirectly a1 February 14% 2007

{all imtended to cover esasting stock option plans {o subscnbe for shargs) 34%
Number of shares cancelled dunng the last 24 months 50 020 000
Number of shares held in the porticlio 21142 600
Net book valug of the portfolio €1,535 6 million
Market portiolio value €1,726 3 mithon

Total gross transactions
Purchases Sales/Transters 1+

Number of shares 14,598 000 1,757,350
Average transaclion price €7513

Average exercise pnce €48 33
Amounts €1,006 7 milion €84 9 milion

{1) Exclusively the exercise of stock apbons to purchase shares granted to employees and corporate officers of group companies

No use was made of denvatives to make the share buybacks There 1s no open buy or sell position as of February 14, 2007

Renewal by the Annual General Meeting of the authorisation given to the Board 1o trade in the company’s shares

By voting a new resolution, the Annual General Meeting will prowide the Board of Directors with the means to enable it to continue ts
share buyback policy

This authonsation would be given for a maximum penod of 18 months as from the date of the Annual General Meeting and the
purchase pnce per share could not exceed €120

The company would be able to buy its own shares for the following purposes

* ther cancellation,

« their allocation 1o employees and corporate officers,

» stabilisation of the share pnce,

* retaining them and subsequently using them as payment in connection with external growth operations

The authonsation would concern up to 10% of the share capital for a maxsmum amount of €7 5 billion, it being specified that the com-
pany may never at any time hold over 10% of #s own share capital In ight of the number of its own shares held by the company at
February 141, 2007 representing 3 4% of the capital, 1& 21,142,600 shares, the maxmurm percentage of share buybacks that may
be made as of February 159, 2007 amounts (0 6 6%, t e an amount of £4,977 6 millon on the basis of a maximum repurchase pnce
of €120 per share

Share purchases made within the scope of this authonsation may be made by any available means, either on or off the stock market
and, in particular, in whole or in part through transactions involving biocks of shares or the use of demvatives

The Board of Directors
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Notes to the Management Report

2006 REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTCRS OF L'OREAL

Under the terms of Article L 225-37 of the French Gommercial
Code, paragraph 6, the Chairman s required to present a sup-
plementary Report attached to the Management Report

“The Chairman of the Board of Directors gves an account, n a
Report attached to the Report mentroned in Articles L 225-100,
L.225-102, L 225-102-1 and L.. 233-26, of the ways in which the
Board's work 1s prepared and organised, and on the internal con-
trot procedures put In place by the company Without prejudice
to the provisions of Article L 225-36, the report also indicates any
Iimitations that the Board of Directors exercises on the powers of
the Chief Executve Officer”

The ways in which the Board’s work 1s prepared
and organised

The compasttion of the Board of L'Oréal, the rules it applies to its
work, its modus operandi, and the work that it has carned out In
the year, evaluated on an annual basis since 1996 by the direc-
tors duning therr last meeting of the year, are dealt with in the
Reference Document in the chapter on Corporate Governance
{Volume 1), in the Management Report, and in thes Report of the
Charman of the Board of Directors (Volume 2}

The U'Oréal Board of Drectors cames out its work on a collectve
basis, in accordance with ethical prninciples and codes of good
conduct It assigns preparatory missions to special Review
Commitiees made up of directors

A code of good conduct, regularly updated in
accordance with legal requirements, regulations

and recommendations

The Baoard conducts ts work in accordance with Internal Rules
{published in fulf as an appendix to the Managemenl Report)
designed to reflect legal, regulatory and statutory rules upheld by
the Board as a whole and by each director ndmdually The Internal
Rules define the operating procedures of the Board and s Review
Commuttees, In accordance with the interests of the company and
its shareholders

These Rules were updated in 2006, when the Board decided to
separate the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, in
which context it appeared appropriate to specily the duties and
roles of each The Charrman of the Board of Directors organises
and oversees the Board's work and reparts thereon to the share-
holders” Annual General Meeting He 1s actively invoived in defin-
ng the company's growth strategy and encourages and
strengthens, mnter alia, Iinks between the company and the main
economic players The Chaimman oversees the work of the com-
pany's bodies responsible for corporate governance and ensures,
in particular, that the directors are able to perform ther duties

He may ask for any document or information that 1s likely to assist
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the Board of Directors in prepanng for ts meetings The Charrman
of the Board of Directors must use his best efforts 1o promote the
values and image of the company at all tmes The Charrman
expresses his views In that capacity He 1s provided wath the mate-
nal resources required to perform huis duties

The Chief Executive Officer, who may be the Chairman of the
Board of Directors or ancther indmdual, 1s vested with the broad-
est powers to act in al! circumstances in the name of the com-
pany He must exercise these powers within the imit of the
company's purpose subject 10 the powers expressly granted by
Franch law to shareholders’ meetings and the Board of Directors
The Chief Executive Officer represents the company in s deal-
ings with third partes

However, transactions which may matenally impact the scope of
consohdatien of the company, in particular, transactions invohing
an amount in excess of €150,000,000, and all new transactons
which are outside the normal course of business, must be sub-
mitted to the Board In any event, the Board of Direciors must be
informed of the conclusion and iImplementation of all transactions

Directors, who are required to act wath due care and attention,
again exercised therr complete freedom of judgement in 2006
This freedom of jJudgement allowed them i particular to particr-
pate, in total ndependence, n taking the collective decisions of
the Board, and where applicable, n conducting preparatory work
and making proposals through the Board Committees

In order to participate in the discussions and to make well-informed
decisions, each director must be provided with the documents
and nformation required for the accomplishment of his or her dulies
and for the appropnate collectve organisation of the Board's work

Best practces, ethucal behaviour

The Board met six tmes in 2006, with an average attendance rate
of B7 2% The directors are diigent in performance of therr duties
and alse attend the Annual General Meeting

The Board constanily stnves to apply a modus operandr, which
strictly comphes with legal requirements, and 1s also conducive
to good corporate governance

Appointed by shareholders, the directors control the economic
and financial management of the group and participate in deter-
mening tts strategy They review and approve the man fines of acton
adopted by the General Management, which implements them

The Board, in conuncbon with General Managernent, has contnbuted
to setting up Insider Trading Rules within the group, and ensures
they are regularty updated On the basis of the tegal prowisions, reg-
tiations and recommendations, these rules point out that confiden-
tiat information must only be passed on and used for professional
purposes Confidential nformation 18 precise information of a non-
public nature, which, f made public, could have a sigrificant influ-




ence on the share price of the Company At L'Oreal, confidential
information may fall into one of three main categones stratege, finked
to the defintion and application of the group’s growth strategy, recur-
nng, linked to the annual schedule for production and publication of
annual and intenm financial statements, regular releases or penodic
meetings of a financial nature, exceptional, inked to a specific pro-
grameme, a project or a financial transaction

The Insider Trading Rules state that any person in possession of
confidential information must proceed with the greatest caution
when trading i or enabling others to trade in L'Oréal shares, and
emphasise that any mesconduct in this area may result in enmi-
nal proceedings

The Internal Rules of the Board pamnt out specifically that a direc-
tor 1s requested to refrain from trading in L'Créal shares in certain
penods, If he has access, as a result of his particular functions,
to confidential information

L astly, directors are required to nobfy the AMF of each transaction
camed out by themselves or ther close relatives and fnends relating
to L'Oréal shares

A Board that regularly reviews its modus operand:

and assesses its orgamisation and the guality of its work
The Beard of Directors has adopted a method for assessing its
work that 1s closely refated to the concerns of directors, in the
strict context of their responsibiities Since 1996, the Board has,
on an annual basis, officially reviewed its modus operandi, its
organisation and its composition through interviews orgarused dy
the Secretary of the Board and based on regulations, recommen-
dations and best market practices Where appiicable, the Board
takes steps to make any required improvements

On the proposal of the Board of Directors, the Annual General
Meeting held n 2006 renewed the tenure as directors of Sr Lindsay
Owen-Jones, Mr Francisco Castaner Basco, Mr Xavier Fontanet,
Mr Marc Ladreit de Lacharriere and Mr Franck Riboud, which
expired at that meeting

The Board also thanked Mr Jean-Lours Dumas, who did not seek
renewal of his tenure as a director in 2006 With all the expenence
that he acquired in an internationally prestigious enterpnse, and
all of his personal and mora! qualities, Mr Dumas contnbuted a
great deal to the Board of U'Oreal

The Board lastly welcomed the appantment of Mr Jean-Paul Agon
as a director

The separation of the duties of Charrman and Chief Executive
Officer In 2006 was considered to be a major event The direc-
{ors consider that the transition was well prepared and that the
change in the organisational structure was a success and repre-
sents genuing progress

Board meetings are considered to be lively and discussions are
of an n-depth nature The manner in which the directors express
themselves s genuinely independent The presence of senior
managers In the meetings was greatly appreciated, and therr
presentations are considered 1o be of a ugh quality
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The volume and type of information specifically prepared for and
provided to the directors s considered to be satisfactory Tha
Board expressed its wish that this be maintained in 2007, while
ensunng itseff at all imes of the mportance and refevance of such
information in the context of the Board's duties and the prepara-
tion of its mestings

The beard’s work 1s facilitated and 1s constantly

focussed on strategy

Bunng tts meetings the Board reviews numerous strategic aspects
of the organisation and development of L'Creal's actmity

Many subjects are dealt with throughout the year, usually in the
presence of the senior managers concerned, enabling the Board
to assess the strategic matters for the group and to take the cor-
responding decisions

Tha Beard's discussions and decisions are faciitated by the
preparatory work performed by its Review Committees, which
report to it reguiarly

Review Committees actively prepaning the Board's work

The Strategy and Impiementation Commuites

The remit of the Strategy and iImplementation Committee s to clar-
ify, through its analyses and debates, the group’s strategic onen-
tations as submitted to the Board of Directors, and to manitor the
implementation and progress of sigrsficant cperations n progress

in particular, the Commuttee reviews the main strategic nes of
development, options and projects presented by the General
Management and ther economic and financial consequences,
acquisition opportunities, and financial transactions lable to sig-
nificantly change the balance sheet structure More generally, the
Committee debates all issues considered to be essential for the
future strategy of the group, and for maintaning key aspects of
its financia structure

The Committee 1s composed of six L'Oreal directors, of whom
two represent the Bettencourt family and two represent Nestlé
lt1s charred by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, moreover,
an independent director 1S also part of this committee

The Strategy and Implementation Commutiee met s tmes in 2006

In 2006, in addition to trends In sales and results for L' Oréal inter-
nationally, the Committee particutarty reviewed the share buyback
programmes, the acquisihon of The Body Shop, the strategic
development of business 1n major countries, such as Japan and
the United States, and the situation of the group's investment in
Sanofi-Aventis

The Audit Commuttee
The role of the Audidt Committee 15 to ensure that the General
Management has at its disposal the means to enable it to iden-
fy and manage the economic, financial and legal nsks facing the
group inside and outside France in carrying out 1ts routine and
excephonal operations

Annual Report _ L'OREAL 2006




82 _ NOTES TO THE MANAGEMENT REPORT

To successfully carry out its work, the Audit Committee interviews
senior managers of the company, particutarly those that are respon-
sible for the preparation of the financial statements and for inter-
nal control It also interviews Internal Audit team members

The Audit Committee may be consulted on any question relating 1o
procedures for controfing unusual nsks, particitary when the Board
or General Management considers it appropnate to submit such
guestons to . Furthermore, Ifin the course of its work the Committee
detects a substantal nsk, which in its view 1s not adequately dealt
with, t warns the Chairman of the Board accordingly The Gomimitiee
can also, In agreement with the General Managerent, consut other
people who may be able to help it carry out its duties, particularty
managers with economic and financial responsibiibies and those in
charge of processing financial Information

The Audt Committee met four times in 2006, in the presence of
all its members and the Statutory Auditors it considered, and was
reasswed in this view by the Statutory Audiors, that the work per-
formed by L'Oréal enables the financial statements to be prepared
In a satisfactory and secure manner

The Commuittee also noted the quality of internal controf systems
by reviewing them, in particular, with the company managers
respansible for these argas, In accordance with the list of pnon-
ties it had set itseff

« the adequacy of prowisions for itigation and claim contingencies
refated to the group's commercial and industnal actmties,

= nternational iInsurance programmes,

* pension commitments,

« foresgn currency hedging policy,

 the management reporting and consclidation system {orgarusa-
tion and frequency),

» the key components of the group's internal control projects

The Management and Remuneration Committee

The main roles of the Management and Remuneration Committee
are to enquire about the general remuneration policies applied in
the group, to assist the Chairman and the Board in therr deliber-
ations on succession plans for the group's semior management
positions, to consider the composition of the Board of Directors
and any possible changes therein and to make proposals to the
Board concerning the remuneration of corporate officers and the
allocation of stock options (see the chapter dedicated to this topic
in the Management Report)

The Managernent and Remuneration Committee thus makes propos-
als to the Board, each year, conceming remuneration and the grant
of stock optons, following completion of two independent analyses

«an analysis of the performance of the group and of the perform-
ance of each corporate officer appointed by the Board, which
leads it to present its proposals with regard to remunéeration Thus,
at the stant of each year the Management and Remuneration
Commuttee submits for decision to the Board the amount of the
fixed part of the remuneration of each corporate officer and the
rules and cntena for determinating of the vanable porbion of their
remuneration for the coming year, which 1s half based on an analy-
sis of the group's performance through a review of major eco-
normic ncicators, and hatf-based on an assessment of qualitative
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aspects of management At the end of the year, the Commitiee
notes developmentis in these different areas and, on this basis,
proposes a fixed amount for the vanable part of the remuneration
of each corporate officer for the past year to the Board,

» an analysis of prospects of an increase in the share pnce, which
feads it to iis proposals In terms of stock option grants, with the
obyjective of providing an incentive to corporate officers in respect
of the long-term increase in the value of the group and in the share
pnce, In agcordance with their contnbution to this increase

The Management and Remuneration Committee reports on its
work to the Board of Directors, 1t can meet at any time it consid-
ers appropnate, for example to assess the performance of the
company's Management

The Committee met five tmes in 2006 in full ndependence, and,
n addibon to all of the questions that it reviews In the context of its
remit, it prepared in particular its proposal to the Board of Diectors
regarding the separation of the duties of Charrman and Chief
Executve Officer, ncluding the definiton and the imitations of the
roles of each The Board thus decided to update s internal Rules

Regarding the Chief Executive Cfficer’s remuneration, the Board
thought 1t appropnate to restate that, in accordance with the results
of the Committee’s work and with a view 10 good governance, it
considers that on the appointment of a corporate officer, who has
an employment contract with the company, the nghts to indem-
nitres or benefits under such a contract are not to be increased
or decreased but simply kept at the same level, in accordance
with the conditions set by applicable regufations

L'Oréal has indeed a constant policy of treating such corporate
officers as being equivalent to senvor managers in terms of the
company's benefit and welfare practices for all ancillary Mmatters
related to their remuneration

In particutar, in this respect, these corporate officers are covered
by the same pension and protechien schemes as senior managers

Internal control

At the request of the Charman of the Board of Directors and the
Chief Executive Cfficer, the Administration and Finance Dmsion
compiled the information contained in this report based on the
different tasks carned out by disions working on internal control
within the group The resulting report was submitted to the Audit
Committee

Objectives of internal control

In L'Oreal, internal control 1s a process amed at

* creating andd mantaning an organisation, which enables the pre-
vention and management of nsks, particularly of an economic,
financiai and legal nature, to which the company and its sub-
sidianes are exposed inside and outside France (“the group”,

« ensuning that economic and financial targets are achieved In
compliance with the laws and regulations in force,

« making sure that the group’s financial and accounting informa-
tion 15 reliable and prepared truly and fairy, that the group's assets
are valued and protected




The objective of the internal controf system s to enable the group’s
industnal and economic development to be camed out In a steady
and sustainable manner, even If no absclute guarantee of total
absence of nsk ¢an be given, In a control environment appropr-
ate for the group’s businesses

The mtternal control environment

The control emaronment, which 1s cntical to the intermal control
system, good nsk management and the application of procedures,
15 based on people, behaviour and the crgarsational structure
In L'Oréal, it forms part of a culture of ngour and commitment
communicated by management and s also in ine with the group's
strategic choices

The group’s values

L'Oreal has built up its business on the basis of strong values that
have guided its development and contnbuted to making its rep-
utation integnty, loyalty, confidence and transparency, together
with respect for the individual and dwversity These values are
notably described in the code of business ethics

Thus charter has been 1ssued to all L Oréal staff and I1s given to
each new employee This charter sets out the pnnciples for acton
that each individual must comply with and states that

¥  Eachindwvdual acts m the interest of the group, and 1s con-
stantly aware of the need to protect its assets, to preserve 11s
image and its reputation, and to ensure the confidentality of the
information and expertise he holds, of whatever kind  *

" Integnty in the management of businesses and in behaviour
1s a duly that must be carmed out on an everyday basss, and is of
central tmportance to L'Oréal’s values *

*  Respect for the indnvidual 1s a fundamental pnnciple At L'Oreal,
1t 15 apphed on a daify basis and governs relationships within the
company L'Oréal beleves in the virtue of difference and diversity
as a source of human richness ”

Qrganusatonal structure of the group

The group s organised inte Operational Divisions and geograph-
ical zones, which are fully responsible, with management of each
country, business unit or Industnal entity, for the achieverment of
the obectives set by the General Management Functional Divisions
bnng ther expertise to each QOperational Division or geographucal
zone and are represented within these structures by specialists
dedicated to the senice of the Dvisions and the zones Specialists
In management logistics, information systems, human refahons
or ndustnal techniques form part of both operating and functional
reporting structures This matnx organisational structure faciitates
commurication of best practices and control of operations, while
ncorporating the specific aspects of different markets and distn-
bution channels

Human resources policy

The quality and skalls of staff are key components of the internal
conirol system Human resources policy within L'Oreal is defined
by the constant search for excellence on recruitment and by the
development of talent within the group, so as to ensure that it
has the required level of skills in all areas This'also forms part
of the group’s diversity policy, which seeks to value and
respect difference throughout the organuisation The centres for
Conbnuing Education propose programmes in technical areas or
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n assistance with integration or management that are talored to
different job profiles and have the goal of providing mastery of dif-
ferent skills in all areas of actmty

Risk management

In order to ensure the sustanabxlity of s development and the
achievernent of its objectives, the group constantly strves {o antic-
Ipate and manage the nsks to which it 1s exposed in its different
areas of activity

The systems whose purpose Is to ensure control of the man oper-
ational and financial risks are described respectively in the
Management Report in the “Risk factors” chapter and in the
Insurance policy, and are atso set out in note 23 to the consoli-
dated financial statements “Denvatives and exposure to market
nsks” They are manly composed of foreign currency nsks and
interest rate nsks in the area of foraign currencies, the group pol-
icy ts to hedge at least 80% of the nsk through forward purchases,
sales, or using options, on the basis of operating budgets pre-
pared for the coming year To reduce the net exposure to interest
rate risk, as the group refinances its activties mainly at floating
rates, the pokicy 15 to use swaps and interest rate options traded
with specific counterparts

The players

The main piayers involved in managing internal control are

+the General Management, and in particular the Management
Committee,

» the Audit Committee,

¢ the Functional Dmsions,

e the Internal Audit Dvision,

« the Internal Control Dviston,

General Management, and n particular

the Management Commitfee

The role of the General Managerment is to define the general prin-
ciples in the area of internal control and to ensure that they are
comectly put in place

Worldwide responsibilities for representation, co-ordmation and
internal cantrol are entrusted to each of the members of the
Management Commiitee They rely on operational and functional
managers, accerding to therr respective areas of expertse, inthe
context of the matnx orgarnisatonal structure defined above Seror
managers must ensure application of these general pnnciples and
ensure the comect operation of procedures enabling the levet of
internal control required by General Management to be attained

The Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has always asserted the importance that
it attnbutes with General Management, to internal control and o
its main areas of application Since s creabon, the Audit Committes
15 responstble for monitonng actions undertaken in the area of
internal control and it reports thereon to the Board of Directors
The Audit Committee particularty analyses the procedures which
contnbute to

+ comphance with accounting standards and regulations and the
cormect applcation of the principles on which the financial state-
ments are based,
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« reporting and processing information,

s application of internal control standards in the area of prepara-
tion of financial nformation,

« compliance with stock market regulations, and more specifically
with the correct application of insider trading rules within the
company

The points which have been covered in Audit Committee meset-
ings n 2006 are descnbed above in the paragraph on “Review
Committees involved in the preparation of the Board’s work”

Each year, the Committee performs a review of the principles and
methods, the programme, the objectives and the general conclu-
sions of Internal Audit engagements The Committee then pre-
pares a report on its own deliberations to the attention of the Board
of Directors

The Functional Dnisions

The Funchonal Dmsions each define gudance and procedures for
ther own areas, which they communicate to the different countnes
and entities

The main role of the Administration and Finance Division 1s to
assist and control the Operational Drasions in therr admimistrative,
financial, legal and commercial logistics actmbies |t sets the oper-
ating rules that apply to all enties m these areas and 15 respon-
sible for the defintion and promotion of tools, procedures and
best practices, particularty in the following areas management
controt, accounting and consolidation, financing and treasury, tax,
legal affars, nsurance, financial reporting, nformation systems,
commercal logistics and non-produchion purchasing

¢ In the area of Insurance

The group’s choice 1s to only have recourse to first-rate insurers
and to give preference to the insurance of its client debt The
results of audits performed by nsurance comparves in the facto-
nes and distnbution centres are used to improve the internal con-
trot of these entities

+|n the area of Information systems

Strategic choices in terms of systems are deiermuned by the
Administration and Finance Division, which ts responsible for har-
monisation of a single ERP (Enterpnse Resource Planning, man-
agement software) for the great majonty of subsidiaries and which
1ssues directives in the area of systems’ secunty The worldwide
roll-out plan for the Integrated software package also contnbutes
to strengthening the reliabiity and the secunty of the process of
production of information, notably accounting and financiat infor-
mation In particular, in order to ensure comrect segregation of
duties among users, work 1s i progress on the user profiles and
the formalisation of access nghts

The Production and Technology Divtsion with its quality, pack-
aging research, SHE {Safety Health Environment), producton and
logistics and purchasing {for production) departments defines
standards and methods in the areas of production quality, safety
and the environment It assists the Operational Dmisions 1n the
definition and implementation of therr manufactunng pokcies A
quality and safety audit programme for industnal sites 1s 1n place,
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covenng one thid of sites per year its goal 1s to measure the per-
formance and progress of entities In the areas of producton qual-
ity, safety, health and the emvironment

The other Functional Divisions involved in internal control are the
Human resources Dmsion, the Rasearch and Development Dmsion,
which 15 responsible In particular for cosmetics wigllance and the
quality of the formulae used in product composition, and the
Communications and External Relations Drasion, which co-ordinates
communications intiatives, prepares cnsis management pnnciples
and ensures that they are applied This Dvsion 1s also responsible
for the co~ordination of sustainable development intiatves

The Internal Audit Division

The Intemal Audit Dvision venfies the correct application of inter-
nal control processes Internal Audit engagements are submitted
to the General Management and the Audit Committee and, with
the agreement of these bodies, are included in an annual audit
pian The choice of engagements notably takes into account the
assessment of the most important nsks dentified by the heads
of the Dvisions and the geographical zones The size, contnbu-
tion to key economic indicators and length of existence of the
eniries, together with the pattern of their development, are fac-
tors that are also taken into consideration

Internal Audit carned out 47 engagements in 2006 of which 32
concerned commercial entties representing 29 3% of the group’s
sales In addion, Internal Audit carned cut four audits of facto-
nes representing 12% of worldwide production in uruts and eleven
specific engagements, which were performed after a prior defini-
tion of therr objectives Internal audit engagements lead to the
preparation of a report comprnsing a presentation of the findings,
related nsks and recommendations regarding the action plan to
be put in place by the audited entty

The acton plans are regularly montored by the Intermnal Audit Drasion,
which measures the rate of progress weighted by level of nsk, In
close co-ordination with the Dwvisions and zones in question The
summary of performance and resuits of engagements and of
progress with action plans are presented to the Audit Committee

In addition, cross-functional analyses of possible weaknesses
enable dentification of areas for mprovement and strengthening
of procedures, In co-ordination with the Internal Control Department
In 20086, a kit of specific transactons on the group's infegrated
£RP software package contnbuted to ncreased effectiveness of
internal audit engagements

Intermal Audit shares the resuits of s audits with the Statutory Auditors,

The Internal Control Department

Thus Department, which was created in 2005 and 1s separate from
Internal Audit, continues to distnbute the Fundamentals of inter-
naf control, a manual summansing standards, charters, proce-
dures and best practices The Internal Control Depariment has
created and co-ordinates training modules designed to ensure
that operational staff take on board the tools and techreques made
avallable 1o them Together with afl applicable procedures, these
are avallable on an Intranet site




The Internal Contral Department, with the group's experts in its
vanous disciplines, strives to improve understanding of internal
control rules Lastly, If apphcable, this new Department moniors
and anticipates regulatery changes in order to adapt the group
internal control system as required

Reference texts, standards and procedures

The charters, codes. standards, rules, procedures and best prac-
tices are summansed in the Fundamentals of internal control, the
reference framework within which the group's operationat actvi-
ties must be placed, in the form of a summary sheet by area This
document has been validated by the experts in the different dis-
ciphines and presented to the Management Committee Each sum-
mary sheet refers to the group's detalled procedures An approach
by function brings together the nght guestions that need to be
asked in order to identify areas for improvement

This reference framework includes the following components
*In the area of human resources, In addition to the ethics ¢har-
ter referred to above, the requirements in the area of personnel
management set out rules concerning documents ta be provded
to ermployess, dealing with such employees and charges in rela-
tton to themn, control and monitonng of payroll, and procedures
for recrustment, training and assessment,

*in the legal area, the legal charter notably sets out hmitations of
powers, the intemal pnnciples for signature on behalf of the com-
pany, the general and specific rules relating to contracts, trade-
mark law, patents, intellectual property, company law and
compettion law, and emphasise that compliance with local feg-
istation 1s compulsory The Insurance charter reaffirms that the
group mainly uses integrated worldwide programmes to cover all
its entries against thud party hatxbties, damage to property and
operating losses resulting from an insured event,

«n the safety and quality area, procedures relating o the protec-
ton of property, data and persons, ncluding in particular the inter-
nal rules issued by the group’s Production and Technology Dision,
set aut the principles for covenng industnal and logistical nsks
relating to organisation and safety In addbion, production quality
standards define rules governing the quality of products, for all
stages from design to production 1o distnbution The majonty of
factones are 1ISO 9001 certified,

* i the area of finance and treasury, the insider trading rules refemred
to above In the section concerning the way in which the Board’s
work 15 prepared and organised are applicable to all employees
i question [n addiion, the financial charter and the foreign cur-
rency nsk management siandard specify, in parhcular, the pnnct-
ples to be appled by group entities to ensure that management
of foreign currency nsk 1s both prudent and centralised,

=n the area of purchasing the Expense Commirment Request
procedure has the purpose of faciitating and strengthening con-
trol of the spending of group entities, and exists in conunction
with the general purchasing and payment condibons,

«in the area of commercial logistics, the man logistics pnnciples
cover nventory management, subcontracting, transport, product
traceabitty, the business continuity plan, best practices wath respect
1o general condibons of sale, pneng and contracts, imvoicing methods,
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control of sales policies management of customer returns and
customer disputes and management of customer credt,

*n the area of information systems, the information technology
secunty charter, which includes confidentiahty precautions and
management of contingency plans, also contans rules govern-
ing best practces for the use of workstations, management and
admintstration of servers and the chaice of software apphcations
The Secunty Framework pohcy, aligned on standard iSO17799,
has been formalised, with distribution to all group entities of a self-
assessment tool The cnsis management procedure has been
strengthened,

«in the area of consolidation and management control, the appli-
cable 1ssues are descnbed in the following paragraph

Internal control systems relating to the preparation
and processing of financial and accounting information

Scope and objeclives

The scope of applicaton of internal control procedures relating to
the preparation and processing of financial and accounting infor-
mation encompasses the parent company and all subsidianes
ncluded in the consclidated financial statements

For processes that contribute to accounting figures, the process
of preparation of firancial nformation and the accounts ciosing
processes, nternal control systems am to ensure

* compliance with accounting standards and regulations and the
correct applicaton of the principles on which the financial state-
ments are based,

» the quality of reported information that contnbutes to the prepa-
ration of the published financial statements and the reliability of
their centralised treatment by the group with a view 10 therr inter-
nal and external distnbution,

= control of the production of financral, accounting and manage-
ment information,

¢ protection of assets

Orgarusation

The preparation of the group’s consolidated results 1s the respon-
sihility of the Economic Affairs Dnvsion, which forms part of the
Admunstration and Finance Dvision The presence of a financial
controller at each Jeval of the matnx organisational structure, who
reports both aperationally and functionally, contnbutes to the
strengthening of nternal control systems This network of sub-
sidary financial controflers is co-ordinated by the Economic Affairs
Department in close laison with the financial controllers of the
Operational Dwvsions and the gecgraphical zones

For the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, val-
dation procedures apply to each stage of the process of report-
ing and processing nformation On a half-yearly bass, thar purpose
15 to verfy in particular that

* ntercompany transactions are correctly adjusted and eliminated,
« consolidation operations are vahdated,

« standards are comectly appled,

»the consolidated published accounting and financial figures are
harmonsed and that, in particular, accounting figures and man-
agement figures used in the preparation of the financial iInforma-
tion are consistent
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The reporting and consolidation system, used by all entites, pro-
wdes assurance of the consistency and rehability of figures at the
level of each subsidiary, through blocking controls that operate
before the figures are uploaded to group level In this area, the
operating profit and logs account by function, which 8 common
to both management reporting and accounting, contributes to
strengthening the controt of Individual captions through the use
of an dentical reference framework for both areas

In addtion, the group's crganisation, which s based on reporting
from each subsidiary that 1s provided directly to the parent com-
pany by each country, without preparation of any ntermediate
aggregates, enables optimisation of the transfer and complete-
ness of the information, and in particular enables the accuracy of
the foreign exchange conversion rates to be controlled Twice a
year, the managing director and the finance director of each sub-
sidiary make joint commitments as to the quality, relability and
completeness of the financial information that they have prepared
and sent to the group’s Ecanomic Affarrs Department They do
this by jointly signing a representation letter

Accounting and financial procedures

The group has put in place a set of accounting and management
reporting policies, which must be obligatenly applied by all con-
soldated subsidianes, and which enable rehable financial informa-
tion te be provided

Accounting standards these set out the principles required for
harmonised accounting treatment of transactions They specify
n parlicular the means of identification and measurement of off-
balance shest commitrngnts They are in accordance with IFRS,
the new accounting standards framework applicable to the con-
sohdated financial statements since 2005 The group Accounting
Department continues to monitor new IFRS standards under
preparation with a view to both alerting as to, and anticipating as
well as possible, ther effects on the group’s financial statements
The chart of accounts i provides the definiions and the method-
ology for the preparation of the reporting required for the prepa-
ration of the financial staterments

Management reporting standards they specify in addition the
rules applicable to the valuation of certain significant accounts in
the Batance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account

The systern {or monthly reporting of vanous economic indicators
also enables developments in the performance of each entity to
be monitored in a continuous and harmonised manner It also
enables assurance to be obtaned that such performance 1s1inine
with the objectives set for them

Processing and pooling of cash flows and hedging of foreign cur-
rency and interest rate nsks is camed out by the Financia) Seraces
Department, which 1s in charge of identification of commitments
enabling their accounting recognition

Investment plans are approved by the Management Committee

and alf changes compared to forecasts must obtain pnor specific
authonsation
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The Internal Control Department has intizted a formahised analy-
sis of the major accounting and financiat nsks for the Company
addressing the processes in subsidianes, which contributed to
the main captions in the group’s accounts The objective of this
analysis is to venfy that systems of key conirols exist to cover each
nsk dentified

The Statutory Auditors

All accounting and financial information prepared by consolidated
subsicdianes 1s, at a mnimum, subjected to a imited review at the
time of the half-year closing process and fo an audt at year-end, by
the extemal auditors Audit engagements in the countnes in which
the group operates are almost alt entrusted to members of the net-
works of the two Statutory Auditors who, after having jointly per-
formed the review of the group's accounts and the manner n which
they were prepared, are responsible for 1Issuing an opinion on the
group’s consokdated financial statements The Statutory Audrtors
155ue an opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements
and parent company financial statements gve a true and far view
They are kept informed as from the early stages of preparation of
the financal statements and present an overview of ther work to the
group's accountng and finance managers and to the Audit Commuttes
at the tme of the half-year and annual closing

Financial cormmunication

Managers n charge of financial communications prepare a pre-
cise bmetable for provision of up-to-date information on the group
to the financial markets This tmetable 1s communicated within
the group and complies with the requirements of market author-
ites These managers ensure, with the assistance of the Legal
Daasion that communications are made within the required dead-
lines and in accordance with laws and regulations, which they
constantly monitor Their role 1s also 1o transmit with precision and
accuracy the information provided by the Economic Affars
Department, the Legal Depariment and the Administration and
Finance Division All matenal information communicated 1o the
financial community reflects with truth and transparency the sit-
vation and actwity of the group and 1s camed out in accordance
with the principle of equal prowision of information to all share-
holders

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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iNFORMATION ABOUT CORPORATE OFFICERS

List of offices and directorships held by corporate officers during the 1ast five years

Sir Lingisay Owen-Jones Expiry date of term of office
Charman of the Board 2010
Chairman of the “Strategy and Implementation” Committee

Professional address: L'Oréal - 41 rue Martre — 92117 Clichy cedex - France

Holds 2,529,005 L'Oréal shares

Other corporate offices and directorships held
French companies

Alba Plus SASU Chairman [sincs July 40 2008]
L>Ar Liguide SA Vice-Chairman of the Board
Sanofi-Avenlis 8A Cirector
Foreign companies
Ferran Spa {italie} Director (Ammimistratore)
L'Qreal U K Ltd (United Kingdom) Chasrman & Director
L'Oréal USA Inc_{United States) Chawrman & Director
Comporate offices and directorships over the last five years that have expired Expiry date of term of office
French companies
L’Ar Liguide SA Vice-Chairman of tha Supervisory Board hMay 2006
BNP Panbas SA Dirgctor December 2005
L'Qréal SA Chigf Executive Officer Apyd 2006
Gesparal SA ;mergad nto L Oréal) Director Apnl 2004
Foreign company
Galderma Pharma (Switzerland) Director May 2636
Charrnan of the Board May 2004
Jean-Paul Agon Expiry date of term of office
Chief Executive Officer since Apnl 25%, 2006 2010

Professional address: L'Oreal - 41 rue Martre ~ 92117 Clichy cedex - France
Holds 11,500 L'Oréal shares

Other corporate offices held
Foreign companies

Galderma Pharma SA (Swilzerland) Chainman of the Board and director {singe May 1+, 2008)
L'Oreal USA Inc_{United States) Director
The Body Shop International PLC (United Kingdom) Vice-Charrman and Director (since June 121 2006)
Main corporate offices and directorships ® Expiry date of term of office

over the last five years that have expired
French company

L'Oréal SA Deputy Chief Executive Officer April 2006
Foreign companies

L'Oréal Canada (Canada) Director and Chairman of the Board Jung 2005
EOréal USA Inc (United States) President & Chief Executive Officer June 2005

{1) Mr Jean-Paul Agon has alsa held varicus corporate offices and directorships over the last five years in group companies that are subsidianes of L Oreal USA where he was President
and Chigt Executiva Officer untl June 2005
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Jean-Pierre Meyears Expiry date of term of office
Director 2009
Vice-Chairman of the Board

Member of the Audit Committee

Member of the “Strategy and Implementation” Committee

Professional address. Tethys - 27-29 rue des Poissonniers — 92200 Newnlly-sur-Seine — France
Holds 15,332 L'Oreal shares

Other comorate offices and directorships held
French compames
Gespral SA Director

Tethys SAS Chief Executive Officer
Member of the Supervisory Board

Foreign company

Nesife SA Director
Other

Fondation Bettencourt Schueller Vice-Chairman of the Board
Fondation Ophtalmologique Adolphe de Rothschild Director
Corporate offices and directorships over the last five years that have expired Expfry date of term of office
French company

Gesparal SA (meiged mta L' éal) Director April 2004
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Peter Brabeck-Letmathe Expiry date of term of office

Cirector 2009

Vice-Chairman of the Board

Member of the “Management and Remuneration” Committee

Member of the “Strategy and Implementation” Committee

Holds 1,000 L'Oréal shares

Main corporate offlice held outside UOreal

Nestle SA (Switzerland) Charman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer

Professional address Avenue Nestlé, 55— CH 1800 Vevey — Switzerland

Other corporate offices and directorships held

Foreign companies

Credit Suisse group (Switzerand) Director

Roche Holding SA (Switzerland) Director

Uprona (Canada) Lid (Canada) Director

Other
Cereal Partners Worldwide (Switzerland)

Coe-Chairman of the Supervisory Board

ECR Europe (Belgium) Co-Chairman of the Executive Board ismce Oetober “¢f 2008

Forum Economique Mondial {Switzerland)

Member of the Foundation Board

Table Ronde des Industnels Europeens (Belgrum}

Member

Corporate offices and directorships over the last five years that have expired

French company
Gesparal SA rrergoc vio L Oréa

Director

Expiry date of term of office

Apnl 2004

Foreign companies
Alcon, Inc (Switzerand;

Vice-Charrman of the Board

ha =005

Credit Suisse (Switzerland) Vice-Charrman of the Board Aprl 2005
Credit Suisse First Boston (Switzerland) Vice-Charman of the Board Apnl 2005
Credit Suisse group (Switzerland) Vice-Charman of the Board Aprl 2005
Dreyer's Grand ice Cream Holdings, Inc (United States) Vice-Charrman of the Board tlarcn 2003
Winterthur Insurance Company (Switzerland) Vice-Charman of the Board Apnl 2005
Winterthur Life (Switzerand) Vice-Charrman of the Board Apnl 2005
Other

Fondation Avenir Suisse {Switzerland} Board Member December 2004
Fendation pour la Federation Internationate

des societes de la Crow-Rouge et du Croissant-Rouge (Switzerland) Board Member November 2005
Prince of Wales International Business Leaders Forum {United Kingdomy} Deputy Charman March 2005
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Liiiane Bettencourt Expiry date of term of office
Director 2007
Chairwoman of the “Management and Remuneration” Committee

Member of the “Strategy and Implementation” Committee

Professional address- Tethys — 27-29 rue des Poissonniers — 92200 Neutlly-sur-Seing - France

5,633 L'Creal shares held in absolute ownership and 185,654,833 L'Oréal shares held 1n absolute ownership

or beneficial ownership by Tethys, a company of which Mrs Bettencourt is the Chairwoman

QOther corporate offices and directorships held
French compames

Clymene SAS Charwoman
Eugéne Schueller SARL Managing Director
CGespral SA Charrwoman of the Board of Directors
Tethys SAS Chairwoman
Charrwoman of the Strategy Committee
Member of the Supervsory Board
Cther
Fondation Bettencourt Schueller Chairwoman
Corporate offices and directorships over the last five years that have expired Expiry date of term of office
French companmes
Compagnie Nouvelie d Investissement SA {zh solved) Dirgctor Jung 2005
Gesparal SA (mergad inio L'Oreal) Drrector Apnl 2004
Francgoise Bettencourt Meyers Expiry date of term of office
Director 2009

Professtonal address Tethys — 27-29 rue des Poassonniers — 92200 Neullly-sur-Seine - France
Holds 283 L’Oreal shares in absolute ownership and 76,440,541 1'Oréal shares in bare ownership

Qther corporate offices and directorships held
French compantes

Gespral SA Director
Societe immobilidre Sebor SAS Chairwoman
Tethys SAS Member of the Supervisory Board
Other

Fondation Bettencourt Schueller Director
Corporate offices and directorships cver the last five years that have expired Expiry date of term of office
French company

Gesparal SA (rerged nlo L Creal) Director Apnl 2004
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Werner J. Bauer Expiry date of torm of ofiice
Director 2008
Holds 1,000 L'Oréal shares

Main carporate office held outside L'Oreal
Nestlé SA (Switzerand) Executive Vice-President
Professional address Avenue Nestlé, 55 - CH 1800 Vevey ~ Swilzerland

Qther corporate offices and directorships held
Foreign compamies

Alcon, Inc_{Switzerland) Director
Hans Rychiger AG (Switzerland) Director and Chairman of the Board
Life Ventures SA (Switzerland) Director and Vice-Chairman of the Board
Nestle Deutschland AG (Germany) Member of the Supervisory Board {since Januay 1=t 2005
Nutntion-Weliness Venture AG (Switzerland) Director
Sofinol SA (Switzerfand) Director and Charrnan {smce Juns 29, 2006)
Uprona (Canada} Ltd (Canada) Director
Other

Bertelsmann Foundation (Germany} Member of the Board of Trustees
Cereal Partners Worldwide (Switzertand) Member of the Supervisory Board
Societé Suisse des Industres Chimigues (Switzerland) Board Member
Corporate ofiices and directorships over the fast five years that have expired Expiry date of term of office
Foreign companies

Alcon Laboratones (South Afnica) Pty Lid (South Afnca) Director June 2002
Darrymaid-Nestlé (Propnetary} Ltd {Sauth Afnca) Director January 2002
Nestie (South Afnical} {Propretary) Ltd (South Africa) Director January 2002
Nestle Foods Kenya Lid (Kenya) Director January 2003
Nestle's Products {Mauntius) Lid (Mauntus} Direclor Seplember 2002
Nestié Punna (South Africa) (Pty) Ltd (South Afnca) Director January 2002
Nestle Waters (Proprietary) Ltd {South Afnca) Director January 2002
Nestle Zimbabwe (Private) Ltd ([Zimbabwe) Director March 2002
Sunland Foods (Swazland) (Pty} Ltd (Swazland) Director January 2002
TM Pets Products (Pty) Ltd (South Afnca) Director March 2002
Francisco Castaner Basco Expiry date of term of office
Director 2010

Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the “Strategy and Implementation” Committee
Holds 1,500 L'Oreal shares

Main corporate office held outside L'Oreal
Nestlé SA (Switzerland) Chuef Executive Officer
Professional address Avenug Nestlé, 55 - CH 1800 Vevey ~ Switzerdand

Other corporate offices and directorships held
Foreigh companies

Alcon Inc (Swatzerland) (formerly Alcon Universal) Director
Vice-Charman (s nce May 2, 2008}

Galderma Pharma SA (Switzerdand) Director

Uprona (Canada) Ltd (Canada) Director

Corporate offices and directorships over the last five years that have expired Expiry date of term of effice

French company

Gesparal SA imeiged inte L'O1éal Director _ Apnl 2004

Foreign companies

Alcon Laboratories, Inc (United States) Director April 2002

Galderma Pharma SA (Switzerand) Charman of the Board Mav 2006
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Jean-Louis Dumas

Director } Until Aprd 25%, 2008

Member of the “Management and Remuneration” Committee

Other corporate offices and directarships held®

French companies

Berfa SC Managing Director
Emile Hermes SARL Managing Director
Gaulme SA Honorary Chairman of the Supenisory Board

Hermes Sellier SAS

Member of the Management Board

SCI du Faubourg Saint Honore * StFAH"

Managing Director

Corporate offices and directorships over the last five years that have expired M

French companies

Expiry date of teym of office

Gaulme SA Vice-Chairman and Member of the Supervisory Board October 2006
Gaumont SA Director October 2002
Hermes Internationat SCA Actve Partner tarcn 2006
Hermes Seller SA Director, Artistic Direclor Marcn 2006
Peugeot SA Member of the Supervisory Board June 2006
SIN REJAC GA Permanent representative of Sport Sorg, Director July 2002
Seficur Internatignal SA Permanent representative of Sport Soe, Director Apnt 2003
Tissages Perrin SA Permanent representative of Hermes International, Director Aprl 2002
Tissages Verel SA Permanent representative of Hermes International Director Apnl 2002
Foreign compames

Financiére Saint-Eiol (Luxembourg) Permanent representative of Hermeés International, Director

Leica Camera (Germany) Member of the Supervisory Board October 2003
(1) Mr Dumas has 250 hetd vanous corporate offices ang directorships in other companzes of the Hermés group

Xavier Fontanet Expiry date of term of office
Director 2010

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Holds 1,000 L'Oreal shares

Main corporate office held ocutside L'Oreal
Essilor Infernational SA
Professional address 147 rue de Pans — 84227 Charenton Cedex - France

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Other corporate offices and directorships held
French company

Credit Agncole SA Director
Foreign compames

EQA Holding Co In¢ {United States) Director
Essilor of Amenca Inc (United States} Director
Essilor Manufactunng India PVT Ltd (india) Director {since March 1+, 2006)
Nikon Essilor Co Ltd (Japan) Director
Shanghal Essilor Optical Company Lid {China} Director
Transtions Opheal Holding B V (Netherfands) Director
Transiions Optical Inc {United States) Director

Corporate offices and directorships over the last five years that have expired
French company

Expiry date of term of office

Chantiers Beneteau SA Director January 2005
Foreign companies

Essllor Laboratones of Amenca Holding Co Inc (United States} Director March 2004
Transihons Optical Lid (reland) Director July 2004
Other

IMS — Entreprendre pour la Cité Director October 2005
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Bernard Kasriel Expiry date of torm of office
Director 2008
Member of the "Management and Reruneration” Committee

Member of the “Strategy and Implementation” Committee

Holds 1,290 L'Oréal shares

Man corporate office held outside U'Oreal
LBO France Partner and Member of the Management Board {(since Septernbsr 2008
Professional address 148 rue de I'Universite — 75007 Pans - France

Other corporate offices and directorships held
French companies

Arkema SA Director (snce May 00 2006
Lafarge SA Director
Foreign companies
Nucor United States) Director {since January 19, 20073
Sonoco Products Company (United States) Director
Corporate offices and directorships over the last five years that have expired Expiry date of term of office
French companies
Ediiixio SAS Directar 2006
Lafarge SA Vice-Chairman and Chiet Executive Officer May 2003
Chief Executive Officer December 2005
Foraign companies
Blue Circle North Amenca (United States) Drrector December 2006
Compagnie Coppée de Developpement Industnel (Belgium) Director May 2004
Lafarge North America (United States) Vice-Charrman of the Board December 2005
Director Nova nber 2006
L_afarge Roofing GmbH (Germany) Aufsichtsratsvorsitzender
{Member of the Supervisory Board} Juh 2006
Sabedfi (Belgumy Director Ma~ 20006
Yhitas Lafarge (Turkey) Director March 2004
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Marc Ladreit de Lacharmeére
Director
Holds 40,040 L'Oreal shares

Ma:n corporate office held outside | Oréal
F Marc de Lachamere (Fimalac)

Professional address 97 rue de Lille - 75007 Pans — France

Expiry date of term of office

2010

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Other corporate offices and directorships held
French companies

Casino Director
Fimalac Participations Managing director
Groupe Euns SAS Member and Charman of the Supenasory Board
Groupe Mare de Lacharmére Chairman of the Management Board (sirice December 187 2006;
Renault SA Dhrectar
Renauft SAS Birector
Foreign companies

Algonthmics {Canada} Director (3nce Januany 2006
Fitch group Inc (United Siates) Charman
Fitch Inc {Unsted States) Chaiman
Cther

Amencan Friends of the Louvre Member

Association Les Amis de Vaux-le-Vicomte

Member isinge Januar, 12t 2006)

Banque de France

Member of Consuftative Council

Comité National des Conseillers du Commerce Exteneur de la France

Honorary Chairman

Consell Artistigue des Musées Nationaux Member
Fondaton Betiencourt Schueller Member
Fondahon des Sciences Politiques Member
Institut de France Member
Musée des Arts Décoratifs Member since Januasy 11 2000)
Sociéte des Amis du Louvre Member
Sociéle des Amis du Musée du Qual Branly Member

Cuorporate offices and directorships over the fast five years that have expired

French companies

Expiry date of term of office

Casino Member of the Supervisory Board September 2003
Canal+ SA Drrector August 2003
Euns Observer November 2003
Fimalac Investissements SA Director Navember 2003
Groupe Flo SA Member of the Supervsory Board October 2002
Groupe Marc de Lachamere Managing Director Decamber 2006
Lille Royale SA Dwactor Apnl 2002
SCl Onzain-Ars Managing Director June 2003
Sibmar SC Managing Drrector February 2004
Foreign companies

Cassina (ltals} Durector June 2005
Fitch group Holdings (United States) Chaiman 2006
Engelhard-Clal (Switzerland) Director 2002
Renault-Nissan {Switzerdand) Member of the International Adwsory Board 2002
SEMP SA (Span) Drrector 2002
Other

Consei Stratégigue pour I'Attractivité de la France Member March 2005
Fondation Agir Contre I'Exclusion Vice-Charman 2002
IERSE Charrman January 2004
Musee du Louvre Member March 2005
Le Siecle Member June 2005
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Franck Riboud
Director
Holds 1,000 L'Oréal shares

Main corporate office hetd outside L Oreal
Groupe Danone
Professional address 17 boulevard Haussmann - 75009 Parnis - France

Expiry date of term of office

2010

Charrman & Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Executive Committee

Other carporate offices and directorships held
French companies

Accor SA Member of the Supervisory Board
Lacoste France SA Director {smice June 22 2008)
Renault SA Director
Renault SAS Dhrector
Foreign companies

Bagley LatinoAmenca SA (Spain} Director
Danone SA (Span) Diregtor
ONA (Marog) Diractor
Wadia BSN Indra Ltd (India) Director
Other

Association Naticnale des Industnes Agrealmentares Director

Conser National du Developpement durable

Member, representative of Danone group

Fondation Gan (Global Allance for Improved Nutntion)

Director ‘since May 157 2008)

Internatignat Adwisory Board HEC Director
Corporate offices and directorships over the last five years that have expired Expiry date of term of office
French companies

Compagnie Gervais Danone SA Chairman of the Board Oclober 2006
Danone Finance SA Director February 2005
Danone France Permanent representative of Cie Gervais Danone Apnit 2002
Danone SA Permanent representative of Cie Gervais Danone August 2002
Eurazeo SA Member of the Supervisory Board Apnl 2005
Finalim Il SAS Representaive of Cie Gervais Danone, Charman Oclobe: 2008
Einalm IV SAS Representative of Cie Gervais Danone, Charman Oclober 2006
Genérale Agro-Abmentare de Particrpations SAS Representative of Cie Gervars Danone, Chairman Oclobzr 2006
Générale Biscuit SA Chaiman of the Board Qctobe 2058
Lu France Permanent representative of Génerale Biscuit August 2004
Produsts Laiters Frais Nord Europe (formerty Sageb SAS)  Representative of Cie Gervais Danone, Chairman March 2005
Société des Eaux de Volvic Permanent representative of Cie Gervais Danone February 2002
Foreign companies

Abi Holdings Ltd (ABIH) (United Kingdorm} Director December 2004
Associated Bigcuils International Ltd (ABIL) (United Kingdom) Director December 2004
Danone Asia Pie Ltd (Singapore) Charman and Director Novemiber 2005
PT Tirta Investama (Indonesia) Commussicner January 2005
Quiksiver (United States) Director August 2006
Scottish & Newcastie Plc (United Kingdom) Director Novembier 2003
Sofina SA (Belgum) Director hiay 2008
Strauss Dary Limited (Israel) Director Apnl 2002
Other

ANSA, Director February 2005
Banque de France Member of the Consultative Council May 2004
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Lows Schweitzer Expiry date of term of office
Director 2009
Holds 2,600 L'Oréal shares

Main corporate office held outside L Oraal
Renault Charrman of the Board
Professional address 860 quai de Stalingrad — 92513 Boulogne-Billancourt - France

Other corporate offices and directorships held
French companies

BNP Panbas Director
Electncilé de France Director
Renault SAS Drector
Vecla Enwironnement Director
Foreign companies
AB Volvo (Sweden} Director
Alanz AG (Germany) Member of the Consultatve Council
AstraZeneca (United Kingdom) Drrector
Chairman of the Board
Philips {Nethertands) Vice-Charman of the Supervisory Board
Other
Bangue de France Member of the Consuliative Council
Comité des Salons Charman {snce Novenmber 2006)
Festival d'Avignon Charman
Fondation Natonale des Sciences Politigues Member of the Board
Haute Autonté de Lutte contre les Discriminations et pour 'Egalite Charman
Insutut Frangais des Relations Internationales Member of the Board
Le Cercle dg I'Orchestre de Pans Chaiman of the Board
Musee du Louvre Member of the Board
Musee du Quai Branly Director
Societe des Amis du Musee du Quat Branly Charrman
Corporate offices and directorships over the last five years that have expired Expiry date of term of office
French companies
Compagnie Financidre Renautt (dissclved) Diractor June 2003
RCI Banque {formerly called Renault Credit International) Director Fehruary 2005
Renault Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Apnl 2005
Foreign company
Renault-MNissan B V {Netherlands} Chayman of the Management Board Apnl 2005
Other
Medef Member of the Executive Committee QOctober 2005
Medef Internationat Charman November 2005

Family ties between the corporate officers
Mrs Frangorse Bettencourt Meyers 1s the daughter of Mrs Litlang Bettencourt and the wife of Mr Jean-Pierre Meyers

Potentiat conflict of interest between the duties of the corporate officers with regard to L'Oreal and
therr private interests and/or other dutes

None except to specify that Mrs Lilane Bettencourt, Mrs Frangoise Bettencourt Mayers and Mr Jean-Pierre Meyers are acting in con-
cert, holding a majonty share of L'Oréal's capital and voting nghts and that Mr Brabeck-Letmathe, Mr Castaner Basco and Mr Bauer
fulfil a management role at Nestle, which 1s acting in concert with the above parties (see "Information concerning the share capital” sec-
tion in the Management Report)

Arrangements or agreements concluded with main shareholders, customers, supphers or other parhes
in accordance with which the corporate officers were nominated as directors of L'Oréal

Agreement signed on February 37, 2004 (“the Agreement”) on the one hand by Mrs Liiane Bettencourt and her family, and on the other
hand by Nestié, published on February 5™, 2004 (see detals in the “Information concerning the share capital” section in the Management
Report}, providing for an undertaking by the parties fo vote m favour of the appointment as directors of three members put forward by
the other party
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Restnctions accepted by the corporate officers
concerning the disposal, over certain time periods,
of therr share in L'Oréal's capital

Restnictions accepted by both Mrs Lilane Bettencourt and her
family and Nestié according to the terms of the Agreement (see
details in the “Information concerning the share capstal” section
of the Management Report) and rules relating to the prevention
of Insider Trading {see the Internal Rules of the Board of Directors,
“Rights and obligations of Drectors™)

Other information dealt with in points 14 and 16.2
of Annex 1 of European Regulation No.80%/2004

The corporate officers do not have a service contract with L'Oreal
or any of its subsidianes prowviding for the granting of benefits at
the end of such a contract and have not, dunng the last five years
and to the best of the company’s knowledge, been convicted of
fraud, declared bankrupt, gone into recevership or been liqui-
dated, been the subject of an accusat:on or official publc sanc-
tion 1ssued by the statutory or regulatory authonties (including
designated professional bodies) or a court ruling preventing them
from acting as a member of a board of directors, management or
supervisory board or bean prevented from being involved in man-
aging or conducting the business of an 1ssuer

INTERNAL RULES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Preamble

These Rules are applicable to all present and future directors, and
are intended to comptement the legal, regulatory and statutory
rules in order to state accurately the modus operandi of the Board
of Directors and its Review Comimittees, in the best interests of
the company and of its shareholders

1 - Duties and authority of the Board of Directors

11 Board of Directors
The Board of Directors determines the company's business strat-
egy and oversees the implementation thereof

Sutxect to the powers expressly conferred on general shareholders’
meetings and within the mit of the company’s purpose, the Board
deals with all matters regarding the smooth running of the company
ant seftles issues concerning the company by virtue of s deasions

The Board of Directors cames out the controls and venfications
It considers appropnate The company’s Chairman or Chuef
Executive Officer must pronde each director with all of the doc-
uments and information required to carry out lus/her duties

The Board of Directors may entrust one or more of its members
or third parties with special assignments or projects wath a view,
inter afia. {0 examining one or more specific topics

it can decide to set up Committees responsible for examining
rmatters subnutted by the Board or its Chasman for their opinion
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The directors of the company

*provide ther expertise and professional expenence,

» arg required to act with due care and altention, and have com-
plete freedom of judgernent

Thus freedom of judgement enables them in particular to partici-
pate, in total ndependence, 1 the decisions and work of the
Board, and, where approprate, of its Review Commitiees

12 Chairman of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors must elect a Chairman from among its
members

The Charrman of the Board of Directors organises and oversees
the Board's work and reports thereon to the Shareholders’ Annual
General Mesting The Chairman 1s actively involved in defining the
company's growth strategy and encourages and strengthens, inter
afia, inks between the compary and the man market players

The Charman oversees the wark of the company’s bodies respon-
sible for corporate governance and ensures, in particular, that the
directors are able to perform ther duties He may ask for any doc-
ument or information that 1s likely to assist the Board of Directors
in preparing for its meetings

The Charman of the Board of Directors must use his best efforts
to promote the values and image of the company at all imes The
Chairman expresses his views in that capacity

He Is prowded with the miatenal resources required 1o perform his
duties

13 Form of General Management

The Board of Directors determines the form of the company's
Generai Management

General Management of the company 15 carned out, under his
responsibility by either the Chairman of the Board of Directors or
by ancther indndual appointed by the Board of Directors with the
position of Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Direclors chooses one of these two forms of General
Management upon the appantment or renewat of the tenure of
the Chairman of the Board ar the Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors consistently ams to ensure the ongoing
and continued implementation by the General Management of
the strategic onentations defined by the Board

To thus end, the Board entrusts its Chamman with the task of devel-
oping and mantaining an ongong, trusting relationship between
the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer

14 Powers of General Management

The Chief Executive Officer, who may be the Charrman of the
Board of Directors or another indmdual, 1s vested with the broad-
est powers to act in all circumstances in the name of the com-
pany He must exercise these powers within the limit of the
company’s purpose subject to the powers expressly granted by
French law to shareholders’ meetings and the Board of Directors
However, transactions which may matenally impact the scope of
cansolidation of the company, In particular, transactions nvoving
an amount in excess of €150,000,000, and all new transactons
which are outside the normial course of business, must be sub-
rmutted to the Board
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In any event, the Board of Directors must be informed of the con-
clusion and implermentation of all transactions

The Chief Executive Officer represents the company in its deal-
ings with third parties

Upon a proposal by the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of
Directors may appoint one or more indviduals responsible {or
assisting the Chief Exacutive Officer, who will hold the corporate
office of Deputy Chief Executive Officer(s)

2 - Modus operand: of the Board of Directors

21 Convening the Board

The Board 1s convened by any appropnate means, and may even
be convened verbally Notices convening a meeting may be trans-
mitted by the Board Secretary Except mn special circumstances
notices convening a meeting are sent in wnting at least eight days
before each meeting The notices specify the venue of the meeting,
which may be the registered office or any other venue

2.2 Informing directors

All the documents that are necessary to inform the directors about
the agenda and about any questions submitted to the Board for
review are enclosed with the notice corvening the meeting or are
sent or provide to them within a reasonable penod of time, pnor
to the meeting

With regard to the decisions to be taken, the director must ensure
that he has at his disposal the information he considers essential
for the Board or the Review Committees to carry out ther work
satisfactonly If this 1 not the case, or if he congiders it 1s not the
case, he must request that the situation 1s rectified His requests
should be made to the Chairman of the Board, who 1s required
to ensure that the directors are in a position to fulfil their rmission

2.3 Board meehngs

The Board meets as often as required in the best interest of the
company, and at least five imes per year

The dates of the Board meetings for the foliowing year are set no
later than the beginrming of the summer, except in the case of
extraordinary meetings

2.4 Partcipabon by videoconference or telecommunication
faciities

In accordance with the legal and regulatory provisions and with
Article 9 §2 of the Articles of Association, directors who take part
In Board meetings by means of wdeoconference or telecommu-
nication facilies are deemed to be presant for the purpose of cal-
culating the quorum and the majonty

However, these facilites may not be used when the Board 1s delb-
erating on any of the following points

= the closing of the parent company financial statements and the
consolidated financial statements,

» the preparation of the Management Report, including the group
Management Report

The technical characienstics of the wideoconference facilities must
enable the uninterrupted broadcasting of the debates
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Before the deliberations begn a check must be camed out to ensure
the absence of all third parties, microphones and all other tems that
could compromise the confidential nature of the deliberations

25 Minutes

The draft minutes of the previous Board meeting are sent or provided
10 all directors at the latest on the day on which the following meeting
15 convened

The minutes of the meeting also mention the partcipation of directors
by means of wdeoconierence or telecommunication faciites The min-
utes also Indicate whether any techrical incidents occurred dunng a
meeting held by means of wdeoconference or telecommunication
facilties, if such ncidents disrupted the course of the meeting

In the case of each site other than the venue of the meeting, the
directar participating in the Board meeting by means of wideocon-
ference or telecommunication faciities will iiiial an attendance
sheet on hus own behalf and, where applicable, on behalf of the
director that he represents The Board Secretary will attach the
attendance sheet to ihe attendance register, and will gather wher-
ever possible any tems conshiuting matenal evidence of the meet-
ing held by videoconierence or telecommurucation facities

3 - Review Committees

If the Board of Directors sets up any Review Committees, the
Board will appoint the members of these Caommitiees and deter-
mine therr duties and responsibilities

The Comymittees act within the remit granted to them by the Board
and therefare have no decision-making power

The Board may entrust to the Chasrman of the Committee or one
or more of ts members with a specal assignment or project to
carry out specific research or study future possibiliies

The designated indmdual will report on this work to the Committee
caoncerned such that the Committee may deliberate on this work
and in turn report thereon to the Board of Directors

31 Audit commuttee

311 Remit

The Audit Commitiee must make sure that the General
Management has at ts disposal the means to enable it to iden-
tify and manage the economic, financial and legal nsks facing the
group instde and outside France in carrying out 1ts noma! and
exceptional operations This 1S in order to avoid the possibility of
any impairment of the value of the company's assets

In thus context the Committee analyses the procedures put In
place nside the group with a view to ensunng

«comphance with accounting regulations and the correct appli-
cation of the pnnciples governing the preparation of the com-
pany’s financial statements,

= the feedback of information and the processing of information
at all levels,

+the identfication, evaluation, anticipation and management of
the economic, financial and legal nsks to which the company and
its subsidianes are exposed inside and outside France,

«the apphcation of the intemal audiing standards that apply to
financial information in force at all levels of the orgamsaton,




« compliance with stock market regulations, and more particu-
larty the correct application of the Insider Trading Rules in force in
the company

Thus audit enables the Commuittee to issue recommendations, if
necessary, concerrung the improvement of existing procedures
and the possible setting up of new procedures

The Auciit Committee can be consulted for all questions relating
to procedures for controling nsks of an unusual nature, particy-
larty when the Board or the General Management considers i
appropnate to submit such questons to it

3 1 2 Work organisation
The Audit Committee 1s composed of at least three members,
who are non-executive directors of the company

The Chairman of the Audit Committee issues guidelines for the
Commuittee's work each year, based on his judgement concern-
ing the mportance of the specific types of nsk faced, in agree-
ment with the General Management and the Board

The Committee meets when convened by its Chairman, when-
ever he or the Board constders this appropnate, and at least three
times per year

The agenda for the meeatings 1s set by the Charrman of the
Committee, in relation wath the Board if the tatter nitiated the con-
venng of the mesting The agenda 1s sent to the Commitiee mem-
bers before the meeting, together with the information which 1s
useful for thew debates

The secretanal work of the Committee 1s performed by the Board
Secretary

To carry out its mission, the Audit Committee consults the Statutory
Auditors and the serior managers of the company, in particular
those responsible for prepanng the financial statements and for the
Intemal Audt It reviews the prnaiples and methods, the programme
and the objectives and the general conclusions of the operational
control messions of the Internal Audit Department

Tne Cornmittee can also, n agreement with the General Management,
consult other people who may be able to help it carry out its
mission, particularty executives with economic and financial respon-
sibilities, and those In charge of processing INformation

3 13 Activity report

The Audit Committee reports to the Board on its work whenever
necessary and in all cases before the definitive closing of the annual
financial staterments, and takes note of the Board's observations
in its report, the Audit Committee makes the recommendations
1t considers appropnate with regard to

= the sutability of the vanous procedures and of the system as a
whole in terms of achieving the objective of managing informa-
tion and nisk,

+on the effectve applicat:on of the procedures n place, and where
apprapnate the means implemertted to achieve this am
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it also formulates in its report all recommendations and propos-
als amed at improving the effectiveness of the vanous procedures
and the overall system, or at adapting them to a new situatton

If dunng its work the Committee detects a subslantial nsk which
In its view 18 not adequately taken into account, it warns the
Charman of the Board accordingly

Each year the Audit Committee carnes out a review of its modus
operandr and, taking into account any remarks made to i by
the Board and the General Management, formulates within the
framework of its remit all proposals amed at improving the
quality of its work

32 Management and Remuneration Committee

321 Rermit

The mam messions of the Management and Remunerabion Committee,
within the context of the work of the Board of Directors, are to

* make proposals concerning the remuneration of the corporate
officers appointed by the Board on two occasions

The Committee must submit the following matters to the Board
for it to make a decision

* at the beginning of each financial year, the amount of the fixed
portion of the remuneration 1o be awarded to each corporate offi-
cer for the followng year,

+ at the end of each financial year, the amount of the vanable por-
ion of the remuneration awarded to each corporate officer for the
past year,

* make proposals concerning the allocation of stock options,

* enquire about the general remuneration policies apphed in the
company,

« assist the Charman and the Board in therr reflections on suc-
cesston plans for the group’s senor management positions,

« reflect on the composstion of the Board of Directors and any
possible changes

3 2 2 Work orgarusation
The Management and Remuneration Committee s composed of
at least three members, who are non-executve directors of L'Oréal

The Committee meets when convened by its Charman, each time
the Charrman or Board considers this appropriate, and at least
three times per year

The agenda of the meetings I1s set by the Charrman of the
Committee, In relation with the Board if the latter intiated the con-
vening of the meeting

The Committee may meet at any time it considers 10 be appro-
pnate, for example to assess the perfarmance of the company’s
senior managers

323 Activity report

The Committee must reqularty report on its work to the Board and
makes proposals to the Board

33 Strategty and Implementaton Commuttee

331 Remit

The remit of the Strategy and Implementation Commultee 1s lo
throw hght, through its analyses and debates, on the group's
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strategic onentations as submitted to the Board of Directors and
to monitor the mplementation and advancement of significant
operations N progress

The Committee examines

sthe man sirategic ines of development, options and projects
presented by the General Management, and therr economic and
financial consequerices,

* opportunities for acquisibons or Investments which involve sig-
nificant arnounts or which represent a departure from the group’s
usual business operaticns, and the conditions refating to therr
implementation,

= financial transactions hable to significantly change the balance
sheet structure

More generally, the Committee debates all questions cansidered
essential for the future strategy of the group and for preserving its
main financial balances

3 3 2 Work argansation
The Strategy and Implementation Commetiee 15 composed of six
L'Oréal drectors s chared by the Chaiman of the Board of Drectors

It meets when convened by the Charman of the Committee when-
ever he or the Board considers this appropnate, and no less than
six times annually

The agenda of the meetings 1s set by the Chairman of the
Committee, in conunction with the Board of Birectors i the Board
intiates the meeting

3 3 3 Actiity report
The Strategy and Implementation Commuttee reports on its work
to the Board whenever necessary, and at least once a year

4 - Rights and obhgations of directors
The directors must demonstrate total moral integnty

41 Awareness of and comphance with regularoty texts
Each of the members of the Board declares that he 1s aware of
= the company's Articles of Association,

= the legal and regulatory texts that govern Societés Anonymes
with a Board of Directors under French iaw, especially

-the rules on bmiting the number of direclorships held,

-the rules relating to agreements and transactons concluded
between the director and the company,

- the definition of the powers of the Board of Directors,

s and ihe rules relating to the holding and use of prvleged infor-
mation, which are set out below in 4 6

42 Respect for the interests of the company

The directors are required to act in all airgumstances in the inter-
est of the company and all iis shareholders

The directors are under the obligation of notifwng the Board of all
situations constituting a confict of interest, even If such confict
15 only potential, and must refrain from participating n the corre-
sponding deliberations
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4 3 Obhgation of diligence
The director must devote the necessary ime and attention to his duties.

He must fimit the number of offices held so as to ensure his availabiity

Each Board member undertakes to be diigent

* by attending, where necessary by means of ideoconference or
telecommuracation faciities, all Board meetings, except in the
case of & major impediment,

= by attending, wherever possible, all the General Meetings,

¢ by attending the meetings of the Review Committees of which
he 15 a member

4 4 Traiming of directors

Each director may benefit, on his appointment or throughout his
diractorship, from the traiing programmes which he deems nec-
essary for the exercise of his office

The training programmes are organised and prowded by the com-
pany, and are at ds expense

45 Obhgation of reserve and confidentiality

The directors undertake not to express themselves ndividually
other than in the iInternal deliberatrons of the Board on questions
raised at Board meetings OCutside the company, only collegial
exprassicn 1S possible, particularly in the form of releases intended
10 provide the markets with information

With regard to s;nformation not in the public domain to which the
director has access as a result of his duties, the director must
consider himself to be bound by stnct professional confidentral-
ity, which 1s more demanding than the mere obligation of discre-
tien stipulated in Article L 225-37, paragraph 5, of the French
Commercial Code

It should be noted that the obligation of discretion apples to all
persons called on to attend Board meetings, and covers all infor-
mation of a confidential nature and all iInformation presented as
confidential by the Charman of the Board

46 Rules goverming insider trading

46 1 Principles

Prvileged information must only be used by the director in the
exercise of his office Such information must in no case be com-
municated to a thurd party other than in the exercise of the direc-
tor's duties, and for any other purpose or any other actwity than
those for whech it 15 held

it 1s the duty of all direciors to refrain from trading i, having
others trade In and enabing others to trade in the secunties of the
company on the basis of this iInformation untit such time as the
information has been made pubhc

It 1 the personal responsitrity of each director to deterrmire whether
the information he holds 15 privileged or not, and accordingly
whether he may or may not usg or transmit any of the informa-
tion, and whether he may or may not trade or enable trading in
the company’s secunties




4 6 2 Penads of abstention

In addition to the penod preceding the publication of any prmv-
leged information to which directors have access, dunng which
nsiders must by law refrain from all irading in U'Oreal secunties,
it 15 recommended that directors refran from all trading in the com-
pany’s securities for the 30 days preceding

» the release concemiryg the annual resuits,

¢ the release concerning the first-hali results

4 6 3 Insider trading

The director has been informed of the provisions i force relating
to the holding of prviteged information and insider trading  Article
L 465-1 of the French Monetary and Financial Code and Articles
621-1 et seqg of the General Regufations of the French financial
markets supervisory authonty (AMF)

4 6 4 Obfigation of declaring trading in the secunties

of the company

In accordance with the applicable regulations, the drectors and
indviduals closely related to them, as defined by decree, must
inform the AMF of all acquisitions, sales, subscriptions or
exchanges involving the company's financial imstruments and of
transactions involving refated instruments where the cumulative
amount of such transactions ts fugher than €5,000 for the calen-
dar year In progress

The directors and ndmwduals closely related to them must sutsomit
therr declaration to the AMF by e-mail {declarationdingeants@arni-
france org) within five trading days following completion of the
transaction

Within this same five-day tme imit, these individuals or, upon their
request, the custodian of their account, must rermit the notice per-
taning to execution of the transaction to the AMF

These ndmduals must smultaneously provide a copy of this notice
to the Secretary of the company's Board of Directors

The declarations are then posted on the AMF's website and are
mentioned in an annual summary set out in the company’s
management report

47 Holding of a minimum number of shares
Each drector owns at least 1,000 shares in the company

The decision as to whether or not all or some of the shares held by
the director should be registered 15 the responsibility of the director

5 - Remuneration of the corporate officers

51 Remuneration of directors

The directors receve atiendance fees in the amount approved by
the vote at the Ordinary General Meeting, and which are allocated
as decided by the Board

The attendance fees are dwded between the directors as follows
* an equal share allocated to each director, compnsing a fixed
part and a part that vanes according to the degree of regulanty
1n attending meetings,

= an additional share for Review Committee members, which
amount 1§ doubled for the Committee’s Charman
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The Board of Directors may award the directors special remuner-
ation for specific assignments or projects entrusted to them

52 Remuneration of the corporate officers appointed

by the Board \

The Board of Directars sets the remuneration of the Charman,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Deputy Chief Executve Officers
as it sees fit

Upon the appontment by the Board of Directors of a corporate
officer who has an employment contract wath the company, the
terms of the contract that also relate to his tenure are suspended
To ensure good corporate governance, the Board of Directors
considers that, upon the appointment of a corporate officer who
has an employment contract with the company, the rnights to
ndemnities or benefits ansing from said contract must not be
increased or reduced, they must simply be mantained in accor-
dance with French law

Theretore, the Board has an ongoing policy of considenng cor-
porate officers who have an employrment contract with the com-
pany as senior executives within the meaning of the company's
employment-related practice with regard to any amounts ancii-
fary to ther remuneration

In this respect these corporate officers will, in particular, be cov-
ered by the same pension and welfare funds as senior executives
Dunng therr tenure, the fnnge benefits of corporate officers are deter-
muined based on therr total length of service {in relation with therr
employment contract and comporate office) within the company

In order to calculate the basis for these benefits, in particutar where
this 15 a multi-annual basis, penods of actmvty in relation with both
the employment contract and corporate office are taken nto account

Al the end of ther {enure, the corporate officers’ employment con-
tracts automaticatly resume full effect and the last amount of the
fixed portion of remuneration recesved in refation with their corpo-
rate office s that then shown under therr employment contact,
provicing that the remuneration corresponds to that of a serior
executve with the same qualfications from a standpoint of com-
pany practice or, if this 15 not the case, as authonsed by the share-
holders’ general meeting pnor to the end of the tenure

These officers’ otal length of serice {accrued in relation wath both
therr employment contract and corporate office) will be taken into
account under the employment contract that hes resumed is effect
6 - Annual review of the Board’'s modus operand:
Once a year the Board cames out a formal review of its modus
operanch, and where appropnate takes all steps considered appro-
pnate to improve it The Board informs the shareholders accord-
ingly in the Annual Report

7 - Amendments to the internaf rules

These Rules may be amended by a decision of the Board
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TABLE OF INVESTMENTS

Main changes including sharehotding threshold changes

1 € thousands Situation at 12 31 2005 Acquisitions Subscrptons Sales Situation at 12 31 2006
Headings Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
Chumex 5,955 3 100 00 14,000 0 100 00 19855 3 100 00
Club Createurs

de Beauté Korea 8200 50 00 890 0 50 00@ 00 000
Cosmetique Active

Product (ax Lxdv) 50150 100 00 344 g7 730 50394 8014
Crea Mundh 45,422 2 100600 45422 2 100 00
Episkin 15 99 00 558600 160 00 6,661 5 100 00
Geral Inc 3024 100 00 302 4 100 00@ 00 000
Laboratorres innéov 63000 50 00 35000 5000 $8000 5000
L Oréal Bulgana 1023 100 00 1023 10000
L'Oreal Mataysia SDN BHD 93148 96 02 28585 100000 84563 B84 34
L'Oréal Panama 16880 10000 168 O 100 00
L'Oréal Ukraine 514 6 100 00 8754 100 00 13800 100 00
{. Oréal Uruguay 4718 100 00 4,963 3 100 00 5,435 1 100 0C
L'Qréal USA 26911224 100 00 184,262 5 100 00 2875384 9 100 0C
The Body Shep

International PLC 992,444 6 10000 Q92,444 6 100 00
Socinay 344 ar 73 344 Q7 738 oo 000
Yotal 2,718,822.2 1.037,866.8 2145658 4,085 3 3 968,269 6

{1} Return of capital

{2} Liquidation

{3) Merge t2keover

5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

L’OREAL parent company {excluding subsidianies)

= millang

{except for earnings per share, shown in eUros) 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
| Financial position at financial year-end

Share capital 135 2 1352 1352 1318 127 9
Number of shares and investement certificates sssued 676,062 160 676 062 160 676,062 160 658 769 660 639618 4100
Number of convertible bonds Q [+] 0 0 c
Il Overall results of operations

Net sales 1,8003 17061 1,774 2 1,856 8 20034
Pre-tax profit before depreciatkan amerusation, provasions and reversals

of provisions {including provision for investment and profit sharing reserve ) 13304 1,2615 13411 14030 1484 4
Income tax 573 1242 -208 -588 -54 5
Nat inccme 10143 9365 12301 1,589 6 16803
Amount 0f distnbuted profits 4327 4835 554 4 658 8 754 5@
tll Results of operations per share or per investment certificate

Profit atter tax and profit shanng but hefore depreciation,

amerttsation and provsiens 187 166 199 220 238
Nat earnings 150 139 182 241 264
Drndend paid ¢n sach share and investment certificate

{not nchuding tax credit) {064 Q73 082 100 118®
IV Personnel

Number of employees B 5627 573 5,746 5750 5,793
Total salanes a2z 3257 3318 3382 3454
Amount paid for weltare benefits

{sociat secunty prowdent schemes etc) 121 2 1344 1339 1388 1423

{1) The share caprtal compnses 639 616,410 shares with a par value of €02 fotlowing the cancellation of 19,229 250 shares and the subscription of 76,000 shares following the exercise

of stock oplions

{2) The dividend will be proposed to the Annual General Meeting of Apnl 24th, 2007

{3} Not ingiuding the avor fistal {special tax credit on dreends)
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{+)This imformation, taken together, constitues the Annual Financial Report as provided for in Article L 451 1 2 of the French Monetary and Finantsal Code
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2006 Parent company
financial statements

COMPARED BALANCE SHEETS
€ mifsons

12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Assets (net amounts)
Intangible assets {note 1) 4005 4203 3899
Tangible assets {note 2} 2375 2327 22690
Financial assets (note 4) BA4241 7,164 4 6,7791
Fixed assets 90621 78174 7,395 0
Inventones 394 475 428
Prepayments to suppliers 157 75 70
Trade accounts recewvable {note 7) 326 4 303 4 2721
Other current assefs {note 7) 939 1661 1423
Marketable secuntes {note 6} 14184 1,418 4 13390
Cash ang cash equivalents 3634 296 8 3222
Cigrent assets 22572 2,2397 21254
Prepaid expenses 232 247 192
Unrealised exchange losses {note 11} 60 46 38
TOTAL ASSETS 11,3485 10,086 4 8,543 4
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€ mitons

12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 312004
Liabilities and shareholders’ equaty
Capital stock 1279 1318 1352
Additional paid-in capital 8585 9539 9535
Reserves and retamed earnings 4,2637 45375 48071
Net profit 1,6903 1,5896 1,2301
Regulated provisions 529 503 482
Shareholders' equity 70833 7,2631 11141
Provisions for iiatwlitles
and charges (note 8) 1231 1476 1850
Borrowings and debts (note 9) 35818 21593 1,6627
Trade accounts payable (nofe 10) 2988 2928 2818
Gther current lrabifies (note 10) 2475 2208 2350
Other fiabshties 4,1281 26729 21795
Unreahsed exchange galns mole 11) AQ 28 48
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 11,3485 10,086 4 9,543 4
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COMPARED PROFIT AND .0SS ACCOUNTS

& silles

12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
Revenue 21083 1,856 6 19021
Net sales (note 14) 2,003 4 1,856 6 1,774 2
Reversals of provistons and transfers of charges 255 231 487
Other revenue {note 15) 794 769 792
Expenses -1,890.3 -1,8697 -1,764.1
Purchases and change (n inventones -255 @ -2584 -2438
Other purchases and external charges -1,0171 ~907 4 -8772
Taxes and simular payments =712 -436 -403
Personnel costs (note 16) ~487 7 -4781 -4657
Depreciation, amorhisation and charges to provisions {note 17) -925 —-665 -~743
Other charges ~G68 -557 -628
Operating profit 1180 1465 1380
Net financial revenues 1,316 2 1,244 3 11677
Net charges to/freversals of) provisions and transfers of charges T 1657 -1527
Exchange gains and losses -1590 -279 198
Net financial meome (noie 18) 15180 13821 10348
Profit before tax and excephonal items 1,6360 1,5280 11728
Exeephional items (note 19 i7.2 166 545
Employee profii-sharing -174 -148 -180
incomne tax (note 20) 545 588 208
Net profit 1,680 3 1,589 6 1,230 %
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CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The share capital of €127,823,282 comprises 639,616,410 shares with a par value of €0 2 following transactions camed out in 2006
= cancellation of 19,229,250 treasury shares,

* subscnpiion to 76,000 shares following the exercise of options

The changes in shareholders® equity are as follows

€ mikons

Capital stock Additonal 1976 Reserves Net Requlated Total

paid-@ revaluation  and retamed profit pIOvVISIONS
capital resernve garnings

Balance at December 319, 2064
hefore allocation of net profit 1352 953 5 460 4,7612 1,2301 482 7,174 2
Changes in capital stock -34 04 -9810 -9840
Allocation of 2004 net profit 7113 -7113 00
Dwadends paid for 2004 -5188 -5188
2005 net profit 1,589 6 1,589 6
Other movements during penod 21 21
Batance at December 315, 2805
befere allecation of net profit 1318 9539 450 44915 1,589 6 503 7,2631
Changes in capital stock -39 48 —-1,2473 -1,2466
Allocation of 2005 net proht 9735 -9735 00
Drsdends pasd for 2005 -6161 ~B16 1
2006 net profit 1,690 3 1,690 3
Other movements duning penod 26 26
Balance at December 31+, 2006
before allocation of net profit 1279 9585 460 4177 1,630 3 529 7,003 3

The reserves nchuds an amount of €25 million in 2006 comesponding to dividends not paid as a consequance of L Oreal's retainmg some of its own shares compared with €21 4 milton
n 2005 €17 7 milion was charged to reserves as a result of the cancellabon of shares in 2006

The regulated prowisions consist mainly of the provision for investment that amounted to €19 7 milkon at December 31¢t, 2006, com-
pared with €27 millon at December 31%, 2005 In 2006, a charge of €0 8 milkon was made to the provision for investment in respect
of employee profit-shanng for 2005 {compared with €3 5 midion In 2005) This provision includes the transfer to the company of some
of the provisions set aside by our subsidianes under a group agreement There was a reversal in 2006 of a provision of €8 1 million set
aside in 2001 {compared with €6 5 million in 2005}

Accelerated tax-dnven depreciation at Decamber 318, 2006 amounted to €33 1 mdion, compared with €23 3 millon at December 31, 2005

The details of share-subscnption option plans are prowded In the Management Report
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

€ mizons

12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2004
(Operatmg actrvities
Net profit 1,690.3 1,589 6 1,230 1
Depreciation and amortisation 584 541 538
Charges to provisions {net of reversals) -2156 -1964 602
Gamns and losses on disposals of fixed assets -12 -03 151
Gross cash flow 15319 1,447 0 1,3582
Changes n working caprtal {note 22) 813 -85 -837
Net cash provided by operating activibies 1,6132 1,3885 1,2755
Investing actinites
Investments in fixed assets -2,554 1 -1,4539 -1,1676
Changes m other financial assets (note 23) 1923 486 1968
Disposals of fixed assets 92 161 08
Ret cash used by investing activities -2,3526 -1,3892 -8700
Financing activiiies
Capital increase 46 04 01
Dividends paid -6162 -5188 -5138
Changes n financial debt 14192 4941 3437
Met cash provided {used) by financing actvikies BOT G -243 -1700
Change in cash and cash equivalents 682 -250 1355
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2925 3175 1820
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 24) 3607 2025 3175
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NOTES

The foltowing notes form an integral part of the annual financial
slatements

Accounting principles

The financial statements are presented in miflions of euros, the
figures in the tables of subsidianes and hotdings are expressed in
thousands of euros

The annua! financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the 1999 General Accounting Plan and with generally accepted
accounting prnciples

The iterns recorded in the financial statements are valued at his-
toncal cost, except for fixed assets revalued in accordance with
legal requiremnents

Intangible assets
ntangible assets are recorded in the balance sheet at purchase cost

The vajue of the newly acquired brands s calculated based on a
multi-cntena approach taking into consideration therr reputation
and therr future contnbution ta profits

Application of reguiation 2004-06 on assets has made it neces-
sary to identify a number of brands as depreciable in accordance
with ther forecast ife cycle

Nen-gepreciable brands are subject, at least once a year, toimpar-
ment tests on the basis of the valuation mode! used at the tme
of ther acquisihon, this can lead to recognitron of a prowiston for
impairment

Inimal trademark registration costs are recorded as charges since 2005

Patents are amortised over five years

Software of matenal value 1s amortised using the straight-line
method over its probable useful Iife, generally between five and
seven years It1s also subject to recognition of accelerated tax-
dnven amorbisation using the declining balance method over a
twelve month penod

Other intangible assets are usually amortised over penods not
exceeding twelve years

Tangible assets
Tangible assets are recognised at purchase cost

The useful hves of tangible assets are as follows

Usetul ives
Buldings 20/50 years
Fexiures and fitings 10 yews
industnal machmery and sgupment 10 years
Cther tangble assets 310 years
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Depreciation, whether calculated using the straighi-lne or dechin-
Ing balance method, represents depreciation calculated over the
penod of actual use of the asset Industnal machinery and eguip-
ment 15 however an exception as i s depreciated using the straight-
line method over ten years, with afl additicnal depreciation baing
considered to be of a tax-dnven nature

Financial assets

investments and advances

These items are recogrused in the balance sheet at purchase cost
excluding incidental expenses Therr value 1s assessed annually, by
reference 1o ther value in use, which 1s based in particutar on the
current and forecast profitability of the subsidiary In question and
the share of shareholders’ equity owned If the value n use falls
below the purchase cost, a prowsion forimparment i1s recognised

Other financial assets

Loans and other receivables are valued at ther norminal amount
l.cans and other recewvables denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the
financial year If necessary, provisions are made aganst these
items to reduce them to therr value i use at the end of the finan-
cial year

Treasury stock acquired in the context of buyback programmes
15 recogrised in Other fixed asset secunties

At the end of the financial year, Other fixed asset securities are
compared with ther probable sale price, and a provision for imparr-
ment Is recognised if necessary

Inventones

Inventones are valued using the weighted average cost method
A provision for imparment of obsolete and slow-moving invento-
nes 1s recogrused on the basis of actual and forecast sales

Trade accourts receivable and other receivables

Trade accounts recevable and other recewvables are recorded at
therr norrenal value Where appropniate, a provision 1s recognised
based on an assessment of the nsk of non-recovery

Marketable secunties
Marketable secunties are recognised at purchase cost and are
valued at the end of the financial year at therr probable sale price

Treasury stock held that 1s specifically allocated to employee stock
option plans 1s recogmised n Marketable securties

In the case of stock option plans pnor to 2000, a provision for
imparment has beaen made to cover the difference between the
acquisition pnce of the shares and the pnce at which the options
may be exercised by the beneficiarnes Since January 15t 2000,
no discount has been granted on the exercise prce of the opbons
Prowicded that the shares are purchased at a lower pnce than the
exercise price, no provision for imparment 1s required However,
a provision for impairment 1s recogrused in the event of a decline
in the market price below the carrying amount of the treasury
stock, the proviston 18 calculated as the difference between the
camying amount of the treasury stock and the average share price
over the month preceding the balance sheet date
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Prowisions for habilttes and charges

Provisions for habiliies and charges are recognised to cover prob-
able outflows of resources to the benefit of third parties, without
receipt of equivalent consideration by the company They relate
mainty o industnal and commercial conbingencies and litigation
{legal actions, product returns) and to tax and employee-related
contingencles

They are estimated on the basis of the most Ikety assurmptions or
by using statistcal metheds, depending on the type of provisions

Accounting for foreign currency transactions

and hedging of exchange rate nsks

In accordance with group policy, the company does not take any
speculatve positions on financial markels

All recevables and payables denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
financial year

Exchange rate hedging nstruments are traded in order to cover
commercial transactions recognised In the balance sheet or future
transactions that are considered to be hughly probable The losses
and gans generated by these instruments are recognised sym-
metncally with recognition of the hedged items

Transtation differences on operating assets and habilities and
related hedging instruments are recognised in the balance sheet
as Unrealised exchange losses or Unrealised exchange gains
A provision s recagnised if the sum of these urrealised exchange
gains and losses shows a potential exchange loss based on the
overall exchange position of all currencies taken together

Operating transact:ons planned for the next financial year are
already covered by hedges whose impact will be recordad dur-
ing the same accounting penod as the transactions hedged

Accounting for interest rate instruments

With regard to the mterest rate nsk, profit and loss on interest rate
swaps and caps hedging financial labilities are recorded symmet-
ncally with profit and loss on the debts hedged, on a time-pro-
portion basis

Employee retrrement obligations and related benefits
LU'Oreal partcipates in and provides pensions, early retirement and
other benefit schemes for employees and retired employees in
accordance with local legisiation and reguiations Corporate offi-
cers are regarded as employees for alt addibonal benefits relating
to therr remuneration, and are therefore covered by the same
employee benefit schemes

Partial external funding has been put in place n respect of these obli-
gations, in order to gradually buitd up a fund through contnbutions
pad The coninbubons are included i the charges for the financial
year under the Other purchases and extermal charges caption

Armat Feport _ LUOREAL 2006

The related obligations are measured using an actuanal valuation
method based on the final salary

Net unfunded obligations are not recognised as a provision in the
balance sheet They remain as off-balance sheet commitments

Since 2G04, the obligation in respect of long-serice awards in no
longer recognised as an off-balance sheet commitment, instead,
a provision, whose amount 1s based on an actuanal valuation, 15
recogrused i the balance sheet

Net sales
These are compnsed of sales of goods (net of rebates and dis-
counts) as well as services (including technological royalties)

Advertising and promotion expenses

Expenses relating to the adverttsement and promotion of prod-
ucts to customers and consumers are recognised as charges In
the year dunng which the adverbisement or promotion takes place

Research and development costs
Research and development costs are recognised in Other pur-
chases and external charges n the year in which they are incirred

Income tax

The company has opted for the French tax group regme As from
2004, French companies included in the scope of tax consolida-
tion recognise an ncome tax charge In their own accounts on the
basis of their own taxable profits and losses

L'Oreal, as the parent company of the tax group recognises as
tax income the difference between the aggregate 1ax charges
recognised by the subsidianes and the tax due on the basis of
consolidated taxable profit or loss of the tax group




Notes to the balance sheet and off-balance sheet items

Note 1 Intangible assets
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< mEdons 12 31.2005 Increase/Acquesion Decraass/Sake 12.31.2006
Patents and trademarks 3453 02 - 34556
Business goodwll 30 - - 30
Other intangible assets 1680 300 152 1838
Advances and prepayments n's - - ns
Gross vakie i 517.3 30.2 15.2 532.3
Patents and trademarks 280 25 - 3¢5
Business goodwil 03 - - 03
Other ntangble assets 687 156 26 817
Amortisation 970 18.1 28 1125
Patents and trademarks 158 - 158
Qther infangbie assels 35 - 35
Prowisions for impainment 0 19.3 0 193
Netbook value 420.3 7.2 126 200.5
Note 2 Tangible assets

& mifhons 12 31.2006 Increase/Acgustion Decrease/Sae 1231.2006
Land 48 4 - 37 447
Buildings 3431 403 86 3748
Indusinal machinery and equipment 143 8 111 34 1515
Other tangible assets 825 91 93 823
Fixed agsels n progress 162 266 83 75
Advances and prepayments 12 12 n's 24
Gross value 6382 83.3 8.3 6632
Buildings 2339 201 74 2466
Industrial machinery and equipment 1131 107 33 120 6
Other tangible assets 58 5 94 93 588
Depreciation 4055 402 200 425.7
Ket book vaiue 02y 431 433 2215

The annual depreciation charge of a straight-line basis amounts 10 €24 2 millon
The annuat depreciaton charge on a tax-drven declining batance basis amounts to €15 6 milion

Exceptional depreciation of €0 4 million was also recogrisett

Note 3 Fixed assets under finance leases

£ mifions

Fixed assets under finance
jeases at 12 31 2006

Balance sheet total ncluding fixed assets
under finance leases

Balance sheel captions Cost on iniat Depraciation @ Net book Gross Accumulated  Net book
recognition 1t Foryear®  Accumulated value value depreciation value

Land and buildings 857 36 56 8 izsa 5152 303 4 2118

Industnal machmery and equipment - - - - 1515 1206 09

Total at 12.31.2008 957 ae 558 388 6687 424 90 2427

Totat at 12 31 2005 957 36 532 425 6309 400 1 2308

{1} Value of the assets at the date of signature of the leases

{2) Depreciation charge for year, and accumulated depreciatien that would have been recognised for these assats if they had been acquired

{3) Depreceation method used strakght-lme 5% to 2%

€ miltions Finance lease commitments

Balance sheet captions Lease payments made Lease payments outstanding at year end Residual
Intheyear Accumulated Lessthan 1toSyears More than Total purchase

1 year S yoars payable pnce-t

Land and bulkdings 128 1441 40 16Q 198 298 14

Industnal machmnery and equipment - - - - - - -

Total at 12 31 2006 128 144 1 40 160 198 398 14

Total at 12 31.2005 106 1313 105 128 177 410 14

{1} According to the contract,
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Note 4 Financial assets

€ mifors 12 31 2005 Increase Decrense 12 312006
Acquistion Sale
Subscnplon
Invesiments 8627117 1,245 §' 12 75161
Loans and other recevables 170 4 390 9 484 7 1016
Treasury stock 9320 1,241 8 11400 10338
Qther 85 a5 cB B85
Gross value 73827 2,878.8 1,601.5 266800
Investments 2131 305 132 2304
Loans and other recenvables - - - -
Treasury stock - - - -
Cther 52 03 n/s 55
Provision for impawment 218.3 30.8 132 2359
Net book value 7.184 4 2,848 0 1,588 3 84241

{1) Trus mainly represents the acquisiien of shares in The Body Shop for an amount of €992 4 millian

In 2008, L'Creal purchased 16,807,000 shares of treasury stock in the context of buyback programmeas and cancelled 17,660,000
shares At year end, L'Oréal owns 14,187,000 shares of treasury stock, compared with 15,040,000 shares at Decernber 31, 2005
The total market value of treasury stock armounted to €1,082 9 milton euros at the average share price for December, compared with

€1,076 8 million at the closing share price on December 31s

The table of subsidianes and hotdings 1s presented at the end of the notes to the financial statements

Note 5 Transactions and balances wrth related enbties

£ miLons 32 312006 12 312005
Financial assets 73714 652151
Trade zccounts recevable 180 4 168 4
QOther accounts receivable 103 50
Borowings 752 47 8
Trade accounts payable 60 4 66 8
Other payables 01 13
Financial expenses it 124
Financial revenues 14117 1304 8
Note 6 Marketable secunties

This account 1s broken down as follows

€ nilfiors 12 31 2006 12 31 2005
L Oréal shares 1462 5 1,706 2
Financial nstruments 24 16
Prermiums paid on options 58 13
Gross value 14707 17091
L'QOreal shares 523 2907
Financial nstruments - -
Premiums paxd on optons - -
Prowision for impaiment 523 2007
Met! book value 1,418 4 1,418 4

The 19,707,300 L'Oreal shares of treasury stock held for the employee stock option plans have a net value of €1,410 2 milkon {after a
reversal in the year of €230 1 milkion i the prowsion for imparrment through profit and loss, and of €8 3 milhon through equity cor-

responding to shares cancelled), compared with €1,415 5 milhon at December 31, 2005

Dunng 2006, stock options were exercised In respect of 2,479,500 shares and 1,569 250 shares werg cancelled
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For 2006, the totat market value of treasury stock amounted to €1,504 3 millon based on the average pnce in December and to

€1,495 8 milkon at the clesing share price on Decembaer 31

For 2005, the total market value of treasusy stock amounted to €1,478 1 million based on the average price in December and to

€1,491 9 millon at the closing pnee on December 31

Note 7 Matunties of receivables

€ mifions Less More Gross Prowision for Net
than 1 year than t year Imparment

Fixed assets

|.cans and other recevables 211 BO B 1017 0 1017

Other financial assets - B2 82 53 29

Current assets

Trade accounts receivable 3298 0 3288 34 326 4

Other current assets 9349 - 839 0 939

of which Tax and employee-related recervables 415 - 415 - 415
Group and shareholders 163 - 163 - 163
Qther recenvables 361 - 361 - 361

Prapald axpenses 231 - 231 - 23t

Accrual accounts included in current assets amounted to €11 9 milion at December 31%, 2006, compared with €54 7 milion at

December 318t 2005

Note 8 Prowvisions for habilihes and charges

Charges Reversals Reversals 12 31 20086

€ midlions 12 31 2005
(provisions (previsions
used} not usad}
Provisions for Itigation 255 251 43 58 408
Provisson for exchange losses 18 20 i8 Q 20
Provisions for charges 259 150 152 20 237
Other provisions for labdiies'? 540 241 219 396 5668
Tatal 1476 66 2 432 47.5 1231

{1)This caption notably mcludes provisions for tax nsks, and for ndustrial and commercial nsks relating to operations (contracts, product returns) and employee related labilities

The changes In provisions for labilities and charges impacted different levels of the profit and loss account as follows

& rmifllons Charges Reversals Reversals
{provisions. {pravisions

used} not used)

Operating profit 123 106 31
Net financial ncome 111 103 26
Exceptonal tems 238 191 377
Income tax 190 33 40
Total . 66.2 433 474

Annual Report _ L'OREAL 2006




114 _ PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mote 9 Barrowings and debts

L'Oréal obtans financing through medium-term bank loans, and by the 1ssue of sher-term commercial paper n France The amount

of the programme 15 €2,600 milion

Liquidity on the 1ssue commercial paper 1s ensured by confirmed short-ierm credit faciliiies with banks in an amount of €2,625 milllon
at December 31%, 2006, being the same amount as at December 31, 2005 These short-iern credit faciities, ke the medium-term

loans, are not subject to any financial ratio clauses or ratings clauses

Total borrowings and debts are broken down as follows

Breakdown by fype of debt

€ mifiens 12 31 2006 12 312005
Bonds n's n's
Borrowings and debts due to financial instdutions 17948 7517
Perpetual loan 774 804
Commercial paper 15778 12246
Other borrowings and debts 1305 100 4
Cverdrafts 13 22
Total 3,581.8 21593

{1} In accordance with OEC recommendation na 28 the perpetuat loan is recorded under Borrowings and Debts caption Given that this loan is due to mature m 2007, ard n apphicatan

of the 2006 French Financa Act, no impact was recognised for the 2006 financial year in respect of tax estimated at €9 7 mitlhon

Breakdown by maturily

& inithons 12 31 2006 12 31 2008
Less than 1 year 1,748 6 17268
1 to 5 years 1,831 1 4315
More than 5 years 11 10
Total 3,581 8 2,158 3
Dunng the financial year, the man changes recognised were as follows

< milllons

Borrowings taken out 32293
Botrowngs repawd 18125

At December 312, 2006, the perpetual koan taken out by L'Oreal in 1992 generated an overall interest expense n the year of €10 6 mdlion,

including €5 million of accrued interest

Note 10 Matunties of payables

€ milfons Total
Trade accounts payable 298.8
GCther current habilhes 247 &5
Of which Tax and employee-related payables 154 1
Fxed asset refated payables 22 4
Group and shareholders n's
Other payables 710

No payables are due within more than one year, with the exception of €8 1 mikon of the fixed asse! related payables

Accrual accounts included in trade accounts payable amount 1o €146 2 milion at December 312, 2006, compared with €131 3 million
at December 31=, 2005 Accrual accounts included in tax and employee-related payables amount to €92 milkon at Decermnber 312, 2008,
compared with €85 6 mulhon at December 31%, 2005 They are mainty compnsed of the provision for employee profit shanng (€17 &

million at December 312, 2006) and of the prowision for incentives (€47 5 milion at December 31%, 2006}
Accrual accounts included in fixed asset related payables amount to €7 3 milion
Accrual accounts included in other payables amount to €51 3 malion
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Note 11 Unrealised exchange gains and losses

The revaluation of receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies at exchange rates prevailing at December 315 {ed to the
recognition of the following unreaksed exchange gans/unrealised exchange losses

<« milicis Unrealised exchange gains Urvealsed exchange losses
12 31 2006 12 31 2005 12 31 2006 12 31 2005
Fmancial recevables 03 n's - n/s
Trade accounts recevable 09 01 02 08
Borowings and debis - i7 08 01
Trade accounis payable 02 04 086 02
Financial nstruments 46 24 24 17
Yotaf i3] 46 54} 28

The overall foreign exchange position, determined in accordance with the accounting principles descnbed earlier in the notes, s an
unrealised loss, ma:inly on the US dollar, of €2 mition, which has been recognised through profit and loss

Note 12 Denvatives

The financial instruments held to hedge exchange rate nsks are manly related to forward fransactions, and are broken down as follows

& madlers Netional Market vaiue
12 31 2006 12 31 2005 , 12 31 2006 12 31 2005

Currency forwards, net
Sale of USD/Purchase of EUR — 150 9 - -92
Purchase of USD/Sale of EUR 220 - -33 -
Sale of ARS/Purchase of EUR 267 - -09 -
Sale of ARS/Purchase of USD — 225 - 08
Sale of ALUD/Purchase of EUR g8 218 -02 -05
Sale of BRL/Purchase of USD 74 - -03 -
Sale of BRL/Purchase of EUR 140 - -0 -
Sale of RUB/Purchase of EUR 09 549 n/s -33
Sale of CAD/Purchase of EUR 130 40 2 06 -30
Sale of GBP/Purchase of EUR 151 179 -04 -04
Sale of PLN/Purchase of EUR 57 116 -02 -07
Sale of HKD/Purchase of EUR - 95 - -04
Sale of MXN/Purchase of EUR BB 94 0t -10
Bale of CHF/Purchase of EUR 49 77 n/s n's
Purchase of JPY/Sale of EUR 155 135 —-14 -05
Sale of GNY/Purchase of USD 40 804 n's 06
Sale of CNY/Purchase ot EUR 830 — 07 -
Sale of CNY/Purchase of JPY 62 08 ~03 n/s
Puichase of other curr /Sale of EUR 18 a2 ;1 /s
Sale of ather cur /Purchase of EUR ] 500 -2 -12
Total currency {orwards 2681 £04 3 -5 8 -188
Currency cptions
USD/EUR 438 280 30 -17
GBP/EUR 64 32 o1 n's
CAD/EUR 38 = G3 -
BRL/EUR -265 - 18 -
BRL/USD 38 - 02 -
CNY/EUR -56 - 04 —
CNY/AJSD 04 45 01 n's
RUB/EUR - 176 - -08
RUBMASD - 178 - 05
QOthers/EUR 60 74 01 -04
Yotal currency ophons 32.2 785 60 «34
Of which options purchased 277 785 58 -34

optons sold 45 - 02 -
Total forward mstruments 3061 3 582.8 G2 -222

Total options sold solely correspond to the resale of options previcusly purchased when 1t appeared appropnate to replace them wath

other hedging iInstruments
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Financial instruments held to hedge interest rate nsks are as follows

€ milkors Notional Markst value

Interest rale denvatves 12312006 12 31 2005 12 31 2006 12 312005
Interest rate swaps - borrower floating rate

EUR Eunbor/fixed rate 128 8 3085 36 133
Interest rate swaps - borrower fixed rate

EUR Eurnborsfixed rate 25 - ns -
Interest rate swaps floating /floating

ELUR Eurbor/Eurbor 71 2102 ns -
Total 158 4 5198 36 133

Note 13 Off-balance sheet commitments

aj Off-balance sheet commiiments are as follows
Confirmed credit facihties are set out in note 10

€ miflior 12 31 2006 12 31 2005
Commitments granted in the area of employee retrement obligations and related benefitst) 5710 5752
Commitments 1o buyout rminorties 87 4 753
Guarantees given @ 6367 7161
Guarantees recewved 48 54
Caprtal expenditure orilers 513 326
Decumentary credits 69 42

(1) The disceunt rate used to measure these commitments in 2006 18 4 25 % for plans providing a capital sum and 4 50 % for plans providng an annuty compared with 4 25 % in 2005
for both types of plan An agreement for the mutuatisation of empleyes-related habilties was put in place in 2004 This agreement leads to the allocation of commstments ameng the dtf
ferent French comparies in the group and W organsing thew finanang in proporton 1o the companies respective payroll costs (personalesed by plan) so that the companies are Severally
responsible for meeting the aforementioned commitments within the limit of the collective funds constrtuted

(2} This caption includes miscelkansous guarantees and warranties, mmcluding €649 7 million at Decembes 31# 2006 on kehalf of direct and Indirect subsidiaries compared with
€709 1 miflion at December 3% 2005 Warrantes regarding ftabidibes are also included in s amount

b} In addition, operating lease commitments amount to €51 0 rmihon wrthin less than one year, to €148 4 milhron between
1 and 5 years and €23 2 mulhan after 5 years
The breakdown of finance lgase commitments 1s provided in note 3

c) Contingent habdrties
In its normal course of business, L'Oréal 1s nvolved in legal actions and 1s subyect to tax audits, customs controls and administrative
audits The company sets aside a provision wherever a nsk 15 found to exist, and an estimate of its cost s possible

At the present tme, there 15 no exceptional event or dispute which could matenally and with 2 senous level of probability zffect the resilts,
financial situation, assets or operations of the company

MNotes to the mcome statement

Note 14 Net sales

< miflrans 12 31 2006 12 31 2005
Goods 908 4 8734
Raw matenals packaging 184 175
Services IV QZ8 4 826 7
Rental 367 329
Other revenues of ancilary actvities 1115 106 1
Tatat 2,603 & 18566

{1) Mainly concerns invercing of technologecal asststance

The amount of net sales n France was €1,224 3 million :n 2008, compared with €1,151 8 milion in 2005
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Note 15 Other revenue
This account caption manty ncludes royalties from brands

Note 16 - Breakdown of the average headcount
Average headcount 1s broken down as folows

PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ 177

2006 2005
Executives 2537 2,453
Supervisors 2,148 2,148
Admimistrative staff 469 503
Workers 315 335
Sales representatives 325 320
Total 5,763 5,759
Of which apprentices 144 140
external temporary workers 190 178
Note 17 Depreciation, amortisaton and charges to provisions
Depreciatron, amortisation and charges to provisions are broken down as follows
< milkbng 12 31 2006 1231 2005
Depreciaion and amorisation 579 53 5
Impairment of fixed assets 193 -
Impatrrment of current assets 30 20
Provisions for iabiliies and charges 123 151
Total 92.5 668

Note 18 Net financial income

Net financial income amounts to €1,316 2 millien at December 31, 2008, compared with €1,244 3 milhon at December 31t 2005,

and manly includes the folowing tems

€ nilhnns 12 31 2008 12 3% 2005
Drndends recerved 14108 13037
Revenues on other recenvables and marketable securities 308 12
Interast expense onloans -1187 ~54 4
Losses paid 1o partnership entitres {(SNCs) -26 -118&

The Net charges to/{reversals of} provisions and iransfers of charges capton amounis to €217 7 millon at December 31, 2008, com-

pared with €165 7 milion at December 31%, 2005 and manly includes

& mitans 12 31 2006 12312005
Charges to provisions for impairment of financial assets net of reversals

{excluding treasury stock) versus net reversals as of 12 31 2005 —176 06
Reversals of provisions for mpagment of treasury stock 2301 156 7
Net charges (o provisions for fiabilities and chargas of a financial nature 18 53

Note 19 Exceptional tems

Exceptional tems represented profit of €17 2 milion and manly include moverments in provisions for labilties and charges being a charge
to such provisions of €23 8 milion and a reversal of unused provisions of €37 7 milion

Note 20 {ncome tax
The tax charge (income) for the year breaks down as follows

£ niflions 12 31 2008 12.31.2005
Tax on profit before tax and exceptional tems -53 6 -469
Tax on exceptional tems and employee profit-shamg -126 ~122
Net prowisions for taxes 117 03
income tax ~54 5 ~-588
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The application of tax legislation led to an ncrease N profit for the year of €3 1 millon, manly because of the charge fo regulated
provisions and research, spensorship and family tax credits

Note 21 Increases or reductions in future tax habiibes

€ nilfiors Start of the year Changes End of the year
Asset Liatulty Asset Liabdity Asset Laabity

Temporary differences

Regulated provisions 93 35 59 17

Temporary non deductible charges 1203 213 106 5 441

Charges deducted {or revenue taxed)

for tax purposes but not yet recogrised in accounts 07 30 30 Q7

Ternporary non taxable revenue 06 02 04

Items deductible

Tax losses, ete

Items potenhally taxable

Special reserve for long-term capital gaing 176 8 1768

The figures have been calculated taking accaunt af the social contnbution of 3 3% which increases both the standard and reduced rates of tax.
Notes to the cash flow statement
Note 22 Changes in working capital

Changes in working capital were €81 3 million at December 31%, 2006, compared with €-58 5 million at December 313t, 2005
They are broken down as follows

€ milkons 12 312006 12 31 2005
Inventones 78 -35
Recenables 405 =523
Payables 330 -27
Yotal 813 ~58 5

Note 23 Changes in other financial assets
This caption Includes flows related to treasury stock in the year, classdied in marketabte securties

Note 24 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year amount to €360 7 milion at Decerber 31¢1, 2006 compared with €282 5 miion at Decemiber 31+, 2005
and are broken down as follows

& mifiors 12 31 2006 12 31 2005
Cash exciuding accrued interest 3620 2047
Bank overdrafts -13 ~-22
Total 607 2025
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TABLE OF SUBSIDIARIES AND HOLDINGS AT DECEMBER 3157, 2006

Detailed information

& housands Capital Reserves and % Book valus Profit Chadends
retained earmings holding of shares hekt or loss collected by
bedore appropaation Gross Net w last the company
of proflis linancial year dunng the
financial year
A. Mamn French subsidianes - Holdings of over 50%
Areca & Cie 35 1 9978 35 35 -89 i
Baneue RE GE FI 19 250 62 383 100 75 870 75 670 9382 13728
Beauté Créateurs 4612 162 50 3 425 3,425 -1054 2 902
Biotherm Distribution & Cie 182 415 9990 472 472 5,457 3,126
Centrex 1800 30 100 3532 3532 17 1"
Chimex 1,958 25702 100 21 501 21 501 3206 n
Cosmétique Active France 21 4,724 6991 130 130 7222 12 250
Cosmétique Active international 17 4119 87 94 15 15 9,701 5,447
Cosmetique Active Production 186 15 861 8014 5,081 5081 6,646 m
Créa Munce 552 a5 100 45 422 45 422
Epishant 5,662 Q 100 5652 6 662 -348 n
Exclusive Signatures intemational 10 o) 99 10 10 98 1
Fapagau & Cie 15 5812 79 12 12 6 543 ur
Faprog 15 6012 599 9 9 2,386 n
Finval 2 Q 99 2 2 930 i
Gemey Maybelline Garmer 50 1438 66 61 34 34 50,118 32 397
Gemay Pans-Maybeling NV 35 7,879 89 96 46 46 17158 17 488
Goldys International 15 0 95 90 15 15 0 n
Felena Rubnsten 30 1 59 95 46 651 46 661 4173 3783
Holdial 1 0 98 1 1 722 n
L& JRe 1500 7679 100 1,500 1,500 688 m
La Roche Posay Laboratore Pharmaceulique 380 4437 9098 27 579 27 579 8 282 8 145
Laberatowe Garrer & Ce 580 2 99 97 5784 5784 5 851 4781
Laboratoires Inndov 7.350 -748 50 9 80O 2582 -5 260 n
Lancdme Parfums e} Beaute & Ce 1192 1 100 3235 3235 -2 614 1 280
Lascad 18 340 0917 18 18 42 965 a7 165
Lehoux et Jacque 39 56 100 263 263 335 222
L Oréal Produits de Luxe France 63 4 087 7433 46 46 18217 13 540
L'Oréal Produits de Luxa International 76 2872 g92 76 76 49,771 40,3103
Par-bleue 2 0 ] 2 2 -984 n
Parfums Cacharel & Cwe 1 1 99 2 2 -508 n
Parfums Guy Larcche 332 5,370 100 1656 16858 0 Q
Parfums Paloma Picasso & Cie 2 [+ 99 2 2 =5 m
Parfums Ralph Lawen 2 o] 9 2 2 -58 n
Prestige & Callections International 32 3,052 56 67 18 18 13 936 5810
Sicos & Ce 375 8,450 80 999 999 4356 Y]
Société de Developpement Artistique 2 1] 89 2 2 3744 m
Soprocos 8 250 10,210 100 11,904 11,804 1378 1421
Soproreal 15 8628 909 15 15 1076 n
Spartys 750 1498 100 3526 3828 978 929
Vikior & Rolf Parfums 2 0 99 1 1 -639 0}
B Main French investments - Holdings of less than 50%
Galdemma International 932 72 368 26 67 2 2 -90%0 n
Groupement Plessis Momay 2453 1 n's 1 1 —24 m
Innegv France 150 -1214 s ns n's -3 162 m
Laboratoire Sanoflore 1143 2107 004 15 15 -97 U]
La Roche-Posay Dematocosmetique 2 1 &) 0 0 m
Sanofi-Aventis 2 718869 @) 1052 512,853 512 853 a 217,423

(1) The SNCs (general partnerships) GIES {economic mterest groupings) and Societes Civides (non trading companies), that are not tax consolidated, distribute all thewr profits

{2) Sanofi Aventis this information s not avallable
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€ thpasands Capial Reserves and % Book value Profit Dmdends
retained 2armings holding of ghares heid or loss coliected by
befora apprepnation Gross Net In l2st the comparmy
of prefits financial year dunng the
snancial vear

A Mamn foreign subsidiaries - Holdings of aver 50%
Aofi (Angle Overseas Finance) {India) 21333 -52 100 4,306 2,247 -1 M
Avenamite SA (Span) 242 48 100 6216 6216 a1t 154
Beautycos Internationat Co Ltd (China) 41,984 7,189 90 44 313 44 313 10 i
Beautylux Intemn Cosm (Shanghai} China 5 629 - 7,665 100 16 871 16871 1639 "
Beautytech Intern Cosm (YiShang} China 3070 -5,633 100 131 23¢9 131239 376 1
Biotherm (Monaco) 152 17 8948 3545 3545 1777 2 907
Canbel Fragrances inc {(Puerio Rico) 0 0 100 0 0 ¢ ]
Club des Createurs de Beaute Japon K K 4 309 -6 386 50 2173 802 -490 i)
Cosmelor Ltd [Japan) 3554 19413 100 35810 35,810 B57 451
Casmephit Holdings Corpo  Philippines) 171 —-143 100 400 14 [¢] i
Cosmetica Activa Portugal Lida 75 15 95 709 709 2 860 1972
Cosmetgue Active Belgilux (Belgium) 3240 1323 Al 3,423 3423 2985 2 805
Cosmetique Active Helias (Greece) 705 322 93 97 14,468 14 468 5,484 4 868
Cosmetique Active Ireland Ltd (reland) 82 161 100 732 732 531 m
Cosmetique Active Qsterraich (Austna) 75 64 100 1579 1579 2628 2 502
Cosmeatique Aciive Suisse (Switzerland) 32 319 100 4 845 4645 3022 2,814
Elehelie {Propnetary) Lid {South Afnca) 806 50,119 100 61123 49123 0 &
Erwiton (Uruguay) 739 80 100 7 17 3767 6 909
Galderma Pharma SA (Svatzerland) 31388 375 064 50 10,124 10,124 75,572 m
Kosmepal Sp ZO0 {Poland) 38 844 18 444 9973 48,965 48,965 2,024 [
Lal Mes Cosmetics Int Trading [China) 9500 2 820 100 11197 11,197 12,546 8,856
Lancareme A/S (Denmark) 403 -8 100 953 953 4402 3815
Le Club des Createurs de Beaute {Belgm) 250 —-545 50 251 Q -548 (‘?‘
Le Club des Createurs de Beaute (Tanwan) 234 -18 50 328 32 ~372 (1
L'Oreal Adra 131 1331 100 1,503 1,503 259 265
L'Oreal Argentina Sociedad anonima 13081 8 327 100 81,068 35154 4 568 2 986
L' Oréal Australia 27 15616 100 18 794 18794 19,843 20 332
L Creal Balkan (Serbia) 1241 255 100 1285 1285 62 &
L Creal Battic (Latvia) 387 3441 100 529 529 1850 n
L'Oreal Belgilux (Belguum) 10 000 28 519 499 99 35,583 35 583 24 743 22,255
L'Creal Bulgana 102 0 100 102 102 10 in
L. Orgal Canada Inc 1784 12988 100 144 226 144 228 63 429 44 854
L Oréal Ceska Republica (Czech Republic) B 936 -13%4 100 8678 8678 4140 M
L Créal Chile (Chile} 20 888 3217 100 43 784 42 398 10,586 6,781
L'Créal China Co Ltd {China) 23745 -26 822 100 37 482 37 482 —58 l‘l
L'Oréal Colombia (Coloming) 1,931 1973 94 8 395 4757 79 77
L'Oreal Danmark A/S {Denmark) 269 5,195 100 7332 7382 8 933 6 525
L Oreal Deutschiand GmbH (Germany) 12 647 57,116 99 99 71,832 71,832 102,435 84 103
L Créal Fspana SA (Span) 59911 57 849 63 86 228 809 228,809 53,773 39,606
L'Créal Fintand Oy (Finland) 673 13 100 1280 1280 8 269 6 976
L'Créal Guatemala SA 1,044 1,088 100 2162 2162 427 1671
L'Oréal Hellas (Greece) 3,465 4 552 77 41 2112 2112 12 0OQ 8716
L Oreal Hong Kong Ltd 3 2 496 99 97 604 B804 43 862 40 871
L Oréal Incha Private Lid 39 908 -25 245 100 54 902 19,971 3974 m
L'Oréal Invesiments B V (Netherlands) 18 8 100 18 18 0 (1}
L Oreal Israed Ltd 4118 8,528 g2 67 38 497 33 597 3,114 3,328
L'Oreal hala Spa 153,818 29 859 100 161 801 161 BO1 78147 77 201
L"Oréal Japan Lid (Japan) 370 -545 100 275 0 -27 1]
L Oreal Korea Lid (South Koreal 1991 -3326 100 20754 0 -3 296 il
L'Oréal Liban SAL 3139 978 99 88 7 658 7,688 1,652 2 057
L Oréal Luxe Producten Nederfand B V 908 0 100 1937 1,937 6 784 10822
L'Oréal Luxury Products Norge (Norway) 298 397 100 853 853 2058 1,664
L"Oréal Luxury Preducis Svenge (Sweden} 110 123 100 108 108 2441 2,108
L Oreal Magyarorszag Kosmetika Kft (Hungary) 4,249 149G 100 7 815 7815 2205 1217
UOreal Malaysia SON BHD (Malaysia) 4749 634 94 34 6,456 6 456 5421 3653
L Oreal Mexico SAde OV 2349 29016 100 3 443 8,443 38 751 38 169
L Oréal Middie East (United Arab Emvrates} 2156 1074 100 2 507 2,507 12 987 7718
L Oreal Nederand BY (Netheriands) 34 3 100 4 BG4 4894 18,385 16,549
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€ thousards Capaal Reserves and % Baook vag Profit Diwdends
mtaed eamings hoiding of shares held or kass coflected by
before appropraton Gross Nat In last the company
of peclits financial yea dunny the
financial year
L'Oreal New Zealand Lid 42 1668 100 624 624 4393 3774
L'Oréal Norge A/S [Norway) 1,144 1617 100 3,193 3198 9177 8 380
L Oréal Osterreich GmbH {Austna) 2,785 305 100 2240 2,240 B8B882 7613
L Oréad Panama 159 -& 100 168 168 1,799 8]
L Oréal Peru {Peru) 2,086 323 100 3739 3307 B8O 558
L'Oréal Philippines Inc 2,062 547 95 38 12 478 2481 -327 Q]
L'Oreal Patska Sp Z O O (Poland) 21 686 18,072 100 38,210 38,210 19 763 13163
L Oréal Portugal LDA 114 250 a3 08 1,389 1,369 11,966 9043
L Oréal Produnts de Luxe Portugal LDA 250 50 299 37 N7 4,254 3481
L Oréal Produits de Luxe Belgique {Belgium) 250 760 99 97 2 885 2 885 7192 7 808
L'Oréal Produits de Luxe Hellas A E 1026 1,616 99 89 2135 2135 4 418 5241
L'Oréal Produits de Luxe Suisse (Swizertand) 257 815 100 556 556 3069 3080
L'Oréal Romania SRL {Rormania) 2,187 1,016 100 5883 5883 2,232 1217
L'Créal Singapore Pla Ltd {Singapore) 1165 -45 3100 16 891 18 991 5976 5708
L'Créal Slovenja kosmetca DO Q {Slovenia) 465 416 100 856 B56 2202 1 855
L Oréal Slovensko S RO (Slovakia) 1598 76 100 1 673 1,673 2 567 1,806
L. Oréal Suisse (Switzerland) 193 345 100 116776 118,778 14,843 15,207
1.Oréal Sverige AB (Sweden) 1,927 3781 100 2138 2,138 8075 7917
L'Oréal Tanwan (Tawan) 16,408 -12,761 100 40 942 37.572 13 620 m
L'Oréal Thailand 3992 -2,839 100 5,238 4,746 1742 1
L Oréal Turkive Kozmetik Sanay Ve Ticar 16 235 1,223 100 22 207 22 207 8176 5517
L Oréal UK Ltd 24 740 3333 100 47 372 47 372 81 286 73 836
L Oréal Ukraine N 1483 -1241 100 1380 1380 1804 0
1. Oréal Uruguay 5 349 -3120 100 5435 1,474 -1276 0
L Oréal USA Inc 4,402 12563 501 100 2 B75 385 2,875 385 2688 353 205779
L'Oréal Venezuela C A 1,733 -831 100 12 502 7021 3076 3064
Maybelkne Suzhou Cosmetics {China) 53 652 -33650 66 75 49 601 19371 g 789 m
Nihon L'Oréal KX, {Japan) 138 845 10 402 10 377 752 163752 3,845 m
PT LOreal Indonesia 1,510 -129 93 2 305 1906 460 m
PT Yasulor Ingonesia 4,760 10,881 5098 40 854 16 671 -B77 n
Parbel of Flonida Inc {USA) 40 -255 100 100 317 100 317 26 037 23 217
Parmobel Ltd (Cyprus) 572 —3689 100 34,776 34,776 4,080 7 B17
Procosa Productos de Beleza Ltda (Brazily 102 462 49 536 100 170,243 170,243 27,238 10 488
Scental Lid (Hong Kong) 5 168 100 8 8 0 n
Sofamo [Monaco) . 160 2,186 g9 97 1851 1851 585 956
The Body Shop International PLCS! 15614 306,016 100 982 £45 8992 445 -9928
Venprobel Menezuela) 20 -222 100 2,722 0 4] ]
Yue-Sar Kan Cosmetics (Shenzhen) China 4167 6040 100 168,708 168,708 489 W
8 Main foreign investments - Holdings of less than 50%
n/s s ns s n/s n's n's

{3) The Body Shep Intematonal published information as of February 25%, 2006

For foresgn subsicdianes and investments, the capital, reserves and retained sarmings have been translated into thousands of euros on the
basis of year-end exchange rates, while profits and losses have been translated at the average exchange rate for 2006

It 1s specified that the list of companies set out above is not exhaustive

Information relating to all subsidiartes and mvestments

€ thousands Subsidianes Invesiments
French Foraign French Foreign
Book value of shares held ’
* gross restated 278 609 6,724 504 512 870 1
*net 270 495 6,502,328 512 870 1
Amount of loans and advances granted 78,849 10,622
Amournit of guarantees and secunty granted 643,314 2,733
Amount of dvidends collected 234 648 937 492 217,423 0
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2007 Annual General Meeting

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ON THE DRAFT RESOLUTIONS

SUBMITTED FOR APPROVAL TO THE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING ON APRIL 2478, 2007

Ordinary part

Approval of the annual financial statements, allocabon of the
company’s net ncome for 2006, and declaration of the dwdend
{first, second and thuird resolutions)

Hawing reviewed the Reports of the Board of Directors and the
Statutory Auditors, the Annual General Meeting is called on to
approve

- the parent company financial statements, with a profit and loss
account which shows net income of €1,690 3 millon for 2006
compared with €1,589 6 millon at December 31, 2005,

- and the 2006 consolidated financial statements, the main details
of which are set out in the 2006 Annual Report, together with the
main nformation included in the fila for calling the Annual General
Meeting on Tuesday Apnl 24, 2007

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting
a net dwvidend of €1 18 per share, representing an increase of
18% compared with the net dnvidend for 2005

This dradend will be paid on Thursday May 39, 2007

Regulated agreements and regulated commitments
{fourth resolution)

No new reguiated agreement referred fo in Article L 225-38 of the
French Commercial Code was concluded or continued i 2006

A regulated commitment referred o in Article L 225-42-1 of the
French Commercial Code 15 subrmitted for the approval of the
Annual General Meeting In this regard, at its meeting on Apnl 259,
2008, the Board of Directors placed on record the suspension of
Mr Jean-Paul Agon's employment contract as from the date of
his appaintment as Chief Executive Officer and decided to con-
sider him as equivaient to a senior management executive through-
out the length of his tenure, 5o that he is able to continue to benefit
from the same schemes and plans as those he was enttled to
pnor to his appointment and, 1n parhicular, the same pension plan
and benefit fund

Thes commitment 1s descnbed in detail in the specal report of the
Statutory Auditors

Renewal of the tenure as director of Mrs Liiane Bettencourt
{fifth resolution)

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting
that i shoutd renew the tenure as director of Mrs Ltlane Bettencourt
which expires at the end of ttus Annual General Mesting This
tenure would then run for a penod of four years as prowvided for
by the Articles of Association expinng at the end of the Ordinary
General Meeting to be held in 2011 to review the financial state-
ments for 2010
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Appointment as director of Mrs Annette Roux

(sixth resolution)

The Board of Directors proposes that the Annual General Meeting
should appoint as a new director, Mrs Annette Roux, Vice-Chairman
of the Supervisory Board of Bénéteau SA

Mrs Annetta Roux took over the helm of Béneteau, then a family
business, in 1964 and showed her abilty {0 build an international
group, the world leader in its market sector This extraordinary suc-
cess owes a lot to the personai qualities of Mrs Roux, a woman of
conwviction, who 1s open and energetic and has demonsirated her
ability to put her talents to good use in developing her business,
which has been listed on the Pans stock exchange since 1984

Mrs Roux embodies one of the resounding success stories in
French industry Her skills, her expenence and her independence
will help to strengthen and ennch the Board of Directors of LU'Oreal

Mrs Annette Roux would be appointed for a period of four years
as prowvided for by the Articles of Association, expinng at the end
of the Ordinary General Meeting to be held in 2011 1o review the
financial statements for 2010

Authonsation for the company to buy back its own shares
{seventh resolution}

During 2006 and up until February 14w, 2007, the Board of
Directors continued with the implementation of its policy of buy-
ing back then canceling shares 17 68 milion shares were bought
back, for a total amount of €1,308 3 millien while 29 7 million
shares were cancelled

As the existing authonsation is due to expire in October 2007, a pro-
posal is made to the Annual General Meeting that it should grant the
Board a further authonsation enabling it to continue with its share
buyback policy, depending on the opportuniies that may anse

A detalled repert on the transactions camed out and a descnp-
tion of the authonsation that 1s being put to your vote are included
in the Chapter of the Management Report entitled “Buyback of
its own shares by the Company”

The authonsation would be granted for a penod of 18 months at
a purchase pnce per share that may not be greater than €120

The authonsation would concem no more than 10% of the cap-
ital for a maximum amount of €7 5 billion, it being stipulated that
the company may at no time hold over 10% of its own capial,
and that share buybacks made in thus manner could not continue
dunng a public offer penod

Extraordmnary Part

Delegation of authonty to the Board of Directors

to increase the share capital either through the 1ssue
of ordinary shares with maintenance of preferential
subscnption nghts, or via the capitalisation of share
premiumns, reserves, profits or other amounts
(etghth resolution)




The authonsation given to the Board of Directors on Apnl 26,
2005 to increase the share capital either through the ssue of cash
shares with preferential subscnption nghts, or via the capitalisa-
tton of reserves, 1s due to expire This authonsation was never
used by the Board 1t 1s proposed that the Annual General Meegting
should renew this authonsation

The total amount of the capital Increases that may thus be car-
ned out immediately and/or in future may not lead to the share
capital, which currently amounts to €125,225,382, being increased
1o over €185,000,000, 1 e, for information purpases, a maximum
increase of 47 7% as compared with the cumrent capital

This delegation of authonty would be valid for a penod of 26 months,
as from the date of the Annual General Meeting

Authorisation given to the Board of Directors to grant stock
options to purchase and/or subscribe for LOréal shares
{minth resolution)

H1s proposed that the Annual General Meeting should give a fur-
ther authonsation to the Board of Directors to grant stock options
to purchase and subscnbe for shares

Stock ophions bring the interests of their benefic:anes closer m
line with the interests of the shareholders themselves by having
them share the same confidence in the sirong and steady growth
of the company

The aim 15 to give the Board of Directors the means to involve,
motivate and foster loyalty particularly among the employees and
corporate officers who, through therr abiliies and therr commit-
ment, contnbute the most to the group’s performance Stock
options also form part of L'Oreal's strategy of encouraging or
attracting talented indviduals

The bensficianes would be employees and/or certan corporate
officers The total number of stock oplions that could be granted
may not give entitlement to subscrbe for or purchase a total num-
ber of shares representing more than 2% of the share capital at
the date of the decision made by the Board of Drectors The exer-
cise price would comply with French legal prowisions, without the
possibility of granting a discount, as cleary specified in the reso-
tution

if the Annual General Mesting approves this resolulion, any afto-
cations to be made will be decided by the Board of Directors, on
the basis of the proposals made by the General Management and
reviewed by the Management and Remuneration Committee

This authonsation would be granted for a pencd hmited to
26 manths as from the date of the decision made by the Annual
General Meeting

Allocation, for no consideration, of existng shares

or shares to be issued, to employees of the company
(tenth resolubon)

It 15 proposed that the Annual General Meeting should authonse
the Board of Dvectors to make, on one or more occasions, free
grants of existing shares or shares 10 be 1ssued
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Afree grant of shares offers the advantage of not requinng any pay-
ment to be made by beneficianes s beng consdered as a eplace-
ment for, or a means of supplementing, grants of small numbers of
stock options as the attractiveness of such a grant may appear km-
ted The free grants of shares will be perfomance-related

No free grants of shares wil be made either to corporate officers
or members of the Management Committee of L'Oréal

The number of shares that may be granted free of charge may
not represent over 0 2% of the share capital on the date of the
Board of Directors’ decision

It 1s proposed to the Annual General Meeting that the free grant
of shares to beneficianes should become final and binding

= either, for all or part of the shares granted, at the end of a miru-
mum vestng peneod of four years, in such case without any min-
imum retention penod,

= or, at the end of a minimum vesting penod of two years, it being
specified that the beneficianes will then be required to retain these
shares for a minimum penod of two years after the date of the
final grant thereof

By eliminating the minimum retention penod, a possbility offered
by the French law of December 30™, 20086 provided that the min-
imum vesting penod 1s four years, the Annual General Megling
will enable the Board of Directors to remove, for some or all of the
shares granted free-of-charge, certan local constraints which
could hinder the Internationalisation of free grants of shares within
the group

The Board of Directors will have the possibdity, in any event, to
set a longer vesting of retention penod than these minimum pen-
ods, including in the event that the mimimum retention penod 1s
abolished by the Annual General Meeting, which will make 1t pos-
sible, In particular, to adapt to the vanous local constraints

If the Annual General Meeting approves this resclution, any free
grants of shares wil be decided by the Board of Directors, on the
basis of the proposals made by the General Management and
reviewed by the Management and Remuneration Committee

The authonsation requested from the Annual General Meeting would
he granted for a penod imited to 26 months as from the date of
the decision made by the Annual General Meeting The expiry date
of this authonsation would coincide with the end of the authonsa-
ton to grant stock options to purchase or subscnbe for shares
which 13 also being put to the vote of the Annual General Meeting

Corresponding authonsation for the purpose of carrying
out a capital increase reserved for employees

(eleventh resolubon)

The delegation of authonty to the Board of Directors to increase
the share capttal, and the authonsatons to grant stock options
to subscnbe {or shares and 1o make free grants of shares to be
issued give nse to a comresponding obligation to submit to the
Annual General Meeting a draft resolution enabling a potential
capial Increase to be camed out reserved for employees
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The Annual General Meeting 1s therefore requested to defegate to the Board of Drrectors, for a penod of 26 months, and within a imit
of 1% of the share capital, the power to decide to camry out the said capital increase

Amendment of the Arhicles of Association

{twelfth resolution)

It 1s proposed that the Annual General Meeting should decide to amend Article 12 of the Articles of Assocration In accordance wath the
new provisions of the French Decree of March 23w, 1967 as amended by the French Decree of December 11%, 2006 concerning

« the conditions of access to General Meetings remaoval from the Articles of Association of the requirement for a certificate of unavail-
ability in order to enable sharehclders holding bearer shares to atlend General Meetings, the Decree provides in this respect that the
capacity of shareholder (of either registered shares or bearer shares} 1s now to be assessed in kght of an entry in the share register on
the third working day at zero hours, Pans time, pnor to the Annual General Meeting, and

» the conditions for distance voling pnor to the Annual General Meeting inclusion in the Articles of Association of the possihility to vote
using an etectronic voting form, if the Board of Directors so decides at the time when the General Meeting 15 called

Powers for formalities
{thirteenth resolution)
This resolution s intended to grant the powers necessary to carry out all formalities resutting from the holding of the Annual General Meeting

For the actiity of the L'Oreal company since the beginning of the 2007 calendar-year, please refer to the financial news releases avai-
able on the www loreal-finance com website

The Board of Directors
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DRAFTS RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED

FOR APPROVALS TO THE ORDINARY

AND EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
APRIL 24™, 2007

Ordinary part

1t resolution

Approval of the 2006 parent company financial statements
The Annual General Mesting, having rewewed the Reports of the
Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors, approves the Report
of the Board of Directors and the 2006 parent company financial
statements showing et income of €1,690,255,720 74 compared
with €1,589,582,354 89 for 2005

2nd resolution

Approval of the 2006 consolidated financial statements
The Annual General Meeting, hawving reviewed the Reports of the
Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors, approves the 2006
consolidated financial statements

3 resolution

Altocation of the company’s net income for 2006

and declaration of the dwidend

The Annual General Meeting, on the proposal of the Board of
Drrectars, decides to allocate the 2006 net Income, amounting to
€1,690,255,720 74 as follows

1 eurds

No allecation to the lega! reserve which already -
represents over one-ienth of the share capital
An amount of

will be allocated to shareholders as a dradend (1
The balance that s

will ba afiocated to the “Other reserves™©) nem

738,829 753 8O

951 425 966 94

{4} Including an intial dvidend equal to 5% of the amounts paid up on the shares, ie the
total amount of the share capital

(2) This amount takes into account the number of shares formag the capdal al February 149,
2007 and will be adjusted to reflect the number of shares issuad following the exertisa of
options to subsenbe for shares with 2006 dividend nghts on the dividend payment date

The Annual General Meeting therefore declares a net dwidend to
be pad for the financial year of €1 18 per share

The Annual General Meeting decides that the dvdend will be paid
on May 3, 2007

The amount of iIncome corresponding to the dvidends not pad
on treasury shares held by the company will be allocated to the
Orchnary reserve tern

In accordance with Article 243 bis of the French Tax Code (Code
géneral des impdts), the dwdend distnbuted to natural persons
wha have therr tax residence in France is eligible in full for the
40% tax deduction prowided for in Article 158-3-2° of the French
Tax Code
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The net dvdends® per share paid for the last three years were
the following

2003 2004 2005
€073 €0 82 €100

{3 For certan taxpayers, the dndend granted entitlement o a tax credit equal to 50% of
the diwdend for distributions made for 2003

4% resolution

Regulated agreements and regulated commitments

The Annual General Meeting, having reviewed the special report
of the Statutory Auditors on agreements provided for in Article
L. 225-40 of the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce),
approves the commitrment descnbed in this report

5% resolution

Renewal of the tenure as director of Mrs Lilane Bettencourt
The Annual General Meeting renews the tenure as director of
Mrs Lilane Bettencourt for a penod of four years as provided for
by the Artictes of Association

Her tenure will expire at the end of the Ordinary General Meeting
to be held in 2011 to review Lhe financial statements for the year
ending December 31%, 2010

6t resolution

Appotntment as director of Mrs Annette Roux

The Annual General Meeting decides to appoint Mrs Annette Roux
as director for a penod of four vears as provided for by the Articles
of Assotiation, and this penod will exprre at the end of the Ordinary
General Meeting to be held in 2011 {o review the financial state-
menis for the year ending December 312, 2010

7t resolution

Authonsation for the company to buy back its own shares
The Annwal General Meeting, having reviewed the reports of the
Board of Directors, authonses the Board of Directors, with the
possibility to delegate, to trade in the company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange or otherwise, in accordance with the require-
ments of Articles L. 225-209 and seq of the French Commercial
Code, and subject to the following conditions

» the purchase pnce per share may nof be greater than €120,

» the number of shares to be bought by the company may not
exceed 10% of the number of shares forming the capital at
February 140, 2007, that 1s 62,612 691 shares for a maximum
amount of €7 5 billion, 1t being stipulated that the company may
at no tme hold over 10% of ds own capital

In the event of any transactions affecting the company’s capital,
the amounts indicated above will be adjusted on the basis of the
charactenstics of the transaction

The company may buy its own shares for the following purposes
« their cancellation for purpeses of optimising shareholders’ equity
and net earrungs per share by a reduction in the capital, in accor-
dance with the authonsation granted by the Extracrdinary General
Meeting of May 22, 2003 for a penod of five years,

« ther allocation to employees and corporate officers of the com-
pany and affikates under the terms and condtions prowded for
by French law, and in particular within the scope of employee




profit-sharing schemes, stock options, free grants of shares or
company savings schemes,

* animate the market through a hquidity agreement entered into
with an investment services provider,

e retaining them and subsequently using them as payment in con-
nechon with externa! growth transactions

Purchase, sale, exchange and transfer operations carned out
within the scope of this authonsation may be carmed out by any
means on or off the stock markets and, in particular, in whole or
in part, wa transactions invalving blocks of shares or the use of
dervatives, In accordance with the applicable regulations

The General Meeting grants thus authonisation for & penod of
18 months as from the date of this General Meeting, this autho-
nsation will cancel that granted by the General Meeting on Apnl 25t,
20086 for the penod of such authonsation that has not vet elapsed,
as from the date of implementation of such authonsation by the
Board of Directors

The Annual General Meeting grants full powers to the Board of
Directors, with the possibility to delegate, o make all trades, enter
into all agreements, prepare all documents, particulary for infor-
makion purposes, cary out all formalites and make all declarations
and filings with all organisations and, 1n general, to take all actions
that are necessary for the implementation of this resolution

Extraordinary part

8t resolution

Delegation of authonty to the Board of Directors

to increase the share capital either through the 1ssue

of ardinary shares with maintenance of preferentsal
subscription rights, or via the capitalisation of share
premiums, reserves, profits or other amounts

The Annual General Meeting, having reviewed the report of the
Board of Drrectors and in accordance with the provisions of Article
L 225-128-2 of the French Commercial Code

1 - Delegates to the Board of Directors the authonty to decide on
one or more Increases In the share capital

a - through the issue of ordinary shares of the company,

b - and/or via the capitalisation of share premiums, reserves, prof-
its or other amounts which it will be possible to capitalise pur-
suant to French law and the Articles of Assoaiation in the form of
allocahons of bonus shares or an increase In the par value of exst-
ing shares

The defegation of authonty thus granted to the Board of Directors
1s valid for a penod of 26 months as from the date of this meeting,

2 - Decides that the total amount of the capital increases that may
thus be carned cut either mmediately and/or in future may not
lead to the share capital, which currently amounts to
€125,225,382, being increased 10 over €185,000,000, 1 e, for
information purposes, a maximum increase of 47 7% as com-
pared with the current capital

3 - Decides, ff the Board of Drectors uses thus delegation of authority
withen the scope of the share ssues referred to in paragraph 1 a that
a - the shareholders will have a preferential subscnplion nght to
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the shares issued pursuant to this resolution, in proportion to the
amount of therr shares,

b -the number of shares to be 1ssued may be increased withun
thirty days of the end of the subscrnption penod watrun the it of
15% of the intial share 1ssue and at the same price as that used
for the initiad share 1ssue, when the Board of Directors notes that
demand exceeds the number of avallable shares,

¢ -1f subscnptions made by shareholders by way of nght on the
basis of the shares they hold and, where applicable, ther subscnp-
tions for excess shares, do not cover the fult number of shares or
secunties 1ssued as defined above, the Board will be able to offer
to the public all or part of the non-subscnbed shares or secunties

4 - Decides that, f the Board of Directors uses this delegation of
authonty wathin the scope of capitalisations of share premiums,
reserves, profits or other amounts referred to in paragraph 1 b,
where applicable, In accordance with Article L 225-130 of the
French Commercial Code, the fractionat share rnights will nol be
negotable and the comesponding shares will be sold the amounts
dernved from the sale will be allocated to the holders of the nghts
within thirty days at the latest after entry in their account of the
whole number of shares afocated

5 - Records that this delegation renders ineffective any prior
delegation for the same purpose

gt resolution

Authonsation given to the Board of Directors to grant stock
options to purchase and/or subscnbe for L'Oreal shares
The Annual General Meeting, having reviewed the report of the
Board of Directors and the Special Report of the Statutory Auditors
» zuthonses the Board of Directors to grant options to purchase
existing shares and/or to subscnbe for new shares of L'Creal, to
employees or corporate officers of L'Qréal or companies or eco-
nomic Interest groupings that are directly or indirectly affihated
with it under the conditions of Article L 225-180 of the French
Commercial Code

«sets at 26 months from the date of this General Meeting the
pencd of validity of this authonsation which may be used on one
or more occasions,

*decides that the total number of options thus granted by the
Board of Directors may not entitle to subscribe for ar purchase a
total number of shares representing more than 2% of the share
capital on the date of the Board of Directors decision,

s decides that

-the purchase price for the shares paid by the beneficanes will be
set by the Board of Oirectors, without any discount on the date
when the options are granted, this pce may not be less than either
the average of the opening pnices for the twenty trading days before
the day on which the oplions are granted, or the average purchass
pnce of the shares held by the company pursuant to Articles
L.225-208 and L 225-20% of the French Commercial Code,
-the share subscnption price pad by the beneficiartes will be set
by the Board of Directors, without any discount, on the day the
options are granted this pnce may not be less than the average
of the opening pnices for the twenty trading days before the day
on which the options are granted,

« decides that the options must be exercised within 2 maximum
penod of ten years as from the date on which they are granted,
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*» decides thal if the company carnes out financial transactions in
particular affecting the capital after the allocation of the options

the Board of Directors will take the necessary steps to protect the
interests of the beneficianes of the options under the conditions
provided for by the faws and regulations,

« records {hat this authonsation entails, in favour of the benefici-
aries of options to subscribe for shares, express wawver by the
shareholders of their preferential subscnption nghts o the shares
that will be 1ssued as and when the options are exercised,

« delegates full powers to the Board of Directors, with the possi-
biity to further delegate to the Chisf Executive Officer, to set all
the other terms and conditions for afiocation of the options and
their exercise, and notably to

- provide for the possibility to temporanty suspend the exercise of
oplions, in the event that any financial or secunties fransactions
are carnied out,

-deduct, if he deems it appropnate, the expenses incurred to
increase ihe share capital from the amount of the share premi-
ums related to these increases and to deduct from this amount
the sums reguired to raise the legal reserve to one tenth of the
new share caputal after each capital increase,

* delegates full powers 10 the Board of Drectors to implement this
authonsation, with the possibility to further delegate In accordance
with the condittons of the laws and regulations, and particularly
to record the increases in the share capital resulting from the
options which are exercised, to amend the Articles of Association
accordingly, to carry out all achons and formaliies or have them
camed out, and mare generally to do all that 1S necessary,

= records that this authonsation renders ineffective, as from the
date hereof, any previous authonsation for the same purpose, to
the extent of the unused pan, if any

10% resolution

Allocation, for no consideration, of existing shares or
shares to be 1ssued, to employees of the company

The Extraordinary General Meeting, having reviewed the Report
of the Board of Directors and the Special Report of the Statutory
Auditors, in accordance with Articles L 225-197-1 et seq of the
French Commercial Code

+ authonses the Board of Directors to carry out, on one or more
occasions, to employees of the company or of affilates within the
meaning of Article L 225-197-2 of the French Commercial Code
or certain categones of such employees, free grants of existing
shares or shares to be 1ssued of L'Oréal,

»sets at 26 months as from the date of this meeting, the penod
of validty of this authonsation whuich may be used on one or more
OCCasons,

*decides that the Board of Directors will determine the identity of
the beneficianes of the grants as well as ihe conditions and, where
applicable, the cntena for the grant of shares,

» decides that the number of shares thus granted free of charge
may not reprasent over 0 2% of the share capital on the date of
the Board of Directors' decision,

» decides that the grant of ihese shares to thewr benefictanies will
become final and binding

-either, for all or part of the shares granted, at the end of a mini-
mum vestng penod of four years, n such case without any min-
imum holding penod,
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-or, at the end of a minimum vesting period of two years, it being
specified that the beneficianes will then be required 10 hold these
shares for a mimmum penod of two years afier the date of the
final grant thereof,

* decides that the grant of these shares to therr benefictanes will
become final and binding pnor to the expiry of the above-men-
fioned vesting penods n the event of disability of the beneficiary
corresponding to classification in the second or third categones
prowded for in Article L 341-1 of the French Social Secunty Code
(Code de la Securité sociale) and that such shares will be freely
transferable in the event of disability of the beneficiary comrespon-
ding to classification in the above-mentioned categories under
the French Social Secunty Code,

+ authonses the Board of Directors to make, where applicable

dunng the vesting perod, adjustments to the number of shares
related to any potential transactions with regard to the company’s
capital In order to preserve the nghts of the beneficianes,

« records that this authonsaton automatically entails, in favour of
the beneficianes of shares granted free of charge the waver by
the shareholders of their preferential subscription nghts in the
event of the 1ssue of new shares,

* delegates full powers to the Board, with the possibiity to dele-
gate within the legal imits, to implement this authonsation, it being
specified that the Board of Directors will be able to provide for
lenger vesting and retention pencds than the minimum periods
prowvided for above

11th resolution

Delegation of authonty to the Board of Directors

for the purpose of carrying out a capital increase reserved
for employees

The Annual General Meeting, having reviewed the Report of the
Board of Drectors and the Special Report of the Statutory Auditors,
and acting in accordance with Articles L 225-129-2, L 225-129-
6 and L 225-138 of the French Commercial Code and Articles
L 443-1 et seg of the French Labour Code (Code du trava}

* delegates to the Board of Directors the authonty to decide to
carry out, on one or More occasions, on its own decisons, In the
proporions and at the tmes it may consider appropriate, the 1ssue
of shares reserved for employees (or former employees) of the
company or of its affiiates as defined by Aricle L 225-180 of the
French Commercial Code who are members of a company sav-
ngs scheme and of any unit trust through which the shares thus
ssued may be subscnbed by them,

« decides to cancel the preferential subscription nght of share-
holders for the shares issued in accordance with this authonsa-
ticn, for the benefit of employees {or former employees) of the
company or of its affillates as defined by Article L 225-180 of the
French Commercial Code who are members of a company sav-
ings scheme and of any unit trust through which the shares thus
1ssued may be subscnbed by them,

* sets the penod of validity of this delegation at 26 months as from
the date of this General Meeting, and records that this delegation
renders ineffective any pnor delegation for the same purpose,

= decides 10 set at 1% of the share capital existing at the date of thus
General Meeting the caprtal increase that could thus be completed,
that 1s an increase n the share capital by a masamurm nomnal amount
of €1 252,253 through theissue of 6,261,269 new shares,

» decides that the pnce of the shares subscnbed for by the ben-
eficianes referred to above, pursuant to this delegation, will be set




in accordance wath the provisions of Article L. 443-5 of the French
Labour Cade,

+ decides that the Board of Directors will have full powers to imple-
ment this delegation of authonty within the imits and under the
conditons specified above in parbicular In order to

- set the conditions that must be met by the employees (or for-
mer employees) to be able to subscnbe, indvidually or through a
unit trust, for the shares 1ssued pursuant to this delegation,

- adopt the conditions of the share 1ssue,

-decide on the Iist of the companies whose employees may ben-
efit from the share 1ssue,

- dec:de the amount to be 1ssued, the 1ssue price, the dates and
terms and conditions of each share 1ssue,

-get the tme penod allotted to the members to pay up therr shares,
- get the date, even with retrospective effect, as of which the new
shares will carry dmdend nghts, record or cause to be recorded
the completion of the capital increase for the amount of the shares
that have been effectively subscnbed to, or decide to provide for
a higher amount of such increase so that all the subscriptions
receved can effectively be covered,

- deduct, where applicable, the costs, taxes and fees of such
1ssues from the amount of the share premums and deduct, where
applicable, from the amounts of the share premiums, the amounis
required 1o allocate them to the legal reserve to sel them at the
leve! required by the French legislation and regulatons in force,
-in general, carry out all acts and formalities, 1ake all decisions and
enter into any agreements that may be appropnale or necessary
for the due and proper completion of the share 1ssues made pur-
suant to this delegation of authonty and, in particular, for the 1ssue,
subscription, delivery, granting of dividend nghits for, listing, nego-
tiabiity and financial servicing of the new shares and the exercise
of the nghts attached thereto, and to record the final completion
of the capital increase(s) made pursuant {o this delegation of author-
ity and amend the Articles of Association accordingly

12th resolution

Amendment of the Articles of Association

The Annual General Meeting. having reviewed the Report of the
Board of Birectors, decides to amend Article 12 of the Artictes of
Associatton In order to bnng the Articles of Association of L'Oréal
Into comphance with the new provisions of the French Decree of
March 23, 1067

Accordingly, paragraphs 8 to 10 of Article 12 of the Articles of
Association that are currently drafted as follows

“Shareholders may vote by mail in accordance with the condi-
tions stipulated by law, shareholders whao use the official form for
thus purpose within the required time period are placed on an equal
footing with shareholders present or represented

If the Board of Directors so decides when the Meeting 1s called,
any shareholder may take part in the Meeting by videoconierence
or by any other lelecommurication or remote transmiss:on means
ncluding the Internet, in the conditions stipulated by the applica-
ble reguiations at the trme it 1s used If this decision ts taken it 1S
communicated in the meeting notice pubished in the Bulletin des
Annonces Legales Obhgatoires (BAL O)
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The nght to take part In the Meetings 15 condiional on holders of
registered shares being shareholders of record at the latest the
day of the Meeting, and on holders of bearer shares submitting
at least three days before the Meeling, at the places indicated in
the notice to attend, a certificate from an authorised custodian,
sbpulating that the bearer shares will remain in a blocked account
up to the date of the Meeting "

will be replaced by three new paragraphs, drafted as follows

“Shareholders may participate in the Meetings i accordance with
the terms and conditions prowvided for by the regulations in force

If the Board of Drectors s¢ decides when the General Meeting 1s
called, any shareholder may take part in the Meeting by wideo-
corference or by any cther telecommunication or remote trans-
mission means including the Internet, In the conditions stipulated
by the apphicable regulations at the tme 1t 1s used If this decision
18 taken, it 1s communicated in the meeting notice published in
the Bufletin des Annonces Légales Obhigatores (BA L O)

Shareholders voting by mail or by proxy using the official form for
this purpose, within the required time penod are placed on equal
footing with shareholders present or represented |, If the Board of
Directors so decides when the Meeting 18 called, the entry of data
and the electronic signature of the form may be made directly on
the website set up by the person centralising the Meeting docu-
ments by any process adopted by the Board of Direciors that
meets the condibons provided for in the first sentence of the sec-
and paragraph of Article 1316-4 of the French Civit Code (Code
cvif), which may consist, in paricutar, of an identification code
and a passward The proxy form or the vote cast in this manner
onor to the Meeting by this electronic means, and the acknow!-
edgement of receipt given,, shall be considered as revocable
wnitten evidence that 1s enforceable with regard to all the parties
nvolved, being specified that in the event of a sale of shares that
takes place before the third working day pnor to the Meeting at
zero hour (Pans time), the company shall invalidate or amend the
proxy form or vote cast pner to such date and time accordingly,
where applicable "

13th resolution

Powers for formalities

The Annual General Meeting grants full powers to the bearer of
an onginal, copy or extract of these minutes to accomplhsh all legal
and adminstratve formaliies, and 1o rmake all filings and announce-
ments prescribed by law
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Additional information

GENERAL INFORMATION RELATING
TO THE COMPANY

Share capttal

See information on pages 63 to 66 of this Document
Legal form

L'Oréal 1s ncorporated in France as a “sociéte anonyme”
Law governing the issuer

French law

Business achivity

The £Oréal company, iy addition to is role of strategre, scientific
and industnial coordination of the group on a global basss, also
functions as a holding company and pesforms a sales acteaty that
15 specific to France

Most of the subsidiaries have a role of development and market-
ing of the products made in the group's factones

L'Oréal wholly owns the vast majonity of its subsidianes In the
other subsidianes, minonty interests are not materal (pages 46
fo 49) It also has substantial investments in non-consolidated
companies {pages 49 and 50 and pages 119 to 121)

Date of incorporation and term of the company
{Article 5 of the Articles of Association)

“The company’s term shall be ninety-nine years, which began to
run on January 12, 1963 and which shall thus expire an December
31% 2061, except in the event of early dissolution or of extension,
as provided for In these Articles of Association ”

Purpose of the company (extracts from Article 2
of the Articles of Association)

“The company’s comporate purpose, bath in France and/or at any other
location anywhere throughout the entire world, shall be as follows

* the manufaciunng and the sale of cosmetics products in
general, of all dewices intended for the same uses as the products
listed above, of all household maintenance products, of all prod-
ucts and articles refating 1o femining and child hygiene and to the
embelishment of humen beings, the demonstration and adver-
tising of such products, the manufactunng of packaging articles,
= the fikng and acquisiion of all patents, licenses, processes and
manufactunng tradernarks, their exploitation, thesr assignment
and/or ther contnbution,

+ all dversification transactions and all commercial, financial, mov-
able property and/or real property transactions, made in the com-
pany’s interest, in any form whatscever,

e the direct or indirect nvolvement in all transactions such as those
listed above, in particular by means of the creation of comparues,
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the contnbution to pre-existing companes, the merger or the
allance with such comparues ”

Company registration number
632 012 100 Pans Trade and Companies Registry
Consuitation of documents relating to the company

The Articles of Association, financial statements, reports and
information for shareholders can be consulted at 41, rue Martre,
92117 Clichy, France, preferably by appointment

Fiscal year {Article 14 of the Articles of Association)

“Each fiscal year shall have a duration of twelve months, to begin
on January 1t and to end on December 31% of each year”

Distnbution of profits
{Article 15 of the Articles of Association)

“A - From the distnbutable profits, the following amounts shall be
withheld, in the following order

1 The amount required to pay the “pnmary daidend” o the share-
holders equal o 5% of the amounts pard up on the unredeemed
securities i accordance with calls for funds, prowided however
that (where the profits for a given year do not allow such dividend
to be paud) the shareholders shall not be entitled to claim such
dsdend from out of the profits of subsequent years

2 From the avalable remainder, the Ordinary General Meeting,
upon a proposal by the Board of Directors, shall have the author-
ity to resolve to withhold the amounts that it deems appropnate
{and even the entire amount of such avalabte remander}, erither
to be camed forward to the next fiscal year, or to be paid into a
“prudential fund” or 1nto one or more ordinary, extraordinary or
special reserve funds

Such reserve fund(s), which shall not bear any interest, may be
distnbuted to the shareholders, or aflocated o complete the 5%
primary dividend for the shareholders, in the event of insufficient
results dunng one or more fiscal years, or 10 acguire and to can-
cel shares or investment certificates in the company, or to redeem
in whole or in part such shares or investment certificales

3 The remaining balance (if any) shall be dded up among all the
shareholders, without any discnmination, and each share shall
entitle its holder to receve the same tncome

B - The losses {if any} shall be charged to the retained earnings
from preceding fiscal years or to the reserve funds, and the bak-
ance shall be booked into a speca! “carry forward account ”
Annual General Meetings

Annual General Meetings are governed by all the legal provisions
and regulations faid down in this connection

Since the Annual General Meeting of Apnl 28, 2004, double vot-
ing nghts have been ekminated




Statutory share ownership threshold

“Any holder, whether direct or indirect, of a fraction of the comi-
pany’s share caprtal equal to 1%, or to a muttiple of this percent-
age lower than 5%, 1s required to inform the company within a
penod of fifteen days in the event that these thresholds have been
passed in either direclion” {Arkcle 7, paragraph 2 of the Articles
of Association)
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L'OREAL SHARE MARKET

Eurobst — compartment A (Large Caps}
Deferred Settlement Service of the Pans Bourse

Trading volume and change 1n the price
of the company’s shares

Date Price in euros Average daly
Thus provision of the Articles of Association supplements the kegal High Low  Average trading
requrements covenng disclosures concerming the crossing, upwards volume
or downwards, of thresholds relating to one-twentieth, one-ienth, {€ milions )
three-twentieths, one-fifth one-quarter, cne-third, one-half, two- 2004
thirds, eighteen-twentieths or nineteen-twentieths of share capitat January 6990 6235 6542 11400
or of voting nghts {Article L 233-7 of the French Commercial Code) February 69 40 63 50 6615 78 86
March 67 60 6010 6363 85 84
“If not disclosed in accordance with the conditions stipulated by Apnl 6575 6190 64 18 85 08
law or by the Articles of Association, shares exceeding the frac- May 8505 6190 63 68 116 67
ton which should have been disclosed are deprived of voling nghts June 67 45 62 85 64 87 9017
at Shareholders’ Meetings, In accordance wath the conditions stip- July 66 00 5855 6143 8249
ulated in the French Commercial Code, if dunng a Meeting the fail- August 59 90 54 25 56 52 94 77
ure to disclose s noted, and f one or more sharehalders together Septamber 5775 5245 5528 a7 71
holding at teast 5% of the share capital, so request dunng the October 54 45 5150 52 83 90 22
Meehng” (Article 7, paragraph 3 of the Articles of Associabion) Novernber 56 90 5345 55 38 7104
December 56 45 53 85 5506 73 68
) 2005
THE L'OREAL SHARE January 5810 54 50 56 40 89 07
February 80 20 5730 58 55 8403
information on the L'Oréal share March 6215 5875 60 07 84 97
April 62 20 5510 5917 98 79
sin code FROODO120321 May 5865 5560 57 66 87 54
June 6150 5835 60 15 7341
Minmum lot 1 share July 6595 56 20 62 45 10207
August 6580 5215 64 53 77 45
Par value €02 September 67 45 6275 6517 106 38
October 65 90 59 40 62 75 8357
Trading on the spot market of the Pans Stock Exchange November 8270 59 40 6126 74 65
December 84 20 60 95 62 22 79 58
Elgible for the Deferred Settlement Servica (SRD) 2006
January 67 05 52 30 64 86 108 80
Unsponsored Amencan Depositary Receipts are freely traded in February 7545 6515 69 57 120 65
the United States through certain Amencan banks March 7580 7180 74 08 101 46
Apnl 74 BO 70 60 7275 10154
Share price May 7500 86 70 7108 14708
June 7390 65 60 68 30 999
Price at December 31¢ 2006 €75890 Juty 79 30 7165 7568 98 66
High €84 05 at August 31# 2006 August B4 05 7660 78 68 10966
Low €62 30 at January 3° 2006 September 82 00 7685 7220 105 47
Annual nse at December 31¢ 2006 Qctober 80 90 7455 77 48 116 94
+ LOrsal +20 85% November 7090 7565 7788 8226
= CAG 40 +17 53% December 78 00 74 35 76 33 87 91
+ Euronext 100 +1881% 2007
+ DJ Euro Stoxx 50 + 22 22% January 8185 7425 77 00 11856
Market caprialsation at Dacermnber 312 2006 €43 55 billon February 83 24 7210 8112 11201
At December 31, 2008, the L'Oreal share accounted for
+ of the CAC 40 214%
+ of the Euronext 100 224%
» DJ Eurg Stoxx 50 097%
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Total Shareholder Return

Amongst the vanous economic and financial ndicators used to measure shareholder value, L'Oreal has chosen 1o apply the cnterion
of Total Shareholder Return (TSR) This incicator takes into account not only the value of the share but also the dwvidend income receved
{excluding tax credits)

10-year avolution of a portfolio of approxumately €15,000 invested in L'Oréal shares with reinvestrnent of coupons and fractional
allocation nghts

Date of transaction Nature of transacticn Investment income Number of shares
{€) (€) after the transaction
12 31 1996 Purchase of 50 shares a$ €297 B9 14,894 50 50
07 01 1997 Daadend €2 13 per share exchudng tax credit 10671 50
Remnvestment purchase of 1 share at €303 93 393 93 51
06 12 1998 Dradend €2 44 per share excluding tax credit 124 40 51
Reinvestment purchase of 1 share aj €473 05 47305 52
06 15 1999 Dividend €2 82 per share, excluding tax credit 146 66 52
Remvestment purchase of 1 share at €586 50 586 50 53
06 15 2000 Dvidend €3 40 per share excluding tax credr 18020 53
Reinvestment purchase of 1 share at €825 00 825 00 54
07 03 2000 Ten-for-one share split 540
06 08 2001 Dvdend €0 44 per share, excluding tax credit 237 60 540
Reinvestment purchase of 4 shares at €78 15 3260 544
06 04 2002 Dreidend €0 54 per share exchading tax credit 29376 544
Renvestment purchase of 4 shares at €74 95 298 B0 548
05 27 2003 Dmvitend €0 64 per share excluding tax credit 385072 548
Renvestrnent purchase of 6 shares at €61 10 366 60 554
05 14 2004 Dwvidend €0 73 per share, excluding tax credit 404 42 554
Rewnwvestinent purchasea of 7 shares a1 €63 65 445 55 561
05 11 2005 Dridend €0 82 per share 460 02 561
Remnvestment purchase of 9 shares at €56 50 508 50 570
05 10 2006 Dradend €1 00 per share 570 00 570
Reinvestment purchase of 8 shares at €72 65 58120 578
Total 18 687 23 2,874 48
Total net investment 16812 74

Partfalio value at December 31%, 2006 (578 shares at €75 90 The Total Shareholder Return of the investment 1s thus
per share) €43,870 20 10 36% per year (assuming that the shares are sold on

December 31, 2006, exciuding tax on capital gains)
The iniial capital has thus been muttiplied by 2.95 over

10 years (10-year inflation rate = 16% - Source: INSEE) NOTE. any income tax that may be paid by the investor as a
and the final capidal 1s 2.61 tmes the total net investment. result of the successive ddend payments 1s not taken into
account.
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20-year evolution of a portfolio of approximately €15,000 invested in L'Oréal shares with resnvestment of coupons and frachonal

allocation nghts.
Date of transaction Nature of iransaction Investment Income Number of shares
(€) {€) after the transaction
12 31 1986 Purchase of 25 shares a1 €586 17 14 §54 25 25
06 30 1987 Divdend €5 03 per share, excluding tax credt 12577 25
Relnvestment purchase of 1 share at €525 95 525 95 26
08 30 1988 Dwvidend €5 64 per share, excluding tax credit 146 66 268
Reinvestment purchase of 1 share at €509 18 509 18 27
06 30 1989 Dmdend €7 62 per share excluding tax credit 205 81 27
Reinvestment purchase of 1 share at €657 61 697 61 28
06 29 1990 Dnadend €9 15 per share excluding tax credit 256 11 28
Reinvestment purchase of 1 share at €827 80 827 8O 29
Q7 06 1990 Ten-for-one share split 290
06 28 1991 Dridend €1 07 per share excluding tax credit 306 47 290
Reinvestment purchase of 4 shares at €87 20 345 B0 294
06 26 1992 Dradend €1 28 per share, excluding tax creddt 37648 204
Remvestiment purchase of 3 shares at €140 25 42076 297
06 2519683 Drvigend €1 46 per share excluding tax credit 434 68 297
Reinvestment purchase of 3 shares at €167 69 503 07 300
06 28 1984 Dradend €1 85 per share excluding tax credit 493 83 300
Reinvestment purchase of 3 shares at €167 £9 503 07 303
06 28 1935 Draderxd €1 86 per share excluding tax credit 563 54 303
Rewwvestment purchase of 4 shares at €185 84 743 36 307
06 28 1996 Dinderwd €2 03 per share excluding tax credit 6§22 16 307
Reinvestment purchase of 3 shares at €260 54 781862 310
07 01 1996 Issue of bonus shares (1 for 10) 341
07 01 1997 Dnadend €2 13 per share, excluding tax credit 727 79 34
Rewwestment purchase of 2 shares at €393 83 787 86 343
06 12 1998 Divdend €2 44 per share excluding tax credit 836 64 343
Remvestment purchase of 2 shares at €473 05 946 10 345
06 15 1599 Drdend €2 82 per share, excluding tax credit 973 01 345
Renvestment purchase of 2 shares at €586 50 117300 347
06 15 2000 Dnndend €3 40 per share, excludng tax credit 1179 80 347
Renvestment purchase of 2 shares at €825 00 1,650 00 349
07 03 2000 Ten-for-one share spit 3,490
06 08 2001 Dnndend €0 44 per share excluding tax credi t 535 60 3,490
Reinvestment purchase of 20 shares al €78 15 158300 3510
06 04 2002 Dwidend €0 54 per share excluding tax cred 1,895 40 3510
Reinvestment purchase of 28 shares at €74 95 1948 70 3536
05 27 2003 Dnidend €0 64 per share, excluding tax credit 226304 3,536
Rermvestment purchase of 38 shares at €61 10 232180 3574
05 14 2004 Dvidend €0 73 per share excluding tax credi 2,609 02 3574
Renvestment purchase of 41 shares at €63 65 2,609 65 3615
05 11 2005 Dhadend €0 B2 per share 2,964 30 3615
Reswestiment purchase of 53 shares at €56 50 2994 50 3668
0510 2006 Dmdend €1 Q0 per share 366800 3668
Retnvestment purchase of 51 shares at €72 65 370615 3719
Totat 40,215.23 18,652.60
Total net investment 21562 63

Portfolio value at December 31=, 2006 (3,719 shares at €75 90

per sharef €282,272.10

The Total Sharehoider Retumn of the mvestment 1s thus 15.31%

per year (assunung that the shares are sold on December 31,
2006, excluding tax on caprtal gans)

The mital capital has thus been multiplied by 19 26 over

20 years {20~year infiahon rate = 48.1% - Source INSEE)
and the final capsital s 13.09 times the total net investment.

NOTE. any mcome tax that may be paid by the investor as a
result of the successive dividend payments 1s not taken into
account
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Dwvidends

The lmitation penod for dividends is five years Any dvidends for
which payment has not been requested are paid to the Caisse
des Dépdts ei Consignations

INVESTMENT POLICY

L'Oréal 1s an industnal company whose development 1s governed
by two types of Investment

1 scientfic mvestments and investments In equipment which are
explaned at length in several sections of the Annual Report (see,
In particular, Volume 1, pages 40 and 41),

2 ongoing markehng investments and occasional financial invest-
ments about which no systematic infermation can be gwven, par-
ticularty in advance, for reasons relating to strategy and competiion
a - marketing investments are made on an ongoing basis and
inherent to the group's activities, particularly in the cosmetics
industry In order to win new market shares, thorough rasearch
has to be conducted all over the world, and advertising and pro-
motional expenses have o he incurred which are modutated
depending on the famianty of the brands and ther competitive
position,

b - financial investments are stnctly cccasional They reflect a strat-
egy of moderate external growth which s implemented essen-
tially wath a view to exploiting fong term opportunities

For the reasons given above, L'Oréal cannot therefore answer
questions relating to future nvestments

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
AND ADDITIONAL BENEFITS

All over the world, depending on the legistation and practices in
gach country, L' Oreal adheres to pension, retirernent benefit and
empiloyee benefit schemes offenng a vanety of additiona! cover-
age for its employees

Employee pension schemes i France

In France, L'Oréal has supplemented its retirement plan by cre-
ating on January 1=, 2001 a defined benefits scheme with con-
ditional entitlements based on the employee's presence in the
company at the end of his/her career Then, on September 1<,
2003, a defined contributions scheme with accrued entitlements
was introduced

Defined benefits scheme

In order to provide additional cover, f applicable, to compulsory
pensions provided by the French Social Secunty compulsory pen-
sion scheme, the ARRCO or AGIRC (mandatory French supple-
mentary pension schemes), L'Oréal miroduced on January 1%,
2001, a defined benefits scheme with condit:onal entitiements,
the Retirement Income Guarantee for forrmer Senior Managers

Pnor to this, on December 31, 2000. L'Oréal closed another
defined benefits scheme, also with conditional entitfements, the
“Garantie de Retrarte des Membres du Comité de Conjoncture”
{Pensicn Cover of the Members of the “Comuté de conjonciure”)
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Access to the Retirement Income Guarantee for fermer Senior
Managers, created on January 1%, 2001, s open to former L'Oréal
Senior Executives who fulfil, in addition to having ended therr career
with the company, the conditon of having bean a Serior Manager
within the meaning of Article L 212-15-1 of the French Labour
Code for a1 least ten years at the end of their career

This scheme prowdes entitlernent to payment ta the beneficiary
retiree of a Life Annuwity, as well as, after his/her death, the pay-
ment to the beneficiary's spouse and/or ex-spouse(s) of a survv-
ing Spouse Pension and, to the children of an Orphan Penston,
subject to the children futfiling certain condtions The calculabion
basts for the Guaranteed Income 1 the average of the salanes for
the best three years out of the seven calendar years pnior to the
end of the Senior Manager's career at U'Oreal The Guaranteed
Income 1s calculated based on the beneficiary’s number of years
of professional actmty in the company at the date of the end of
his/her career at U'Oréal, and imited to a maxamum of 25 years

At this date, the gross Guaranteed Income may not exceed 50%
of the calculation bass for the Guaranteed Income, nor exceed
the average of the fixed part of the salanes for the three years
used for the calculation basis A gross annuity and gross Lump
Sum Equvalent are then calculated taking into account the sum
of the annual pensions accrued on the date when the retiree applies
for is/her pension as a result of is/her professional activity and
on the bas:s of a beneficiary who 1s 65 years of age The Ufe
Annuity 15 the resutt of the conversion into an annuity at the ben-
eficiary’s age on the date he/she apples for his/her penston of the
gross Lump Sum Eguivalent, excluding any paid nolice perod
and paid holiday, less the amount of all payments due as a result
of termination of the employment contract and all salanes paid
under an early retirernent leave plan, if such a capital 1s the result
of these cperatons Around 400 Semor Managers are eligible for
this scheme, subject to their fulfing all the conditions after hav-
ing ended their career with the company

Access 1o the Pension Cover for Members of the “Comité de
comyoncture” has been closed since December 31%t, 2000

This former scheme grants entitlemnent to payment 1o the bene-
ficrary retiree, after having ended his/her career with the company,
of a Life Annuity as well as, after his/her death, the payment to
the spouse and/or ex-spouse(s) of a surviving Spouse Pension
and, to the children, of an Orphan Pension, subject to the chil-
dren fulfiling certain conditions  The calculabion basis for the
Pension Cover 1s the average of the salanes for the best three
years out of the seven calendar years pnor to the end of the ben-
eficiary's career at L'Oreal The Pension Cover 1s calculated on
the basis of the beneficiary's number of years' service and kmited
to a maximum of 40 years The Pension Cover may not exceed
40% of the calculation basis for the Pension Cover, plus 0 5% per
vear for the first twenty years, then 1% per year for the following
twenty years, nor exceed the average of the fixed part of the
salanes of the three years used for the calculation basis Around
120 Senior Managers are eiigible for this scheme subject to the
condition, for those in active employment, of fulfiling all the con-
ditrons after having ended their career with the company




Defined contnbution scheme

Access to the Defined Contnbution scheme with accrued entitle-
ments, created on Sepiember 1%, 2003, 1s open In France to all
L'Oréal employees with more than one year's senace, and whose
salary exceeds the French Social Secunty celing, without exceed-
Ing six times this ceiing In 2003, the year in which this scheme
was created, the contnbution was 0 5% payable by the employer
Since 2004, the employees and the company make, each year
up until 2008, an Increasing contnbution ta the schemea whuch will
amount at January 1%, 2008 to 4% of the iIncome broken down
In equal shares between the employees and the company

This scheme grants entitlement to the payment to the benefici-
ary retiree, after he/she has applied for his/her pension enfitle-
ment from the French Social Security compulsory pension
scheme, of a Life Annuity as well as after his/her death, the pay-
ment to the spouse and/or ex-spouse(s} of a surviving Spouse
Pension The Life Annuity 15 calculatad on the basis of the
capital formed by ihe contnbutions made and the financial mcome
on such contributions at the end of the employee’s career
The employer's commutment 1s imited to the payment of the
contributions stipulated

In ¢ 3s 12312004 12312005 12312006

{estimated)
Number of members 7 840 8628 8880
Total net contabutions 1,808,833 2,768,544 3,916,920
Eariy retirement benefits

L'Oreal pays particular atiention to the retirement conditions of its
employees and the specific rebrement benefits or advantages
made available to them
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Early retirement leave {*Conge de fin de carmere” -CFC)
Within the framework of a company-level agreement, employees
who meet the conditions for a full-rate pension and who retire
between the ages of 60 and 63 benefit from special leave, rang-
g from three months for 20 years' service to nine months for 30
years’ service They remain salaned employees of L'Oreal and their
income 1S mantaned (subject to a celing of €8,682 per month),
as well as employes profit-shanng, ncentives and pad holidays

End-of-career leave under the bime savings account

This airangement, linked to the 35-hour working week agreement
and the Time Savings Account {Compte Epargne Temps—-CET),
enabtes an employee wha has saved 3 days’ leave per year each
year since 2001 under the C E T, to benefit from the possibility
to terminate therr activities at least 3 months earlier than sched-
uled (6 months for sales representatives), and this possibility can
be combined with the earty retrement leave

Retirement Indemnities

The schedule for calculating retrement indemnities applied by
L'Oreal 1s more favourable than that prowvided for under the French
National Collective Bargaining Agreement for the Chemical
Industnes (L'Oréal agreement of October 15, 2002)

Thus, when he/she retires, an employee may benefit from retire-
ment indemnities ranging frem one month's salary for five years'
service, to s months' salary for 35 years' service, with this length
of service being calculated up to the employee’s 65 birthday

In order to increase the special leave prior to rebrement,
the employee may opt to convert his retirement tndemnities into
time, or he/she may choose to receive payment of the retirerment
indemnities which will be made at the ttme when he/she
leaves the company

12 31 2003 12312004 12 31 2005 12 31 2006

M W Tota M W Total M W Tolal M W Total

Early retrement leave 79 1089 183 08 138 236 118 166 284 117 189 306
Compulsory retirement on the company § inhiative 8 10 20 23
Voluntary setirement 125 168 200 258

{Source KR France statisucs 2003 2004, 2003 and 2006)

These commitments are guaranteed partly by external financial cover aimed at gradually bulding up funds resulting from premizsms
paid to external orgarusations The commitments net of funds invested and the actuanal differences are booked as a provision In conso-

Iitated balance sheet liabites

The evaluation method adopted to calculate the retirement and easty retrement benefits commitments is the retrospective method and

based on estimated calculatrons of the final salary

These commitments take info account the ernployer's contnbution to the healthcare schemes for retress

€ v fons

12 31 2004 12 31 2005 12 31 2006

Prowsicn for pension commitments in conscldated balance sheet liabdities

5629 5709 567 1

{For France)
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Employees Benefit schemes in France

In addition {o the compulsory Lump Sum Death Benefit for exec-
utrves under Articles 4 and 4bus of the French National Collectve
Bargaining Agreement of 1947 (1 5% of Bracket A of Income as
defined by the French Socal Security) and the guarantees accorded
under the French National Collective Bargaining Agreement for
the Chemical Industnes, L'Oréal has set up, in France, under an
agreement, an employee benelit scheme prowiding additional col-
lectve guarantees to its employees

All these guarantees are based on the gross income up to eight
tmes the Social Secunty celing, except for the education annu-
ity which 1s imited to up to four times the celing They are gen-
erally financed on Brackets A, B and C of income as defined by
the French Social Secunty, except for the Educalion Annuity which
15 based on Brackets A and B, and the surviving Spouse Pension
which Is based on Brackets Band C

This Employee Benefit scheme provides guarantees in the event of
» temporary disabiity, for all employees, 90% of their gross
income kmited to eight imes the French Social Security celing,
net of all deductions, after the first 80 days off work,

» permanent disabihity, for all employees, a fraction, depending
on the extent of the disability, ranging up to 90% of therr gross
income, hmited to eight tmes the French Socral Secunty celling,
net of all deductions,

* death

- for all employees, the payment of a Lump Sum Death Senefit,
ncreased depending on the employees family status  The amount
of this Benefit 1s doubled in the event of accidenital death,

- for executves and comparable categones of employees, the pay-
ment of a Spouse Pension to the surmving spouse This ensures
the spouse has an ncome simiar {o the Spouse Pension that would
have been paid by AGIRC if death had occurred at the age of 65,
- for executives, comparable categones of employees and sales
representatives the payment of an Education Annuity to each
dependent child, according to an age-based schedule For the
other employees, this guarantee s optional and, if chosen, replaces
part of the Lump Sum Death Benefit

The total amount of the Lump Sum Equevalent for these guaran-
tees may not exceed €2 3 milhon per event

The capial for the Spouse Pension 1s the first to be applied, fol-
lowed by the Education Annuity, the balance of the basic scheme
1s then used to calculate the Lump Sum Death Benefit, possibly
increased by the minimum guaranteed Lump Sum Death Benefit

& 12312004 12312005 12312006
{estmated)
Net benefit scheme contributions 8231358 8019843 8125000

Minimum guaranteed Lump Sum Death Benefits

Since Decemnber 152, 2004, and January 1%, 2005 for sales repre-
sentatives, L'Oréal has put in place an addibonal guaranteed Lump
Sum Death Benefit that supplements, where applicable, for all
employees, the Lump Sum Death Benefits to the extent of three
years' average income A maximum it 15 set for this guarantee

The total amount of the capital needed to fund the surviving Spouse
Pension and Education Annuity, the Lump Sum Death Benefits
and the mwemum guaranteed Lump Sum Death Benefit 15 also
subject to a ceitng
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Healthcare expenses

Additional healthcare schemes are offered to the employees of
L'Oreal parent company and s French subsidianes

These schemes are generally optional and personal and usually
financed by the company and the employees in equal shares

Employees have the option of including their farity members in
these schemes Retirees can generally continue to benefit from
the healthcare scheme, with a contnbution by L'Oreal, subject to
a membership duration clause

Corporate officers appointed by the Board of Directors

It 1s an ongoing pelcy of L'Oreal’s Board of Directors to treat cor-
porate officers, ted to the company under an employment contract,
and appointed by d, In the same way as senior managers for a!l
additional benefits relating to ther salary These corporate officers
are therefore covered by the same pension and benefit schemes
as the L'Oréal senior managers

Pension and Employee Benefit schemes outside France

In 2002, L'Oréal set up a supervisory committee for pension and
employee benefit schemes offered by its subsidianes This com-
mittee ensures the mplementation and the monitonng of L'QOréat's
pension and employee benefits policy as defined by the L'Oreal
Executve Committee This policy prowides for general pnnciples
in the followsng areas definhion and mplementation of schemes,
relations with employees, financing and cost of the schemes and
management of the schermes Approval must first be obtained from
the Supervsory Committee pror to the introduction of any new
scheme or the modification of any existing scheme The Supervisory
Committee works in colaboration with the operational departments
of the Divisions and zones

The charactenstics of the pension schemes and other retirement
benefits offered by the subsidianes outside France vary depending
on the apphcable law and regulations as well as the practices of
the companes mn each country

In many countnes, L'Oréal participates in establishing additional
retirernent benefits for ts employees through a whole senes of defi-
ned benefit schemes and/or defined contnbution schemes (e g
United States, the Netherlands, Betgum, Canada, and Latin
Amencan counines) In some cases, the defined benefit schemes
have been closed to new recruits who are offered defined contr-
bution schemes {Germany and the United Kingdom} This senes
of defined benefit and defined contnbution schemes makes it pos-
sible to share the financial nsks and ensure improved cost stabi-
lity In defined contribution schemes, the company’s commitment
manly Consists In paying a percentage of the employee’s annual
salary into a pension plan each year

The defined benefit schemes are financed by payments into spe-
ciahst funds or by setting up provisions, i accordance with the
accounting standards adopted by U'Oréal The performance of the
managers of the man funds established, as well as the financial
stabilty rating of the custodans, 1s regularly reviewed by the
Superasory Commuttee




MAIN SHAREHOLDERS ~
OPERATIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The stakes held by Mrs Lillane Bettencourt and her farrily on the
one hand, and by Nestlé on the other hand, in the share capital of
L'Oréal, the changes in these stakes and the provisions of the
agreement signed between these shareholders on February 37,
2004 are presented in the Management Repart (cf section on
“Shareholders’ agreements relating 10 shares in the company's
share capital” page 65) The six directors appointed upon a pro-
posal by the two main shareholders are subject to the same obl-
gations as the company's other directors, notably with regard to
complance with corporate interests, as stated in the Internal Rules
of the Board of Dwectors

The method of organisation and operation adopted by the Board
of Dwrectors would enable it, if apphcable, o prevent any potential
abusive exercise of control by a shareholder, notably by the pre-
gence of five Independent members on the Board of Directors

Furthermore, the system of "Regulated Agreements and
Commitments” laid down by law prowides for a tnple control (pnor
authonsation of the Board of Directors, Statutory Auditors’ Special
Report [cf page 152 of this document], and approval by the General
Meeting [cf page 126, fourth resolution submitted to the vote of
the General Meeting to be held on Apnl 24m, 2007]} This system
covers agreements reached between the company and one of its
comporate officers, those entered into with one of its shareholders
which holds more than 10% of the voting nghts and the commit-
ments made by the company with regard to the corporate officers
appointed by the Board of Directors

It 15 1o be noted that the information on “Transactions between
related parties” (page 45} s givenr in note 28 of the Notes to the
Consoldated financial statements

INFORMATION POLICY

Ever since ts first ksting on the Pans Stock Exchange over 43 years
ago, L'Oréal has constantly been improving the sources of infor-
mation avalable to ks French and international shareholders and
investors L'Oréal does everything possible to keep them regularty
supplied with a wade range of clear and easily accessible financial
information

Thanks to its “evohang samiple group of shareholders” and seve-
ral surveys camead out over the year, L'Oréal allows its sharehol-
ders 1o participate In the changes to iis financial communications
and to ther enichment The progress made in this area has been
praised by the best observers of the financial commurity who,
through AGER, have given U'Creal an award for the "Quality and
transparency of information and communication”
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The group's shareholder information policy centres on several key
events

* two major financial Information meetings for analysts and inves-
tors, to whech journalists specialising in the cosmetics sector
are iInvited The presentations of the L'Oréal group's financial
results ars broadcast live online on the financial websiie
www loreal-finance com, and the charts presented at these financial
information meetngs are also made avalable online on the same
day, both for the annual resuits and the hali-year results Widely
used by everyone, our website was ranked second in the “Grand
Prnix TLB Bowrsoscan 2006”,

» the Annuat General Meeting, which is the high point In the dia-
logue between senior managers and shareholders This year, it
recerved the Capitalcom award for the best General Mesting of
CAC 40 companies,

+ the presentation of the group to shareholders in several large
provinaial ciies in France, in collaboration wiath the French Investment
Club Federation [Fedération Frangaise des Clubs d'lnvestissement
— FFCH and the Society of Investor Relation Managers in France
{Cercle de Liaison des Informateurs Financiers en France — CLIFF)

Cutside France, numerous meetings with institutional investors in
the main international financial centres are organised throughout
the year,

¢ parbicipation in the Actionana Farr at the Palais des Congrés in
Pans on Novermber 17t and 18, 2006, where each shareholder
was able to meet representatives of the L'Oréal group face-to-face

U'Oréal also offers iis shareholders a wide range of documents pra-
senting the group, its strategy and recent developments, revised
annuzlly to prowvide a more accurate presentation The Annual
Report, filed as a Reference Document 15 translated nto English
Four Letters to Sharehoiders are afso published each year, n French
and English, together with a Shareholder Digest All these docu-
ments are avaiable on request and can be downlgaded from the
financial website www loreal-finance com Press releases and finan-
cial announcements complete the list

In 1897, L'Oreal created the speciaised financial website www loreal-
finance com for the use of nternational finance professionals and
all ts shareholders This interactive resource, which 15 constantly
updated, contains all the group’s financial and stock market infor-
mation, and indicates the pnce of the LU0Oréal share in real tme
Tens of thousands of visits are made to the site each month A
spectal corner 1s dedicated to shareholders and can be entered
with a single click

Since 2005 electronic information (RSS Flow) has enabled L'Oréal
to adwise systematically and m real-tme of the publication of new
financial nformation

Moreover, a freephone service 15 available to L'Oréal sharehol-
ders calling from France {0 800 66 66 66) or other countries
{33 1 40 14 80 50), n French, English or ltakan This service prow-
des practical nformation and enables shareholders to keep track
of therr L'Oreal share account, £ also enables holders of pure regis-
tered shares to access a share trading service (See also Volume 1,

page B4 }
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ANNUAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT

Trus Annual information Document has been drawn up n apphcation of Article 451-1-1 of the French Monetary and Financial Code and
Article 221-1-1 of the Generat Regulation of the AMF (Autonité des Marchés Financiers) Thes docurnent hists the nformation pubhshed
or made public by L'Oreal from January 1%, 2006 to March 120, 2007 to meetl its legal or regulatory obligations

Information available on the websie www.loreal-finance.com

Press releases

Dates

Press releases

Weekly from January 27 2006 to March 12th 2007

Disclosure of trading in own shares

Monthly from November 30 2006 to February 29%, 2007

Disclosure of total number of votmg nghts and number of shares forming the capital

January 13" 2006

2005 sales

January 161 2008

Partnership agreement with Diesel

February 16% 20068

2005 annual results

February 23 2006

L Oréal has observed recent trading with regard to The Body Shop Internalicnal shares

February 27%, 2006

SkinEthic

Febrary 28%, 2006

Episkin subsidiary of L'Oreal, acquires SkinEthic

March 16, 2006

Annual Shar¢holders Meeting

March 17 2006

' Creal to maka an offer for The Body Shop international PLC

March 230 2006 L Oréal - The Body Shop
Apnl 12, 2006 L Créal - The Bedy Shop
April 170, 2006 Episken subs:diary of L Oreal, announces that it holds 97 19% of the capdal of SknEthic
April 192, 2006 First quarter 2006 sales
April 250, 2006 New Management Qrgamsation
May 4% 2006 L Oreal/The Body Shop - Offer extended
June 18 2006 L Qreal/The Body Shep - Offer dectared uncondiional as to acceptances
June 9 2006 1 Oréal/The Body Shop  1'Oréal offer declared wholly unconditional
June 131 2006 L'Oreal/The Body Shop — Posting of compulsory acguisition notices
June 28" 2006 Renewal of share buyback pragramme
July 12t 2008 First half 2006 sales

August 31%, 2006

First half 2006 results

October 120 2006

Sales at September 301, 2006

Cctober 24, 2006

L'Oréal acqures Sanofiord organc cosmetes brand

January 1%, 2007

Three new members cf the group Managsment Committee announced

January 25" 2007

2006 annual sales

Febeuary 150 2007

2006 annual results

February 157, 2007

Proposed appomntment of Mrs Annette Roux as director

Reference Document

Date

Type of document

Aprll 6+ 2008

2005 Reference Document D 06 0226 (AMF registration)

“Bulletin des Annonces Legales et Obligatorres”

Date Issue No Publication
February 39, 2006 15 2005 sales
March 20, 2006 34 Notice of Extracrdinary and Ordinary General Meeling of the shareholdets
April 55 2006 41 2005 consolidated finanaial statements and parent company financill statemnents
May 1% 2006 52 Approval of 2005 financial statements
May 5% 2006 54 Voting nghts
May 157 2006 58 1% quarter 2006 sales
August 2%, 2006 g2 27 quarter 2006 sales
September 20™ 2006 113 Half-year repert
QOctober 30™, 2005 130 Jr¢ quarter 2006 sales
February 5= 2007 16 2006 sales
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Publications of notices in journals of legal notices

Journal of legal notices Pubhcation date Purpose of notice
Las Peltes Affiches March @ 2008, no 49 Capital Increase amendment of the Articles of Association
Gazetie du Palais April 78-8", 2008, page 68 Natice 1o attend the Extraomdinary and Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
Les Petites Afliches May 19" 2006, No 100 Non renewal of the tenure of a dvector, appointment of a new dwector,

separation of the duties of Chairman ot the Board of Directors
frorm those of Chief Executive Officer caprtal ncrease
capital reduction, amendment of the Articles of Association
Las Patitas Affiches February 212 2007, no 38 LCapnal increase, capital reduction armendment of the Articles of Association

Information registered with the Paris Commercial Court {www.infogreffe fr)

Date and Registration No Purpose of registration
03 13 2006 registration no 24981 Capitat increase (extract from the minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of February 15%, 2006)
03 13 2008, registration no 24951 Updated Articles of Associaticn at February 150 2006
04 26 2006 registrapion no 36914 Caprtal Increase and capital reduction (extract from the minutes of the Board of Directors' Meeting of Aprd 250 2006)
05 05 2006 registraticn no 18536 2005 annual financial statements
05 05 2006 registration no 18537 2005 consobdated financat statements
05 24 2006 regrstration no 44785 Appantment of a director, amendments to the Articles of Association

{exdract from the minules of the Board of Directors Meeting of Apnl 250 2008)
05 24 2006 regrstration no 44785 Capital ncrease and capital reduction separation of the duties of Chaman

of the Board of Diractors from those of Chief Executve Officer (extract from the minutes
of the Board of Drectors’ Meatng of Apnl 25, 2006)

05 24 2006 registration no 44785 Expiry of the tenure of a directer (extract from the minutes of the Board of Directors  Meeling of March 165, 2006)
05 24 2006 registration no 44785 Appointrment of a Vice Chaurman of the Board of Directors

{extract from the minutes of the Board of Drectors Mesting of Aprl 26 2005)
05 24 2006 registration no 44785 Updated Articles of Assocation at April 257, 2006
02 22 2007 registration na 18332 Caprtal nerease and capital reduction (extract from the mmutes of the Board of Diectors Meetng of Felruary 14t 2007)
02 22 2007 registration no 18332 Updated Articles of Association at February 14t 2007

RECENT EVENTS AND OUTLCOK
News release of Thursday January 11th, 2007

Three new members of the group Management Committee announced, including the appomntment of a 2% woman and further
non-French Executives

Mr Jean-Paul Agon, Chief Executive Cfficer of L'Oréal, has announced that he 1s to reinforce the group’s Execuive Committee wath the
appointment of three new members Mrs Bngitte Liberman - Managing Director of the Active Cosmetics Drasion, Mr Jochen Zaumse
- Managing Director of the Asia Zone, and Mr Joseph Bitton — Managing Director of the Latn Amenca Zone

The appaintments illustrate the ncreasing strategic importance of the group's Active Cosmetics Daision, which 15 today the world leader
w dermo-cosmetic products for pharmacies, as well as the essential strateg:c nature of the major Mulidmsion regions- Asia and Latin
America— both of which play a crucsal role in the company’s overall growth and success

From now on, each of the group's four main dvisions as well as the three maor Mutbdnasion regions will be duly represented within the
Group Executive Commitiee

Commenting on the appointments, Mr Jean-Paul Agen said, ''m particularly dehghted that, with the appointment of Mrs Bngitte
Liberman we are able to reinforce the number of wormen i our senior executrve tearm —and to have the opporturity, through Jochen
and Joseph, to further strengthen the international nature of our team”

“The different perspectves and professional expertise they will bnng to the team can only help to boost the level of creatmity and inno-
vation that are key to accelerating our growth model”, he continued

Mrs Bngitte Liberman, 49, joined the group with the Vichy brand n 1986 Since then she has held Marketing Director roles with Biotherm
and Vichy Intemational, where, n 2003, she was appointed Managing Director Mrs Liberman has been Managing Birector of the Group's
Active Cosmetics Dvision since January 2005 where she has been responsible for the rol-out of VicHy in China, which, today, offers
Chinese consumers a full range of affordable products in more than 1,000 pharmacy outlets Maos! recently, she achieved a milestone
In the development of the Active Cosmetics business, which also includes the brands La RocHe-Posay and Inngov, when she announced
that the turnover of the Dvsion had exceaded the €1h {one bilion euros) in 2006 Cther recent notable developmenits for the business undar
the leadership of Mrs Liberman include the acaqusstion n October 2006 of a certified organic cosmetic products brand, Laboratore Sanoflore,
and, In 2005, that of SKNCEUTIGALS, the skincare brand sold In exclusve spas and by dermatologists and plastic surgsons in the United States
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Mr Jochen Zaumsedl, 49, 1s a German national whao nas worked at LOréal for twenty-three years He has worked in the group's Professional
Products Dvsion and Lupasry Drasion in countries as diverse as Austna, Mexico and Venezuela. More recently he served as Managing Director
of the group's businesses in Canada and Japan before taking up his cumrent posibon as Managing Director of the Asia Zone in 2006

Mr Joseph Bitton, 62, a chemist by trarung, has been with L'Oréal for 38 years He 1s a true world-citizen with dual French and Canadian
nationahty, first josring the group in Microcco in 1963 as Technical Director He went on to hold the posts of Industry Director and Vice
President of Operations in Canada, where, in 1991, he was named General Manager of L'Oréal Canada [n 1996, he became Managing
Director of L’Oreal Brazil M Bition has been Managing Director of the group's Latin Amenca Zone since 2001

The appontments take effect from January 1%, 2007

News release of Thursday January 25, 2007
2006 annual sales target reached

Strong growth in annual sales:
15 8 bultion euros, up by +8 7%

Substantial increase 1n 4™ quarter sales
+9 5% based on reported figures (+6 5% hke-for-ike)

Significant growth in Western Europe
Rapid development of new markets
2006 profit targets confirmed

The sales of the L'Oreal group, at December 31, 2006, amounted to 15 79 billon euros, represeniing an increase of + 8 7% In the
fourth quarter, the sales growth rate was + 9 5%

Currency fluctuations had a sikghtly negative impact of - 0 2% Excluding currency fluctuations, the sales growth rate was + 8 9% for
the full year 2006

The net mpact of changes in consohdation amounted to + 3 1%, mainly as a result of the acquisitron of The Body Shop, consolidated
from July 1st, 2006 onwards

Like-for-ike (ie based on a comparable structure and sdentical exchange rates}), the growth in the group's total sales amounted to
+ 5 8% at December 31=, 2006 (+ 5 7% excluding The Body Shop)
In the 4™ quarter, the growth rate was + 6 5%

Comrnenting on the figures, Mr Jean-Paul Agon, Chief Executive Officer of L'Oréal, said “The strong growth of our sales at the end of
the year enabled us fo achieve the announced growth target for 2006 This growth was achieved thanks to the renewed dynamism in
Westemn Europe and the remarkable perforrnance i the new markets, particularly n Brazil, Russia, India, Mexico and China The Body
Shop delivered a good second half performance, strengthering the group’s growth QOverall, the organic growth of our brands and the
significant contnbution made by the acquisitions led to a strong mcrease m the group's sales of + 8 7% These good figures mean that
we can confirm our profit targets”
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At December 31, 2006 4t quarter 2006
Growth Growth
€ millions Like-for-ke Reported € millons Like-for-lke Reported

By operational division
Professional Products 2126 +3 8% +32% 528 +4 8% +08%
Consumer Products 7,803 +5 8% +54% 1,823 +65% +24%
Luxury Products 3773 +51% +53% 1,080 +54% +25%
Actve Cosmetcs 1128 +122% +14 4% 233 +113% +95%
Cosmaetics total 15,011 +5 6% +5 6% 3,781 +6 1% +2.5%
By geographic zone
Western Europe 5,992 +35% +3 7% 1702 +31% +3 1%
North Amenca 39854 +2,7% +2 2% 980 +36% -4 3%
Rest of the World 4,065 +12 7% +12 8% 1088 +14 0% +8 6%
of which Asia 1476 +7 9% +7 4% 385 +9 4% +3 6%

Latin Amenca 1021 +16 1% +18 6% 277 +14 7% +8 3%

Eastern Europe 850 +22 0% +24 8% 247 +23 8% +25 0%

Other countries 718 +8 5% +4 5% 180 +110% +15%
Cosmatics total 15,01¢ +58% +5.6% 3,781 +6 1% +2 5%
The Body Shop 435 +9 7% - 263 +10 3%
Dematologyt! 344 +§ 6% +81% 105 +9 2% +4 5%
Group total 15,750 +5.8% +8T% 4,148 +6 5% +9 5%

{Provisiona! unaudited figures)
{1} Group share, 18, 50%

Cosmetics branch

Sales trends by division

The Professional Products Division recorded a like-for-tke growth
rate of +3 8%, with positive scores in Weastern Europe and very
strong expansicn in the “Rest of the World™ zone

In the United States, our brands achreved high sell-through fig-
ures The year was however affected by inventory reduction in
professional distnbution and by a reshuffle of our distnbution net-
work at the end of the year

L'OreaL ProresstonneL benefited from the Jaunches of the Play
Ball and Haw Mix styling ranges, the Séne Expert Lumino Contrast
line for hair with highlights, and, at the end of the year, the hairr
colourant Symbio

KerasTase very successfully refaunched its Nutntive range and
introduced Densitive nutntional complements

Repken launched the Blonde Giam harcare ine and a new haw
colourant Shimmer One

Maraix launched a new range, Matrix for Men, and relaunched its
styling range Vavoomn

The Consumer Products Dnasion achieved a like-for-like growth
rate of +5 8%, with a substantial acceleration in the 4™ quarter at
+6 5% Western Europe confirmed its uptum, and sales contin-
ued to grow in North Amenca The Rest of the World again saw
its sales growth accelerate

L'OreaL Parts achieved a good year with strong growth in skin-
care thanks 1o Age Re-Perfect and Men Expert as well as n make-
up and n harcare with the successil launch of Elséve Nuin-Gloss
Europe and the emerging countnes are benefiting from the suc-
cess of these launches The harr colourant Casting Creme Gloss
15 confirming 1ts success in Europe

GaanER sales grew strongly, driven by the successful harr colourant
Nutnsse and the Fructis harcare lne, and by successes in facial
skincare, bodycare and sun protection The brand's wision has
been strengthened by the new “Take care” campagn which was
internationally rolled out at the end of last year

MayseLLive NEw York the make-up brand achieved impressive
growth, evenly distributed between the vanous zones, driven by
the success of Dream Matte Mousse foundation and the great
mascaras collection The fourth quarter was notable for the launch
of the highly innovative Watershine Elixir ipsack

The sales of the Luxury Products Division have nsenby + 5 1%
like-forlke The growth seen in Western Europe continued in the
4 quarter, with similarly dynamic trends across all the major mar-
kets Sales improved shightly in North America, thanks in particu-
lar to the success of the faciaf skincare and perfume inttiatives

The acceleration in the Rest of the World continued in the fourth
quarter, parbicularly in Chana, Latin Amenca and Eastern Europe

The dynamic growth trend of the iragrance business Is continy-
Ing the new fragrance tor women, Code Donna from GIGAGIO
Aaman, continued to prove successiul n Europe at the end of the
year The brand’s flagship products Armane, Acgua di Gio and
Armmani Code confimed therr solidity over the Chnstmas penod

Furthermore, Miracle Forever by LancOME and Noa Perle by
CachargL strengthened the positions of the two brands concermed

Lastly Antidote, the new men’s fragrance from ViKTor & RoLF,
proved extremely successful in the Urnited States and in France,
where it was first launched

Skincare sales growth continued to accelerate, with an excellent
reception on all markets for Absolue Premium Beta X by Lancome,
featunng the newly developed molecule Pro-Xylane BiotHeRM, with
its Aquascurce serum, and HaEna RussTen, with its Prodigy tissu-
lar, have also seen their sales gather speed in the skincare business
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Lastly, the make-up business saw the launch of Rouge Unlimited
Iipstick by SHu Uemura, which uses a revolutionary pigment tech-
nology and 1s proving extremely successful

The growth in Active Cosmetics sales continued, with a sub-
stantial advance in lke-for-hike sales of + 12 2% reflecting strong
contnbutions from all the geographic zones

All the brands achieved double-digit growth, thanks to a good
performance from the products in our catalogue, and the posr-
tve impact of launches such as the skincare hnes Neovadiol and
Normaderm from VicHy, Redermic anti-wnnkle skincare, and
Tolenane Tent from La RocHE-Posar Furthermore, the sun pro-
tection products of the two brands enjoyed a good season
InnEOV also achieved strong sales growth, thanks to the launch
of Inneov Solarre, the first sun preparation product to Nnclude Skun
Probiotic

Furthermore, the certified organic cosmetics brand SANGFLORE
joned the Dvision in November 2006

Steady growth in Western Europe

The sales trends of each divsion confirm the return to growth in
France , Germany and Haly, while strong growth continued in the
United Kingdom and Spain All the countnies achieved positive
scores

Professional Products recorded growth in all product categones

The Amencan brands Rebken and MaTRix demonstrated therr very
powerful appeal, parlicularly in France, Belgium and Span

The Consumer Products Division saw sales grow :n 2l countnes,
particularly in Span and the United Kingdom  Thanks to s suc-
cess In skincare (Age Re-Perfect and Men Expert from LU'OREAL
Paris ), facial skincare {GarnieR) and harrcare (Fructis by GARNIER),
it has made further market share gains in these categones

Luxury Products are acvancing in all the countnes on broadly sim-
ifar trends, with sales gathenng speed for Lancdme, thanks to
Absofue Premium Beta X at the end of the year, and exceilent
momentum for ARMAN and BICTHERM, as openings of KIEWL's and
SHU Uemura boutigues continued

In the Actrve Cosmetics Drnasion, sales are growing at a rapd rate
throughout the zone, dnven by LA RocHeE-Posay in particular

North Amenca. Growth despite a background

of consolidaton in distrbution

In North Amenca, the situabion in the United States reflected a
combmation of turbulences i the distnbution sector The market
grew less quickly than in 2005, although very dynamic in the mass-
market segment, growth was slower in sales to salons and in the
department store business

As aresull, Ike-for-hke sales growth amounted to + 2 7%

The Professional Products Dmsion continued to make market
share gains in sales to salons, with good scores for MaTRx and
ReoweN hair colourants and the Kerastase brand The Dmsion has
strengthened 1ts cooperation with its top-sellng distnbutor, and
readjusted its geographic distnbution agreements There was a
noticeable reduction in the level of distnbutors' Inventanes
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The sales growth of the Consumer Products Division has been
galvanised by the advances made by GarniER and its harcare
Iines Fruchis and Nutnsse MavBeLUNE recorded a good growth
figure thanks to Superstay kpstck The growth rates of UOreaL
Pasis vaned by category, with a strong perfermance 1 make-up
but a weaker one in skincare

In Luxury Products , amounts invoiced were held back through-
out the year by the merging of the two man department store
chaing and the closure of 80 outlets The Dvsion improved its
skincare posthions thanks to the success of Absolue Premum
Beta X and Collaser Eye by LanCOME, and In women's fragrances
thanks to the success of Arman Code Women and Hypndse by
LancOME

The roll-out of the Active Cosmetics Division gathered speed, with
the faunch of VicHy n the north-east of the United States and in
California, and strong growth for SkinCeumicaLs

Rapid development in all the new markets
The expansion in the Rest of the World continued, gatherng speed
In the fourth quarter when like-for-like growth reached +14%

Like-for-bke sales growth in the Assa zone amounted 1o + 7 9%

In the Japanese market, which was very competitve, Professional
Products turned n a good performance

Asma excluding Japan had a good year, at + 11 8%, with a sharp
acceleration n the second half

In China, the acceleration was particularly noticeable, with sales
growth of +21 2% Growth for the Consumer Products Dwvision
was very strong in facial skincare, thanks to L'ORéaL Par's (White
Perfact, UV Perfect} This dvision was strengthened in 2006 with
the launch of GaRNER skincare which 1s gradually being rolled out

The Luxury Products Daision has confirmed its leacership, dnven
by the LancOME and BIoTHERM brands In the Activa Cosmetics
Dmasion, VicHy and La RocHe-Posay are continuing their break-
through in pharmacies

In South Kerea the situation is gradually improving, as the coun-
Iry returns to growth

Furthermare, growth rates in Indonesia and Thailand were high,
partcutarly n the Consumer Products Division

in Eastern Europe the group’s performance over the full year
2006 was excellent at + 22% Ike-for-like, with a strong contribu-
tion from the Russia and the recently created subsidiary in Ukraine
Professional Products turned in an excellent performance, par-
tculasty in the Russia MaTre conlinued its breakthrough in the
zone as a whole

In Consumer Products, UOReaL Paris recorded very good scores
tin make-up and haircare with Elseve GarNER sales grew very
strongly m haircare and facial skincare, and growth was also strong
n bodycare

In a rapidly expanding lwairy market the Luxury Products Division
achieved very high growih, particularty in the Russia, the Czech
Republic, Slovakia and Hungary, driven by the success of the
LancOme, BIOTHERM and ARMANI brands




Actve Cosmetics produced another year of strong growth con-
firming its leadership in a phammacy channel whose modernisa-
tion 1s gathenng speed

Like-for-like sales growth in Latin Amenca was very rapid at
+ 16 1%, thanks to the strong sales recorded in Brazil , Mexico
and all the other countnes in the zone

The sales of Professional Products grew thanks to the L'OREAL
PROFESSIONNEL brand. and particularty to the successful launch of
Mamx in Brazil, Chile and Venezuela

Sales in Consumer Products advanced at ssmilar rates across the
vanous countnes in the zone, diven in particular by the success
of the major launch Nutn-Gloss from Elséve

Luxury Products, whose sales grew strongly, took advantage of
the good performance of BioTHERM and the success of RALPH
Lauren and GIORGIO ARMAN! fragrances

Actve Cosmetics 1s continuing its very high growth with VicHy and
La RocHe-Posay, which have recorded substantial market share
gains in dermocosmetics

In the Other Countnes, like-for-like sales growth amounted to
+8 5% Inlndia (+ 40 3%j, our busnesses continued to grow very
strongly, bolstered by the remarkable success of GARMIER with
Skin Naturals, Color Naturals and Fructis The Middle East again
proved extremely dynamic with double-digit growth

Good year-end for The Body Shop

Consoldated since July 1%, The Body Shop recorded a second
half-year of schd growth, with a large mcrease in sales at the end
of the year Net consolidated sales grew by + 97%

Retail sales (" increased by + 6 5% (+ 2 7% with a comparable
store base)@

The number of stores increased by 89 in the second half of 2006
At December 31%, the total number of stores was 2,265, of which
886 are owned by The Body Shop

These figures reflect particularty good resuits i Europe and Asia,
with very strong performances in United Kingdom, Norway and
Japan

Growth was strengthened by the success of launches such as
the Aloe Vera skincare range and the Neroh Jasmin fragrance, and
by gift sets, which sold very well at the end of the year

(1) Retad sales {otal sales to consumers through all chaanels
(2) Retail sales with a comparahle store base total sales to consumers by stores which ope-
rated contnuousty from July 14 to December 3i¢t 2005 and aver the same penod m 2006
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Dermatology

The sales of the dermatology branch increased by +8 6% like-
for-lke Each of the zones made a positive contnbution to this
growth figure The Clobex range for treating psonasis, together
with Metrogel 1% and Loceryl Nail Lacquer, have strongly
bolstered the growth of Galderma

News release of Thursday February 15%, 2007
Sales: +87%

Further improvement in operating profit + 12 1%
Strong growth in net earnings per sharel! + 14 7%
Substantial increase in dividend i2: + 18%

The Board of Directors of L'Oreal met on Wednesday, February
14, 2007 under the charmanship of Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones
and in the presence of the Statutory Auditors The Board closed
the consoldated financial statements and the financial statements
of the L'Oréal parent company for 2006

Cammenting on the annual resutts, Mr Jean-Paul Agon, Chief
Executive Officer of L'Creal, said “In 2006, L'Oreal actieved fur-
ther strong growth i its results The success of the product nno-
vations, the strength of our brands and the raprd pace of our
geographic expansion have once again enabled us to improve
our worldwide positions

Operating profit rose strongly under the combined effect of the
product value enhancement strategy and the strict control of alf
costs Profitabiity has thus improved sigrificantly to reach 16 1%
of sales

All the dvisions and zones across the board contnbuted to this
increase i our profitability

The acquisition of The Body Shop, consolidated since July 1%,
2006, made a posive contnibution to the growth of both sales
and eamings in the second half

Al these results and the dynarmism they convey inspire coniidence
for 2007"

Furthermore, the Board of Directors has decided to propose to
the next Annual General Meeting on Apnl 24, 2007 the payment
of a dvidend of €1 18 per share, which represents a substantial
increase on 2005

Finally, the Board will propose to the Annual General Meeting the
renewal of the term of office of Mrs Lilane Bettencourt and the
appontment as a new director of Mrs Annette Roux, Vice-Chauman
of the Supenvisory Board of Benéteau SA.

(1) Dituted net eamings péy Share based on nat profit excluding nen-recurrent items after
minority interests
{21 Dividend i be proposed 10 the Annual General Meeting of Sharehalders on Aprl 24% 2007
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At the end of the board meeting, Si Lindsay Owen-Jones said

“In 2006, we succeaded in ensunng the smooth transition to a
new group management orgamsaton Under the dynamic lead-
ership of Mr Jean-Paul Agon, the year ended with a strong
ncrease in alf our results  This enables us o propose another sub-
stantal increase in dividend to the Annual General Meeting Finally,
{am very happy to welcome: to the Board of Directors Mrs Annette
FRoux, a highly respected personally from the world of industry,
who will strengthen its composttion, independence and balance "

Sales up by +8 7%

Group sales at December 31%, 2006 amounted to €15,79 billion,
up by +8 7% Currency fluctuations had a shghtly negative mpact
of -0 2% Excluding currency fluctuations, ihe sales growth rate
was +8 8% for the ful year 2006 The net mpact of changes in con-
solidation amounted to +3 1%, mainly as a result of the acquistion
of The Body Shop, consolidated from July 1%, 2006 onwards Like-
for-like 1 ¢ based on a comparable structure and identical exchange
rates), the growth in the group’s {otal sales amounted to 45 8% at
December 31, 2006 (+5 7% excluding The Body Shop)

The news release of January 25t, 2007 sets out in detad the activ-
ity of the cosmetics divisions and the geographic zones for 2006
This news release 15 avalable on the site www loreal-finance com
and can be downloaded

The table of cosmetics sales by dwvision and by geographic zona
15 provided n page 141

Further improvement in operating profit +121%
Consolidated profit and loss account

from sales to operating profit

The Body Shop, consolidated since July 1%, has an operating pro-
file which 1s quite different from that of the L'Oréal group as a whole
In the interest of wisibility and comparability of performance, the
table below sets out the operating tems of L'Oréal, n 2008, with
and without The Body Shop

< mitkons 12 312005 As % 12 31 2006 As % 1231 2006 As % Sales
of sales excluding of sales with of sales trend
The Body Shop The Body Shop
2 half
Sales 14,533 160 15,255 100 15,790 100 +87
Costs of sales -4 347 299 =~4,414 287 -4 569 289
Gross profit 10,185 TG 1 10,941 7.3 11,221 711 +102
Research and
developrnent expenses -496 34 -531 35 -533 34
Adverising and promotion expenses -4 387 301 -4 718 307 -4 783 303
Seling general
and admmistrative expenses -3 008 207 -3,158 205 -3,309 210
Operanng profit before foreign
exchange gains and losses 2313 159 2539 165 2,596 16 4 +123
Forexgn exchange gains and losses -47 03 -56 04 -55 03%
Operating profit 2 266 156 2,483 162 2,541 16 1% +121

Consohdated profit and less account without The Body Shop
Gross profit increased very significantly and represents 71 3% of
sales, compared with 70 1% 1n 2005 This improvement mainly
reflects an enhanced value of the product mux, and our continu-
ing industnal streamlining programmes

Research and development expenses represented 3 5% of sales,
compared with 3 4% in 2005

Advertising and promotion expenses increased substantially, and
representad 30 7% of sales compared with 30 1% in 2005

Selling, general and adrmimsirative expenses represented 20 5%
of sales, compared with 20 7% in 2005 Once again this year, this
itern s continuing 1ts gradual improvement, reflecting constant
efforts in both orgarusation and productmty

QOperating profit before forergn exchange gains and losses grew

strongly by +9 8% It reached 16 5% of sales, compared with
15 9% in 2005
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Foreign exchange losses amounted to €56 million m 2006, com-
pared with €47 million in 2005

After foresgn exchange gans and losses, operabing profit amounted
to €2,483 milhon, up by +9 6% compared with 2005 It repre-
sented 16 2% of sales compared with 15 6% n 2005

Consohdated profit and loss account

with The Body Shop

The structure of the profit and loss account of The Body Shop in
the second half has a profile which s quite different frorn that of
the L'Oreal group The consohdation of The Bedy Shop made a
posttive coninbution to the group's mam operating tems

The group's cperating rterns with The Body Shop can be summed
up as follows

Sales reached €15,790 million, up by +8 7%

Gross profit amounted to €11, 221 mdlion, up by 10 2%




Operating profit before forergn exchange gains and losses increased by +12 3% to €2,596 miffion
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After foreign exchange gains and losses, operating profit grew by 12 1% to €2,541 millon that 1s 16 1% of sales

Operating profit by branch and division

Each and every division and branch improved its profitability in 2006 compared with 2005

2005 2006

€ milions % € milions %
of sales of sales

By operational division
Professional Products 406 197 443 208
Consumer Produgsts 1291 172 1421 i80
Luxury Products 723 202 778 208
Actve Cosmetics 187 190 221 96
Cosmetics divisions total 2,509 84 2,860 191
Non-aliocated ! -398 -28 -437 -29
Cosmetics branch 2212 158 2,423 161
The Body Shep 2~ half - - 58 134
Dermatology branch®@ 54 169 59 173
Group 2,266 156 2,541 161

{1) Non-allocated = Central group expenses, fundamental research expenses stock option expenses and miscellzrneous items As % of tofal sales

(2) Group Share 18 50%

Because of the strong seasonality of its sates, the 13 4% profitabiity in the second half 1s not representative of The Body Shop's prof-

itabilty over the full year

Cosmetics branch operating profit of geographic zones
Profitability increased in all zones in 2006

2005 2006
€ millens % € milfions %
of sales of sales
Western Europe 1,415 210 1527 218
North Amenca 708 183 744 188
Rest of the World 486 135 589 345
Cosmetics zones tolal 2,609 18 4 2,860 191
Strong growth in net earmings per share +14 7%
Consohidated profit and loss account from operating profit to net profit excluding non-recurrent tems
€ mdfiors 12 31 2005 12 31 2006 Growth
wrh
The Bady Shop
2 half
Operating profit 2,266 2,541 12.1%
Finance costs -54 -116
Other hinancial ncome (expenses) -3 —4
Sanofi Avenuis dvdends 172 218
Share 1n net profit of equity affiiates -1 -1
Profit before tax excluding non-recurrent tems 2,370 2,638 11 3%
income tax excluding non-recurrent tems -730 -803
Minonty interests -1 -1
Net profit excluding non-recurrent itams aHer minonty mterests™! 1639 1.833 119%
EPS @ {in etros) 28 2908 14 7%
Diluted average number of shares 630.892,470 815 723,229

{1} Net profit excluding non-recurrent items after iminonty interests does not include capital galns and losses on disposals of long term assets, imparment of assets, restructunng costs

associated tax effects or mmenty interests
{2) Diluted net eamings per share excluding non-recurrent items, atter minority interests
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Finance costs amounted to €116 mufion, higher than last year because of nsing interest rates, the acquisition of The Body Shop and
the continuation of the share buyback programme:
The dividends receved from Sanofi-Aventis for 2005 amounted to €217 5 miflion, an ingrease of +26 7%

Profit before tax exciuding non-recurrent items amounted to €2,638 millon, up by 411 3% Tax on profit excluding non-recurrent items
amounted to €803 milkon, representing an increase of +9 9% The tax rate was down from 30 8% in 2005 to 30 4% in 2006

Net profit excluding non-recurrent items after minonty interests amounted to €1, 833 million, up by +11 9% After allowing for the
positve impact of share buybacks, net earnings per share amounted to €2 98 per share, up by +14 7% compared with 2005

Consolidated profit and loss account from net profit excluding non-recurrent items to net profit

€ nilllars 12 31 2005 12 312008 Growih
Net profit excluding pon-recurrent items after minority interests 1,639 1.833 118%
Non-recurreni dems 334 228

Nat profit after minority interests 1,972 2061 4 5%
Dduted earnings per share (€) 313 335 71%

Non-recurrent items had a positive mpact of €228 million, compared with €334 milion in 2005 They consist manly of addmonal amor-
tizabion expenses of ntangible assets, and the restatement of deferred tax inked to mantaning the stake In Sanofi-Aventis
After allowing for these non-recument rtems, net profit after minonty interests amounted to €2,061 million, up by +4 5% compared with 2005

Strong growth in cash flow +13 2%
Cash flow at December 31, 2006 amounted to €2,410 milhon, up by +13 2% Working capital requirement was substantially lower in
2006 Capital expenditure remaned stable at 4 7% of sales

The group's net debt at December 31st, 2006 totalled €3,329 million, or 22 8% of shareholders' equity, an Increase compared with the
end of 2005, when &t stood at €2 217 milion, or 15 1% of sharehoiders’ equity

Substantial increase in proposed dividend +18%
The Beard of Directors has decided to propose that the Annual Generat Meeting of Shareholders of Apnl 24th, 2007 should approve a
dmdend of €1 18 per share, representing an increase of +18% compared with 2005

News release of Thursday February 15%, 2007

Proposed appointment of Mrs Annette Roux as a director

The Board of Directors of L'Oréal met on Wednesday, February 14, 2007 under the charmanship of Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones and
decided on the resolutions to be submutted to the Combined Shareholders” Meeting on Apnl 24th, 2007

The Board will propose to the Shareholders’ Meeting on Apnl 24t 2007 the appointment as a director of Mrs Annette Roux,
Vice-Charrman of the Supervisory Board of Benateau SA

Mrs Annette Roux took over the helm of Beneteau, a family business then in 1964 and has succeeded In bullding an international group,
which 1s the world leader in its market sector

This extraordinary success owes a lot to the personal qualities of Mrs Annette Roux, a weman of conviction, who 1s open-minded and
extremely dynarmic and has used her talents to bolster the development of her company, isted on the Pans stock exchange since 1984

Arnual Report _ L'OREAL 2006




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION _ 147

Commenting on this proposal, Sir Lindsay Owen-Jones said “We are very pleased to welcome Mrs Roux as a member of the Board
of Directors of L'Oreal Mrs Roux embodies one of the most outstanding success stones n French industry Her competence her expe-

nence and her independence will help to strengthen and ennch our Board®

Furthermore, and pursuant to the authonsations granted by the Annual General Meetings of May 22~ 2003 and Apnl 257, 2006, the
Board has decided to cancel 13,490,750 shares

The details of the resolutions to be submitted to the shareholders for their approval and the meeting notices and other documents
required far the Shareholders’ Meeting on Apnl 24% will be published or sent to the shareholders in accordance with the applicable

regulations
AUDITORS
2004 200% and 2008 Date first appointed Term of office Expiry date
Auditors
PncewaterhouseCoopers Audit Apnf 290, 2004 6 years
63 rue de Villers
92200 Neusly-sur-Semne {Francea)
Delaitte & Associés April 29%, 2004 6 years
185 avenue Charles de Gaulle AGM raviewing
92200 Newly-sur-Seing the financial staternents
Subshtute auditors for 2009
Mr Yves Nicolas Apnl 290, 2004 6 years to be held in 2010
63 rue da Viliers
92200 Neutly sur-Seina
Mr Jean-Paut Picard May 29w 200100 € years
7/ villa Houssay
92200 Neully-sur Seine
{3) Renewed on Aprll 29=, 2004
Fees of Auditors and members of their networks charged to the group
= thoysands PrcewaterhouseCoopers Deloitte & Associés Cther
Amount % Amount % Amount %

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Audiing 5350 5882 817 830 4652 4175 8C &8 806 71 .« 3138 40 78
Other assotiated assignments 801 441 136 :3:] 925 660 16 1 127 Q 0
Sub-totnl 6,241 6323 853 946 5,577 4,835 896 9 033 VAl 138 40 78
Other sarvices {legal/tax/employes-reated) 306 360 47 54 178 344 31 67 1,683 1620 960 922
Total 6,547 64583 1000 10060 57356 6,179 1000 1000 1784 1758 1000 1000
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HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION INCLUDED BY REFERENCE

In accordance with Articie 28 of European Regulation EC No 808-2004 of Apnl 28, 2004, this Reference Document contains the fol-
lowing information by reference

= the consolidated financial statements for the year ended Becember 31=, 2005, prepared in accordance with fFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors' report presented on pages 7 to 50 of Volume 2 of the 2005 Reference Docurment filed with the Autonte des Marches
Financiers on April 6%, 2006 under the number D 06-0226, and also information extracted from the 2005 Management Report pre-
sented on pages 53 1o 56 of Volume 2 of the Reference Document,

« the consoldated financial statements for the year ended December 31#, 2004, prepared in accordance with the French Accounting
Standards and the related Statutory Auditors’ report presented on pages 3 to 34 of Volume 2 of the 2004 Reference Document filed
with the Autonté des Marchés Financiers on Apnl 71, 2005 under number D G5-0361, as well as the infermation extracted from the
2004 Management Report presented on pages 4 to 7 of Volume 3 of the same Reference Document
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Reports and declaration

STATUTORY AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Year ended December 31%, 2006)

This is a free fransiation into English of the Statutory Auditors’ report on the financial staternents 1ssued in French and s provided sofely for
the convenience of English speaking readers The Statutory Auditors’ report on the financia! staterments includes mformation specifically
required by French law in such reports, whether modified or not This information 1s presertted below the opirvon on the financial staterents
and inciudes an explanatory paragraph discussing the auditors' assessments of certain significant accourting and auditing matters These
assessments were consdered for the purpose of issung an audit opinion on the financial statements laken as a whole and not to provide
separale assurance on indvidual account captions or on information taken outside of the financial statements This report shoufd be read
n conunchon with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards apphcable in France

in comphance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual General Mesting, we hereby report 1o you for the year ended Decermber 312,
2006 cn

» the audit of the accompany:ng financial statements of L'Oréal,

o the justification of our assessments,

« the specific verficatipns and disclosures required by law

These financal statements have been approved by the Board of Directors Our role 1s to express an opinion on these financial state-
ments based on our audit

Opinion on the financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France Those standards reguire that we plan and
perform the augdit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit
includes examimng, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the financial statements An audi also includes
assessing the accounting prnciples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presenta-
tion of the financial statements We believe that ocur audit provides a reasonable basis for our opirion

In our opinion, the financiat statements give a true and farr iew of the company s financial position and rts assets and labfities as of December
31, 2006 and of the resutts of its operations for the year then ended, in accordance with the acoounting rules and panciples applicable in France

Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of Article L 823-9 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commaerce} relating to the ustifica-
tion of our assessments, we draw your atiention to the matter set out below

«investrments and achvances have been valued in accordance with the accounting methods descnbed in the nates to the company’s financia
staternents under “Accounting polces — Financial Assets — investments and advances™ As part of our audt, we reviewed whether these account-
ing methods were appropnate and, in relation to estimates, whether the assumptions used and the resutting valuations were reasonable

These assessments were made in the context of our audd of the financeal statements, taken as a whole, and therefore coninbuted to
the opinion we formed whuch 1s expressed in the first part of this report

Specific verffications and disclosures

We have also performed the specific venfications required by law in accordance with professional standards applcable n France

We have no matters to report regarding

* the farr presentation and the consistency with the financial statements of the information gven in the Management Report of the Board
of Directors, and in the documents addressed to the shareholders with respect to the financial position and the financial statements,
« the far presentation of the information provided i the Management Report of the Board of Directors i respect of remuneration and
benefits granted to certan company officers and any other commitments made in therr favour in connection with, or subsequent to,
ther appaintment, termination or change in function

In accordance with the law, we verfied that information refating to acquistions of investments and controlling interests and the dentity
of the shareholders were disclosed in the Management Report

Neutlly-sur-Seine, February 15%, 2007
The Statutory Auditors
PncewalerhouseCoopers Audit Deloitte & Associés

Etienne Bons Etienne Jacquemin
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STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Year ended December 31=t, 2006}

This 1s a free translation into Enghsh of the Statutory Auditors” report on the consolidated financial statements issued in French and 1s pro-
vided solely for the converience of Enghish speaking readers The Statutory Auditors’ report on the consohdated financial statements
includes nformation specifically required by French law in such reports, whether modified or not This information 1s presented below the
opimion on the consolidated financial statements and ncludles an explanatory paragraph discussing the auditors’ assessments of certan
significant accounting and auditing matters These assessmants were considered for the purpose of 1ssung an audit opirvor on the con-
sohdated financial staternents taken as a whole and not to provide separate assurance on indwvidual account captions or on nformation
taken outside of the consoldated financial staterments This report on the consolidated financial staterments should be read in comjunction
with, and construed i accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards apphcable in France

Following cur appaintment as Statutory Auditors by your Annual General Meeting, we have audited the accompanytng consolidated
financial statements of L Oréal for the year ended December 31=, 2006

The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors Our role is to express an opinion on these finan-
cial statements, based on our audit

Opinton on the consohidated financial statements

We conducted our audit In accordance with professional standards appbcable in France Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtam seasonable assurance about whether the conschdated financial statements are free of matenal misstate-
ment An audht Incledes examining, on a test basis, ewvidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financal statements An
audit a'so Includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significardt estimates made by management, as well as evaluat-
ing the overall presentation of the financial statements We believe that our audit prowides a reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and llabiities and of the financial postion of
the group as at December 318, 2006, and of the results of its operaticns for the year then ended (in accordance with IFRS as adopted
by the European Union

Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of Article L 823-9 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) relating to the justifica-
tion of our assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters

» the company performs imparment tests on goodwilt and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at least once a year and when-
ever there s an indication that an asset may be imparred, in accordance with the methods set cut In note 1 15 to the consolidated
financial statements We have reviewed the terms and conditions for implementing this )mparment test,

» obligations relating to pensions, eary retirement benefits and other refated benefits granted to employees have been valued and
recorded in accordance with the accounting policies descnbed in notes 1 234 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements We
have reviewed and analyzed the assessment methods of these obligations and the data used and the assumptions appled

We also assessed whether the estimates used were reasonable

These assessments were made In the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and therefore
contnbuied to the opinion we formed which 1s expressed in the first part of this report

Specific vernfication
In accordance with professional standards applicable in France, we have also venfied the information given in the group’s Management
Raport We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consclidated financial statements
Neuilly-sur-Seine, February 159, 2007
The Statutory Auchitors

PncewaterhouseCoopers Audit Deloitte & Associes

Etienne Bons Etienne Jacquemin

{1} Those foatnotes refer respectively to the note 1 0-1 on page 17 and the rote 1 v on page 19 of the notes to the consolated financial statements
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STATUTORY AUDITORS' REPORT, PREPARED IN ACCORDANGCE WITH THE LAST PARAGRAPH OF
ARTICLE L. 225-235 OF THE FRENCH COMMERCIAL CODE, ON THE REPORT PREPARED BY THE

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF L'OREAL, ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL PROCEDURES RELATING

TO THE PREPARATION AND TREATMENT OF FINANCGIAL AND ACCOUNTING INFORMATION

(Year ended December 31+, 2006)

This 15 a free transiation into Enghsh of the Statutory Auditors” report 1ssued in the French language and1s provided solely for the conve-
mence of Enghsh speaking readers This report should be read in compunction with, and construed i accordance with, French law and
professional auditing standards apphcable in France

In our cagacity as Statutory Auditors of L'Creal and in accordance with the last paragraph of Article L 225-235 of the French Commercial
Code (Code de commerce), we report to you on the report prepared by the Chairman of the Board of Directors of your company in
accordance with Articie L 225-37 of the French Commercial Code for the year ended December 315, 2006

In his report, the Chairman reports, in parkcular on the condiions for the preparation and arganization of the Board of Directors' work
and the nternal control procedures implemented by the company

it 1s our responsibility to report to you our observations on the information set out In the Charman s Report on the internal control pro-
cedures relating to the preparation and treaiment of financial and accounting information

We performed our procedures in accordance with professional gudelines applicable in France These require us to perform procedures
to assess the fairness of the Information set out In the Charman’s Report on the mternal contral procedures relating o the preparation
and procassing of financial and accounting information These procedures notably consisted of

» obtarung an understanding of the objectives and general organization of internal control, as well as the internal conirol procedures
relating to the preparation and processing of financial and accounting information, as set out in the Chairman’s Report,

« obtarung an understanding of the work performed to support the information given in the report

On the basis of these procedures, we have no matters to repert In connection with the information given on the internal control proce-

dures relating to the preparation and processing of financiai and accounting information, contained in the Chauirman of the Board's
report, prepared in accordance with Article L 225-37 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce)

Neullly-sur-Seine, February 15th, 2007

The Statutory Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audt Deioitte & Associes

Etienne Boris Etienne Jacquemn
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STATUTORY AUDITORS’ SPECIAL REPORT ON
REGULATED AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS WITH THIRD PARTIES

(Year ended December 31%, 2006)

This 1s a free transiation into English of the Statutory Auditors' special report on regulated agreements and cornmitments issued n the
French language and is provided solely for the convernence of English speaking readers  Thus report on regulated agreementis and com-
mitments should be read in conunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards apph-
cable in France It should be understood that the agreements reported on are only those provided by the French Commercial Code
and the report does not apply to those related party agreements descnbed in IAS 24 or other equivalent accounting standards

In our capacity as Statutory Auditors of your company, we hereby present our report on regulated agreements and commitments with
third parties

Regulated agreements and comymutments with third parties relating to the year ended
In accordance with Article L 225-40 of the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce), we have been adwised of the following
agreements and commitments which were authonzed by the Board of Directors

Qur responsibility dees not include identifying any undisclosed agreements or commitments We are required to report to sharehold-
ers, based on the information provided, on the main terms and condiions of the agreements and commitments that have been dis-
closed to us, without commenting on ther relevance or substance Under the provisions of Article 92 of the March 239, 1967 Decree,
it 1s the responsibiity of shareholders to determine whether the agreements are appropnate and should be approved

We carried out our work In accordance with the professional standards applicable in France These stendards require that we perform
procedures to veriy that the information given to us agrees with the underiying documents

Board of Directors meeting of April 25%, 2006
Agreesment/commitment with Mr Jean-Paul Agon {Managing Director) concerning pension and employee benefits

Nature and purpose

Mr Jean-Paul Agon's employment contract was suspended following his appointment as Managing Director, therefore deprving ium
of the cerresponding pension and employee benefits

Inits meeting of Agnl 250, 2006, the Board cf Directors decided to gve Mr Jean-Paul Agon the same status as a Semior Execuitive dur-
ing his term of office, for the purpose of pension and employee benefits, so that he can continue to enjoy the same benefits as those
receved before his appointment

Terms and condrttons

This scheme provides entitiement to the payment of a Life Annuity, a Spouse Pension and under certain conditions, an Orphan Pension,
calculated based on the following items

= the calculation basis for the Guaranteed Income 1s the average of the salanes of the best three years of the seven calendar years pnor
to the completion of his career at L'Oréal,

« the Retirement Guarantee may not exceed 40% of the calculation basis for the Refirement Guarantee plus 0 5% per year for the first
20 years, then 1% per year for the following 20 years, nor exceed the average of the fixed part of the salanes of the three years used
for the calculation basis

In addition, the Employee Benefits scheme guarantees in the event of *

=temparary disability 90% of his gross income iimited to eight frnes the French Social Secunty cetkng,

*definitive disability a fraction, depending on the exient of disability, ranging up to 90% of his gross income though limited to eght
tmes the French Social Secunty celling,

sdeath the payment of a Spouse Pension to the suniving spouse and the payment of an Education Annuity to each dependent child
There is a ceing apphed 1o the total amount of the Lump Sum Equivalent for these guaraniees

Neutly-sur-Seine, February 15%, 2007
The Statutory Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit Deloitte & Associés

Etienne Bons Etienne Jacquemin
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STATUTORY AUDITORS® SPECIAL REPORT ON THE GRANTING OF SHARE SUBSCRIPTION AND/OR
PURCHASE OPTIONS TO EMPLOYEES OR CORPORATE OFFICERS

Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting of Apni 24%, 2007
{Ninth resolution)

This 15 a free transiation into English of the Statutory Auditors’ report issued in the French language and is provided solely for the con-
venrence of Enghsh speaking readers This report should be read m coryunction with, and construed i accordance with, French law
and professtonal auditing standards applicable in France

As Statutory Auditors of your company and n accordance with Article L 225-177 of the French Commerciad Code (Codie de commerce)
and Article 174-19 of the Decree of March 231, 1967, we hereby present our report on the granting of share subscnption and/or pur-
chase options to employees or carporate officers of L'Oreal and companies and economic interest groups directly or indirectly related
to L'Oreal as defined by Article L 225-180 of the French Commercial Code

It 1s the responsibility of the Board of Directors to prepare a report on the reasons for granting share subscnption and/or purchase
options and the propased terms and conditions for setting the subscnption or purchase pnce it 1s our responsibility to comment on
the propased terms and conditions for setting the subscnption or purchase pnce

We performed our procedures in accordance with professional standards applicable in France Those standards require that we verify
that the proposed terms and condtions for setting the subscnption and/or purchase price are disclosed in the Board of Directors' report
and that they comply with legal provisions with regard to shareholder information, and do not appear cbviously Inappropnate

We have no comment to make on the proposed terms and conditions

Neuilly-sur-Seine, February 15m, 2007

The Statutory Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit Deloitte & Associés

Etienne Bonis Etienne Jacquemin
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STATUTORY AUDITORS’ SPECIAL REPORT ON THE ALLOCATION, FOR NO CONSIDERATION,
OF EXISTING SHARES OR SHARES TO BE ISSUED, TO EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of Apnl 24, 2007
{Tenth resolution)

This 1s a free transiation into Enghsh of the Statutory Auditors’ report 1ssued in the French language and 1s provided sofely for the con-
venience of English speaking readers This report should be read n conyunction with, and construed m accordance with, French law
and professional audifing standards apphicable in France

As Statutory Auditors of your company and in accordance with Article L 225-197-1 of the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce),
we have prepared this report on the proposed afiocation, for no consideration, of existing shares or shares to 1ssued, to employees of
L'Oreal or affihated companies as defined by Article L 225-197-2 of the French Commercial Code, or to certain categones of employee
Sharehelders are requested to authonze the Board of Directors, for a penod of twenty-six months as from this General Meeting, to allo-
cate existing shares or shares to be 1ssued for no consideration It 1s the role of the Board of Directors to prepare a report on the trans-
action which it wishes to perform It ts our role, where necessary, to comment on the information given to you on the proposed transaction
In the absence of any professional standards applicable to this transaction, performed pursuant to legislative provisions of December 301,
2004 and December 30, 2006, we performed the procedures we considered necessary Those procedures consisted in venfying that
the proposed terms and conditions presented in the Board of Directors’ report comply with the provisions provided for by law

We have no comment to make on the infermation given in the Board of Directors’ report relating to the proposed transaction

Neully-sur-Seine, February 15%, 2007

The Statutory Auditors

PricewaterhcuseCoopers Audit Deloitte & Associes

Etienne Bons Etienne Jacquermin
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STATUTORY AUDITORS’ SPECIAL REPORT ON THE SHARE CAPITAL INCREASE RESERVED
FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Apnil 24™, 2007
(Eleventh resolution)

This is a free translation into Enghsh of the Statutory Auditors' report issued in the French language and s provided solely for the
corvenience of Enghsh speaking readers This report should be read in comjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French
law and professronal auditing standards apphcable in France

As Statutory Auditors of your company and in accordance with the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) and in particutar
Articles L 225-135 and L 225-138 thereof, we hereby present you with and ask you to approve our report on the proposal to delegate
to the Board of Directors the authonty to perform a share capital Increase, on one or several occasions, reserved for employees (or for-
mer employees) of the company or affilated companies, as defined by Article L 225-180 of the French Commercial Code, who adhere
to a L'Oréal group corporate savings plan as well as any mutual funds wa which such issued shares would be subscribed by such
employees

This proposed share capital Increase 1s submitted to you for approval pursuant to Article L 225-129-6 of the French Commercial Code
and Article L 443-5 of the French Labor Code (Code du trava)

The total number of shares likely to be 1ssued, on one or several occasions, pursuant to ths detegation, cannot exceed 1% of the com-
pany's share capital as of the date of thus Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting

On the basis of its report, the Board of Directors asks you to delegate, for a penod of twenty-six menths, the authonty to decicde one
or several share capital ncreases and to waive your preferential subscription nghts to the shares issued Where appropniate, the Board
of Directors shall set the final terms and conditions of the share capital increases

It 1s the role of the Board of Dwectors to prepare a report in accordance with Articles 154 and 155 of the Decree of March 23, 1967
It 1s our role to comment on the far presentation of financial data taken from the accounts, on the proposed cancellation of preferen-
tial subscnplion nghts and on cerlain other Information concerning the 1ssue presented in this report

We have performed our procedures in accordance with professional standards agphcable in France Those standards require that we
perform procedures to venfy the content of the Board of Directors’ report In respect of this operation and the terms ang conditions for
determining the share ssue price

Subject to the subsequent review of the terms and cond:itions of each share capital increase that the Board of Directors may decide in
connection with this delegation, we have no comment to make on the terms and conditons for determining the share 1ssue price as
set forth in the Board of Directors’ Report

As the share 1ssue price has not yet been set, we do not express an opinion on the final terms and conditions under which the share
capital, or several share capital ncreases, would be performed As a result, we do not express an opinion on the cancellation of your
preferential share subscripton nghts which the Board of Directors has proposed, however, this type of cancellation s a logical element
of the operation submitted to you for approval

In accordance with Articte 155-2 of the Becree of March 2379, 1967, we will prepare an additional report for each share capital increase
that your Board of Directors may decide to perform in connection with the draft delegation which has been submitied 1o you

Neully-sur-Seine, February 15t%, 2007

The Statutory Auditors

PncewaterhouseCoopers Audit Deloitte & Associes

Etienne Bons Etienne Jacquamin
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PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REFERENCE DOCUMENT AND THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Mr Christian Mulliez, Executive Vice-President, Admunistration and Finance, on the authonty of L'Oreal’s Chiel Executive Officer,
Mr Jean-Paul Agon

DECLARATION BY THE PERSON BESPONSIBLE FOR THE REFERENCE DOCUMENT AND
THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

*| declare that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained 10 this Reference Document 1s,
to the best of my knowledge, 1n accordance with the facts and that there is no omession Iikely to affect the faimess of the presentation

| have obtaned a tetter of completion of audit from the Statutory Auditors in which they state that they have venfied the information
relating to the financial position and the financial statements set out In this Reference Document and have read the Refarence Document
N 1is entrety

| certify that to my knowledge, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting stan-
dards and give a true and far view of the assets and hiabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and all the other com-
panes included in the scope of consolidation, and that the management report includes a farr review of the development and performance
of the business and the postion of the company and all the other companies included in the scope of consolidation, together with a
descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties that they face ”

Chchy, March 28%, 2007
On the authonty of the Chief Executive Officer,

Chnshan Muliez
Executive Vice-President Administration and Finance

-t
- e

XIF

In application of Article 212-13 of the General Regulation of the Autonté des Marches Financiers,
this Reference Document was filed with the Autontd des Marches Financiers on March 29m, 2007
This Reference Document may be used in connection with a financial transaction If 1t 1s accompagned
by an information Memorandum approved by the Autonté des Marchés Financiers
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